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Introduction

This report is the work of a single person who was witness to many events within the US government that bear on the issue of the seriousness of the US’s first-strike pre-emptive nuclear war policy. While I personally believe that the risk of the US launching a first-strike using its nuclear capability in the next ten years is only on the order of a 11% risk, such a risk is still quite grave and deserves adequate attention and corrective actions.

For over 40 years I was a remote viewer used as a CIA asset by the US govt..  I was often in direct contact with Directors of Central Intelligence, from Helms to Tenet between the Cuban missile crisis in Oct. 1961 and Aug. 2004.  After I refused to an assignment from Cheney to frame Iran as developing nuclear weapons, in Aug. 2004, I was tortured by secret service agents in the US.  I am a US citizen, yet this was not the first time that I had been tortured in the US.  Truth is often stranger than fiction.

I have written this report because I, like former Secretary of State Robert McNamara, former Attorney General Ramsey Clark, and former President Jimmy Carter, can not remain silent about the dangers of nuclear war given the immoral actions of the US govt. (See the article by Ramsey Clark below). From my insider experience I know that the US govt. has concluded that nuclear war is inevitable and is no longer working towards preventing it.  Instead they have decided to pursue a policy of first-strike pre-emptive nuclear war.  Although this sounds completely suicidal to most people, most people are not aware of the largely classified research that the US govt. has done on radiation abatement through psychokinetic means. Before you say that is impossible you should know that the US Air Force in spending 7.5 million dollars on a study of psychic teleportation and that teleportation of objects have been demonstrated (see http://paranormal.about.com/gi/dynamic/offsite.htm?zi=1/XJ&sdn=paranormal&zu=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.rense.com%2F1.imagesG%2Fteleport.pdf  ).  On page 55-59 of that report of the Quantum Physics theory that could account for teleportation, the Chinese experiments on teleporting pills out of bottles is discussed. The classified US research and demonstrations of teleportation of objects of visible size is not revealed in that report. Radiation abatement can be as simple as teleporting radioactive atoms, much smaller than pills, into the ground to a depth of your choosing.  Since I was involved in much of that research as a gifted psychokinetic expert and trainer, I feel that it is my responsibility to make sure that radiation abatement is used to help the planet, not as a rescue strategy after a first strike.  It is completely immoral and unconscionable to launch nuclear weapons to kill everyone above ground and then reverse the radiation and come out of one’s shelter to have all of the oil just for oneself and one’s progeny.  I can not remain silent given what I know about the US plans, even though they tortured me again last week in Nyon, Switzerland in a makeshift torture chamber in a basement to try to silence me.

A message from Ramsey Clark
The case for impeachment is clear beyond question.

The list of Bush's crimes is long. The “Shock and Awe” invasion was Bush’s war of aggression -- a crime identified as the “the Supreme international crime” by the Nuremberg Tribunal. Remember Falluja, the American Guernica, a virtual destruction of a defenseless city by superior military technology (36,000 homes, 8,400 shops destroyed in the final assault alone); Abu Ghraib, the shameful celebration of sick forms of sexual torture; Haifa Street, Baghdad, where a U.S. helicopter gun ship killed 13 unarmed people and injured 50 dancing around a burned out Bradley Armored Vehicle; Abu Shifa, a small village, where U.S. soldiers were accused of rounding up civilians, forcing them into a room, then opening fire, killing 11 people, including a 75 year-old, a 6 month-old baby, and five children under the age five; Haditha, where Marines murdered 15 defenseless civilians, and injured many more, most women and children; and tiny Guantanamo, where the U.S. has compiled human rights violations in four years that have been denounced by the entire world including the United Nations. Yet President Bush arrogantly refuses to close the Guantanamo prison, or return the land and sovereignty to Cuba while U.S. officials fret over three prisoners who committed suicide in one day to “embarrass the U.S.” 

The grand total of civilian deaths in Iraq is probably more than 250,000, and rapidly growing. (The Lancet Medical Journal) U.S. military deaths exceed 2500, the seriously injured number more than 15,000 and the number who will suffer mental and physical impairment from the occupation of Iraq is in the unknown tens of thousands.   

What respect for human dignity! What reverence for life! What better way to make enemies?

The necessity for citizen action to secure impeachment is also clear beyond question.  The Congress will not act unless We, the People demand it and vote those out of office who fail to respond.

Our government is geared for war as directed by transnational corporations, domestic industries, and the corporate media.

Both branches of our One Party system, Democrat and Republican, favor the use of force to have their way.  Consider, 

· (1) Regime Change in Iran (1953) the Shah replacing democratically elected Mossadegh; Eisenhower (R); 

· (2) Regime Change in Guatemala (1954) military government for democratically elected Arbenz; Eisenhower (R); 

· (3) Regime Change in Congo (1961) assassination of Patrice Lumumba, Eisenhower (R) 

· (4) the Vietnam War (1959-1975), Eisenhower (R), Kennedy (D), Johnson (D), Nixon (R); 

· (5) Invasion of Dominican Republic (1965), Johnson (D); 

· (6) Contra Warfare against Nicaragua (1981-1988), resulting in regime change from the Sandinistas to corrupt capitalists; Reagan (R); 

· (7) Attack and occupation of Grenada (population 110,000)(1983-1987) Reagan (R); 

· (8) Aerial attack on the sleeping cities of Tripoli and Benghazi, Libya, (1986) Reagan (R); 

· (9) Invasion of Panama Regime Change (1989-1990), George H. W. Bush (R); 

· (10) Gulf War (1991), George H. W. Bush (R); 

· (11) "Humanitarian" occupation of Somalia leading to 10,000 Somali deaths (1992-1993) George H. W. Bush (R) and Bill Clinton (D); 

· (12) Aerial attacks on Iraq (1993-2001) Bill Clinton (D); 

· (13) War against Yugoslavia (1999) 23,000 bombs and missiles dropped on Yugoslavia, Bill Clinton (D) 

· (14) Missile Attack (21 Tomahawk Cruise Missiles) destroying the Al Shifa Pharmaceutical Plant in Khartoum which provided the majority of all medicines for Sudan (1998) Bill Clinton (D); 

· (15) Invasion and Occupation of Afghanistan, Regime Change (2001-present) George W. Bush (R); 

· (16) War of Aggression against Iraq and Hostile Occupation (2003)-present) George W. Bush (R); 

· (17) Regime Change in Haiti (2004) Democratically elected Aristide for three years of chaos and systematic killing, George W. Bush (R).   

There have been major aggressions every several years.
Remember that every Congress in the past half century has approved excessive military budgets and the last three have approved increases that have made the U.S. military budget larger than those of all other nations combined.

The U.S. will remain a military threat to the world until it vastly reduces its military expenditures.  The single highest priority for peace is cutting the U.S. military budget.  The United States government may have been able to outspend the Soviet Union into economic collapse in the Cold War arms race, injuring the entire planet in the process.  Now Bush has entered a new arms race and is provoking a Second Cold War with China. Yet what can China do, as the U.S. builds a first-strike oriented missile shield and uses Japan and a huge advanced military base at Pyongtaek on Korea's west coast, not 500 miles from Beijing?

The U.S. at this time is capable of striking any place on earth with a nuclear armed missile within one hour of the order to fire, launched from a Trident II, or other nuclear weapons system.  We are at this time spending billions on a new generation of nuclear weapons that can be used tactically, against four blocks of Falluja, or an alleged Al Queda camp in Pakistan.  At the same time, we threaten Iran and others for seeking to develop nuclear energy with the claim that they may build a crude bomb.  Yet the only defense a nation today has to U.S. militarism is the threat of nuclear retaliation.  The U.S. is seeking total dismantlement and prohibition of all weapons of mass destruction everywhere else, because it possesses the vast majority of all WMD’s and far superior delivery systems.

George Bush loved being a War President while he was winning - winning over the bodies of impoverished and defenseless people, that is.  Someone told him only war presidents can be great presidents.  He will love war again if his polls go up. 

President Bush would rather make enemies by the use of force to have his way, than seek agreement with friends by helping others and recognizing their rights and interests.  He prefers to go it alone, and then entice or coerce whatever help he can get from others, whether it is for Iraq, global warming, the prohibition of land mines, or the use of minors in war, addressing hunger, poverty, AIDS, natural disaster relief, or most United Nations activities, and absolutely, the International Criminal Court which might indict him.  He is spared defeat at the polls because he cannot seek re-election. 

He can be held accountable only by impeachment. The American people must not acquiesce to his crimes.

Consider that all the major candidates, Democrat and Republican -- Clinton, Edwards, Kerry, McCain, Frist, -- voted for the war and/or favor the Iraq Occupation.

To stop U.S. militarism, the U.S. must vastly reduce its military expenditures, 50% in five years and further down from there on. It must use those savings to combat poverty, hunger, sickness and unemployment at home and abroad.

The U.S. must seek friends by word and deed, rather than make enemies.  The harm George Bush has done to the way the rest of the world sees our country will take a generation to overcome, after we change our warlike ways.

But the only way to convince the world that We the People do not approve of the conduct of George W. Bush is to impeach him.  Otherwise we can only be seen as approving of his acts, or as powerless to prevent them.

And the only way we can deter the next, and future Presidents, from seeking war rather than peace is to impeach George W. Bush and his key advisors now.  Only then will political leadership know the American people will not accept more war…

Ramsey Clark
June 15, 2006

How can it be that the US administration would be willing to take such a drastic step as a first strike pre-emptive war?  I tried to answer that question in the following article that I wrote this week:

As a California physician deeply concerned about preventing nuclear war and accidents, I am observing the United Nations Disarmament Conference firsthand in Geneva. Yesterday, the loopholes in the current treaties to prevent an arms race in outer space were discussed. The US is fueling such a nuclear arms race through its continued development of new nuclear weapons, its massive funding of a Star Wars missile defense shield and its breaking of the Anti-Ballistic Missile (ABM) Treaty, along with its failure to ratify the Comprehensive Test Ban Treaty. It is not lost on other countries that the Star Wars “missile defense shield” is technically unfeasible as a protection against a nuclear war, and could at best work only against a few incoming missiles; those left to retaliate after a US first strike. That is, massive sums of money are being spent by the US to protect itself starting with the assumption that the US strikes first with an element of complete surprise. Few people have really digested that fact emotionally ---- the US has a first strike pre-emptive nuclear war policy. Former Secretary of State for Kennedy, Robert McNamara, decried that long-standing US foreign policy saying “ At the risk of appearing simplistic and provocative, I would characterize current US nuclear weapons policy as immoral, illegal, militarily unnecessary, and dreadfully dangerous. “ (May/June 2005, Foreign Policy pg. 29). 

In the face of such a first strike policy, is perhaps not surprising then that the US has ensured that enriched uranium and plutonium, even at weapon’s grade levels, is not regulated worldwide by the International Atomic Energy Commission (IAEA).  The US government just recently put on the table in Geneva a Fissile Materials Cut-Off Treaty, a treaty whose purpose is ostensibly to ban the production of weapons grade materials as a step towards global disarmament.  But the US proposal for the treaty shrugs, ignores the hundreds of tons of weapons grade fissile materials already in existence, and says that verification is impossible.  Excuse me, when I was involved in SALT I and SALT II negotiations over nuclear missile reductions, Reagan didn’t say verification couldn’t be accomplished. He set the US to the task of figuring out how to do it.  Yankee know-how figured out how to build the atomic bomb in a few years during WWII.  The US hasn’t figured out how to control nuclear technology and its proliferation because it hasn’t seriously tried.  It is too busy using the threat of nuclear war to advance its stated neo-con objective of full spectrum dominance of the world (see ….).

The IAEA cleared Iran of charges that it diverted uranium from peaceful to weapons use through enrichment. Yet Iran is still tarred with the same brush of suspicion that erroneously tarred Iraq. Even the US administration has been forced to admit no WMD were found in Iraq, that it went to war based on false intelligence.  In fact, the Downing Street Memo reveals that both the US and UK knew the intelligence did not justify the war and purposely hid that truth from the public. It is not the Iraqis nor the Iranians that are sitting armed to the gills with long range nuclear missiles and saying that they have a right to use them when and where they want unilaterally without UN approval, it is my own country, the United Satanists of America, I mean, the United States of America. Please excuse my Freudian slip, but I thought Christ said “Turn the other cheek” not “Kill until there is nothing moving left to kill”.  

Nelson Mandela said publicly, with respect to the US’s action in the Middle East;

 “What I am condemning is that one power … is now wanting to plunge the world into a holocaust”. He also attacked the United States’s record on human rights, criticizing the dropping of atomic bombs on the Japanese cities of Hiroshima and Nagaski in World War II. “Because they decided to kill innocent people in Japan, who are still suffering from that, who are they now to pretend that they are the policeman of the world?...” he asked. “lf there is a country which has committed unspeakable atrocities, it is the United States of America...They don’t care for human beings.” http://www.thirdworldtraveler.com/America/Mandela_Blasts_Bush.html) .

After Mai Lai, Abu Gharib, and the recent killings of pregnant women and children in Iraq by US Marines, it would be hard to dispute Mandela’s statement. Instead of being ashamed of their pro-war, pro-torture proclivities, some members of the US administration have justified this callous disregard for human rights;

 “John Yoo publicly argued there is no law that could prevent the President from ordering the torture of a child of a suspect in custody – including by crushing that child’s testicles.  This came out in response to a question in a December 1st debate in Chicago with Notre Dame professor and international human rights scholar Doug Cassel. 

What is particularly chilling and revealing about this is that John Yoo was a key architect post-9/11 Bush Administration legal policy. As a deputy assistant to then-Attorney General John Ashcroft, John Yoo authored a number of legal memos arguing for unlimited presidential powers to order torture of captive suspects, and to declare war anytime, any where, and on anyone the President deemed a threat.” (See http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article11488.htm )

Once upon a time, the international community boycotted investments in South Africa to not be complicit with apartheid.  Yet, the injuries and deaths rained down by war are much worse. The damage to the human genome through the use of depleted uranium (which is still one third as radioactive as uranium and has a half life of 4.5 million years) in Iraq, Afghanistan, and Yugoslavia is already irreversible.  How can people invest in a country that reserves the right to pre-emptively annihilate the species’ DNA and the planet itself?  Why have not economic sanctions been imposed on it already?

We can not live in a secure world without getting to global nuclear disarmament—nuclear weapons are just too dangerous! The risk of annihilation is cumulative and will result in catastrophe unless we bring the risk down to zero. The US government is speaking with forked-tongue when it complains about other countries that might possibly be enriching uranium or plutonium, while it stockpiles of hundreds of tons of enriched weapons-grade fissile materials.  These enriched products in nuclear weapons states, US, Russia, France, China, and the UK, are not even regulated by the International Atomic Energy Agency and properly accounted for to keep them out of the hands of terrorists. Are our own politicians intelligent and unfailingly kind enough to be trusted to play games with our future?  We need a real effort towards non-proliferation of nuclear weapons.  Why is the US administration making a loophole for India that would allow it to avoid inspections of any nuclear facilities that they want exempted?  Rational thinking demands that we have across the board strict accounting of all stockpiles of fissile materials internationally.  So far we do not even have accounting system as good as an average bookkeeper working for the local Seven-Eleven convenience store to prevent the theft of M&Ms. That is truly a disgrace. It is time to get serious and demand a strict accounting of fissile materials from Congress and the White House, and to put an end to its first strike pre-emptive nuclear war policy.

 The US spends about half of its GDP on military expenditures according to the American Friends Service Committee.  Yet it is very vulnerable to disruption of its command and control centers through an attack on its satellites.  So, all that money does little to effectively protect the United States from attack.  In fact, there is nothing except the sanity and kindness of the Russians and the Chinese that is keeping us alive in this nuclear era.  Instead of relying on that restraint on their parts, as wonderful as it has been, we should take the threat against us out of their hands by negotiating to get all these WMD off the planet.  We have already outlawed chemical and biological weapons, though much could be done to strengthen those treaties, so we can outlaw nuclear weapons too.  Why hasn’t the US jumped on the bandwagon for global nuclear disarmament like other sane countries have done?

Is it because they want the threat of nuclear war hanging over your head to control your actions?  The US got soldiers to volunteer for dismemberment and death in Iraq by citing the threat of WMD.  What was obtained was oil, defense contracts for Carlyle Defense Industries (originally owned by Bushs and Bin Ladens), and unbid reconstruction contracts for Halliburton ( Cheney was CEO of and has financially profited ).  So they have used that threat of WMD to enrich themselves personally.  This is a clear conflict of interests.  In the case of my own California representative to the House of Representatives, Duke Cunningham, who was on the Defense Appropriation committee, bids were granted to defense contractors that the Pentagon didn’t even want the services of and those contractors had each of their employees contribute the maximum allowable to the Republican Party coffers.  It was a straight-line fix of taxpayer’s monies into the pockets of corrupt politicians, paying for their fancy houses, vacations, and swimming pools.

Recall for a moment the Savings and Loan Scandal of the 1980’s which stole about 16,000 USD per taxpayer out of the federal coffers.  Ex-CIA officer Al Martin, in his book The Conspirators said that he was involved in writing a lot of the scams of that Iran-Contra Era.  The basic scam, he said, was to go to the banks and ask them to make an unsecured loan to help “our boys in Central America stem the red tide in Nicaragua”.  After all Nicaragua was about to invade the US, Reagan said.  So the inadequately regulated Savings and Loans did what the CIA requested until they collapsed.  In Martin’s book, he quotes Ollie North who was one of his bosses as being crushed under the knowledge that only 3% of all the assets collected for the Contras went to them.  The rest of the money disappeared into the pockets of politicians.  He then quotes Bush, Sr. as saying that if the people of the United States knew what we had done “they would lynch us”.  It should be noted that Bush Senior was Director of the Central Intelligence Agency (1976–1977), Chairman of the First International Bank in Houston (1977–1980), and the 43rd Vice President of the United States under President Ronald Reagan (1981–1989), and then President (1989–1993). As a result of that fear of being lynched, Martin says that contingency plans were made that included having massive prison facilities ready around the country in case they needed to arrest all of Congress, the journalists, and intelligentsia. In fact, there are currently 800 prisons in the US that have guards waiting ready to be used and Halliburton has the contract (http://www.prisonplanet.com/articles/february2006/210206_b_Halliburton.htm ).  In addition, Operation Sledgehammer was a plan whereby Ollie North would stage a fake coup against the administration if the corruption became known so that they could still be in power with just a surface make-over.  This kind of shadow government that retained the reins of power regardless of surface appearance first came to my attention during the Iran Contra hearings while Reagan was still in power.  Senator Daniel K. Inouye of Hawaii was in charge of those hearings—his nephew told me that the hearings were about to uncover this when the Congressmen decided it could too disillusion the US public.  So they covered it up by going into closed session instead of correcting the problem.  That was the moment in which the United States ceased to be a democracy. The next contingency plan that Martin discusses in his book had to do with how to make sure that the reins of power would not be loosed if the corruption came to light.  It was called Operation Orpheus and Al Martin was briefed on it directly by Ollie North.  That plan called for a “limited nuclear exchange” between the US and another country, such as Russia or China, in order to call for and impose Martial Law in the US.  Al Martin asked Ollie, “How many people would be expended in such an operation?”

Ollie North replied “It is just a number, it doesn’t matter.”

But Martin persisted and asked again, whereupon Ollie said “Somewhere around 50-70 million people in the US.”

Al Martin goes on to say that Ollie went to the USSR not long afterwards and thought that he made such an arrangement.  He also talks in his book about the US selling China nuclear missiles out of Edgewell Arsenals at a fraction of their true cost.  He said that these missiles thus were paid for by the US taxpayers.  They ended up getting pointed at the US, not surprisingly given Operation Orpheus.

I can attest to the fact that the US did indeed sell completely operational long range nuclear missiles to China in the late 1980’s.  It was a fact that made me very mad because the year before the US had asked me to recover a nuclear detonator that the Chinese had stolen from a Michigan plant and I had risked my life to recover it.  So I was not a happy camper to find out that against all rational national security concerns, the administration had arranged the sale complete with nuclear payload.  Certainly, this was what the nuclear non-proliferation treaty was meant to prevent.

Anyone who asserts that I am harming US national security by my actions, should consider whether it is in the national security of the US to have global disarmament versus having long range nuclear missiles pointed at it just to ensure the continued monopoly of corrupt power in control.

But what is not in that brief article on the reason that the US administration is motivated to go to nuclear war, is my insider knowledge of how I know that that is a contingency plan that they have that they give high priority to.  This report addresses how I become an insider, the access I had, and the assignments that I was given that put me in the center of this issue of US nuclear war policy.

Because several topics unfamiliar to the average reader have to be addressed, the background material covers a little over 100 pages. That is, the mind of that eye-witness is not a standard one, but one “designed” by the US intelligence community for its use.  This mind was designed starting at age 3 to be amnesic for its intelligence use, yet provide accurate detailed debriefings when being used by the intelligence agencies. In addition, it was selected and designed to be a remote viewer with special skills. The issue of whether the memories of such a mind are to be believed is thus central to the understanding of the report itself.  

Normally, if a person tells you something unbelievably strange or horrible, one concludes that the person is crazy or lying. However, if the person is a torture survivor, the fact that the content it horrible and strange is not disconfirming, but confirming, as torture chambers are by their nature full of horrible and strange experiences. Thus, if a person says that they were forced to eat someone’s testicles, to evaluate whether they are crazy you need to know whether they were at a torture facility in which others report the same experience.  If they were, then they are not crazy even though they reported to you something so bizarre and dreadful that you initially concluded that they must be crazy or a liar. Even if others do not report it, it may still be true.  Others might not report it because it was too embarrassing, because they did not have the same torturer, because that torturer no longer works there or merely moved on to a new pet fetish. Or it could be that that torture is reserved only for those who fear it or for only a specific nationality of victim, such as an Italian male to whom it has cultural significance related to the Mafia.

Now suppose that a person reports to you that while sitting in Virginia she drew a picture of a Soviet military base in Minsk Russia and it was pretty accurate. That person sounds crazy on the surface of it.  But suppose she says that she was at Langley Virginia, at CIA Headquarters, when she did the drawing and that the CIA judged the accuracy of that drawing by comparing it to satellite images and to photos taken by a spy of that base. Now suppose you find out about the 7 military officers who have written books about their experience at Fort Detrick about being asked to draw Soviet bases and they also say their drawings were confirmed as pretty accurate.( See books by Lyn Buchanan, McMoneagle, Morehouse, etc. ) And suppose you see CIA documents that say that the CIA intended to create spies that were psychic, and how much money they spent to do so. What one has found out is that being inside an intelligence setting is like being inside a torture chamber in the above example.  Whatever criteria you usually use to judge craziness and lying in your normal life no longer applies because you have no way of knowing what that agency in doing in there. The only way to judge then is to find out what other people say who came out of there and what the official documents say.  Since the official documents are there to whitewash the truth, then where there is a discrepancy between what several independent witnesses say and what the documents say, you better trust the witnesses.

The challenge for the reader is thus to not discredit the eye-witness because of the reader’s naiveté and lack of inside information.  If a witness in this case reported that they teleported, one would of course be shocked.  But until you found out whether the Air Force and CIA had funded teleportation research and whether others independently report teleporting, you could not conclude that the witness was either lying or was crazy. In some cases you could not get that information and you would be forced to withhold judgment pending such information becoming unclassified.  That said, this report is not about teleporting at all and the reader can relax.  Central to it though are issues relating to the more mundane skill of remote viewing for which much declassified information exists beyond the usual official denials.

The first 100 some pages are thus the information that you need to help you become oriented into the strange and bizarre world of intelligence, its mind control projects, and its genocides.  

Context of the Information

In the last few years, the US has violated 11 major treaties according to the Friend’s National Legislative Committee, driving us closer towards nuclear war through loss of constraints.  Since 9-11 international law has been replaced by the law of the jungle---torture in the name of fighting terror. Though how one can stop terror by torturing people remains at best puzzling, and at worst a diabolic attempt to confound the moral mind.

Almost everyone has seen the pictures of Abu Gharib and knows that horrible, sexually degrading torture occurred there.  The US blamed it on a few “bad apples”.  But human rights groups like Amnesty International and Human Rights Watch have documented that other US prisons in Iraq and Afghanistan are similar.  Seymour Hersh in Chain of Command has shown that the impetus for torture came from the top of the US govt.  That was confirmed last year when Dick Cheney went around Congress trying to defeat the McCain amendment to prevent inhumane treatment from being added to the Defense Bill. Recently a lawyer for the White House admitted that the US administration reserves the right to torture a child by crushing its testicles even though the child is innocent of any wrong doing ( see www.informationclearinghouse.info/article11488.htm )
Most people even know that the US has long been involved in training torturers at the School of the Americas, which has had its name changed, but is still operating in Georgia, USA.  Many people also know that the US has engaged in a series of bloody and illegal wars around the world that have killed millions of people in the Third World (See John Stockwell’s talk THE SECRET WARS OF THE CIA: http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article4068.htm He is the highest ranking CIA official who has defected from the CIA.).  And some people know of US experiments on children, including feeding them radioactive oatmeal under the guise of studying “nutrition” or LSD continuously for months on end (See Bluebird: the deliberate creation of multiple personalities by psychiatrist by Colin Ross, MD or see accompanying excerpt called Excerpts from Bluebird-Current Version2.doc, pg. 11).  Perhaps they have even heard of MKULTRA and the mind control experiments for which 9 Canadians and at least 1 US citizen have received substantial financial compensation through the courts (See accompanying excerpts called Excerpts from Bluebird-Current Version2.doc and Psychiatry and the CIA-excerpts2.doc and see internet articles at www.raven1.net/ra1.htm  and www.mindcontrolforums.com/radio/ckln10.htm ).

Nelson Mandela pointed out that the US was the only country in the world that has used nuclear weapons on civilians.  The US is also the only country so far to have a judgment against it by the International Court at the Hague as a terrorist nation for its actions against Nicaragua in the 1980’s (See Noam Chomsky’s books) .  

That is not to say that there have not been massive human rights violations elsewhere in the world that are every bit as bad.  It is only to say that unthinkably barbarous deeds have often already been done. It is likely the defense mechanism of the naïve person to refuse to believe the eye-witness testimony of survivors. We would like to believe that the Holocaust, that killed millions in the name of racial purity, never happened.  In fact, nations have planned to kill others in as large a number as they could manage with their available technology.  Not content with that they devised new ways so that they could kill more people faster and more efficiently. The Cult of Death exists and war is its sacrificial banquet.

In some sense the whole of the Cold War could be viewed as an extension of the Final Solution, in so much as millions of people of color were killed in the proxy wars between the US and the USSR. To believe that you would have to investigate whether  those in charge of the policies had the Nazi-like philosophy and the intention to kill third world people.  There is no doubt that they had the means to do that.  The result is not in question.  However, as a Final solution the Cold Wars and the famines in Third World countries were a failure as judged by DCI’s, like DCI Gates under Bush, Sr, that I had private conversations with. He was very concerned that the world continued to be over-populated by people “who should never have been allowed to breed in the first place.” There are White Supremacists in the world.  Many of them are willing to hide their true feelings and act in ways to fool others.  The urge to have one’s genes survive to very strong, genetically inbreed and includes, not just the urge to mate, but the urge to kill off the competition.

It is however equally true that the power of agape has grown over time.  Now we know how to stop wars using methods developed by Gandhi, by Nelson Mandela, by Martin Luther King, Jr. and by ordinary people around the world like you and me.  Love is more powerful than any number of tanks, planes and soldiers, as Gandhi demonstrated against the British Army.  Never believe what you do will not make the difference.  Each great or saintly person is also imperfect and started out just like us.  The enemy is not the US or people in the US govt.  Each government is composed of good people and bad people and each person has moments of goodness and badness.  The enemy is our own selfishness which is holding back the light of the all-knowing all-accomplishing wisdom flowing through us. 

There is no limit to goodness—it can grow infinitely.  But darkness is limited—evil destroys including itself.  A single candle can illuminate the darkness and no amount of darkness can overcome that light. Corruption is ineffective in getting jobs done.  Chaos is not good at building—it lacks a stable foundation.  Favoring one’s friends leads to not having the power to accomplish one’s goals. Hatred and intolerance prevent the cooperation needed to succeed at multi-person tasks.  But love and forgiveness inspire others to do their best and it knits people together.  So hatred and wars are but temporary while agape is forever. 

Those who say that they can change the world and those that say that they cannot are both right. 

Background related to the philosophy of the pre-emptive war policy makers:

“Bush - Nazi Dealings Continued Until 1951” - Federal Documents

By John Buchanan and Stacey Michael
from The New Hampshire Gazette Vol. 248, No. 3, November 7, 2003

http://www.nhgazette.com/cgi-bin/NHGstore.cgi?user_action=detail&catalogno=NN_Bush_Nazi_2

After the seizures in late 1942 of five U.S. enterprises he managed on behalf of Nazi industrialist Fritz Thyssen, Prescott Bush, the grandfather of President George W. Bush, failed to divest himself of more than a dozen "enemy national" relationships that continued until as late as 1951, newly-discovered U.S. government documents reveal.

Furthermore, the records show that Bush and his colleagues routinely attempted to conceal their activities from government investigators.

Bush's partners in the secret web of Thyssen-controlled ventures included former New York Governor W. Averell Harriman and his younger brother, E. Roland Harriman. Their quarter-century of Nazi financial transactions, from 1924-1951, were conducted by the New York private banking firm, Brown Brothers Harriman.

The White House did not return phone calls seeking comment.

Although the additional seizures under the Trading with the Enemy Act did not take place until after the war, documents from The National Archives and Library of Congress confirm that Bush and his partners continued their Nazi dealings unabated. These activities included a financial relationship with the German city of Hanover and several industrial concerns. They went undetected by investigators until after World War Two.

At the same time Bush and the Harrimans were profiting from their Nazi partnerships, W. Averell Harriman was serving as President Franklin Delano Roosevelt's personal emissary to the United Kingdom during the toughest years of the war. On October 28, 1942, the same day two key Bush-Harriman-run businesses were being seized by the U.S. government, Harriman was meeting in London with Field Marshall Smuts to discuss the war effort.

Denial and Deceit

While Harriman was concealing his Nazi relationships from his government colleagues, Cornelius Livense, the top executive of the interlocking German concerns held under the corporate umbrella of Union Banking Corporation (UBC), repeatedly tried to mislead investigators, and was sometimes supported in his subterfuge by Brown Brothers Harriman.

All of the assets of UBC and its related businesses belonged to Thyssen-controlled enterprises, including his Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart in Rotterdam, the documents state.

Nevertheless, Livense, president of UBC, claimed to have no knowledge of such a relationship. "Strangely enough, (Livense) claims he does not know the actual ownership of the company," states a government report.

H.D Pennington, manager of Brown Brothers Harriman and a director of UBC "for many years," also lied to investigators about the secret and well-concealed relationship with Thyssen's Dutch bank, according to the documents.

Investigators later reported that the company was "wholly owned" by Thyssen's Dutch bank.

Despite such ongoing subterfuge, U.S. investigators were able to show that "a careful examination of UBC's general ledger, cash books and journals from 1919 until the present date clearly establish that the principal and practically only source of funds has been Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart."

In yet another attempt to mislead investigators, Livense said that $240,000 in banknotes in a safe deposit box at Underwriters Trust Co. in New York had been given to him by another UBC-Thyssen associate, H.J. Kouwenhoven, managing director of Thyssen's Dutch bank and a director of the August Thyssen Bank in Berlin. August Thyssen was Fritz's father. 

The government report shows that Livense first neglected to report the $240,000, then claimed that it had been given to him as a gift by Kouwenhoven. However, by the time Livense filed a financial disclosure with U.S. officials, he changed his story again and reported the sum as a debt rather than a cash holding.

In yet another attempt to deceive the governments of both the U.S. and Canada, Livense and his partners misreported the facts about the sale of a Canadian Nazi front enterprise, La Cooperative Catholique des Consommateurs de Combustible, which imported German coal into Canada via the web of Thyssen-controlled U.S. businesses.

"The Canadian authorities, however, were not taken in by this maneuver," a U.S. government report states. The coal company was later seized by Canadian authorities.

After the war, a total of 18 additional Brown Brothers Harriman and UBC-related client assets were seized under The Trading with the Enemy Act, including several that showed the continuation of a relationship with the Thyssen family after the initial 1942 seizures.

The records also show that Bush and the Harrimans conducted business after the war with related concerns doing business in or moving assets into Switzerland, Panama, Argentina and Brazil - all critical outposts for the flight of Nazi capital after Germany's surrender in 1945. Fritz Thyssen died in Argentina in 1951.

One of the final seizures, in October 1950, concerned the U.S. assets of a Nazi baroness named Theresia Maria Ida Beneditka Huberta Stanislava Martina von Schwarzenberg, who also used two shorter aliases. Brown Brothers Harriman, where Prescott Bush and the Harrimans were partners, attempted to convince government investigators that the baroness had been a victim of Nazi persecution and therefore should be allowed to maintain her assets.

"It appears, rather, that the subject was a member of the Nazi party," government investigators concluded.

At the same time the last Brown Brothers Harriman client assets were seized, Prescott Bush announced his Senate campaign that led to his election in 1952.

Investigation Investigated?

In 1943, six months after the seizure of UBC and its related companies, a government investigator noted in a Treasury Department memo dated April 8, 1943 that the FBI had inquired about the status of any investigation into Bush and the Harrimans.

"I gave 'a memorandum' which did not say anything about the American officers of subject," the investigator wrote. "(Another investigator) wanted to know whether any specific action had been taken by us with respect to them."

No further action beyond the initial seizures was ever taken, and the newly-confirmed records went unseen by the American people for six decades.

What Does It All Mean?

So why are the documents relevant today?

"The story of Prescott Bush and Brown Brothers Harriman is an introduction to the real history of our country," says L.A. art book publisher and historian Edward Boswell. "It exposes the money-making motives behind our foreign policies, dating back a full century. The ability of Prescott Bush and the Harrimans to bury their checkered pasts also reveals a collusion between Wall Street and the media that exists to this day."

Sheldon Drobny, a Chicago entrepreneur and philanthropist who will soon launch a liberal talk radio network, says the importance of the new documents is that they prove a long pattern of Bush family war profiteering that continues today via George H.W. Bush's intimate relationship with the Saudi royal family and the bin Ladens, conducted via the super-secret Carlyle Group, whose senior advisers include former U.S. Secretary of State James A. Baker III.

In the post-9/11 world, Drobny finds the Bush-Saudi connection deeply troubling. "Trading with the enemy is trading with the enemy," he says. "That's the relevance of the documents and what they show."

Lawrence Lader, an abortion rights activist and the author of more than 40 books, says "the relevance lies with the fact that the sitting President of the United States would lead the nation to war based on lies and against the wishes of the rest of the world." Lader and others draw comparisons between President Bush's invasion of Iraq and Hitler's occupation of Poland in 1939 - the event that sparked World War Two.

However, others see an even larger significance.

"The discovery of the Bush-Nazi documents raises new questions about the role of Prescott Bush and his influential business partners in the secret emigration of Nazi war criminals, which allowed them to escape justice in Germany," says Bob Fertik, co-founder of Democrats.com and an amateur 'Nazi hunter.' "It also raises questions about the importance of Nazi recruits to the CIA in its early years, in what was called Operation Paperclip, and Prescott Bush's role in that dark operation."

Fertik and others, including former Justice Department Nazi war crimes prosecutor John Loftus, a Constitutional attorney in Miami, and a former Veterans Administration official, believe Prescott Bush and the Harrimans should have been tried for treason.

What Next?

Now, say Fertik and Loftus, there should be a Congressional investigation into the Bush family's Nazi past and its concealment from the American people for 60 years.

"The American people have a right to know, in detail, about this hidden chapter of our history," says Loftus, author of The Secret War Against the Jews. "That's the only way we can understand it and deal with it."

For his part, Fertik is pessimistic that even a Congressional investigation can thwart the war profiteering of the present Bush White House. "It's impossible to stop it," he says, "when the worst war profiteers are George W. Bush and Dick Cheney, who operate in secrecy behind the vast powers of the White House."

---

John Buchanan is a journalist and magazine writer based in Miami Beach. He can be reached by e-mail at jtwg@bellsouth.net.

Stacey Michael is a New Orleans-based journalist and the author of Religious Conceit. His most recent book is Weapons of Mass Dysfunction: The Art of "Faith-Based" Politics, due in early 2004. He can be reached by email at staceymichael@religiousconceit.com.
How Bush's grandfather helped Hitler's rise to power 
http://www.guardian.co.uk/germany/article/0,,1312542,00.html
Ben Aris in Berlin and Duncan Campbell in Washington

Saturday September 25, 2004

The Guardian British Newspaper

Rumours of a link between the US first family and the Nazi war machine have circulated for decades.  Now the Guardian can reveal how repercussions of events that culminated in action under the Trading with the Enemy Act are still being felt by today’s president.
George Bush's grandfather, the late US senator Prescott Bush, was a director and shareholder of companies that profited from their involvement with the financial backers of Nazi Germany. 

The Guardian has obtained confirmation from newly discovered files in the US National Archives that a firm of which Prescott Bush was a director was involved with the financial architects of Nazism.  

His business dealings, which continued until his company's assets were seized in 1942 under the Trading with the Enemy Act, has led more than 60 years later to a civil action for damages being brought in Germany against the Bush family by two former slave labourers at Auschwitz and to a hum of pre-election controversy. 

The evidence has also prompted one former US Nazi war crimes prosecutor to argue that the late senator's action should have been grounds for prosecution for giving aid and comfort to the enemy. 

The debate over Prescott Bush's behaviour has been bubbling under the surface for some time. There has been a steady internet chatter about the "Bush/Nazi" connection, much of it inaccurate and unfair. But the new documents, many of which were only declassified last year, show that even after America had entered the war and when there was already significant information about the Nazis' plans and policies, he worked for and profited from companies closely involved with the very German businesses that financed Hitler's rise to power. It has also been suggested that the money he made from these dealings helped to establish the Bush family fortune and set up its political dynasty. 

Remarkably, little of Bush's dealings with Germany has received public scrutiny, partly because of the secret status of the documentation involving him. But now the multibillion dollar legal action for damages by two Holocaust survivors against the Bush family, and the imminent publication of three books on the subject are threatening to make Prescott Bush's business history an uncomfortable issue for his grandson, George W, as he seeks re-election. 

While there is no suggestion that Prescott Bush was sympathetic to the Nazi cause, the documents reveal that the firm he worked for, Brown Brothers Harriman (BBH), acted as a US base for the German industrialist, Fritz Thyssen, who helped finance Hitler in the 1930s before falling out with him at the end of the decade. The Guardian has seen evidence that shows Bush was the director of the New York-based Union Banking Corporation (UBC) that represented Thyssen's US interests and he continued to work for the bank after America entered the war. 

Tantalising

Bush was also on the board of at least one of the companies that formed part of a multinational network of front companies to allow Thyssen to move assets around the world. 

Thyssen owned the largest steel and coal company in Germany and grew rich from Hitler's efforts to re-arm between the two world wars. One of the pillars in Thyssen's international corporate web, UBC, worked exclusively for, and was owned by, a Thyssen-controlled bank in the Netherlands. More tantalising are Bush's links to the Consolidated Silesian Steel Company (CSSC), based in mineral rich Silesia on the German-Polish border. During the war, the company made use of Nazi slave labour from the concentration camps, including Auschwitz. The ownership of CSSC changed hands several times in the 1930s, but documents from the US National Archive declassified last year link Bush to CSSC, although it is not clear if he and UBC were still involved in the company when Thyssen's American assets were seized in 1942.

Three sets of archives spell out Prescott Bush's involvement. All three are readily available, thanks to the efficient US archive system and a helpful and dedicated staff at both the Library of Congress in Washington and the National Archives at the University of Maryland. 

The first set of files, the Harriman papers in the Library of Congress, show that Prescott Bush was a director and shareholder of a number of companies involved with Thyssen. 

The second set of papers, which are in the National Archives, are contained in vesting order number 248 which records the seizure of the company assets. What these files show is that on October 20 1942 the alien property custodian seized the assets of the UBC, of which Prescott Bush was a director. Having gone through the books of the bank, further seizures were made against two affiliates, the Holland-American Trading Corporation and the Seamless Steel Equipment Corporation. By November, the Silesian-American Company, another of Prescott Bush's ventures, had also been seized. 

The third set of documents, also at the National Archives, are contained in the files on IG Farben, who was prosecuted for war crimes. 

A report issued by the Office of Alien Property Custodian in 1942 stated of the companies that "since 1939, these (steel and mining) properties have been in possession of and have been operated by the German government and have undoubtedly been of considerable assistance to that country's war effort". 

Prescott Bush, a 6ft 4in charmer with a rich singing voice, was the founder of the Bush political dynasty and was once considered a potential presidential candidate himself. Like his son, George, and grandson, George W, he went to Yale where he was, again like his descendants, a member of the secretive and influential Skull and Bones student society. He was an artillery captain in the first world war and married Dorothy Walker, the daughter of George Herbert Walker, in 1921. 

In 1924, his father-in-law, a well-known St Louis investment banker, helped set him up in business in New York with Averill Harriman, the wealthy son of railroad magnate E H Harriman in New York, who had gone into banking. 

One of the first jobs Walker gave Bush was to manage UBC. Bush was a founding member of the bank and the incorporation documents, which list him as one of seven directors, show he owned one share in UBC worth $125. 

The bank was set up by Harriman and Bush's father-in-law to provide a US bank for the Thyssens, Germany's most powerful industrial family. 

August Thyssen, the founder of the dynasty had been a major contributor to Germany's first world war effort and in the 1920s, he and his sons Fritz and Heinrich established a network of overseas banks and companies so their assets and money could be whisked offshore if threatened again. 

By the time Fritz Thyssen inherited the business empire in 1926, Germany's economic recovery was faltering. After hearing Adolf Hitler speak, Thyssen became mesmerised by the young firebrand. He joined the Nazi party in December 1931 and admits backing Hitler in his autobiography, I Paid Hitler, when the National Socialists were still a radical fringe party. He stepped in several times to bail out the struggling party: in 1928 Thyssen had bought the Barlow Palace on Briennerstrasse, in Munich, which Hitler converted into the Brown House, the headquarters of the Nazi party. The money came from another Thyssen overseas institution, the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvarrt in Rotterdam. 

By the late 1930s, Brown Brothers Harriman, which claimed to be the world's largest private investment bank, and UBC had bought and shipped millions of dollars of gold, fuel, steel, coal and US treasury bonds to Germany, both feeding and financing Hitler's build-up to war. 

Between 1931 and 1933 UBC bought more than $8m worth of gold, of which $3m was shipped abroad. According to documents seen by the Guardian, after UBC was set up it transferred $2m to BBH accounts and between 1924 and 1940 the assets of UBC hovered around $3m, dropping to $1m only on a few occasions. 

In 1941, Thyssen fled Germany after falling out with Hitler but he was captured in France and detained for the remainder of the war. 

There was nothing illegal in doing business with the Thyssens throughout the 1930s and many of America's best-known business names invested heavily in the German economic recovery. However, everything changed after Germany invaded Poland in 1939. Even then it could be argued that BBH was within its rights continuing business relations with the Thyssens until the end of 1941 as the US was still technically neutral until the attack on Pearl Harbor. The trouble started on July 30 1942 when the New York Herald-Tribune ran an article entitled "Hitler's Angel Has $3m in US Bank". UBC's huge gold purchases had raised suspicions that the bank was in fact a "secret nest egg" hidden in New York for Thyssen and other Nazi bigwigs. The Alien Property Commission (APC) launched an investigation. 

There is no dispute over the fact that the US government seized a string of assets controlled by BBH - including UBC and SAC - in the autumn of 1942 under the Trading with the Enemy act. What is in dispute is if Harriman, Walker and Bush did more than own these companies on paper. 

Erwin May, a treasury attache and officer for the department of investigation in the APC, was assigned to look into UBC's business. The first fact to emerge was that Roland Harriman, Prescott Bush and the other directors didn't actually own their shares in UBC but merely held them on behalf of Bank voor Handel. Strangely, no one seemed to know who owned the Rotterdam-based bank, including UBC's president. 

May wrote in his report of August 16 1941: "Union Banking Corporation, incorporated August 4 1924, is wholly owned by the Bank voor Handel en Scheepvaart N.V of Rotterdam, the Netherlands. My investigation has produced no evidence as to the ownership of the Dutch bank. Mr Cornelis [sic] Lievense, president of UBC, claims no knowledge as to the ownership of the Bank voor Handel but believes it possible that Baron Heinrich Thyssen, brother of Fritz Thyssen, may own a substantial interest." 

May cleared the bank of holding a golden nest egg for the Nazi leaders but went on to describe a network of companies spreading out from UBC across Europe, America and Canada, and how money from voor Handel travelled to these companies through UBC. 

By September May had traced the origins of the non-American board members and found that Dutchman HJ Kouwenhoven - who met with Harriman in 1924 to set up UBC - had several other jobs: in addition to being the managing director of voor Handel he was also the director of the August Thyssen bank in Berlin and a director of Fritz Thyssen's Union Steel Works, the holding company that controlled Thyssen's steel and coal mine empire in Germany. 

Within a few weeks, Homer Jones, the chief of the APC investigation and research division sent a memo to the executive committee of APC recommending the US government vest UBC and its assets. Jones named the directors of the bank in the memo, including Prescott Bush's name, and wrote: "Said stock is held by the above named individuals, however, solely as nominees for the Bank voor Handel, Rotterdam, Holland, which is owned by one or more of the Thyssen family, nationals of Germany and Hungary. The 4,000 shares hereinbefore set out are therefore beneficially owned and help for the interests of enemy nationals, and are vestible by the APC," according to the memo from the National Archives seen by the Guardian. 

Red-handed

Jones recommended that the assets be liquidated for the benefit of the government, but instead UBC was maintained intact and eventually returned to the American shareholders after the war. Some claim that Bush sold his share in UBC after the war for $1.5m - a huge amount of money at the time - but there is no documentary evidence to support this claim. No further action was ever taken nor was the investigation continued, despite the fact UBC was caught red-handed operating a American shell company for the Thyssen family eight months after America had entered the war and that this was the bank that had partly financed Hitler's rise to power. 

The most tantalising part of the story remains shrouded in mystery: the connection, if any, between Prescott Bush, Thyssen, Consolidated Silesian Steel Company (CSSC) and Auschwitz. 

Thyssen's partner in United Steel Works, which had coal mines and steel plants across the region, was Friedrich Flick, another steel magnate who also owned part of IG Farben, the powerful German chemical company. 

Flick's plants in Poland made heavy use of slave labour from the concentration camps in Poland. According to a New York Times article published in March 18 1934 Flick owned two-thirds of CSSC while "American interests" held the rest. 

The US National Archive documents show that BBH's involvement with CSSC was more than simply holding the shares in the mid-1930s. Bush's friend and fellow "bonesman" Knight Woolley, another partner at BBH, wrote to Averill Harriman in January 1933 warning of problems with CSSC after the Poles started their drive to nationalise the plant. "The Consolidated Silesian Steel Company situation has become increasingly complicated, and I have accordingly brought in Sullivan and Cromwell, in order to be sure that our interests are protected," wrote Knight. "After studying the situation Foster Dulles is insisting that their man in Berlin get into the picture and obtain the information which the directors here should have. You will recall that Foster is a director and he is particularly anxious to be certain that there is no liability attaching to the American directors." 

But the ownership of the CSSC between 1939 when the Germans invaded Poland and 1942 when the US government vested UBC and SAC is not clear. 

"SAC held coal mines and definitely owned CSSC between 1934 and 1935, but when SAC was vested there was no trace of CSSC. All concrete evidence of its ownership disappears after 1935 and there are only a few traces in 1938 and 1939," says Eva Schweitzer, the journalist and author whose book, America and the Holocaust, is published next month. 

Silesia was quickly made part of the German Reich after the invasion, but while Polish factories were seized by the Nazis, those belonging to the still neutral Americans (and some other nationals) were treated more carefully as Hitler was still hoping to persuade the US to at least sit out the war as a neutral country. Schweitzer says American interests were dealt with on a case-by-case basis. The Nazis bought some out, but not others. 

The two Holocaust survivors suing the US government and the Bush family for a total of $40bn in compensation claim both materially benefited from Auschwitz slave labour during the second world war.

Kurt Julius Goldstein, 87, and Peter Gingold, 85, began a class action in America in 2001, but the case was thrown out by Judge Rosemary Collier on the grounds that the government cannot be held liable under the principle of "state sovereignty". 

Jan Lissmann, one of the lawyers for the survivors, said: "President Bush withdrew President Bill Clinton's signature from the treaty [that founded the court] not only to protect Americans, but also to protect himself and his family." 

Lissmann argues that genocide-related cases are covered by international law, which does hold governments accountable for their actions. He claims the ruling was invalid as no hearing took place. 

In their claims, Mr Goldstein and Mr Gingold, honorary chairman of the League of Anti-fascists, suggest the Americans were aware of what was happening at Auschwitz and should have bombed the camp. 

The lawyers also filed a motion in The Hague asking for an opinion on whether state sovereignty is a valid reason for refusing to hear their case. A ruling is expected within a month. 

The petition to The Hague states: "From April 1944 on, the American Air Force could have destroyed the camp with air raids, as well as the railway bridges and railway lines from Hungary to Auschwitz. The murder of about 400,000 Hungarian Holocaust victims could have been prevented." 

The case is built around a January 22 1944 executive order signed by President Franklin Roosevelt calling on the government to take all measures to rescue the European Jews. The lawyers claim the order was ignored because of pressure brought by a group of big American companies, including BBH, where Prescott Bush was a director. 

Lissmann said: "If we have a positive ruling from the court it will cause [president] Bush huge problems and make him personally liable to pay compensation." 

The US government and the Bush family deny all the claims against them. 

In addition to Eva Schweitzer's book, two other books are about to be published that raise the subject of Prescott Bush's business history. The author of the second book, to be published next year, John Loftus, is a former US attorney who prosecuted Nazi war criminals in the 70s. Now living in St Petersburg, Florida and earning his living as a security commentator for Fox News and ABC radio, Loftus is working on a novel which uses some of the material he has uncovered on Bush. Loftus stressed that what Prescott Bush was involved in was just what many other American and British businessmen were doing at the time. 

"You can't blame Bush for what his grandfather did any more than you can blame Jack Kennedy for what his father did - bought Nazi stocks - but what is important is the cover-up, how it could have gone on so successfully for half a century, and does that have implications for us today?" he said. 

"This was the mechanism by which Hitler was funded to come to power, this was the mechanism by which the Third Reich's defence industry was re-armed, this was the mechanism by which Nazi profits were repatriated back to the American owners, this was the mechanism by which investigations into the financial laundering of the Third Reich were blunted," said Loftus, who is vice-chairman of the Holocaust Museum in St Petersburg. 

"The Union Banking Corporation was a holding company for the Nazis, for Fritz Thyssen," said Loftus. "At various times, the Bush family has tried to spin it, saying they were owned by a Dutch bank and it wasn't until the Nazis took over Holland that they realised that now the Nazis controlled the apparent company and that is why the Bush supporters claim when the war was over they got their money back. Both the American treasury investigations and the intelligence investigations in Europe completely bely that, it's absolute horseshit. They always knew who the ultimate beneficiaries were." 

"There is no one left alive who could be prosecuted but they did get away with it," said Loftus. "As a former federal prosecutor, I would make a case for Prescott Bush, his father-in-law (George Walker) and Averill Harriman [to be prosecuted] for giving aid and comfort to the enemy. They remained on the boards of these companies knowing that they were of financial benefit to the nation of Germany." 

Loftus said Prescott Bush must have been aware of what was happening in Germany at the time. "My take on him was that he was a not terribly successful in-law who did what Herbert Walker told him to. Walker and Harriman were the two evil geniuses, they didn't care about the Nazis any more than they cared about their investments with the Bolsheviks." 

What is also at issue is how much money Bush made from his involvement. His supporters suggest that he had one token share. Loftus disputes this, citing sources in "the banking and intelligence communities" and suggesting that the Bush family, through George Herbert Walker and Prescott, got $1.5m out of the involvement. There is, however, no paper trail to this sum. 

The third person going into print on the subject is John Buchanan, 54, a Miami-based magazine journalist who started examining the files while working on a screenplay. Last year, Buchanan published his findings in the venerable but small-circulation New Hampshire Gazette under the headline "Documents in National Archives Prove George Bush's Grandfather Traded With the Nazis - Even After Pearl Harbor". He expands on this in his book to be published next month - Fixing America: Breaking the Stranglehold of Corporate Rule, Big Media and the Religious Right. 

In the article, Buchanan, who has worked mainly in the trade and music press with a spell as a muckraking reporter in Miami, claimed that "the essential facts have appeared on the internet and in relatively obscure books but were dismissed by the media and Bush family as undocumented diatribes". 

Buchanan suffers from hypermania, a form of manic depression, and when he found himself rebuffed in his initial efforts to interest the media, he responded with a series of threats against the journalists and media outlets that had spurned him. The threats, contained in e-mails, suggested that he would expose the journalists as "traitors to the truth". 

Unsurprisingly, he soon had difficulty getting his calls returned. Most seriously, he faced aggravated stalking charges in Miami, in connection with a man with whom he had fallen out over the best way to publicise his findings. The charges were dropped last month. 

Biography

Buchanan said he regretted his behaviour had damaged his credibility but his main aim was to secure publicity for the story. Both Loftus and Schweitzer say Buchanan has come up with previously undisclosed documentation. 

The Bush family have largely responded with no comment to any reference to Prescott Bush. Brown Brothers Harriman also declined to comment. 

The Bush family recently approved a flattering biography of Prescott Bush entitled Duty, Honour, Country by Mickey Herskowitz. The publishers, Rutledge Hill Press, promised the book would "deal honestly with Prescott Bush's alleged business relationships with Nazi industrialists and other accusations". 

In fact, the allegations are dealt with in less than two pages. The book refers to the Herald-Tribune story by saying that "a person of less established ethics would have panicked ... Bush and his partners at Brown Brothers Harriman informed the government regulators that the account, opened in the late 1930s, was 'an unpaid courtesy for a client' ... Prescott Bush acted quickly and openly on behalf of the firm, served well by a reputation that had never been compromised. He made available all records and all documents. Viewed six decades later in the era of serial corporate scandals and shattered careers, he received what can be viewed as the ultimate clean bill." 

The Prescott Bush story has been condemned by both conservatives and some liberals as having nothing to do with the current president. It has also been suggested that Prescott Bush had little to do with Averill Harriman and that the two men opposed each other politically. 

However, documents from the Harriman papers include a flattering wartime profile of Harriman in the New York Journal American and next to it in the files is a letter to the financial editor of that paper from Prescott Bush congratulating the paper for running the profile. He added that Harriman's "performance and his whole attitude has been a source of inspiration and pride to his partners and his friends". 

The Anti-Defamation League in the US is supportive of Prescott Bush and the Bush family. In a statement last year they said that "rumours about the alleged Nazi 'ties' of the late Prescott Bush ... have circulated widely through the internet in recent years. These charges are untenable and politically motivated ... Prescott Bush was neither a Nazi nor a Nazi sympathiser." 

However, one of the country's oldest Jewish publications, the Jewish Advocate, has aired the controversy in detail. 

More than 60 years after Prescott Bush came briefly under scrutiny at the time of a faraway war, his grandson is facing a different kind of scrutiny but one underpinned by the same perception that, for some people, war can be a profitable business. 
Excerpts from Nazi Mind Control:

[Note: Although the start of the CIA with impetus from the Nazis and the secret society Skull and Bones, which includes both Bushes and many of the early CIA officials (Allen Dulles, my former “boss” James Angleton, etc.) is not generally known to the public, some of it is mentioned in the part of the text below—see text in bold print. I also put in bold text that was most relevant to the story from my personal perspective.]

http://www.aches-mc.org/monarch.html
Project Monarch 
by Ron Patton

Amidst the subtle cerebral circumvention of the gullible populace, through a multitude of manipulated mediums, lies one of the most diabolical atrocities perpetrated upon a segment of the human race; a form of systematic mind control which has permeated every aspect of society for almost fifty years. …This exposition is substantiated by declassified U.S.  government documents, individuals formerly connected to the U.S. intelligence communities, historical writings, researchers knowledgeable in mind control, publications from mental health practitioners, and interviews taken from survivors unwittingly subjected to a highly complex form of trauma-based mind control known as MONARCH programming. ... 

A Brief History of Control

The Mystery Religions of ancient Egypt, Greece, India and Babylon helped lay the foundation for occultism, meaning “hidden knowledge.” One of the earliest writings giving reference to occultism is the Egyptian Book of the Dead, a compilation of rituals explicitly describing methods of torture and intimidation (to create trauma), the use of potions (drugs) and the casting of spells (hypnotism), ultimately resulting in the total enslavement of the initiate.[1] These have been the main ingredients for a part of occultism known as Satanism, throughout the ages. During the 13th Century, the Roman Catholic church increased and solidified its dominion throughout Europe with the infamous Inquisition. Satanism survived this period of persecution, deeply entrenching itself under the veil of various esoteric groups. 
In 1776, a Bavarian Jesuit by the name of  Adam Weishaupt was commissioned by the House of Rothschild to centralize the power base of the Mystery Religions into what is commonly known as the Illuminati, meaning “Enlightened Ones.” This was an amalgamation of powerful occultic bloodlines, elite secret societies and influential Masonic fraternities, with the desire to construct the framework for a “New World Order.” The outward goal of this Utopia was to bring forth universal happiness to the human race. However, their underlying intention was to gradually increase control over the masses, thus becoming masters of the planet. 

The Anglo Alliance

By the 19th century, Great Britain and Germany were recognized as the primary geographic areas of Illuminati control. It then should be of little surprise to know the first work in Behavioral Science research was established in England in 1882, while much of the early medical and psychiatric techniques involved in mind control were pioneered at the Kaiser Wilhelm Institute in Germany.  The Tavistock Institute of Human Relations was set up in London in 1921 to study the “breaking point” of humans. Kurt Lewin, a German psychologist, became the director of the Tavistock Institute in 1932, about the same time Nazi Germany was increasing its research into neuropsychology, parapsychology and multi-generational occultism. 
Interestingly, a progressive exchange of scientific ideas was taking place between England and Germany, most notably in the field of eugenics: the movement devoted to “improving” the human species through the control of hereditary factors in mating. The nefariously enigmatic union between the two countries was bonded, partly through the Order of the Golden Dawn, a secret society which consisted of many high ranking officials in the Nazi party and British aristocracy.  Top SS Nazi officer Heinrich Himmler, was in charge of a scientific project called Lebersborn, which included selective breeding and adoption of children, a peculiarly large number of twins among them.[2] The purpose of the program was to create a super-race (Aryans) who would have total allegiance to the cause of the Third Reich(New World Order). 
Much of the preliminary experimentation concerning genetic engineering and behavior modification was conducted by Dr. Josef Mengele at Auschwitz, where he coldly analyzed the effects of trauma-bonding, eye-coloring and “twinning” upon his victims.  Beside the insidious surgical experimentation performed at the concentration camp, some of the children were subjected to massive amounts of electroshock. Sadly, many of them did not survive the brutality. 
Concurrently, “brain-washing” was carried out on inmates at Dachau, who were placed under hypnosis and given the hallucinogenic drug mescaline. During the war, parallel behavioral research was led by Dr. George Estabrooks of Colgate University. His involvement with the Army, CID, FBI and other agencies remains shrouded in secrecy.  However, Estabrooks would occasionally “slip” and discuss his work involving the creation of hypno-programmed couriers and hypnotically-induced split personalities.[3] 
After WWII, the U.S. Department of Defense secretly imported many of the top German Nazi and Italian Fascist scientists and spies into the United States via South America and the Vatican. The code name for this operation was Project PAPERCLIP.[4] One of the more prominent finds for the U.S. was German General Reinhard Gehlen. Hitler’s Chief of Intelligence against Russia. Upon arriving in Washington D.C. in 1945, Gehlen met extensively with President Truman, General William “Wild Bill” Donovan, Director of the Office of Strategic Services(OSS) and Allen Dulles, who would later become the stalwart head of the CIA. The objective of their brain-storming sessions was to reorganize the nominal American intelligence operation, transforming it into a highly-efficient covert organization.  The culmination of their efforts produced the Central Intelligence Group in 1946, renamed the Central Intelligence Agency(CIA) in 1947. 
Reinhard Gehlen also had profound influence in helping to create the National Security Council, from which the National Security Act of 1947 was derived. This particular piece of legislation was implemented to protect an unconscionable number of illegal government activities, including clandestine mind control programs. 

The Evolution of Project MKULTRA

With the CIA and National Security Council firmly established, the first in a series of covert brain-washing programs was initiated by the Navy in the fall of 1947. Project CHATTER was developed in response to the Soviet’s “successes” through the use of “truth drugs.” This rationale, however was simply a cover story if the program were to be exposed. The research focused on the identification and testing of such drugs for use in interrogations and the recruitment of agents.[5] The project was officially terminated in 1953. 
The CIA decided to expand their efforts in the area of behavior modification, with the advent of Project BLUEBIRD, approved by director Allen Dulles in 1950. Its objectives were to;

(1) discover a means of conditioning personnel to prevent unauthorized extraction of information from them by known means, 

(2) investigate the possibility of control of an individual by application of special interrogation techniques,

(3) investigate memory enhancement and 

(4) establish defensive means for preventing hostile control of agency personnel.
 In August 1951, Project BLUE BIRD was renamed Project ARTICHOKE, which evaluated offensive uses of interrogation techniques, including hypnosis and drugs The program ceased in 1956.  Three years prior to the halt of Project ARTICHOKE, Project MKULTRA came into existence on April 13, 1953 along the lines proposed by Richard Helms, Deputy Director of Central Intelligence (DDCI) with the rationale of establishing a “special funding mechanism of extreme sensitivity.”[6] The hypothetical etymology of “MK” may possibly stand for “Mind Kontrolle.” The obvious translation of the German word “Kontrolle” into English is “control.”[7] A host of German doctors, procured from the post war Nazi talent pool, were an invaluable asset toward the development of MKULTRA. The correlation between the concentration camp experiments and the numerous sub-projects of MKULTRA are clearly evident. The various avenues used to control human behavior under MKULTRA included radiation, electroshock, psychology, psychiatry, sociology, anthropology, graphology, harassment substances and paramilitary devices and materials “LSD” being the most widely dispensed “material”. A special procedure, designated MKDELTA, was established to govern the use of MKULTRA abroad. MKULTRA/DELTA materials were used for harassment, discrediting or disabling purposes.[8] Of the 149 subprojects under the umbrella of MKULTRA having been identified, Project MONARCH, officially begun by the U.S. Army in the early 1960’s (although unofficially implemented much earlier) appears to be the most prominent and is still classified as TOP SECRET for “National Security” reasons.[9] MONARCH may have culminated from MKSEARCH subprojects, such as operation SPELLBINDER, which was set up to create “sleeper” assassins (i e. “Manchurian candidates”) who could be activated upon receiving a key word or phrase while in a post-hypnotic trance. Operation OFTEN, a study which attempted to harness the power of occultic forces was possibly one of several cover programs to hide the insidious reality of Project MONARCH. 

Definition and Description

The name MONARCH is not necessarily defined within the context of royal nobility, but rather refers to the monarch butterfly. When a person is undergoing trauma induced by electroshock, a feeling of light-headedness is evidenced; as if one is floating or fluttering like a butterfly. There is also a symbolic representation pertaining to the transformation or metamorphosis of this beautiful insect: from a caterpillar to a cocoon (dormancy, inactivity ), to a butterfly (new creation) which will return to its point of origin. Such is the migratory pattern that makes this species unique. 
Occultic symbolism may give additional insight into the true meaning Psyche is the word for both “soul” and “butterfly” coming from the belief that human souls become butterflies while searching for a new reincarnation. [10] 
Some ancient mystical groups, such as the Gnostics, saw the butterfly as a symbol of corrupt flesh. The “Angel of Death” (remember Mengele?) in Gnostic art works was portrayed crushing the butterfly.[11] A marionette is a puppet that is attached to strings and is controlled by the puppet master, hence MONARCH programming is also referred to as the “Marionette Syndrome.” “Imperial Conditioning” is another term used, while some mental health therapists know it as “Conditioned Stimulus Response Sequences.” Project MONARCH could be best described as a form of structured dissociation and occultic integration, in order to compartmentalize the mind into multiple personalities within a systematic framework. During this process, a Satanic ritual, usually including Cabalistic mysticism, is performed with the purpose of attaching a particular demon or group of demons to the corresponding alter(s). Of course, most skeptics would view this as simply a means to enhance trauma within the victim, negating any irrational belief that demonic possession actually occurs. 

Alters and Triggers

Another way of examining this convoluted victimization of body and soul is by looking at it as a complex computer program: A file (alter) is created through trauma, repetition and reinforcement. In order to activate (trigger) the file, a specific access code or password (cue or command) is required. The victim/survivor is called a “slave” by the  programmer/handler, who in turn is perceived as “master” or “god.” About 75% are female, since they possess a higher tolerance for pain and tend to dissociate easier than males. Subjects are used mainly for cover operations, prostitution and pornography; involvement in the entertainment industry is notable.  A former military officer connected to the DIA, told this writer, “In the ‘big picture’ these people [MONARCH victims] are in all walks of life, from the bum on the street to the white-collar guy”. In corroboration, a retired CIA agent vaguely discussed the use of such personnel to be used as “plants” or “chameleons” for the purpose of infiltrating a designated group, gathering information and/or injecting an ulterior agenda. 
There are an inordinate amount of alters in the victim/survivor with numerous back-up programs, mirrors and shadows. A division of light-side (good) and dark-side (bad) alters are interwoven in the mind and rotate on an axis. 
One of the main internal structures, (of which their are many) within the system is shaped like a double-helix, consisting of seven levels. Each system has an internal programmer which oversees the “gatekeeper” (demons?) who grant or deny entry into the different rooms. A few of the internal images predominately seen by victims/survivors are trees, the Cabalistic “Tree of Life,” with adjoining root systems, infinity loops, ancient symbols and letters, spider webs, mirrors or glass shattering, masks, castles, mazes, demons/monsters/aliens, sea shells, butterflies, snakes, ribbons, bows, flowers, hour glasses, clocks, robots, chain-of-command diagrams and/or schematics of computer circuitry boards. 

Bloodlines and Twinning

A majority of the victims/survivors come from multi-generational Satanic families (bloodlines) and are ostensibly programmed “to fill their destiny as the chosen ones or chosen generations”(a term coined by Mengele at Auschwitz). Some are adopted out to families of similar origin. Others used in this neurological nightmare are deemed as the “expendable ones” (non-bloodliners), usually coming from orphanages, foster care homes, or incestuous families with a long history of pedophilia. There also appears to be a pattern of family members affiliated with government or military intelligence agencies. 
Many of the abused come from families who use Catholicism, Mormonism, or charismatic Christianity as a “front” for their abominable activities (though members of other religious groups are also involved.) 
Victims/survivors generally respond more readily to a rigid religious (dogmatic, legalistic) hierarchical structure because it parallels their base programming. Authority usually goes unchallenged, as their will has been usurped through subjective and command-oriented conditioning. 
Physical identification characteristics on victims/survivors often include multiple electrical prod scars and/or resultant moles on their skin. A few may have had various parts of their bodies mutilated by knives, branding irons, or needles, Butterfly or occult tattoos are also common. Generally, bloodliners are less likely to have the subsequent markings, as their skin is to “remain pure and unblemished.” 
The ultimate purpose of the sophisticated manipulation of these individuals may sound unrealistic, depending upon our interpretive understanding of the physical and spiritual realms. The deepest and darkest alters within bloodliners are purported to be dormant until the “Anti-Christ~’ is revealed. These “New World Order” alters supposedly contain call-back orders and instructions to train and/or initiate a large influx of people (possibly clones or “soulless ones”), thereby stimulating social control programs into the new millennium.  Non-biological “twinning” is yet another bizarre feature observed within MONARCH programming. For instance, two young non-related children would be ceremoniously initiated in a magical “soul-bonding” ritual so they might be “inseparably paired for eternity” (possibly another Mengele connection?). They essentially share two halves of the programmed information, making them interdependent upon one another. Paranormal phenomenon such as astral projection, telepathy, ESP, etc.  appear to be more pronounced between those who have undergone this process. 

Levels of MONARCH Programming [12]
ALPHA. Regarded as “general” or regular programming within the base control personality; characterized by extremely pronounced memory retention, along with substantially increased physical strength and visual acuity. Alpha programming is accomplished through deliberately subdividing the victims personality which, in essence, causes a left brain-right brain division, allowing for a programmed union of L and R through neuron pathway stimulation. 
BETA. Referred to as “sexual” programming. This programming eliminates all learned moral convictions and stimulates the primitive sexual instinct, devoid of inhibitions. “cat” alters may come out at this level. 
DELTA. This is known as “killer” programming, originally developed for training special agents or elite soldiers (i.e. Delta Force, First Earth Battalion, Mossad, etc.) in covert operations. Optimal adrenal output and controlled aggression is evident. Subjects are devoid of fear; very systematic in carrying out their assignment. Self-destruct or suicide instructions are layered in at this level.  THETA considered to the “psychic” programming.  Bloodliners (those coming from multi-generational Satanic families) were determined to exhibit a greater propensity for having telepathic abilities than did non-bloodliners. Due to its evident limitations, however, various forms of electronic mind control systems were developed and introduced, namely, bio-medical human telemetry devices (brain implants), directed-energy lasers using microwaves and/or electromagnetics. It is reported these are used in conjunction with highly-advanced computers and sophisticated satellite tracking systems. 
OMEGA. A “self-destruct” form of programming, also known as “Code Green.” The corresponding behaviors include suicidal tendencies and/or self-mutilation. This program is generally activated when the victim/survivor begins therapy or interrogation and too much memory is being recovered. 
GAMMA. Another form of system protection is through “deception” programming, which elicits misinformation and misdirection. This level is intertwined with demonology and tends to regenerate itself at a later time if inappropriately deactivated. 

Method and Components

The initial process begins with creating dissociation within the subject, usually occurring from the time of birth to about six years. This is primarily achieved through the use of electroshock (ECT) and is at times performed even when the child is in the mother’s womb. Due to the severe trauma induced through ECT, sexual abuse and other methods, the mind splits off into alternate personalities from the core.  Formerly referred to as Multiple Personality Disorder, it is presently recognized as Dissociative Identity Disorder and is the basis for MONARCH programming. Further conditioning of the victim’s mind is enhanced through hypnotism, double-bind coercion, pleasure-pain reversals, food, water, sleep and sensory deprivation, along with various drugs which alter certain cerebral functions. 
The next stage is to embed and compress detailed commands or messages within the specified alter. This is achieved through the use of hi-tech headsets, in conjunction with computer-driven generators which emit inaudible sound waves or harmonics that affect the RNA covering of neuron pathways to the subconscious and unconscious mind.  “Virtual Reality” optical devices are sometimes used simultaneously with the harmonic generators projecting pulsating colored lights, subliminals and split-screen visuals. High voltage electroshock is then used for memory dissolution. 
Programming is updated periodically and reinforced through visual, auditory and written mediums. Some of the first programming themes included the Wizard of Oz and Alice and Wonderland, both heavily saturated with occultic symbolism. Many of the recent Disney movies and cartoons are used in a two-fold manner: desensitizing the majority of the population, using subliminals and neuro-linguistic programming, and deliberately constructing specific triggers and keys for base programming of highly-impressionable MONARCH children.  A prime example of how subliminal programming works is by looking at the recent Disney cinematic sensation Pochahontas, curiously billed as their “33rd” (highest degree in Scottish Rite Freemasonry) animated movie. In the movie, Grandmother Willow is a mystical 400 year old tree who counsels the motherless Pochahontas to listen to her heart and help her realize all the answers lie within.  Grandmother Willow is constantly talking in “double-speak” and using “reversals” (i.e. “Sometimes the right path is not the easiest one”; the esoteric derivative being: the left path [the path that leads to destruction] is the easiest one.  In Illuminati Structured MPD Systems, the willow tree represents the occultic powers of Druidism. The intrinsic imagery of the tree’s branches, leaves and root systems are very significant, as some of the dark spiritual proper ties associated with the Willow Tree Programming are: (I) 
The branches are used to whip victims in rituals for “cleansing” purposes, (2) A willow tree can endure severe weather disturbances (i.e. storms) and is known for it’s pliability or flexibility.  Victims/Survivors of the programming describe the willow’s branches wrapping around them, with no hope of escape, (3) The deep root system of the willow tree makes the victim/survivor feel as if they are falling deeper and deeper into an abyss while in a hypnotic trance. 
Music plays an instrumental role in programming, through combinations of variable tones, rhythms and words. Frightmeister Stephen King’s numerous novels and subsequent movies, are purported by credible sources to be used for such villainous purposes. One of his latest books, Insomnia, features a picture of King with the trigger phrase “WE NEVER SLEEP,” (indicative of someone with MPD/ DID) below an all-seeing eye.  ….
Programmers and Places

It’s difficult to figure out who the original programmer of this satanic project was, due to the substantial amount of disinformation and cross-contamination propagated by the “powers that be.” The two that went by the color-coded name of Dr. Green are a Jewish doctor named Dr.  Gruenbaum, who supposedly collaborated with the Nazis during WWII, and Dr. Josef Mengele, whose trademark of cold blooded and calculating brutality has not only scarred the souls of survivors from Auschwitz, but also a countless number of victims throughout the world. Mengele’s direct involvement at the infamous Auschwitz concentration camp was suspiciously downplayed during the Nuremberg Trials, and consequently no intensified effort by the U.S. and it’s allies was directed toward his capture.[13] As a means to confuse serious investigators as to his whereabouts, U.S.  officials would report Mengele being a non-threatening, recluse in Paraguay or Brazil, or that he was simply dead (the “Angel of Death” miraculously must have come back to life at least five different times). 
His unprecedented research, at the expense of thousands of lives, undoubtedly was a significant bonus to U.S. interests. Besides using the pseudonym of Dr. Green, survivors knew him as Vaterchen (daddy), Schoner Josef (beautiful Joseph), David and Fairchild. A gracefully handsome man of slight stature, Mengele would disarm people with his gentle demeanor, while at other times, he would explode into violent rages.[14] Other characteristics remembered by survivors were the cadence of his shiny black boots as he paced back and forth and his I-love-you/l-love-you-not” daisy game. When he pulled off the last daisy petal, he would maliciously torture and kill a small child in front of the other child he was programming. Distraught survivors also recalled being thrown naked into cages with monkeys, who were trained to viciously abuse them.  Evidently, Mengele enjoyed reducing people to the level of animals. He also would purposely restrain his victims from crying, screaming, or showing any excessive emotion. 

Dr. D. Ewen Cameron, also known as Dr. White, was the former head of the Canadian, American and World Psychiatric Associations. Because of Cameron’s extensive experience and credentials, the ClA’s Allen Dulles funneled millions of dollars throughout organizations like the society for the Investigation of Human Ecology, which Cameron ruthlessly presided 
over. Experimentations were conducted at several locations in Montreal, mostly at McGill University, St Mary’s Hospital and Allan Memorial Institute. 
Besides the conventional methods of psychiatric tyranny, such as electroshock drug injections and lobotomies, Cameron conceived the technique of “psychic driving,” wherein unsuspecting patients were kept in a drug induced coma for several weeks and administered a regimen of electroshocks, while electronic helmets were strapped to their heads and repetitive auditory messages were transmitted at variable speeds.[15] 
Many of those exploited were abused children which had been run through the Roman Catholic orphanage system.  Not surprisingly, Dr Cameron has been conveniently left out of most psychiatric journals. This may have been, in fact, largely due to Project MKULTRA being publicly exposed in 1970, through lawsuits filed by Canadian survivors and their families. The CIA and Canadian government settled out of court so as not to be required to officially admit to any wrongdoing. 

A former U.S. Army Lt. Col. in the DIA’s Psychological Warfare Division, Michael Aquino, is the latest in a line of alleged government-sponsored sadists. Aquino, an eccentric genius, founded the Temple of Set, an offshoot of Anton LaVey’s Church of Satan. His obsession with Nazi pagan rituals and his hypnotic manipulation of people made him an ideal candidate for the position of “Master Programmer.” Aquino was connected with the Presidio Army Base day care scandal, in which he was accused child molestation.  Much to the dismay of the young victims’ parents, all charges were dismissed. Code-named “Malcolm”, Aquino developed training tapes on how to create a MONARCH slave and worked as a liaison between Government/Military Intelligence and various criminal organizations and occult groups in the distribution of MONARCH slaves.[16] 

Heinrich Mueller was another important programmer who went under the code names “Dr. Blue” or “Gog.” He apparently has two sons who have carried on the trade. The original “Dr. Black” was apparently Leo Wheeler, the nephew of deceased General Ear1e G. Wheeler, who was the commander of the Joint Chiefs of Staffs during the Vietnam War. Wheeler’s protege, E. Hummel is active in the Northwest, along with W. Bowers (from the Rothschild bloodline). 
Other alleged master mind manipulators, past and present, are: Dr. Sydney Gottleib, Lt. Col John Alexander, Richard Dabney Anderson (USN), Dr. James Monroe, Dr. John Lilly, Lt. Comdr. Thomas Narut, Dr William Jennings Bryan, Dr. Bernard L. Diamond, Dr. Martin T. Orne, Dr. Louis J. West, Dr Robert J. Lifton, Dr. Harris Isbel and Col. Wilson Green In order to keep MKULTRA from being easily detected, the CLA segmented its subprojects into specialized fields of research and development at universities, prisons, private laboratories and hospitals Of course, they were rewarded generously with government grants and miscellaneous funding. 

The names and locations of some of the major institutions involved in MONARCH programming experimentation were/are: 
Cornell, Duke, Princeton, UCLA, University of Rochester, MIT, Georgetown University Hospital, Maimonides Medical Center, St. Elizabeth’s Hospital (Washington D.C.), Bell Laboratories, Stanford Research Institute, Westinghouse Friendship Laboratories, General Electric, ARCO and Manking Research Unlimited, The “final product” was/is usually created on military installations and bases, where maximum security is required. Referred to as (re) programming centers or near-death trauma centers, the most heavily identified are: 
China Lake Naval Weapons Center, The Presidio, Ft. Dietrick, Ft. Campbell, Ft. Lewis, Ft. Hood, Redstone Arsenal, Offutt AFB, Patrick AFB, McClellan AFB, MacGill AFB, Kirkland AFB, Nellis AFB, Homestead AFB, Grissom AFB, Maxwell AFB and Tinker AFB 
Other places recognized as major programming sites are Langley Research Center, Los Alamos National Laboratories, Tavistock Institute and areas in or by Mt. Shasta, CA, Lampe, MO and Las Vegas, NV. 

Notable Names

One of the first documented cases of a MONARCH secret agent was that of the voluptuous 1940’s model, Candy Jones. The book, The Control of Candy Jones, (Playboy Press) portrays her 12 years of intrigue and suspense as a spy for the CIA. Jones, whose birth name is Jessica Wilcox, apparently fit the physiological profile as to be one of the initial experiments or human guinea pigs under the government’s “scientific” project, MKULTRA. 
The most publicized case of MONARCH monomania has surfaced through the book TRANCE Formation of America: The True Life Story of a ClA Slave by Cathy O’Brien. On the back cover it emphatically states, “Cathy O’Brien is the only vocal and recovered survivor of the Central Intelligence Agency’s MKULTRA Project Monarch mind control operation” This documented autobiography contains compelling accounts of O’Brien’s years of unrelenting incest and eventual introduction into Project MONARCH by her perverted father. Along with co-author Mark PhiIlips, her rescuer and deprogrammer, adolescents and teenagers, he was driven to the elite retreat, Bohemian Grove. The perpetrators took full advantage of these innocent victims, committing unthinkable perversions in order to satisfy their deviant lusts. Some victims were Cathy covers an almost unbelievable array of conspiratorial crime: forced prostitution (white slavery) with those in the upper echelons of world politics, covert assignments as a “drug mule” and courier, and the country-western music industry’s relationship with illegal CIA activities. 


Paul Bonaci a courageous survivor who endured almost two decades of degradation under Project MONARCH, has disclosed strong corroborating evidence of widescale crimes and corruption from the municipal/state level all the way up to the White House.[17] He has testified about sexually-abused males selected from Boy’s Town in Nebraska and taken to nearby Offut AFB, where he says they were subjected to intense MONARCH programming, directed mainly by Commander Bill Plemmons and former Lt. Col. Michael Aquino.[18] After thoroughly tormenting the young boys into mindless oblivion, they were used (along with girls) for pornography and prostitution with several of the nation’s political and economic power brokers. Bonnaci recalled being transported from the Air Force base via cargo planes to McClelland AFB in California. Along with other unfortunate apparently murdered, further traumatizing already terrified and broken children.  An insuitable actress of marginal talent (now deceased), a morally-corrupt T.V. evangelist, a heralded former Green Beret officer and a popular country-western singer are a few others likely having succumbed to MONARCH madness.  Lee Harvey Oswald, Sirhan-Sirhan, Charlie Manson, John Hinckley Jr., Mark Chapman, David Koresh, Tim McVeigh and John Salvi are some notable names of infamy, strongly suspected of being pawns who were spawned by MKULTRA. 

Deprogrammers and Exposers

Dr. Corydon Hammond, a Psychologist from the University of Utah, delivered a stunning lecture entitled “Hypnosis in MPD: Ritual Abuse” at the Fourth Annual Eastern Regional Conference on Abuse and Multiple Personality, June 25, 1992 in Alexandria, Virginia. He essentially confirmed the suspicions of the attentive crowd of mental health professionals, wherein a certain percentage of their clients had undergone mind control programming in an intensively systematic manner. Hammond alluded to the Nazi connection, military and CIA mind control research, Greek letter and color programming and specifically mentioned the Monarch Project in relation to a form of operative conditioning. 
Shortly after his ground breaking speech, he received death threats. Not wanting to jeopardize the safety of his family, Dr.  Hammond stopped disseminating any follow-up information, until recently.  Mark Phillips, a former electronics subcontractor for the Department of Defense, was privy to some of the top secret mind control activities perpetrated by the U.S. government. His inquisitive demeanor, strong conscience and heart-felt concern for Cathy O’Brien, a “Presidential Model’ under Project MONARCH, prompted him to reveal the inner-workings of this grand deception beginning about 1991. As the story goes, he helped Ms. O’Brien escape from her captors and was able to deprogram her in about a years time in Alaska. The controversial Phillips has his share of critics who are skeptical of the veracity of his claims.  New Orleans therapist Valerie Wolf introduced two of her patients before the President’s Committee on Human Radiation Experiments on March 15, 1995 in Washington D.C. The astonishing testimony made by these two brave women included accounts of German doctors, torture, drugs, electroshock, hypnosis and rape, besides being exposed to an undetermined amount of radiation. Both Wolf and her patients stated they recovered the memories of this CIA program without regression or hypnosis techniques.[19] Wolf presently devotes much of her time to counseling such survivors. 

A former labor attorney for Atlantic Richfield Co., David E.  Rosenbaum, conducted a nine. year investigation (1983-1992) concerning allegations of physical torture and coercive conditioning of numerous employees at an ARCO plant in Monaca, PA.[20] His clients, Jerry L. Dotey and Ann White, were victims of apparent radiation exposure; but as Mr. Rosenbaum probed deeper in the subsequent interview sessions, a “Pandora’s Box” was unveiled. His most astonishing conclusion was that Jerry Dotey and Ann White were likely the off-spring of Adolf Hitler, based in part on the uncanny resemblance from photos (facial features; bone structure and size were taken into consideration).  Rosenbaum also states, “They both exhibit feelings and experiences that indicate they are twins.” Dotey and White were allegedly subjected to torture of many kinds while under drug induced hypnosis, with each one undergoing at least three training techniques by plant physicians.  Each victim was trained to enter into a hypnotic state upon the occurrence of specific stimuli, usually involving a “cue” word or phrase and trained to “remember to forget” what transpired in the hypnotic state. They were repeatedly subjected to identical stimulus-response sequence, to produce nearly automatic reactions to the particular status. MKULTRA veteran, Dr. Bernard Diamond, Dr. Martin Orne and Dr.  Josef Mengele regularly visited the ARCO plant, according to Rosenbaum.  The special conditioning of Dotey and White was intended for the artificial creation of dual German personalities. Rosenbaum, who is Jewish, has maintained a deep friendship with the two, despite the seemingly precarious circumstances. 

Other renowned therapists involved in deprogramming are Cynthia Byrtus, Pamela Monday, Steve Ogilvie, Bennett Braun, Jerry Mungadze and Colin Ross. Some Christian counselors have been able to eliminate parts of the programming with limited success. 
Journalists who have recently expounded on the subject matter in exemplary fashion are Walter Bowart, Operation Mind Control, 
Jon Rappoport, U.S. Government Mind-Control Experiments on Children and 
Alex Constantine, Psychic Dictatorship In The USA 

Conclusion

The most incriminating statement to date made by a government official as to the possible existence of Project MONARCH was extracted by Anton Chaitkin, a writer for the publication, The New Federalist. 
When former CIA Director William Colby was asked directly, “What about monarch?” he replied angrily and ambiguously, “We stopped that between the late 1960’s and the early 1970’s.” Suffice to say that society, in its apparent state of cognitive dissonance, is generally in denial of the over whelming evidence of this multifarious conspiracy. Numerous victims/ survivors of Project MONARCH are in desperate need of help. However, the great majority of people are too preoccupied with themselves to show any genuine compassion toward these severely wounded individuals. Apathy has taken over the minds of the masses, who choose to exist within the comforts of this world. Reality has thus become obscured by relativism and selfishness. 
Although there has been some progress in deprogramming and reintegrating therapies, a much greater problem needs to be rectified. The Holy Bible addresses this problem as the fragmentation of the soul (Ezekiel 13:20). A spiritual restoration is what is truly needed (Psalm 23:3) but can only take place by completely trusting in Jesus Christ as the way to salvation (John 3:16; I Peter 3:18) and deliverance from demonic oppression and/or possession (Mark 16:17).  The true humility of Christ and the love of God effectively counters the pride and hatred of Satan. 
Statistically, the road to recovery for these survivors of unimaginable depravity is a long and tedious one, but God is the ultimate healer and only within his time, through His strength and by His grace, can the captives be set free (Isaiah 61:1). 
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Background Related to US Election Theft

While the United States of America is considered a democracy, that premise is unsupported by the facts, even before one takes into account insider information like I am privy to having been in the top reaches of the CIA for more than 40 years.  The declassified evidence is quite clear enough;

1) The strong wishes of the population for universal health care, better education including inexpensive college, a balanced budget, a healthy environment, and preservation of our national wildernesses, etc. are not enacted into legislation in spite of decades of time passing.  It is not the case that these are impossible goals to achieve as many countries less well off than the US, such as Canada, Germany, France, Sweden, and Norway, etc. have made great strides in those areas.

2) There is excellent documentation available online showing that election fraud occurred in the 2000 and 2004 Presidential elections.  For information on the 2004 election including Hearings held by Congressmen Conyers see:

2004 US Presidential Election Fraud

http://www.truthout.org/docs_04/120904W.shtml Quick Summary
http://shadowbox.i8.com/stolen.htm   Best Audio Video Collection 

http://www.solarbus.org/election/ohio.shtml   Archives of Information
http://www.blackboxvoting.org/        Must read book for free on line
Congressional Hearings:

Dec. 8th Hearings: 3-hour video Real Player

rtsp://cspanrm.fplive.net/cspan/project/c04/c04120804_conyers.rm?mode=compact  

Dec. 8th Hearings: 30 min. short version Windows Media Player

http://movies.ziaspace.com/U.wmv
Dec. 8th transcripts

http://www.house.gov/judiciary_democrats/voteforum.html
Hacking the Vote: Clint Curtis testimony: Real Player
http://www.edwardsdavid.com/BushVideos/2004-12-13_Conyers_Clint_Curtis01.ram
Hacking the Vote: Clint Curtis testimony: Windows Media Player

http://home.comcast.net/~clotheshorse1967/video/curtis121304.wmv 

Hacking the Vote: Clint Curtis testimony: MP3 Files
http://www.crooksandliars.com/2004/12/08.html
John Conyers forum on C-SPAN:

http://www.crooksandliars.com/2004/12/08.html 

In point of fact, Bush, Jr. said in 2000 “If this were a dictatorship, it would be a heck of a lot easier... [Bush chuckles, audience laughs] ...just so long as I'm the dictator [more laughter]”. (See http://en.wikiquote.org/wiki/George_W._Bush )

“President Bush has quietly claimed the authority to disobey more than 750 laws enacted since he took office, asserting that he has the power to set aside any statute passed by Congress when it conflicts with his interpretation of the Constitution. 

Among the laws Bush said he can ignore are military rules and regulations, affirmative-action provisions, requirements that Congress be told about immigration services problems, ''whistle-blower" protections for nuclear regulatory officials, and safeguards against political interference in federally funded research.” (see http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/archives/cat_dictatorship.html#045690 , April 30, 2006 )

From my perspective as a remote viewer and CIA insider there has not been an honest, non-manipulated Presidential election in the US since President Carter was elected in the 1970’s.  That is not to say that all before that were fair democratic processes where the will of the people was expressed in their choice of a President (see Howard Zinn’s A People’s History of the United States).  But since Reagan the shadow government and its means of ensuring its power has become so firmly entrenched that the voters are left without any meaningful choice.  It is a one-party system parading itself as a two party system—it is a dictatorship with the prisons, torture, disregard of international laws, etc that goes with it.

In the 1990’s the CIA gave me an unethical assignment to rig a US Senate election in Alabama.  I went and testified at a closed session of the US Congressional Select Committee on Intelligence in protest. This was not long after the Iran-Contra hearings and I had testified in closed session before them during that leading to false hope that they would do something about the election frauds engineered by the CIA. Instead of protecting me for CIA retribution, that Committee allowed the CIA to drag me out of the session knowing that the CIA would torture me for what I had said.  The committee sent an observer to make sure that the torture was not “too harsh”.  The result was that I was still tortured severely using electrical torture while I was stripped naked, but I was not raped in front of the observer. 

Since due to my remote viewing skills, I was a Special Op Advisor to the Directors of Central Intelligence between 1991 with the start of the first Gulf War and until Aug. 2004 (with a gap from May 2002 through Sept. 2003), I was aware of many efforts in the CIA to rig US elections. There was a whole section of the Dept of Operations/”Plans” devoted to this task.  That section had over 50 full time CIA officers, one assigned to each state and supervisors for each region, devoted just to making sure that the elections favored the candidates that the Corporate Cabal wanted.  Fortunately, I was not in this section of the CIA, but I regularly had problem ops show up on my desk for comment as to whether they would work or how to do clean-up if they didn’t.  It was a real challenge for me to not be party to such corruption.  Fortunately, God is willing to grant a lot of miracles.  But on the average I had almost 2 such ops a week land on my desk during the years that I was commuting biweekly to the CIA from California in the couple of years before 9-11 when I pulled back as much as possible.  Not all election rigging ops came across my desk.  Many of these ops landed on my desk because the CIA officer asked to write the op did not want to do it because of ethical qualms.  They brought them to me to elicit my help in getting out of the assignments without getting major retribution for a blunt refusal.  Even though I did my best to prevent the immoral rigging of elections by CIA ops whether in the US or abroad, many ops did get run that did not come to me for review.  My ability to deflect ops from enactment depended largely on who was head of the Dept. of Ops at the time and how insistent the Corporate Cabal was in forcing through their candidate.  

The formation of the CIA and the secrecy needed to protect itself from scrutiny of its black ops overseas was incompatible with democracy.  It is not an unforeseen consequence of the formation of the CIA.  I have seen many Skull and Bones and Nazi documents from the end of WWII era that clearly set out to take over the US from inside as part of its war effort.  It is not an accident of fate that the American banker for the Nazi war machine, Prescott Bush, was later able to install his son as Director of Central Intelligence and then start a political dynasty.  Gehlen, the lead Nazi intelligence head on the Russian front, went with OSS head “Wild Bill” Donavan to have talks with President Truman to get the CIA formed in 1947.  Truman later said “Had I known that the CIA would become the American Gestapo I never would have signed it into existence.”

An administration that is making a profit from war, whose politicians are making a profit into their own pockets, no matter how well hidden from the public’s attention, cannot be a valid government of the people because of clear conflict of interest. It is not hard to find the evidence of this conflict of interest on the internet and published sporadically in the mainstream media (search on Carlyle, a Bush and Bin Laden started Defense Contractor and on Halliburton—start by looking at the information on Alex Jone’s www.prisonplanet.com website). The mainstream media has reported on the fact that Halliburton got multimillion dollar contracts without proper bidding procedures, to do Iraq reconstruction, and that over 100 million dollars is unaccounted for.  It has also obtained contracts of $385 million to build more prisons in the US, even though it has been associated with the trafficking of sex slaves in Yugoslavia during the US war there.  Although Cheney who was CEO of Halliburton claimed to have no more financial interests in Halliburton, that was proven false:

Sen. Frank Lautenberg (D-NJ) asserts that Cheney's options -- worth $241,498 a year ago -- are now valued at more than $8 million. The former CEO of the oil and gas services juggernaut, Cheney has pledged to give proceeds to charity. (see http://rawstory.com/news/2005/Cheneys_stock_options_rose_3281_last_1011.html )
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The above graph released by Sen. Frank Lautenberg (D-NJ) charts the value of the Vice President's holdings in Halliburton in the past year.

 The very fact of that conflict of interest means that the US is not a valid democracy.  And that would be the case even if people had duly elected them in a fair ballot process (which much declassified information shows that it was not).

The unvarnished and unpalatable truth is that the Allies won WWII militarily and then shortly afterwards lost it to the Nazi’s in the intelligence front in the US a couple of years later.  The CIA started with nearly half of its officers as Gehlan’s Nazi spies.  At the end of WWII, the US imported many Nazi war criminals under Operation Paperclip, the paperclip on the immigration application signifying that the person’s background should not be checked. 

In the Bible it says to judge people by their fruits.  To know if the Nazi’s actually won the intelligence war in the US one only has to look at whether the CIA’s actions furthered the Nazi agenda or an actual democratic agenda which improves the choice and human rights of the people. Social scientists both within and without the CIA have concluded that US foreign aid and US foreign policy is associated with a decline in democracy and human rights, not an enhancement (See ex-CIA officer Philip Agee’s CIA Diary). That is perhaps most easily seen by looking at the School of the Americas, which was renamed in a whitewash effort.  The School of the Americas directly exports torture techniques and death squad tactics to Latin America.  It is still doing so, and human rights abuses in those countries are almost always associated with graduates of the School of the Americas.

 In the proxy wars of the Cold War, millions of people died as the CIA and KGB fought it out across the globe.  The people who died in those wars were the indigenous people of colored skin, almost without exception.  Thus on a practical level the Cold War was directly a continuation of the Final Solution. John Stockwell, author of In Search of Enemies, the highest ranking CIA official to speak out against the agency in the 1980’s, said that of the CIA directed wars that he personally knew of 5-6 million indigenous people were killed.  This is not a trivial number.  It is on par with the number of Jews killed in the Holocaust.  Since then the number has gone up substantially as CIA directed wars continue to rage across Africa, East Timor, Latin America, etc..  The number killed in CIA assisted famines is even much higher.  No one in these third world countries voted in fair elections to be the victims of war and famine.  This is not the result of their wishes.  It is the result of propaganda, unfair elections, puppet dictators, malicious economic policies and the denial of aid to arrive in time, engineered from within the CIA.  This is the Final Solution without barbed wire.

Half a million Iraqi children died of disease and starvation under US sanctions.  Those sanctions were imposed because Iraq had chemical, biological, and perhaps nuclear weapons.  But it was the US that approved the sale of chemical and biological weapons to Iraq in the years before that even while Hussein was a known dictator with a poor human rights record.  Seen from the point of view of a person within the CIA, the US set up Hussein in order to kill his people, take the oil, and control his country through a pretext of democracy building.  Since the US itself is no longer a democracy, it is unable to export democracy, only tyranny parading as democracy.

CIA-DIA Operation MKULTRA, the torture of US children to split their minds to force them into spying, was an outgrowth of Nazi mind-control experiments in the death camps of Auschwitz etc.  I grew up in a neo-Nazi camp without barbed wire—all of the “wires” being placed within the mind to prevent the victim’s escape.

These examples, only the tip of the iceberg of the CIA’s destruction of true democracies and human rights around the world, show that the CIA is not controlled by men interested in enhancing human freedom, rights, and the choice.  It is intent on death, tyranny, and oppression---as that is what it causes.  Noam Chomsky in The Politics of Power and other books makes it quite clear that the US’s policies are geared to decreasing democracy and freedom of people while mouthing platitudes to the opposite.  US foreign policy has been deceitful, racist, and undermining of the freedom of other countries since at least the Spanish American War in the late 1800’s.  Many a Latin American country can attest to that given the US Marines occupying their countries in the 1900’s.  So in that sense it is not fair to blame this problem of an immoral US foreign policy on the Nazi’s or their neo-con descendents.  Yet, it remains important to understand how the neo-con policies and methodologies of full spectrum dominance of the world grew out of Nazi thinking.  The Nazis and their neo-cons descendent are not interested in promoting real democracy or human rights, they are dedicated to fascism.  That is why they act as fascist, as revealed by the Torture Memos (see Seymour Hersch’s Chain of Command, Truth, Torture, and the American Way : The History and Consequences of U.S. Involvement in Torture by Jennifer K. Harbury ,and Torture and Truth: America, Abu Ghraib, and the War on Terror by Mark Danner.)  There is nothing democratic or freedom enhancing about denying people the right of Habeus Corpus, fair and speedy trials based on evidence.  It is straight fascism to undermine human rights and the Geneva Convention and international law and treaties.  

The US is not a democracy currently.  It is a fact proven by the evidence of the discrepancy between the wishes of the voters and the policies of the government.  It is a fact proven by the conflict of interest of its politicians.  It is a fact proven by Senator Conyers in hearing on the 2004 Election theft and by Greg Palast in the 2000 election with his book The Best Democracy Money Can Buy.  It is a fact proven repeatedly in Bev Harris’s shocking book Black Box Voting which can be read online for free at www.blackboxvoting.org (beware of the look-alike sham site at www.blackboxvoting.com).  It is a fact proven by the existence of the CIA and the School of the Americans under any other name.  It is a fact that I as an insider was willing to be tortured for by trying to bring it to the attention of the US Congress—and by the fact that my attempt failed to correct the situation.  It is a fact that has caused third world people to die in US wars while the US population would not have supported the war if the truth had been known in Vietnam, in Afganistan, or in Iraq.  Lies to the American public, massive propaganda to fool the American public, such as exposed by intelligence expert James Bamford in his excellent article, Bush’s Propaganda Minister, (see http://www.truthout.org/docs_2005/111805N.shtml  are not compatible with American democracy.  Such propaganda is illegal for that very reason, but the US administration, the CIA, and the NSA ignore that fact and subvert American democracy.

“Remote viewing” background information:

Because I have been a remote viewer for the US govt. and a basic familiarity with that field is needed to understand my role within the US govt. I have included some elementary background information from declassified sources.

After US General Billy Mitchell was proven correct in his predictions of the Pacific battles he remotely viewed 17 years in advance, it was a given that the US would investigate how to have accurate viewers at their disposal all the time.  (See http://www.christopherlong.co.uk/per.mitchell.html )

Excerpts from an article on General Billy Mitchell 
 [What follows are predictions written by General Mitchell about WWII in the Pacific for Sunday Dec. 7, 1941. Note that General Mitchell gave specific dates, places and times for the events.  This is the kind of very accurate foreknowledge of the future that is possible in intelligence work.]

http://www.homeofheroes.com/wings/part1/6_survival.html
Written July, 1924  

"The Japanese bombardment, (would be) 100 (air) ships organized into four squadrons of 25 (air) ships each.  The objectives for attack are:
1. Ford Island, airdrome, hangers, storehouses and ammunition dumps; 

2. Navy fuel oil tanks; 

3. Water supply of Honolulu; 

4. Water supply of Schofield; 

5. Schofield Barracks airdrome and troop establishments; 

6. Naval submarine station; 

7. City and wharves of Honolulu." 

"Attack will be launched as follows:  bombardment, attack to be made on Ford Island at 7:30 a.m.
"Attack to be made on Clark Field (Philippine Islands) at 10:40 a.m."
"Japanese pursuit aviation will meet bombardment over Clark Field, proceeding by squadrons, one at 3000 feet to Clark Field from the southeast and with the sun at their back, one at 5000 feet from the north and one at 10,000 feet from the west.  Should U.S. pursuit e destroyed or fail to appear, airdrome would be attacked with machineguns."
"The (Japanese) air force would then carry out a systematic siege against Corregidor."
"The United States must not render herself completely defenseless on the one hand thinking that a war with Japan is an impossibility, and on the other by sticking to methods and means of making war as obsolete as the bow and arrow is for the military rifle."
 “ …Mitchell's [325 page] report [submitted to the US Army] disappeared somewhere near the Flying Trash Bin … Not until seventeen years later would anyone put any credence in the scenario it played out.  …”
“… later the moment Billy Mitchell had feared and warned his country to prepare for, happened in the most tragic of manners.  On the morning of December 7, 1941 the unified air service of Japan attacked Ford Island on the Island of Oahu.  The most powerful fleet in the world was crushed beneath a torrent of bombs, and nearly 200 American airplanes were destroyed on the ground where they were parked.  More than 2,000 Americans died that day.  The attack commenced at 7:55 a.m. on a Sunday morning.  Billy Mitchell's warning to America in 1924 had been off--by 25 minutes.”

“Within 10 hours Japanese aircraft made a nearly simultaneous strike on Clark Field in the Philippine Islands, virtually destroying America's air force in the South Pacific.  It was 12:30 p.m. local time...Mitchell had missed that one by less than two hours.”

When material is on the edge of advances in Science, as in this case of remote viewing and psycho-kinesis, much reading would need to be done to come up to speed on the field so as not to discount the material out of hand.  There are quite a few military remote-viewers from the discontinued Star Gate related projects at Fort Detrick that have written books about remote viewing as that unit practiced it (See Lyn Buchanan’s The Seventh Sense or the excerpt included, or books by McMoneagle, Morehouse, etc.) 

Excerpts from The Seventh Sense by Lyn Buchanan:

“This book is a personal account of the many changes in my life and in my belief system as I was trained and gained experience as a ‘psychic spy’ for the US military… .CRV (Controlled Remote Viewing) was designed for finding hostages and missing children, solving crimes, spying on people and countries, determining the plans and intentions of political, military, and business leaders.” Pg. xiii

“Controlled remote viewing is a natural, psychological, and physiological process that is very tightly anchored to the real, hard-core physical world around us.” Pg xiv.

“You may argue that the “psychic sense” is not a scientifically accepted paradigm, but recent research---mainly that done in conjunction with the US military’s ‘psychic spying’ programs---has established a well-documented and firmly founded basis of proof of the existence of mankind’s ‘psychic’ ability.  If any scientist, by reason of his/her own personal belief systems, objects to the inclusion of this concept, I would suggest that he/she go study the latest findings.  They are readily available.” Pg. xv.

“After more than seventeen years being a psychic spy for the U.S. government, teaching more than 300 students, and doing studies and research on facets of the human mind which allow us to deal with things greater than ourselves, I find very little that surprises me anymore.” Pg. xvi.

“One of CRV’s strengths is that, when preformed properly, it can find information that cannot be gained through any other means…

“Another strength is CRV’s reliable and often amazing accuracy.  To everyone’s surprise (mine included), the military’s CRV unit had the highest accuracy rating of any of the intelligence community’s vast array of intelligence gathering tools.  That includes such awesome tools as “spy in the sky” satellites, aerial photography, and even agents on the ground.  The CRV method can produce information about a target site that is about 90 percent correct.  We have many police departments and other agencies who are overjoyed when a process [like torture] produces information that is only 10% correct.  They are ecstatic about CRV.” Pg. 86.

“…That brings up a danger, however, which some consider to be another one of CRV’s drawbacks.  …just as a hypnotist can convince you that you have been burned, and a burn will appear on your skin, things that happen in the virtual reality begin to have real world effects.  These results can be physical, mental, or emotional….The viewer may begin to identify with that person [the target] so strongly that the viewer loses all sense of self.” Pg 88.

“Every time I have had a PSI (Perfect Site Integration), it has been on a target of great interest, one that could induce me to give-up my hold on the physical reality around me and totally buy into the mini-virtual reality of the CRV session…. The target, though I didn’t know it at the time, was a simple picture clipped out of a travel magazine.  It was a photo of a town square in a tiny Swiss village high in the Alps….I had received [psychically] about ten pages of information on the target, enough to realize that it was a small town in a place with extremely clear air, bright sunshine, and mountains all around, when suddenly, the PSI experience took over.  I was looking across a cobble-stoned street to see a man and his son coming out of a building.  They stopped on the sidewalk and began to talk.  A sign on the building clearly identified it as the Bank of Switzerland.  I crossed the street to meet the two.  When I approached them, I could hear them speaking Bayrish, a southern dialect of German.  I spoke to them, but they did not hear me or see me.  Since I speak German, I began listening to their conversation.  The father said that they had time to go to the store.

The two men walked to their car… I climbed in and sat on the folded convertible top. …I looked across the street, past a central town square.  There was a very ornate fountain in the square with some tourists and an elderly couple sitting around in on benches.  As he drove further, I looked up at a street sign and read the name of the street.  …I made a quick sketch of the fountain and wrote down the street name, then slipped back into the PSI experience.

We went about 8 blocks.  I looked at each street sign and mentally catalogued the street names.  I watched for any outstanding stores or sights along the way.  

[His monitor] Paul told me that I had hit the target.  He pulled out the feedback picture of the town square, and in its middle was the same fountain that I had sketched.  The feedback picture did not have anyone sitting around the fountain, but the benchers were there.  I evidently had visited the site location instead of simply viewing the feedback picture.  …

…Finally, I wrote to the town’s tourist bureau, asking for information about the town and a town map, if possible.  When it arrived, I got the most pleasing reward anyone could get for a CRV session.  The map not only showed street names, the location of the town square, and the train station, but also showed the location of the businesses of the map’s various sponsors.  One was the bank.  Another was the department store.  Although I had misspelled many of the street names, they were unmistakably the right names.  The ban, department store, train station, and town square were where I had described them.  Although the map that I had sketched during my session was missing several streets, it was essentially a correct rendering of the parts of the town through which I had ridden on the back of a VW convertible one warm, clear, beautiful day in the Swiss mountains.” p149-152

Now I use it to help find missing children.  I also do sessions for corporations to help them in their business planning, R&D work, financial projections, and executive decision making.

Even after a review of books by the military remote viewers, the average reader would be still missing the classified sources in this area.  There is not much I can do to correct that bias in the understanding of the reader except to point out that there is much that has been done in this area that he/she is unaware of.  An example of that is the US Air Force’s funding a multi-million dollar study of teleportation. The declassified document on it can be viewed online at Air Force Research Lab's August 2004 "Teleportation Physics Report," posted on the Federation of American Scientists (FAS) Web site www.rense.com/1.imagesG/teleport.pdf . See the introduction and pages 55-59 for parts that are understandable to the lay public. The rest of the document contains some quantum physics that shows why remote viewing, psycho-kinesis, and teleportation are not impossible or anti-scientific, but are in fact expected effects of physics (see the documentary “What the Bleep do We Know?”, or books like The Holographic Universe.)

However, Quantum Physics itself, although more accurate in describing experimental results than Newtonian physics, may still not be an adequate description of reality—it remains the best theory that we have to date.

At least since the time of the Old Testament, strange events have occurred that defied the minds of men to understand.  The parting of the Red Sea, the levitation and bi-location of saints, the raising of the dead, have all been classified as “impossibilities”, except for an act of God. Many people do not believe such events happen at all, in spite of historical accounts across most cultures of such shamanic or “miraculous events”.  With the advent of the better theory of Quantum physics, many of the phenomena that were previously discarded as impossible have been investigated by intelligence agencies, notably the CIA and KGB. 

For example, there have been many historical examples of so-called “unlearned language”. A famous example of that is American psychic Edgar Cayce who used the Akashic records as a basis for prescribing health treatments.  In spite of only an 8th grade education and not foreign language training, he wrote back to people in whatever language they wrote to him for advice in. (See Edgar Cayce’s biography.)  Such skills are of great interest to intelligence services that need spies with language skills that are the same as native speakers. Those language and remote viewing skills make no sense when we think of people are having individual minds inside their skulls.  But when viewed differently, such as via Jung Collective Unconscious, then one can believe that all languages are buried below the surface of the mind and can be brought out by hypnosis like in the case of Cayce, at least in some subjects.

The question remains—when the event reported or witnessed violates one’s worldview of what is possible—does it make more sense to throw out your theory of how the world works or the report? How you handle such discrepancies will determine the breadth of results that you can achieve. Quantum physics clearly shows that an experimental result, like whether EM energy is comprised of waves or particles, is dependent on the mind of the observer. Some people are narrow-minded and for them what is possible will be limited.

Other useful books on the subject include China’s Super Psychics, Padre Pio: Man of Hope, and the PK Zone. Little that I say will make any sense to the reader who is not willing to read up on this field or at least keep an open mind.

Background related to the CIA’s History of  Rape, Torture, and Genocide

John Stockwell Talks on Americas Third World War 

See the following links and the below copies of them

http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article4068.htm PartI

http://www.informationclearinghouse.info/article4069.htm Part II
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Americas Third World War
How 6 million People Were killed in CIA secret wars against third world countries
PRESS PLAY TO VIEW
SOURCE FILE
John Stockwell, former CIA Station Chief in Angola in 1976, working for then Director of the CIA, George Bush.  He spent 13 years in the agency.  He gives a short history of CIA covert operations.  He is a very compelling speaker and the highest level CIA officer to testify to the Congress about his actions.  He estimates that over 6 million people have died in CIA covert actions, and this was in the late 1980's.

THE SECRET WARS OF THE CIA: Part 1 By ex-CIA John Stockwell

A lecture given in October, 1987

Part I - Part II
John Stockwell is the highest-ranking CIA official ever to leave the agency and go public. He ran a CIA intelligence-gathering post in Vietnam, was the task-force commander of the CIA's secret war in Angola in 1975 and 1976, and was awarded the Medal of Merit before he resigned. Stockwell's book In Search of Enemies, published by W.W. Norton 1978, is an international best-seller.



"I did 13 years in the CIA altogether. I sat on a subcommittee of the NSC, so I was like a chief of staff, with the GS-18s (like 3-star generals) Henry Kissinger, Bill Colby (the CIA director), the GS-18s and the CIA, making the important decisions and my job was to put it all together and make it happen and run it, an interesting place from which to watch a covert action being done...

I testified for days before the Congress, giving them chapter and verse, date and detail, proving specific lies. They were asking if we had to do with S. Africa, that was fighting in the country. In fact we were coordinating this operation so closely that our airplanes, full of arms from the states, would meet their airplanes in Kinshasa and they would take our arms into Angola to distribute to our forces for us....

What I found with all of this study is that the subject, the problem, if you will, for the world, for the U.S. is much, much, much graver, astronomically graver, than just Angola and Vietnam. I found that the Senate Church committee has reported, in their study of covert actions, that the CIA ran several thousand covert actions since 1961, and that the heyday of covert action was before 1961; that we have run several hundred covert actions a year, and the CIA has been in business for a total of 37 years.

What we're going to talk about tonight is the United States national security syndrome. We're going to talk about how and why the U.S. manipulates the press. We're going to talk about how and why the U.S. is pouring money into El Salvador, and preparing to invade Nicaragua; how all of this concerns us so directly. I'm going to try to explain to you the other side of terrorism; that is, the other side of what Secretary of State Shultz talks about. In doing this, we'll talk about the Korean war, the Vietnam war, and the Central American war.

Everything I'm going to talk to you about is represented, one way or another, already in the public records. You can dig it all out for yourselves, without coming to hear me if you so chose. Books, based on information gotten out of the CIA under the freedom of information act, testimony before the Congress, hearings before the Senate Church committee, research by scholars, witness of people throughout the world who have been to these target areas that we'll be talking about. I want to emphasize that my own background is profoundly conservative. We come from South Texas, East Texas....

I was conditioned by my training, my marine corps training, and my background, to believe in everything they were saying about the cold war, and I took the job with great enthusiasm (in the CIA) to join the best and the brightest of the CIA, of our foreign service, to go out into the world, to join the struggle, to project American values and save the world for our brand of democracy. And I believed this. I went out and worked hard....

What I really got out of these 6 years in Africa was a sense ... that nothing we were doing in fact defended U.S. national security interests very much. We didn't have many national security interests in Bujumbura, Burundi, in the heart of Africa. I concluded that I just couldn't see the point.

We were doing things it seemed because we were there, because it was our function, we were bribing people, corrupting people, and not protecting the U.S. in any visible way. I had a chance to go drinking with this Larry Devlin, a famous CIA case officer who had overthrown Patrice Lumumba, and had him killed in 1960, back in the Congo. He was moving into the Africa division Chief. I talked to him in Addis Ababa at length one night, and he was giving me an explanation - I was telling him frankly, 'sir, you know, this stuff doesn't make any sense, we're not saving anybody from anything, and we are corrupting people, and everybody knows we're doing it, and that makes the U.S. look bad'.

And he said I was getting too big for my britches. He said, `you're trying to think like the people in the NSC back in Washington who have the big picture, who know what's going on in the world, who have all the secret information, and the experience to digest it. If they decide we should have someone in Bujumbura, Burundi, and that person should be you, then you should do your job, and wait until you have more experience, and you work your way up to that point, then you will understand national security, and you can make the big decisions. Now, get to work, and stop, you know, this philosophizing.'

And I said, `Aye-aye sir, sorry sir, a bit out of line sir'. It's a very powerful argument, our presidents use it on us. President Reagan has used it on the American people, saying, `if you knew what I know about the situation in Central America, you would understand why it's necessary for us to intervene.'

I went back to Washington, however, and I found that others shared my concern. A formal study was done in the State Department and published internally, highly classified, called the Macomber [sp?] report, concluding that the CIA had no business being in Africa for anything it was known to be doing, that our presence there was not justified, there were no national security interests that the CIA could address any better than the ambassador himself. We didn't need to have bribery and corruption as a tool for doing business in Africa at that time.

I went from ... a tour in Washington to Vietnam. And there, my career, and my life, began to get a little bit more serious. They assigned me a country. It was during the cease-fire, '73 to '75. There was no cease-fire. Young men were being slaughtered. I saw a slaughter. 300 young men that the South Vietnamese army ambushed. Their bodies brought in and laid out in a lot next to my compound. I was up-country in Tayninh. They were laid out next door, until the families could come and claim them and take them away for burial.

I thought about this. I had to work with the sadistic police chief. When I reported that he liked to carve people with knives in the CIA safe-house - when I reported this to my bosses, they said, `(1). The post was too important to close down. (2). They weren't going to get the man transferred or fired because that would make problems, political problems, and he was very good at working with us in the operations he worked on. (3). Therefore if I didn't have the stomach for the job, that they could transfer me.'

But they hastened to point out, if I did demonstrate a lack of `moral fiber' to handle working with the sadistic police chief, that I wouldn't get another good job in the CIA, it would be a mark against
my career.

So I kept the job, I closed the safe-house down, I told my staff that I didn't approve of that kind of activity, and I proceeded to work with him for the next 2 years, pretending that I had reformed him, and he didn't do this sort of thing anymore. The parallel is obvious with El Salvador today, where the CIA, the state department, works with the death squads.

They don't meet the death squads on the streets where they're actually chopping up people or laying them down on the street and running trucks over their heads. The CIA people in San Salvador meet the police chiefs, and the people who run the death squads, and they do liaise with them, they meet them beside the swimming pool of the villas. And it's a sophisticated, civilized kind of relationship. And they talk about their children, who are going to school at UCLA or Harvard and other schools, and they don't talk about the horrors of what's being done. They pretend like it isn't true.

What I ran into in addition to that was a corruption in the CIA and the intelligence business that made me question very seriously what it was all about, including what I was doing ... risking my life ... what I found was that the CIA, us, the case officers, were not permitted to report about the corruption in the South Vietnamese army....

Now, the corruption was so bad, that the S. Vietnamese army was a skeleton army. Colonels would let the troops go home if they would come in once a month and sign the pay vouchers so the colonel could pocket the money. Then he could sell half of the uniforms and boots and M-16's to the communist forces - that was their major supply, just as it is in El Salvador today. He could use half of the trucks to haul produce, half of the helicopters to haul heroin.

And the Army couldn't fight. And we lived with it, and we saw it, and there was no doubt - everybody talked about it openly. We could provide all kinds of proof, and they wouldn't let us report it. Now this was a serious problem because the south was attacked in the winter of 1975, and it collapsed like a big vase hit by a sledgehammer. And the U.S. was humiliated, and that was the dramatic end of our long involvement in Vietnam....

I had been designated as the task-force commander that would run this secret war [in Angola in 1975 and 1976].... and what I figured out was that in this job, I would sit on a sub-committee of the National Security Council, this office that Larry Devlin has told me about where they had access to all the information about Angola, about the whole world, and I would finally understand national security. And I couldn't resist the opportunity to know. I knew the CIA was not a worthwhile organization, I had learned that the hard way. But the question was where did the U.S. government fit into this thing, and I had a chance to see for myself in the next big secret war....

I wanted to know if wise men were making difficult decisions based on truly important, threatening information, threatening to our national security interests. If that had been the case, I still planned to get out of the CIA, but I would know that the system, the invisible government, our national security complex, was in fact justified and worth while. And so I took the job.... Suffice it to say I wouldn't be standing in front of you tonight if I had found these wise men making these tough decisions. What I found, quite frankly, was fat old men sleeping through sub-committee meetings of the NSC in which we were making decisions that were killing people in Africa. I mean literally. Senior ambassador Ed Mulcahy... would go to sleep in nearly every one of these meetings....

You can change the names in my book [about Angola] [13] and you've got Nicaragua.... the basic structure, all the way through including the mining of harbors, we addressed all of these issues. The point is that the U.S. led the way at every step of the escalation of the fighting. We said it was the Soviets and the Cubans that were doing it. It was the U.S. that was escalating the fighting. There would have been no war if we hadn't gone in first. We put arms in, they put arms in. We put advisors in, they answered with advisors. We put in Zairian para-commando battalions, they put in Cuban army troops. We brought in the S. African army, they brought in the Cuban army. And
they pushed us away. They blew us away because we were lying, we were covering ourselves with lies, and they were telling the truth. And it was not a war that we could fight. We didn't have interests there that should have been defended that way.

There was never a study run that evaluated the MPLA, FNLA and UNITA, the three movements in the country, to decide which one was the better one. The assistant secretary of state for African affairs, Nathaniel Davis, no bleeding-heart liberal (he was known by some people in the business as the butcher of Santiago), he said we should stay out of the conflict and work with whoever eventually won, and that was obviously the MPLA. Our consul in Luanda, Tom Killoran, vigorously argued that the MPLA was the best qualified to run the country and the friendliest to the U.S.

We brushed these people aside, forced Matt Davis to resign, and proceeded with our war. The MPLA said they wanted to be our friends, they didn't want to be pushed into the arms of the Soviet Union; they begged us not to fight them, they wanted to work with us. We said they wanted a cheap victory, they wanted a walk-over, they wanted to be un-opposed, that we wouldn't give them a cheap victory, we would make them earn it, so to speak. And we did. 10,000 Africans died and they won the victory that they were winning anyway.

Now, the most significant thing that I got out of all of this, in addition to the fact that our rationales were basically false, was that we lied. To just about everybody involved. One third of my staff in this task force that I put together in Washington, commanding this global operation, pulling strings all over the world to focus pressure onto Angola, and military activities into Angola, one third of my staff was propagandists, who were working, in every way they could to create this picture of Cubans raping Angolans, Cubans and Soviets introducing arms into the conflict, Cubans and Russians trying to take over the world.

Our ambassador to the United Nations, Patrick Moynihan, he read continuous statements of our position to the Security Council, the general assembly, and the press conferences, saying the Russians and Cubans were responsible for the conflict, and that we were staying out, and that we deplored the militarization of the conflict.

And every statement he made was false. And every statement he made was originated in the sub-committee of the NSC that I sat on as we managed this thing. The state department press person read these position papers daily to the press. We would write papers for him. Four paragraphs. We would call him on the phone and say, `call us 10 minutes before you go on, the situation could change overnight, we'll tell you which paragraph to read. And all four paragraphs would be false. Nothing to do with the truth. Designed to play on events, to create this impression of Soviet and Cuban aggression in Angola. When they were in fact responding to our initiatives.

And the CIA director was required by law to brief the Congress. This CIA director Bill Colby - the same one that dumped our people in Vietnam - he gave 36 briefings of the Congress, the oversight committees, about what we were doing in Angola. And he lied. At 36 formal briefings. And such lies are perjury, and it's a felony to lie to the Congress.

He lied about our relationship with South Africa. We were working closely with the South African army, giving them our arms, coordinating battles with them, giving them fuel for their tanks and armored cars. He said we were staying well away from them. They were concerned about these white mercenaries that were appearing in Angola, a very sensitive issue, hiring whites to go into a black African country, to help you impose your will on that black African country by killing the blacks, a very sensitive issue. The Congress was concerned we might be involved in that, and he assured them we had nothing to do with it.

We had in fact formed four little mercenary armies and delivered them into Angola to do this dirty business for the CIA. And he lied to them about that. They asked if we were putting arms into the conflict, and he said no, and we were. They asked if we had advisors inside the country, and he said `no, we had people going in to look at the situation and coming back out'. We had 24 people sleeping inside the country, training in the use of weapons, installing communications systems, planning battles, and he said, we didn't have anybody inside the country.

In summary about Angola, without U.S. intervention, 10,000 people would be alive that were killed in the thing. The outcome might have been peaceful, or at least much less bloody. The MPLA was winning when we went in, and they went ahead and won, which was, according to our consul, the best thing for the country.

At the end of this thing the Cubans were entrenched in Angola, seen in the eyes of much of the world as being the heroes that saved these people from the CIA and S. African forces. We had allied the U.S. literally and in the eyes of the world with the S. African army, and that's illegal, and it's impolitic. We had hired white mercenaries and eventually been identified with them. And that's illegal, and it's impolitic. And our lies had been visible lies. We were caught out on those lies. And the world saw the U.S. as liars.

After it was over, you have to ask yourself, was it justified? What did the MPLA do after they had won? Were they lying when they said they wanted to be our friends? 3 weeks after we were shut down... the MPLA had Gulf oil back in Angola, pumping the Angolan oil from the oilfields, with U.S. gulf technicians protected by Cuban soldiers, protecting them from CIA mercenaries who were still mucking around in Northern Angola.

You can't trust a communist, can you? They proceeded to buy five 737 jets from Boeing Aircraft in Seattle. And they brought in 52 U.S. technicians to install the radar systems to land and take-off those planes. They didn't buy [the Soviet Union's] Aeroflot.... David Rockefeller himself tours S. Africa and comes back and holds press conferences, in which he says that we have no problem doing business with the so-called radical states of Southern Africa.

I left the CIA, I decided that the American people needed to know what we'd done in Angola, what we'd done in Vietnam. I wrote my book. I was fortunate - I got it out. It was a best-seller. A lot of people read it. I was able to take my story to the American people. Got on 60 minutes, and lots and lots of other shows.

I testified to the Congress and then I began my education in earnest, after having been taught to fight communists all my life. I went to see what communists were all about. I went to Cuba to see if they do in fact eat babies for breakfast. And I found they don't. I went to Budapest, a country that even national geographic admits is working nicely. I went to Jamaica to talk to Michael Manley about his theories of social democracy.

I went to Grenada and established a dialogue with Maurice Bishop and Bernard Cord and Phyllis Cord, to see - these were all educated people, and experienced people - and they had a theory, they had something they wanted to do, they had rationales and explanations - and I went repeatedly to hear them. And then of course I saw the U.S., the CIA mounting a covert action against them, I saw us orchestrating our plan to invade the country. 19 days before he was killed, I was in Grenada talking to Maurice Bishop about these things, these indicators, the statements in the press by Ronald Reagan, and he and I were both acknowledging that it was almost certain that the U.S. would invade Grenada in the near future.

I read as many books as I could find on the subject - book after book after book. I've got several hundred books on the shelf over my desk on the subject of U.S. national security interests. And by the way, I urge you to read. In television you get capsules of news that someone else puts together what they want you to hear about the news. In newspapers you get what the editors select to put in the newspaper. If you want to know about the world and understand, to educate yourself, you have to get out and dig, dig up books and articles for yourself. Read, and find out for yourselves. As you'll see, the issues are very, very important.

I also was able to meet the players, the people who write, the people who have done studies, people who are leading different situations. I went to Nicaragua a total of 7 times. This was a major covert action. It lasted longer and evolved to be bigger than what we did in Angola. It gave me a chance, after running something from Washington, to go to a country that was under attack, to talk to the leadership, to talk to the people, to look and see what happens when you give white phosporous or grenades or bombs or bullets to people, and they go inside a country, to go and talk to the people, who have been shot, or hit, or blown up....

We're talking about 10 to 20 thousand covert actions [the CIA has performed since 1961]. What I found was that lots and lots of people have been killed in these things.... Some of them are very, very bloody.

The Indonesian covert action of 1965, reported by Ralph McGehee, who was in that area division, and had documents on his desk, in his custody about that operation. He said that one of the documents concluded that this was a model operation that should be copied elsewhere in the world. Not only did it eliminate the effective communist party (Indonesian communist party), it also eliminated the entire segment of the population that tended to support the communist party - the ethnic Chinese, Indonesian Chinese. And the CIA's report put the number of dead at 800,000 killed. And that was one covert action. We're talking about 1 to 3 million people killed in these things.

Two of these things have led us directly into bloody wars. There was a covert action against China, destabilizing China, for many, many years, with a propaganda campaign to work up a mood, a feeling in this country, of the evils of communist China, and attacking them, as we're doing in Nicaragua today, with an army that was being launched against them to parachute in and boat in and destabilize the country. And this led us directly into the Korean war.

U.S. intelligence officers worked over Vietnam for a total of 25 years, with greater and greater involvement, massive propaganda, deceiving the American people about what was happening. Panicking people in Vietnam to create migrations to the south so they could photograph it and show how people were fleeing communism. And on and on, until they got us into the Vietnam war, and 2,000,000 people were killed.

There is a mood, a sentiment in Washington, by our leadership today, for the past 4 years, that a good communist is a dead communist. If you're killing 1 to 3 million communists, that's great. President Reagan has gone public and said he would reduce the Soviet Union to a pile of ashes. The problem, though, is that these people killed by our national security activities are not communists. They're not Russians, they're not KGB. In the field we used to play chess with the KGB officers, and have drinks with them. It was like professional football players - we would knock heads on Sunday, maybe in an operation, and then Tuesday you're at a banquet together drinking toasts and talking.

The people that are dying in these things are people of the third world. That's the common denominator that you come up with. People of the third world. People that have the misfortune of being born in the Metumba mountains of the Congo, in the jungles of Southeast Asia, and now in the hills of northern Nicaragua. Far more Catholics than communists, far more Buddhists than communists. Most of them couldn't give you an intelligent definition of communism, or of capitalism.

Central America has been a traditional target of U.S. dominion. If you want to get an easy-read of the history of our involvement in Central America, read Walter LaFeber's book, Inevitable Revolutions. [8] We have dominated the area since 1820. We've had a policy of dominion, of excluding other countries, other industrial powers from Europe, from competing with us in the area.

Just to give you an example of how complete this is, and how military this has been, between 1900 and W.W. II, we had 5,000 marines in Nicaragua for a total of 28 years. We invaded the Dominican Republic 4 times. Haiti, we occupied it for 12 years. We put our troops into Cuba 4 times, Panama 6 times, Guatemala once, plus a CIA covert action to overthrow the democratic government there once. Honduras, 7 times. And by the way, we put 12,000 troops into the Soviet Union during that same period of time.

In the 1930's there was public and international pressure about our marines in Nicaragua....

The next three leaders of Guatemala [after the CIA installed the puppet, Colonel Armaz in a coup] died violent deaths, and Amnesty International tells us that the governments we've supported in power there since then, have killed 80,000 people. You can read about that one in the book Bitter Fruit, by Schlesinger and Kinzer. [5] Kinzer's a New York Times Journalist... or Jonathan Kwitny, the Wall Street Journal reporter, his book Endless Enemies [7] - all discuss this....

However, the money, the millions and millions of dollars we put into this program [helping Central America] inevitably went to the rich, and not to the people of the countries involved. And while we were doing this, while we were trying, at least saying we were trying, to correct the problems of Central and Latin America, the CIA was doing its thing, too. The CIA was in fact forming the police units that are today the death squads in El Salvador. With the leaders on the CIA's payroll, trained by the CIA and the United States.

We had the `public safety program' going throughout Central and Latin America for 26 years, in which we taught them to break up subversion by interrogating people. Interrogation, including torture, the way the CIA taught it. Dan Metrione, the famous exponent of these things, did 7 years in Brazil and 3 in Uruguay, teaching interrogation, teaching torture. He was supposed to be the master of the business, how to apply the right amount of pain, at just the right times, in order to get the response you want from the individual.

They developed a wire. They gave them crank generators, with `U.S. AID' written on the side, so the people even knew where these things came from. They developed a wire that was strong enough to carry the current and fine enough to fit between the teeth, so you could put one wire between the teeth and the other one in or around the genitals and you could crank and submit the individual to the greatest amount of pain, supposedly, that the human body can register.

Now how do you teach torture? Dan Metrione: `I can teach you about torture, but sooner or later you'll have to get involved. You'll have to lay on your hands and try it yourselves.'

.... All they [the guinea pigs, beggars from off the streets] could do was lie there and scream. And when they would collapse, they would bring in doctors and shoot them up with vitamin B and rest them up for the next class. And when they would die, they would mutilate the bodies and throw them out on the streets, to terrify the population so they would be afraid of the police and the government.

And this is what the CIA was teaching them to do. And one of the women who was in this program for 2 years - tortured in Brazil for 2 years - she testified internationally when she eventually got out. She said, `The most horrible thing about it was in fact, that the people doing the torture were not raving psychopaths.' She couldn't break mental contact with them the way you could if they were psychopath. They were very ordinary people....

There's a lesson in all of this. And the lesson is that it isn't only Gestapo maniacs, or KGB maniacs, that do inhuman things to other people, it's people that do inhuman things to other people. And we are responsible for doing these things, on a massive basis, to people of the world today. And we do it in a way that gives us this plausible denial to our own consciences; we create a CIA, a secret police, we give them a vast budget, and we let them go and run these programs in our name, and we pretend like we don't know it's going on, although the information is there for us to know; and we pretend like it's ok because we're fighting some vague communist threat. And we're just as responsible for these 1 to 3 million people we've slaughtered and for all the people we've tortured and made miserable, as the Gestapo was the people that they've slaughtered and killed. Genocide is genocide!

Now we're pouring money into El Salvador. A billion dollars or so. And it's a documented fact that the... 14 families there that own 60% of the country are taking out between 2 to 5 billion dollars - it's called de-capitalization - and putting it in banks in Miami and Switzerland. Mort Halper, in testifying to a committee of the Congress, he suggested we could simplify the whole thing politically just by investing our money directly in the Miami banks in their names and just stay out of El Salvador altogether. And the people would be better off.

Nicaragua. What's happening in Nicaragua today is covert action. It's a classic de-stabilization program. In November 16, 1981, President Reagan allocated 19 million dollars to form an army, a force of contras, they're called, ex-Somoza national guards, the monsters who were doing the torture and terror in Nicaragua that made the Nicaraguan people rise up and throw out the dictator, and throw out the guard. We went back to create an army of these people. We are killing, and killing, and terrorizing people. Not only in Nicaragua but the Congress has leaked to the press - reported in the New York Times, that there are 50 covert actions going around the world today, CIA covert actions going on around the world today.

You have to be asking yourself, why are we destabilizing 50 corners of the troubled world? Why are we about to go to war in Nicaragua, the Central American war? It is the function, I suggest, of the CIA, with its 50 de-stabilization programs going around the world today, to keep the world unstable, and to propagandize the American people to hate, so we will let the establishment spend any amount of money on arms....

The Victor Marquetti ruling of the Supreme Court gave the government the right to prepublication censorship of books. They challenged 360 items in his 360 page book. He fought it in court, and eventually they deleted some 60 odd items in his book.

The Frank Snep ruling of the Supreme Court gave the government the right to sue a government employee for damages. If s/he writes an unauthorized account of the government - which means the people who are involved in corruption in the government, who see it, who witness it, like Frank Snep did, like I did - if they try to go public they can now be punished in civil court. The government took $90,000 away from Frank Snep, his profits from his book, and they've seized the
profits from my own book....

[Reagan passed] the Intelligence Identities Protection act, which makes it a felony to write articles revealing the identities of secret agents or to write about their activities in a way that would reveal their identities. Now, what does this mean? In a debate in Congress - this is very controversial - the supporters of this bill made it clear.... If agents Smith and Jones came on this campus, in an MK-ultra-type experiment, and blew your fiance's head away with LSD, it would now be a felony to publish an article in your local paper saying, `watch out for these 2 turkeys, they're federal agents and they blew my loved one's head away with LSD'. It would not be a felony what they had done because that's national security and none of them were ever punished for those activities.

Efforts to muzzle government employees. President Reagan has been banging away at this one ever since. Proposing that every government employee, for the rest of his or her life, would have to submit anything they wrote to 6 committees of the government for censorship, for the rest of their lives. To keep the scandals from leaking out... to keep the American people from knowing what the government is really doing.

Then it starts getting heavy. The `Pre-emptive Strikes' bill. President Reagan, working through the Secretary of State Shultz... almost 2 years ago, submitted the bill that would provide them with the authority to strike at terrorists before terrorists can do their terrorism. But this bill... provides that they would be able to do this in this country as well as overseas. It provides that the secretary of state would put together a list of people that he considers to be terrorist, or terrorist supporters, or terrorist sympathizers. And if your name, or your organization, is put on this list, they could kick down your door and haul you away, or kill you, without any due process of the law and search warrants and trial by jury, and all of that, with impunity.

Now, there was a tremendous outcry on the part of jurists. The New York Times columns and other newspapers saying, `this is no different from Hitler's "night in fog" program', where the government had the authority to haul people off at night. And they did so by the thousands. And President Reagan and Secretary Shultz have persisted.... Shultz has said, `Yes, we will have to take action on the basis of information that would never stand up in a court. And yes, innocent people will have to be killed in the process. But, we must have this law because of the threat of international terrorism'.

Think a minute. What is `the threat of international terrorism'? These things catch a lot of attention. But how many Americans died in terrorist actions last year? According to Secretary Shultz, 79. Now, obviously that's terrible but we killed 55,000 people on our highways with drunken driving; we kill 2,500 people in far nastier, bloodier, mutilating, gang-raping ways in Nicaragua last year alone ourselves. Obviously 79 peoples' death is not enough reason to take away the protection of American citizens, of due process of the law.

But they're pressing for this. The special actions teams that will do the pre-emptive striking have already been created, and trained in the defense department.

They're building detention centers. There were 8 kept as mothballs under the McLaren act after World War II, to detain aliens and dissidents in the next war, as was done in the next war, as was done with the Japanese people during World War II. They're building 10 more, and army camps, and the... executive memos about these things say it's for aliens and dissidents in the next national emergency....

FEMA, the Federal Emergency Management Agency, headed by Loius Guiffrida, a friend of Ed Meese's.... He's going about the country lobbying and demanding that he be given authority, in the times of national emergency, to declare martial law, and establish a curfew, and gun down people who violate the curfew... in the United States.

And then there's Ed Meese, as I said. The highest law enforcement officer in the land, President Reagan's closest friend, going around telling us that the constitution never did guarantee freedom of speech and press, and due process of the law, and assembly.

What they are planning for this society, and this is why they're determined to take us into a war if we'll permit it... is the Reagan revolution.... So he's getting himself some laws so when he puts in
the troops in Nicaragua, he can take charge of the American people, and put people in jail, and kick in their doors, and kill them if they don't like what he's doing....

The question is, `Are we going to permit our leaders to take away our freedoms because they have a charming smile and they were nice movie stars one day, or are we going to stand up and fight, and insist on our freedoms?' It's up to us - you and I can watch this history play in the next year and 2 and 3 years.

See article for references.
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THE SECRET WARS OF THE CIA: Part II By ex-CIA John Stockwell

A lecture given in October, 1987

Part II - Part I Here
I just got my latest book back from the CIA censors. If I had not submitted it to them, I would have gone to jail, without trial - blow off juries and all that sort of thing - for having violated our censorship laws....

In that job [Angola] I sat on a sub-committee of the NSC, so I was like a chief of staff, with the GS-18s (like 3-star generals) Henry Kissinger, Bill Colby (the CIA director), the GS-18s and the CIA, making important decisions and my job was to put it all together and make it happen and run it, an interesting place from which to watch a covert action being done....

When the world's gotten blocked up before, like a monopoly game where everything's owned and nobody can make any progress, the way they erased the board and started over has been to have big world wars, and erase countries and bomb cities and bomb banks and then start from scratch again. This is not an option to us now because of all these 52,000 nuclear weapons....

The United States CIA is running 50 covert actions, destabilizing further almost one third of the countries in the world today....

By the way, everything I'm sharing with you tonight is in the public record. The 50 covert actions - these are secret, but that has been leaked to us by members of the oversight committee of the Congress. I urge you not to take my word for anything. I'm going to stand here and tell you and give you examples of how our leaders lie. Obviously I could be lying. The only way you can figure it out for yourself is to educate yourselves. The French have a saying, `them that don't do politics will be done'. If you don't fill your mind eagerly with the truth, dig it out from the records, go and see for yourself, then your mind remains blank and your adrenaline pumps, and you can be mobilized and excited to do things that are not in your interest to do....

Nicaragua is not the biggest covert action, it is the most famous one. Afghanistan is, we spent several hundred million dollars in Afghanistan. We've spent somewhat less than that, but close, in Nicaragua....

[When the U.S. doesn't like a government], they send the CIA in, with its resources and activists, hiring people, hiring agents, to tear apart the social and economic fabric of the country, as a technique for putting pressure on the government, hoping that they can make the government come to the U.S.'s terms, or the government will collapse altogether and they can engineer a coup d'etat, and have the thing wind up with their own choice of people in power.

Now ripping apart the economic and social fabric of course is fairly textbook-ish. What we're talking about is going in and deliberately creating conditions where the farmer can't get his produce to market, where children can't go to school, where women are terrified inside their homes as well as outside their homes, where government administration and programs grind to a complete halt, where the hospitals are treating wounded people instead of sick people, where international capital is scared away and the country goes bankrupt. If you ask the state department today what is their official explanation of the purpose of the Contras, they say it's to attack economic targets, meaning, break up the economy of the country. Of course, they're attacking a lot more.

To destabilize Nicaragua beginning in 1981, we began funding this force of Somoza's ex-national guardsmen, calling them the contras (the counter-revolutionaries). We created this force, it did not exist until we allocated money. We've armed them, put uniforms on their backs, boots on their feet, given them camps in Honduras to live in, medical supplies, doctors, training, leadership, direction, as we've sent them in to de-stabilize Nicaragua. Under our direction they have systematically been blowing up graineries, saw mills, bridges, government offices, schools, health centers. They ambush trucks so the produce can't get to market. They raid farms and villages. The farmer has to carry a gun while he tries to plow, if he can plow at all.

If you want one example of hard proof of the CIA's involvement in this, and their approach to it, dig up `The Sabotage Manual', that they were circulating throughout Nicaragua, a comic-book type of a paper, with visual explanations of what you can do to bring a society to a halt, how you can gum up typewriters, what you can pour in a gas tank to burn up engines, what you can stuff in a sewage to stop up the sewage so it won't work, things you can do to make a society simply cease to function.

Systematically, the contras have been assassinating religious workers, teachers, health workers, elected officials, government administrators. You remember the assassination manual? that surfaced in 1984. It caused such a stir that President Reagan had to address it himself in the presidential debates with Walter Mondale. They use terror. This is a technique that they're using to traumatize the society so that it can't function.

I don't mean to abuse you with verbal violence, but you have to understand what your government and its agents are doing. They go into villages, they haul out families. With the children forced to watch they castrate the father, they peel the skin off his face, they put a grenade in his mouth and pull the pin. With the children forced to watch they gang-rape the mother, and slash her breasts off. And sometimes for variety, they make the parents watch while they do these
things to the children.

This is nobody's propaganda. There have been over 100,000 American witnesses for peace who have gone down there and they have filmed and photographed and witnessed these atrocities immediately after they've happened, and documented 13,000 people killed this way, mostly women and children. These are the activities done by these contras. The contras are the people president Reagan calls `freedom fighters'. He says they're the moral equivalent of our founding fathers. And the whole world gasps at this confession of his family traditions.

Read Contra Terror by Reed Brodie [1], former assistant Attorney General of New York State. Read The Contras by Dieter Eich. [4] Read With the Contras by Christopher Dickey. [2] This is a main-line journalist, down there on a grant with the Council on Foreign Relations, a slightly to the right of the middle of the road organization. He writes a book that sets a pox on both your houses, and then he accounts about going in on patrol with the contras, and describes their activities. Read Witness for Peace: What We have Seen and Heard. Read the Lawyer's Commission on Human Rights. Read The Violations of War on Both Sides by the Americas Watch. [15] And there are many, many more documentations of details, of names, of the incidents that have happened.

Part of a de-stabilization is propaganda, to dis-credit the targeted government. This one actually began under Jimmy Carter. He authorized the CIA to go in and try to make the Sandinistas look to be evil. So in 1979 [when] they came in to power, immediately we were trying to cast them as totalitarian, evil, threatening Marxists. While they abolished the death sentence, while they released 8,000 national guardsmen that they had in their custody that they could have kept in prison, they said `no. Unless we have evidence of individual crimes, we're not going to hold someone in prison just because they were associated with the former administration.' While they set out to launch a literacy campaign to teach the people to read and write, which is something that the dictator Somoza, and us supporting him, had never bothered to get around to doing. While they set out to build 2,500 clinics to give the country something resembling a public health policy, and access to medicines, we began to label them as totalitarian dictators, and to attack them in the press, and to work with this newspaper `La Prensa', which - it's finally come out and been admitted, in Washington - the U.S. government is funding: a propaganda arm.

[Reagan and the State dept. have] been claiming they're building a war machine that threatens the stability of Central America. Now the truth is, this small, poor country has been attacked by the world's richest country under conditions of war, for the last 5 years. Us and our army - the death they have sustained, the action they have suffered - it makes it a larger war proportionally than the Vietnam war was to the U.S. In addition to the contra activities, we've had U.S. Navy ships supervising the mining of harbors, we've sent planes in and bombed the capital, we've had U.S. military planes flying wing-tip to wing-tip over the country, photographing it, aerial reconnaissance. They don't have any missiles or jets they can send up to chase us off. We are at war with them. They have not retaliated yet with any kind of war action against us, but we do not give them credit with having the right to defend themselves. So we claim that the force they built up, which is obviously purely defensive, is an aggressive force that threatens the stability of all of Central America.

We claim the justification for this is the arms that are flowing from Nicaragua to El Salvador, and yet in 5 years of this activity, there is no evidence of any arms flowing from Nicaragua into El Salvador.

We launched a campaign to discredit their elections. International observer teams said these were the fairest elections they have witnessed in Central America in many years. We said they were fraudulent, they were rigged, because it was a totalitarian system. Instead we said, the elections that were held in El Salvador were models of democracy to be copied elsewhere in the world. And then the truth came out about that one. And we learned that the CIA had spent 2.2 million dollars to make sure that their choice of candidates - Duarte - would win. They did everything, we're told, by one of their spokesmen, indirectly, but stuff the ballot boxes....

I'll make a footnote that when I speak out, he [Senator Jesse Helmes] calls me a traitor, but when something happens he doesn't like, he doesn't hesitate to go public and reveal the secrets and embarrass the U.S.

We claim the Sandinistas are smuggling drugs as a technique to finance their revolution. This doesn't make sense. We're at war with them, we're dying to catch them getting arms from the Soviet Union, flying things back and forth to Cuba. We have airplanes and picket ships watching everything that flies out of that country, and into it. How are they going to have a steady flow of drug-smuggling planes into the U.S.? Not likely! However, there are Nicaraguans, on these bases in Honduras, that have planes flying into CIA training camps in Florida, Alabama, Louisiana, several times a week.

Now, obviously i'm not going to stand in front of you and say that the CIA might be involved in drug trafficking, am I? READ THE BOOK. Read The Politics of Heroin in Southeast Asia. For 20 years the CIA was helping the Kuomantang to finance itself and then to get rich smuggling heroin. When we took over from the French in 1954 their intelligence service had been financing itself by smuggling the heroin out of Laos. We replaced them - we put Air America, the CIA subsidiary - it would fly in with crates marked humanitarian aid, which were arms, and it would fly back out with heroin. And the first target, market, of this heroin was the U.S. GI's in Vietnam. If anybody in Nicaragua is smuggling drugs, it's the contras. Now i've been saying that since the state department started waving this red herring around a couple of years ago, and the other day you notice President Reagan said that the Nicaraguans, the Sandinistas, were smuggling drugs, and the DEA said, `it ain't true, the contras are smuggling drugs'.

We claim the Sandinistas are responsible for the terrorism that's happening anywhere in the world. `The country club of terrorism' we call it. There's an incident in Rome, and Ed Meese goes on television and says, `that country club in Nicaragua is training terrorists'. We blame the Sandinistas for the misery that exists in Nicaragua today, and there is misery, because the world's richest nation has set out to create conditions of misery, and obviously we're bound to have some effect. The misery is not the fault of the Sandinistas, it's the result of our destabilization program. And despite that, and despite some grumbling in the country, the Sandinistas in their elections got a much higher percentage of the vote than President Reagan did, who's supposed to be so popular in this country. And all observers are saying that people are still hanging together, with the Sandinistas.

Now it gets tricky. We're saying that the justification for more aid, possibly for an invasion of the country - and mind you, president Reagan has begun to talk about this, and the Secretary of Defense Weinberger began to say that it's inevitable - we claim that the justification is that the Soviet Union now has invested 500 million dollars in arms in military to make it its big client state, the Soviet bastion in this hemisphere. And that's true. They do have a lot of arms in there now. But the question is, how did they get invited in? You have to ask yourself, what's the purpose of this destabilization program? For this I direct you back to the Newsweek article in Sept. 1981, where they announce the fact that the CIA was beginning to put together this force of Somoza's ex-guard. Newsweek described it as `the only truly evil, totally unacceptable factor in
the Nicaraguan equation'. They noted that neither the white house nor the CIA pretended it ever could have a chance of winning. So then they asked, rhetorically, `what's the point?' and they concluded that the point is that by attacking the country, you can force the Sandinistas into a more radical position, from which you have more ammunition to attack them.

And that's what we've accomplished now. They've had to get Soviet aid to defend themselves from the attack from the world's richest country, and now we can stand up to the American people and say, `see? they have all the Soviet aid'. Make no doubt of it, it's the game plan of the Reagan Administration to have a war in Nicaragua, they have been working on this since 1981, they have been stopped by the will of the American people so far, but they're working harder than ever to engineer their war there.

Now, CIA destabilizations are nothing new, they didn't begin with Nicaragua. We've done it before, once or twice. Like the Church committee, investigating CIA covert action in 1975, found that we had run several hundred a year, and we'd been in the business of running covert actions, the CIA has, for 4 decades. You're talking about 10 to 20 thousand covert actions.

CIA apologists leap up and say, `well, most of these things are not so bloody'. And that's true. You're giving a politician some money so he'll throw his party in this direction or that one, or make false speeches on your behalf, or something like that. It may be non-violent, but it's still illegal intervention in other countries' affairs, raising the question of whether or not we are going to have a
world in which law, rules of behaviour, are respected, or is it going to be a world of bullies, where the strongest can violate and brutalize the weakest, and ignore the laws?

But many of these things are very bloody indeed, and we know a lot about a lot of them. Investigations by the Congress, testimony by CIA directors, testimony by CIA case officers, books written by CIA case officers, documents gotten out of the government under the freedom of information act, books that are written by by pulitzer-prize-winning journalists who've documented their cases. And you can go and read from these things, classic CIA operations that we know about, some of them very bloody indeed. Guatemala 1954, Brazil, Guyana, Chile, the Congo, Iran, Panama, Peru, Bolivia, Equador, Uruguay - the CIA organized the overthrow of constitutional democracies. Read the book Covert Action: 35 years of Deception by the journalist Godswood. [6]

Remember the Henry Kissinger quote before the Congress when he was being grilled to explain what they had done to overthrow the democratic government in Chile, in which the President, Salvador Allende had been killed. And he said, `The issues are much too important for the Chilean voters to be left to decide for themselves'.

We had covert actions against China, very much like what we're doing against Nicaragua today, that led us directly into the Korean war, where we fought China in Korea. We had a long covert action in Vietnam, very much like the one that we're running in Nicaragua today, that tracked us directly into the Vietnam war. Read the book, The Hidden History of the Korean War by I. F. Stone. [14] Read Deadly Deceits by Ralph McGehee [9] for the Vietnam story. In Thailand, the Congo, Laos, Vietnam, Taiwan, and Honduras, the CIA put together large standing armies. In Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia, Thailand, the Congo, Iran, Nicaragua, and Sri Lanka, the CIA armed and encouraged ethnic minorities to rise up and fight. The first thing we began doing in Nicaragua, 1981 was to fund an element of the Mesquite indians, to give them money and training and arms, so they could rise up and fight against the government in Managua. In El Salvador, Vietnam, Korea, Iran, Uganda and the Congo, the CIA helped form and train the death
squads.

In El Salvador specifically, under the `Alliance for Progress' in the early 1960's, the CIA helped put together the treasury police. These are the people that haul people out at night today, and run trucks over their heads. These are the people that the Catholic church tells us, have killed something over 50,000 civilians in the last 5 years. And we have testimony before our Congress that as late as 1982, leaders of the treasury police were still on the CIA payroll.

Then you have the `Public Safety Program.' I have to take just a minute on this one because it's a very important principle involved that we must understand, if we're to understand ourselves and the world that we live in. In this one, the CIA was working with policeforces throughout Latin America for about 26 years, teaching them how to wrap up subversive networks by capturing someone and interrogating them, torturing them, and then getting names and arresting the others and going from there. Now, this was such a brutal and such a bloody operation, that Amnesty International began to complain and publish reports. Then there were United Nations hearings. Then eventually our Congress was forced to yield to international pressure and investigate it, and they found the horror that was being done, and by law they forced it to stop. You can read these reports -- the Amnesty International findings, and our own Congressional hearings.

These things kill people. 800,000 in Indonesia alone according to CIA's estimate, 12,000 in Nicaragua, 10,000 in the Angolan operation that I was sitting on in Washington, managing the task force. They add up. We'll never know how many people have been killed in them. Obviously a lot. Obviously at least a million. 800,000 in Indonesia alone. Undoubtedly the minimum figure has to be 3 million. Then you add in a million people killed in Korea, 2 million people killed in the Vietnam war, and you're obviously getting into gross millions of people...

We do not parachute teams into the Soviet Union to haul families out at night and castrate the father with the children watching, because they have the Bomb, and a big army, and they would parachute teams right back into our country and do the same thing to us - they're not scared of us. For slightly different reasons, but also obvious reasons, we don't do these things in England, or France, or Germany, or Sweden, or Italy, or Japan. What comes out at you immediately is that these 1 to 3 million direct victims, the dead, and in these other wars, they're people of the third world. They're people of the Metumba mountains of the Congo, and the jungles of Southeast Asia, and now the hills of northern Nicaragua - 12,000 peasants. We have not killed KGB or Russian army advisors in Nicaragua. We are not killing Cuban advisors. We're not killing very many Sandinistas. The 12,000 that we have killed in Nicaragua are peasants, who have the misfortune of living in a CIA's chosen battlefield. Mostly women and children. Communists? Far, far, far more Catholics than anything else.

Now case officers that do these things in places in Nicaragua, they do not come back to the U.S. and click their heels and suddenly become responsible citizens. They see themselves - they have been functioning above the laws, of God, and the laws of man - they've come back to this country, and they've continued their operations as far as they can get by with them. And we have abundant documentation of that as well. The MH-Chaos program, exposed in the late 60's and shut down, re-activated by President Reagan to a degree - we don't have the details yet - in which they were spending a billion dollars to manipulate U.S. student, and labor organizations. The MK-ultra program. For 20 years, working through over 200 medical schools and mental hospitals, including Harvard medical school, Georgetown, some of the biggest places we've got, to experiment on American citizens with disease, and drugs.

They dragged a barge through San Francisco bay, leaking a virus, to measure this technique for crippling a city. They launched a whooping cough epidemic in a Long Island suburb, to see what it would do to the community if all the kids had whooping cough. Tough shit about the 2 or 3 with weak constitutions that might die in the process. They put light bulbs in the subways in Manhattan, that would create vertigo - make people have double vision, so you couldn't see straight - and hid
cameras in the walls - to see what would happen at rush hour when the trains are zipping past - if everybody has vertigo and they can't see straight and they're bumping into each other.

Colonel White - oh yes, and I can't not mention the disease experimentations - the use of deadly diseases. We launched - when we were destabilizing Cuba for 7 years - we launched the swine fever epidemic, in the hog population, trying to kill out all of the pigs - a virus. We experimented in Haiti on the people with viruses.

I'm not saying, I do not have the slightest shred of evidence, that there is any truth or indication to the rumor that the CIA and its experimentations were responsible for AIDS. But we do have it documented that the CIA has been experimenting on people, with viruses. And now we have some deadly, killer viruses running around in society. And it has to make you wonder, and it has to make you worry.

Colonel White wrote from retirement - he was the man who was in charge of this macabre program - he wrote, `I toiled whole-heartedly in the vineyards because it was fun, fun fun. Where else could a red-blooded American boy lie, kill, cheat, steal, rape and pillage with the blessings of the all highest?' Now that program, the MK-ultra program, was eventually exposed by the press in 1972, investigated by the Congress, and shut down by the Congress. You can dig up the Congressional record and read it for yourself.

There's one book called `In Search of the Manchurian Candidate'. It's written by John Marks, based on 14,000 documents gotten out of the government under the Freedom of Information Act. Read for yourselves. The thing was shut down but not one CIA case officer who was involved was in any way punished. Not one case officer involved in these experimentations on the American public, lost a single paycheck for what they had done.

The Church committee found that the CIA had co-opted several hundred journalists, including some of the biggest names in the business. The latest flap or scandal we had about that was a year and a half ago. Lesley Gelb, the heavyweight with the New York Times, was exposed for having
been working covertly with the CIA in 1978 to recruit journalists in Europe, who would introduce stories, print stories that would create sympathy for the neutron bomb.

The Church committee found that they had published over 1,000 books, paying someone to write a book, the CIA puts its propaganda lines in it, the professor or the scholar gets credit for the book and gets the royalties. The latest flap we had about that was last year. A professor at Harvard was exposed for accepting 105,000 dollars from the CIA to write a book about the Middle East. Several thousand professors and graduate students co-opted by the CIA to run its operations on campuses and build files on students.

And then we have evidence - now, which has been hard to collect in the past but we knew it was happening - of CIA agents participating, trying to manipulate, our elections. FDN, Contra commanders, traveling this country on CIA plane tickets, going on television and pin-pointing a Congressional and saying, `That man is soft on Communism. That man is a Sandinista lover.' A CIA agent going on television, trying to manipulate our elections.

All of this, to keep America safe for freedom and democracy.

In Nicaragua the objective is to stop the Cuban and Soviet take-over, we say. Another big operation in which we said the same thing was Angola, 1975, my little war. We were saying exactly the same thing - Cubans and Soviets.

Now I will not going into great detail about this one tonight because I wrote a book about it, I detailed it. And you can get a copy of that book and read it for yourselves. I have to urge you, however - please do not rush out and buy a copy of that book because the CIA sued me. All of my profits go to the CIA, so if you buy a copy of the book you'll be donating 65 cents to the CIA. So check it out from your library!

If you have to buy a copy, well buy one copy and share it with all your friends. If your bookstore is doing real well and you want to just sort of put a copy down in your belt...

I don't know what the solution is when a society gets into censorship, government censorship, but that's what we're in now. Do the rules change? I just got my book back, my latest book back from the CIA censors. If I had not submitted it to them, I would have gone to jail, without trial - blow off juries and all that sort of thing - for having violated our censorship laws....

So now we have the CIA running the operation in Nicaragua, lying to us, running 50 covert actions, and gearing us up for our next war, the Central American war. Let there be no doubt about it, President Reagan has a fixation on Nicaragua. He came into office saying that we shouldn't be afraid of war, saying we have to face and erase the scars of the Vietnam war. He said in 1983, `We will do whatever is necessary to defeat the Sandinistas. Admiral LaRoque, at the Center for Defense Information in Washington, says this is the most elaborately prepared invasion that the U.S. has ever done. At least that he's witnessed in his 40 years of association with our military.

We have rehearsed the invasion of Nicaragua in operations Big Pine I, Big Pine II, Ocean Venture, Grenada, Big Pine III. We have troops right now in Honduras preparing. We've built 12 bases, including 8 airstrips. Obviously we don't need 8 airstrips in Honduras for any purpose, except to support the invasion of Nicaragua. We've built radar stations around, to survey and watch. Some of these ventures have been huge ones. Hundreds of airplanes, 30,000 troops, rehearsing
the invasion of Nicaragua.

And of course, Americans are being given this negative view of these evil Communist dictators in Managua, just two days drive from Harlington, Texas. (They drive faster than I do by the way). I saw an ad on TV just two days ago in which they said that it was just two hours from Managua to Texas. All of this getting us ready for the invasion of Nicaragua, for our next war.

Most of the people - 75% of the people - are polled as being against this action. However, President Eisenhower said, `The people of the world genuinely want peace. Someday the leadership of the world are going to have to give in and give it to them'. But to date, the leaders never have, they've always been able to outwit the people, us, and get us into the wars when they've chosen to do so.

People ask, how is this possible? I get this all the time.... Americans are decent people. They are nice people. And they're insulated in the worlds that they live in, and they don't understand
and we don't read our history. History is the history of war. Of leaders of countries finding reasons and rationales to send the young men off to fight.

In our country we talk about peace. But look at our own record. We have over 200 incidents in which we put our troops into other countries to force them to our will. Now we're being prepared to hate the Sandinistas. The leaders are doing exactly what they have done time and again throughout history. In the past we were taught to hate and fight the Seminole Indians, after the leaders decided to annex Florida. To hate and fight the Cherokee Indians after they found gold
in Georgia. To hate and fight Mexico twice. We annexed Texas, New Mexico, Arizona, part of Colorado, and California.

In each of these wars the leaders have worked to organize, to orchestrate public opinion. And then when they got people worked up, they had a trigger that would flash, that would make people angry enough that we could go in and do....

We have a feeling that the Vietnam war was the first one in which the people resisted. But once again, we haven't read our history. Kate Richards-O'Hare. In 1915, she said about WW I, `The Women of the U.S. are nothing but brutesalles, producing sons to be put in the army, to be made into fertilizer'. She was jailed for 5 years for anti-war talk.

The lessons of the Vietnam war for the American people is that it was a tragic mistake.... 58,000 of our own young people were killed, 2 million Vietnamese were killed. We withdrew, and our position wound up actually stronger in the Pacific basin.

You look around this society today to see if there's any evidence of our preparations for war, and it hits you in the face....

'Join the Army. Be all that you can be'. Now if there was truth in advertising, obviously those commercials would show a few seconds of young men with their legs blown off at the knees, young men with their intestines wrapped around their necks because that's what war is really all about.

If there was honesty on the part of the army and the government, they would tell about the Vietnam veterans. More of whom died violent deaths from suicide after they came back from Vietnam then died in the fighting itself.

Then you have President Reagan.... He talks about the glory of war, but you have to ask yourself, where was he when wars were being fought that he was young enough to fight in them? World War II, and the Korean war. Where he was was in Hollywood, making films, where the blood was catsup, and you could wash it off and go out to dinner afterwards....

Where was Gordon Liddy when he was young enough to go and fight in a war? He was hiding out in the U.S. running sloppy, illegal, un-professional breaking and entering operations. Now you'll forgive my egotism, at that time I was running professional breaking and entering operations....

What about Rambo himself? Sylvester Stallone. Where was Sylvester Stallone during the Vietnam war? He got a draft deferment for a physical disability, and taught physical education in a girls' school in Switzerland during the war.

Getting back to President Reagan. He really did say that `you can always call cruise missiles back'.... Now, you can call back a B-52, and you can call back a submarine, but a cruise missile is different.... When it lands, it goes boom!. And I would prefer that the man with the finger on the button could understand the difference. This is the man that calls the MX a peace-maker. This is the man who's gone on television and told us that nuclear war could be winnable. This is the man who's gone on television and proposed that we might want to drop demonstration [atom] bombs in Europe to show people that we're serious people. This is the man who likens the Contras to the moral equivalents of our own founding fathers. This is the man who says South Africa is making progress on racial equality. This is the man who says that the Sandinistas are hunting down and hounding and persecuting Jews in Nicaragua. And the Jewish leaders go on TV the next day in this country and say there are 5 Jewish families in Nicaragua, and they're not having any problems at all. This is the man who says that they're financing their revolution by smuggling drugs into the U.S. And the DEA says, `It ain't true, it's president Reagan's Contras that are doing it'....

[When Reagan was governor of California, Reagan] said `If there has to be a bloodbath then let's get it over with'. Now you have to think about this a minute. A leader of the U.S. seriously proposing a bloodbath of our own youth. There was an outcry of the press, so 3 days later he said it again to make sure no one had misunderstood him.

Read. You have to read to inform yourselves. Read The Book of Quotes [12]. Read On Reagan: The Man and the Presidency [3] by Ronnie Dugger. It gets heavy. Dugger concludes in his last chapter that President Reagan has a fixation on Armageddon. The Village Voice 18 months ago published an article citing the 11 times that President Reagan publicly has talked about the fact that we are all living out Armageddon today....

[Reagan] has Jerry Falwell into the White House. This is the man that preaches that we should get on our knees and beg for God to send the rapture down. Hell's fires on earth so the chosen can go up on high and all the other people can burn in hell's fires on earth. President Reagan sees himself as playing the role of the greatest leader of all times forever. Leading us into Armageddon. As he goes out at the end of his long life, we'll all go out with him....

Why does the CIA run 10,000 brutal covert actions? Why are we destabilizing a third of the countries in the world today when there's so much instability and misery already?

What you have to understand is the politics of paranoia. The easiest... buttons to punch are the buttons of macho, aggression, paranoia, hate, anger, and fear. The Communists are in Managua and that's just 2 hours from San Diego, CA. This gets people excited, they don't think. It's the pep-rally, the football pep-rally factor. When you get people worked up to hate, they'll let you spend huge amounts of money on arms.

Read The Power Elite by C. Wright Mills. [11] Read The Permanent War Complex by Seymour Melman. [10] CIA covert actions have the function of keeping the world hostile and unstable....

We can't take care of the poor, we can't take care of the old, but we can spend millions, hundreds of millions of dollars to destabilize Nicaragua....

Why arms instead of schools? .... They can make gigantic profits off the nuclear arms race because of the hysteria, and the paranoia, and the secrecy. And that's why they're committed to building more and more and more weapons, is because they're committed to making a profit. And that's what the propaganda, and that's what the hysteria is all about. Now people say, `What can I do?'....

The youth did rise up and stop the Vietnam war....

We have to join hands with the people in England, and France, and Germany, and Israel, and the Soviet Union, and China, and India - the countries that have the bomb, and the others that are trying to get it. And give our leaders no choice. They have to find some other way to do business other than to motivate us through hate and paranoia and anger and killing, or we'll find other leaders to run the country.

Now, Helen Caldicott, at the end of her lectures, I've heard her say, very effectively, `Tell people to get out and get to work on the problem.... You'll feel better'....

'What can I do?'.... If you can travel, go to Nicaragua and see for yourself. Go to the Nevada test site and see for yourself. Go to Pantex on Hiroshima day this summer, and see the vigil there. The place where we make 10 nose-cones a day, 70 a week, year in and year out. He [Admiral LaRock] said, `I'd tell them, if they feel comfortable lying down in front of trucks with bombs on them, to lie down in front of trucks with bombs on them.' But he said, `I'd tell them that they can't wait. They've got to start tomorrow, today, and do it, what they can, every day of their lives'.

See article for the references.
 

	 


 

	The Hidden History of CIA Torture: America's Road to Abu Ghraib 

	by Alfred W. McCoy, TomDispatch.com

	 http://www.ccmep.org/2004_articles/general/091004_the_hidden.htm 

	From ancient Rome's red-hot irons and lacerating hooks to medieval Europe's thumbscrews, rack, and wheel, for over 2,000 years anyone interrogated in a court of law could expect to suffer unspeakable tortures. For the last 200 years, humanist intellectuals from Voltaire to members of Amnesty International have led a sustained campaign against the horrors of state-sponsored cruelty, culminating in the United Nation's 1985 Convention Against Torture, ratified by the Clinton administration in 1994. 
Then came 9/11. When the Twin Towers collapsed killing thousands, influential "pro-pain pundits" promptly repudiated those Enlightenment ideals and began publicly discussing whether torture might be an appropriate, even necessary weapon in George Bush's war on terror. The most persuasive among them, Harvard academic Alan M. Dershowitz, advocated giving courts the right to issue "torture warrants," ensuring that needed information could be prized from unwilling Arab subjects with steel needles. 

Despite torture's appeal as a "lesser evil," a necessary expedient in dangerous times, those who favor it ignore its recent, problematic history in America. They also seem ignorant of a perverse pathology that allows the practice of torture, once begun, to spread uncontrollably in crisis situations, destroying the legitimacy of the perpetrator nation. As past perpetrators could have told today's pundits, torture plumbs the recesses of human consciousness, unleashing an unfathomable capacity for cruelty as well as seductive illusions of potency. Even as pundits and professors fantasized about "limited, surgical torture," the Bush administration, following the President's orders to "kick some ass," was testing and disproving their theories by secretly sanctioning brutal interrogation that spread quickly from use against a few "high target value" Al Qaeda suspects to scores of ordinary Afghans and then hundreds of innocent Iraqis. 

As we learned from France's battle for Algiers in the 1950s, Argentina's dirty war in the 1970s, and Britain's Northern Ireland conflict in the 1970s, a nation that harbors torture in defiance of its democratic principles pays a terrible price. Its officials must spin an ever more complex web of lies that, in the end, weakens the bonds of trust that are the sine qua non of any modern society. Most surprisingly, our own pro-pain pundits seemed, in those heady early days of the war on terror, unaware of a fifty-year history of torture by the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA), nor were they aware that their enthusiastic proposals gave cover to those in the Bush Administration intent on reactivating a ruthless apparatus. 

Torture's Perverse Pathology 

In April 2004, the American public was stunned by televised photographs from Iraq's Abu Ghraib prison showing hooded Iraqis stripped naked, posed in contorted positions, and visibly suffering humiliating abuse while U.S. soldiers stood by smiling. As the scandal grabbed headlines around the globe, Secretary of Defense Donald Rumsfeld quickly assured Congress that the abuses were "perpetrated by a small number of U.S. military," whom New York Times columnist William Safire soon branded "creeps." 

These photos, however, are snapshots not of simple brutality or even evidence of a breakdown in "military discipline." What they record are CIA torture techniques that have metastasized like an undetected cancer inside the U.S. intelligence community over the past half century. A survey of this history shows that the CIA was, in fact, the lead agency at Abu Ghraib, enlisting Army intelligence to support its mission. These photographs from Iraq also illustrate standard interrogation procedures inside the gulag of secret CIA prisons that have operated globally, on executive authority, since the start of the President's war on terror. 

Looked at historically, the Abu Ghraib scandal is the product of a deeply contradictory U.S. policy toward torture since the start of the Cold War. At the UN and other international forums, Washington has long officially opposed torture and advocated a universal standard for human rights. Simultaneously, the CIA has propagated ingenious new torture techniques in contravention of these same international conventions, a number of which the U.S has ratified. In battling communism, the United States adopted some of its most objectionable practices -- subversion abroad, repression at home, and most significantly torture itself. 

From 1950 to 1962, the CIA conducted massive, secret research into coercion and the malleability of human consciousness which, by the late fifties, was costing a billion dollars a year. Many Americans have heard about the most outlandish and least successful aspect of this research -- the testing of LSD on unsuspecting subjects. While these CIA drug experiments led nowhere and the testing of electric shock as a technique led only to lawsuits, research into sensory deprivation proved fruitful indeed. In fact, this research produced a new psychological rather than physical method of torture, perhaps best described as "no-touch" torture. 

The Agency's discovery was a counterintuitive breakthrough, the first real revolution in this cruel science since the seventeenth century -- and thanks to recent revelations from Abu Ghraib and Guantanamo, we are now all too familiar with these methods, even if many Americans still have no idea of their history. Upon careful examination, those photographs of nude bodies expose the CIA's most basic torture techniques -- stress positions, sensory deprivation, and sexual humiliation. 

For over 2,000 years, from ancient Athens through the Inquisition, interrogators found that the infliction of physical pain often produced heightened resistance or unreliable information -- the strong defied pain while the weak blurted out whatever was necessary to stop it. By contrast, the CIA's psychological torture paradigm used two new methods, sensory disorientation and "self-inflicted pain," both of which were aimed at causing victims to feel responsible for their own suffering and so to capitulate more readily to their torturers. A week after the Abu Ghraib scandal broke, General Geoffrey Miller, U.S. prison commander in Iraq (and formerly in Guantanamo), offered an unwitting summary of this two-phase torture. "We will no longer, in any circumstances, hood any of the detainees," the general said. "We will no longer use stress positions in any of our interrogations. And we will no longer use sleep deprivation in any of our interrogations." 

Under field conditions since the start of the Afghan War, Agency and allied interrogators have often added to their no-touch repertoire physical methods reminiscent of the Inquisition's trademark tortures -- strappado, question de l'eau, "crippling stork," and "masks of mockery." At the CIA's center near Kabul in 2002, for instance, American interrogators forced prisoners "to stand with their hands chained to the ceiling and their feet shackled," an effect similar to the strappado. Instead of the Inquisition's iron-framed "crippling stork" to contort the victim's body, CIA interrogators made their victims assume similar "stress positions" without any external mechanism, aiming again for the psychological effect of self-induced pain 

Although seemingly less brutal than physical methods, the CIA's "no touch" torture actually leaves deep, searing psychological scars on both victims and -- something seldom noted -- their interrogators. Victims often need long treatment to recover from a trauma many experts consider more crippling than physical pain. Perpetrators can suffer a dangerous expansion of ego, leading to escalating acts of cruelty and lasting emotional disorders. When applied in actual operations, the CIA's psychological procedures have frequently led to unimaginable cruelties, physical and sexual, by individual perpetrators whose improvisations are often horrific and only occasionally effective. 

Just as interrogators are often seduced by a dark, empowering sense of dominance over victims, so their superiors, even at the highest level, can succumb to fantasies of torture as an all-powerful weapon. Our contemporary view of torture as aberrant and its perpetrators as abhorrent ignores both its pervasiveness as a Western practice for two millennia and its perverse appeal. Once torture begins, its perpetrators, plunging into uncharted recesses of consciousness, are often swept away by dark reveries, by frenzies of power and potency, mastery and control -- particularly in times of crisis. "When feelings of insecurity develop within those holding power," reads one CIA analysis of the Soviet state applicable to post-9/11 America, "they become increasingly suspicious and put great pressures on the secret police to obtain arrests and confessions. At such times police officials are inclined to condone anything which produces a speedy 'confession' and brutality may become widespread." 

Enraptured by this illusory power, modern states that sanction torture usually allow it to spread uncontrollably. By 1967, just four years after compiling a torture manual for use against a few top Soviet targets, the CIA was operating forty interrogation centers in South Vietnam as part of its Phoenix Program that killed over 20,000 Viet Cong suspects. In the centers themselves, countless thousands were tortured for information that led to these assassinations. Similarly, just a few months after CIA interrogators first tortured top Al Qaeda suspects at Kabul in 2002, its agents were involved in the brutal interrogation of hundreds of Iraqi prisoners. As its most troubling legacy, the CIA's psychological method, with its legitimating scientific patina and its avoidance of obvious physical brutality, has provided a pretext for the preservation of torture as an acceptable practice within the U.S. intelligence community. 

Once adopted, torture offers such a powerful illusion of efficient information extraction that its perpetrators, high and low, remain wedded to its use. They regularly refuse to recognize its limited utility and high political cost. At least twice during the Cold War, the CIA's torture training contributed to the destabilization of two key American allies, Iran's Shah and the Philippines' Ferdinand Marcos. Yet even after their spectacular falls, the Agency remained blind to the way its torture training was destroying the allies it was designed to defend. 

CIA Torture Research 

The CIA's torture experimentation of the 1950s and early 1960s was codified in 1963 in a succinct, secret instructional booklet on torture -- the "KUBARK Counterintelligence Interrogation" manual, which would become the basis for a new method of torture disseminated globally over the next three decades. These techniques were first spread through the U.S. Agency for International Development's Public Safety program to train police forces in Asia and Latin America as the front line of defense against communists and other revolutionaries. After an angry Congress abolished the Public Safety program in 1975, the CIA worked through U.S. Army Mobile Training Teams to instruct military interrogators, mainly in Central America. 

At the Cold War's end, Washington resumed its advocacy of universal principles, denouncing regimes for torture, participating in the World Conference on Human Rights at Vienna in 1993 and, a year later, ratifying the UN Convention Against Torture. On the surface, the United States had resolved the tension between its anti-torture principles and its torture practices. Yet even when Congress finally ratified this UN convention it did so with intricately-constructed reservations that cleverly exempted the CIA's psychological torture method. While other covert agencies synonymous with Cold War repression such as Romania's Securitate, East Germany's Stasi, and the Soviet Union's KGB have disappeared, the CIA survives -- its archives sealed, its officers decorated, and its Cold War crimes forgotten. By failing to repudiate the Agency's propagation of torture, while adopting a UN convention that condemned its practice, the United States left this contradiction buried like a political land mine ready to detonate with such phenomenal force in the Abu Ghraib scandal. 

Memory and Forgetting 

Today the American public has only a vague understanding of these CIA excesses and the scale of its massive mind-control project. Yet almost every adult American carries fragmentary memories of this past -- of LSD experiments, the CIA's Phoenix program in Vietnam, the murder of a kidnapped American police adviser in Montevideo who was teaching CIA techniques to the Uruguayan police, and of course the Abu Ghraib photographs. But few are able to fit these fragments together and so grasp the larger picture. There is, in sum, an ignorance, a studied avoidance of a deeply troubling topic, akin to that which shrouds this subject in post-authoritarian societies. 

With the controversy over Abu Ghraib, incidents that once seemed but fragments should now be coming together to form a mosaic of a clandestine agency manipulating its government and deceiving its citizens to probe the cruel underside of human consciousness, and then propagating its discoveries throughout the Third World. 

Strong democracies have difficulty dealing with torture. In the months following the release of the Abu Ghraib photos, the United States moved quickly through the same stages (as defined by author John Conroy) that the United Kingdom experienced after revelations of British army torture in Northern Ireland in the early 1970s -- first, minimizing the torture with euphemisms such as "interrogation in depth"; next, justifying it on grounds that it was necessary or effective; and finally, attempting to bury the issue by blaming "a few bad apples." 

Indeed, since last April, the Bush administration and much of the media have studiously avoided the word "torture" and instead blamed our own bad apples, those seven Military Police. In July, the Army's Inspector General Paul T. Mikolashek delivered his report blaming 94 incidents of "abuse" on "an individual failure to uphold Army Values." Although the New York Times called his conclusions "comical," the general's views seem to resonate with an emerging conservative consensus. "Interrogation is not a Sunday-school class," said Republican Senator Trent Lott. "You don't get information that will save American lives by withholding pancakes." In June, an ABC News/Washington Post poll found that 35% of Americans felt torture was acceptable in some circumstances. 

In August, Major General George R. Fay released his report on the role of Military Intelligence at Abu Ghraib. Its stunning revelations about the reasons for this torture were, however, obscured in opaque military prose. After interviewing 170 personnel and reviewing 9,000 documents, the general intimated that this abuse was the product of an interrogation policy shaped, in both design and application, by the CIA. 

Significantly, General Fay blamed not the "seven bad apples," but the Abu Ghraib interrogation procedures themselves. Of the 44 verifiable incidents of abuse, one-third occurred during actual interrogation. Moreover, these "routine" interrogation procedures "contributed to an escalating 'de-humanization' of the detainees and set the stage for additional and severe abuses to occur." 

After finding standard Army interrogation doctrine sound, General Fay was forced to confront a single, central, uncomfortable question: what was the source of the aberrant, "non-doctrinal" practices that led to torture during interrogation at Abu Ghraib? Scattered throughout his report are the dots, politely unconnected, that lead from the White House to the Iraqi prison cell block: President Bush gave his defense secretary broad powers over prisoners in November 2001; Secretary Rumsfeld authorized harsh "Counter-Resistance Techniques" for Afghanistan and Guantanamo in December 2002; hardened Military Intelligence units brought these methods to Iraq in July 2003; and General Ricardo Sanchez in Baghdad authorized these extreme measures for Abu Ghraib in September 2003. 

In its short answer to this uncomfortable question, General Fay's report, when read closely, traced the source of these harsh "non-doctrinal methods" at Abu Ghraib to the CIA. He charged that a flouting of military procedures by CIA interrogators "eroded the necessity in the minds of soldiers and civilians for them to follow Army rules." Specifically, the Army "allowed CIA to house 'Ghost Detainees' who were unidentified and unaccounted for in Abu Ghraib," thus encouraging violations of "reporting requirements under the Geneva Conventions." Moreover, the interrogation of CIA detainees "occurred under different practices and procedures which were absent any DoD visibility, control, or oversight and created a perception that OGA [CIA] techniques and practices were suitable and authorized for DoD operations." With their exemption from military regulations, CIA interrogators moved about Abu Ghraib with a corrupting "mystique" and extreme methods that "fascinated" some Army interrogators. In sum, General Fay seems to say that the CIA has compromised the integrity and effectiveness of the U.S. military. 

Had he gone further, General Fay might have mentioned that the 519th Military Intelligence, the Army unit that set interrogation guidelines for Abu Ghraib, had just come from Kabul where it worked closely with the CIA, learning torture techniques that left at least one Afghani prisoner dead. Had he gone further still, the general could have added that the sensory deprivation techniques, stress positions, and cultural shock of dogs and nudity that we saw in those photos from Abu Ghraib were plucked from the pages of past CIA torture manuals. 

American Prestige 

This is not, of course, the first American debate over torture in recent memory. From 1970 to 1988, the Congress tried unsuccessfully, in four major investigations, to expose elements of this CIA torture paradigm. But on each occasion the public showed little concern, and the practice, never fully acknowledged, persisted inside the intelligence community. 

Now, in these photographs from Abu Ghraib, ordinary Americans have seen the reality and the results of interrogation techniques the CIA has propagated and practiced for nearly half a century. The American public can join the international community in repudiating a practice that, more than any other, represents a denial of democracy; or in its desperate search for security, the United States can continue its clandestine torture of terror suspects in the hope of gaining good intelligence without negative publicity. 

In the likely event that Washington adopts the latter strategy, it will be a decision posited on two false assumptions: that torturers can be controlled and that news of their work can be contained. Once torture begins, its use seems to spread uncontrollably in a downward spiral of fear and empowerment. With the proliferation of digital imaging we can anticipate, in five or ten years, yet more chilling images and devastating blows to America's international standing. Next time, however, the American public's moral concern and Washington's apologies will ring even more hollowly, producing even greater damage to U.S. prestige. 

Alfred W. McCoy is professor of History at the University of Wisconsin-Madison. He is the author of The Politics of Heroin, CIA Complicity in the Global Drug Trade, an examination of the CIA's alliances with drug lords, and Closer Than Brothers, a study of the impact of the CIA's psychological torture method upon the Philippine military. He will publish a fuller version of this essay in The New England Journal of Public Policy (Volume 19, No. 2, 2004). 




The Other Prisoners –Women who have been Raped
http://www.guardian.co.uk/g2/story/0,3604,1220509,00.html  

Most of the coverage of abuse at Abu Ghraib has focused on male detainees. But what of the five women held in the jail, and the scores elsewhere in Iraq? Luke Harding reports 

Thursday May 20, 2004
The Guardian 
The scandal at Abu Ghraib prison was first exposed not by a digital photograph but by a letter. In December 2003, a woman prisoner inside the jail west of Baghdad managed to smuggle out a note. Its contents were so shocking that, at first, Amal Kadham Swadi and the other Iraqi women lawyers who had been trying to gain access to the US jail found them hard to believe. 

The note claimed that US guards had been raping women detainees, who were, and are, in a small minority at Abu Ghraib. Several of the women were now pregnant, it added. The women had been forced to strip naked in front of men, it said. The note urged the Iraqi resistance to bomb the jail to spare the women further shame. 

Late last year, Swadi, one of seven female lawyers now representing women detainees in Abu Ghraib, began to piece together a picture of systemic abuse and torture perpetrated by US guards against Iraqi women held in detention without charge. This was not only true of Abu Ghraib, she discovered, but was, as she put it, "happening all across Iraq". 

In November last year, Swadi visited a woman detainee at a US military base at al-Kharkh, a former police compound in Baghdad. "She was the only woman who would talk about her case. She was crying. She told us she had been raped," Swadi says. "Several American soldiers had raped her. She had tried to fight them off and they had hurt her arm. She showed us the stitches. She told us, 'We have daughters and husbands. For God's sake don't tell anyone about this.'" 

Astonishingly, the secret inquiry launched by the US military in January, headed by Major General Antonio Taguba, has confirmed that the letter smuggled out of Abu Ghraib by a woman known only as "Noor" was entirely and devastatingly accurate. While most of the focus since the scandal broke three weeks ago has been on the abuse of men, and on their sexual humilation in front of US women soldiers, there is now incontrovertible proof that women detainees - who form a small but unknown proportion of the 40,000 people in US custody since last year's invasion - have also been abused. Nobody appears to know how many. But among the 1,800 digital photographs taken by US guards inside Abu Ghraib there are, according to Taguba's report, images of a US military policeman "having sex" with an Iraqi woman. 

Taguba discovered that guards have also videotaped and photographed naked female detainees. The Bush administration has refused to release other photographs of Iraqi women forced at gunpoint to bare their breasts (although it has shown them to Congress) - ostensibly to prevent attacks on US soldiers in Iraq, but in reality, one suspects, to prevent further domestic embarrassment. 

Earlier this month it emerged that an Iraqi woman in her 70s had been harnessed and ridden like a donkey at Abu Ghraib and another coalition detention centre after being arrested last July. Labour MP Ann Clwyd, who investigated the case and found it to be true, said, "She was held for about six weeks without charge. During that time she was insulted and told she was a donkey." 

In Iraq, the existence of photographs of women detainees being abused has provoked revulsion and outrage, but little surprise. Some of the women involved may since have disappeared, according to human rights activists. Professor Huda Shaker al-Nuaimi, a political scientist at Baghdad University who is researching the subject for Amnesty International, says she thinks "Noor" is now dead. "We believe she was raped and that she was pregnant by a US guard. After her release from Abu Ghraib, I went to her house. The neighbours said her family had moved away. I believe she has been killed." 

Honour killings are not unusual in Islamic society, where rape is often equated with shame and where the stigma of being raped by an American soldier would, according to one Islamic cleric, be "unbearable". The prospects for rape victims in Iraq are grave; it is hardly surprising that no women have so far come forward to talk about their experiences in US-run jails where abuse was rife until early January. 

One of the most depressing aspects of the saga is that, unaccountably, the US military continues to hold five women in solitary confinement at Abu Ghraib, in cells 2.5m (8ft) long by 1.5m (5ft) wide. Last week, the military escorted a small group of journalists around the camp, where hundreds of relatives gather every day in a dusty car park in the hope of news. 

The prison is protected by guard towers, an outer fence topped with razor wire, and blast walls. Inside, more than 3,000 Iraqi men are kept in vast open courtyards, in communal brown tents exposed to dust and sun. (Last month, nearly 30 detainees were killed in two separate mortar attacks on the prison; about a dozen survivors are still in the hospital wing, shackled to their beds with leather belts.) As our bus pulled up, the men ran towards the razor wire. They unfurled banners and T-shirts that read: "Why are we here?" "When are you going to do something about this scandal?" "We cannot talk freely." 

The women, however, are kept in another part of the prison, cellblock 1A, together with 19 "high-value" male detainees. It is inside this olive-painted block, which leads into a courtyard of shimmering green saysaban trees and pink flowering shrubs, that the notorious photographs of US troops humiliating Iraqi prisoners were taken, many of them on the same day, November 8 2003. A wooden interrogation shed is a short stroll away. As we arrived at the cellblock, the women shouted to us through the bars. An Iraqi journalist tried to talk to them; a female US soldier interrupted and pushed him away. The windows of the women's cells have been boarded up; birds nest in the outside drainpipe. Captain Dave Quantock, now in charge of prisoner detention at Abu Ghraib, confirmed that the women prisoners are in solitary confinement for 23 hours a day. They have no entertainment; they do have a Koran. 

Since the scandal first emerged there is general agreement that conditions at Abu Ghraib have improved. A new, superior catering company now provides the inmates' food, and all the guards involved in the original allegations of abuse have left. 

Nevertheless, there remain extremely troubling questions as to why these women came to be here. Like other Iraqi prisoners, all five are classified as "security detainees" - a term invented by the Bush administration to justify the indefinite detention of prisoners without charge or legal access, as part of the war on terror. US military officials will only say that they are suspected of "anti-coalition activities". 

Two of the women are the wives of high-ranking and absconding Ba'ath party members; two are accused of financing the resistance; and one allegedly had a relationship with the former head of Iraq's secret police, the Mukhabarat. The women, in their 40s and 50s, come from Kirkuk and Baghdad; none has seen their families or children since their arrest earlier this year. 

According to Swadi, who managed to visit Abu Ghraib in late March, the allegations against the women are "absurd". "One of them is supposed to be the mistress of the former director of the Mukhabarat. In fact, she's a widow who used to own a small shop. She also worked as a taxi driver, ferrying children to and from kindergarten. If she really had a relationship with the director of the Mukhabarat, she would scarcely be running a kiosk. These are baseless charges," she adds angrily. "She is the only person who can provide for her children." 

The women appear to have been arrested in violation of international law - not because of anything they have done, but merely because of who they are married to, and their potential intelligence value. US officials have previously acknowledged detaining Iraqi women in the hope of convincing male relatives to provide information; when US soldiers raid a house and fail to find a male suspect, they will frequently take away his wife or daughter instead. 

The International Committee of the Red Cross, whose devastating report on human rights abuses of Iraqi prisoners was delivered to the government in February but failed to ring alarm bells, says the problem lies with the system. "It is an absence of judicial guarantees," says Nada Doumani, spokesperson for the ICRC. "The system is not fair, precise or properly defined." 

During her visit to Abu Ghraib in March, one of the prisoners told Swadi that she had been forced to undress in front of US soldiers. "The Iraqi translator turned his head in embarrassment," she said. The release of detainees, meanwhile, appears to be entirely arbitrary: three weeks ago one woman prisoner who spoke fluent English and who had been telling her guards that she would sue them was suddenly released. "They got fed up with her," another lawyer, Amal Alrawi, says. 

Last Friday, about 300 male prisoners were freed from Abu Ghraib, the first detainees to be released since the abuse scandal first broke. A further 475 are due to be released tomorrow, although it is not clear if any of the women will be among them. General Geoffery Miller, who is responsible for overhauling US military jails in Iraq, has promised to release 1,800 prisoners across Iraq "within 45 days". Some 2,000 are likely to remain behind bars, he says. Iraqi lawyers and officials aredemanding that the US military hands the prisons over to Iraqi management on June 30, when the coalition transfers limited powers to a UN-appointed caretaker Iraqi government. Last week, Miller said "negotiations" with Iraqi officials were ongoing. 

Relatives who gathered outside Abu Ghraib last Friday said it was common knowledge that women had been abused inside the jail. Hamid Abdul Hussein, 40, who was there hoping to see his brother Jabar freed, said former detainees who had returned to their home town of Mamudiya reported that several women had been raped. "We've know this for months," he said. "We also heard that some women committed suicide." 

While the abuse may have stopped, the US military appears to have learned nothing from the experience. Swadi says that when she last tried to visit the women at Abu Ghraib, "The US guards refused to let us in. When we complained, they threatened to arrest us." 
Background related to 9-11 and the London Subway Bombings

The Reigstag Fire, though set by Hitler’s people, was blamed on his enemies and then used as an excuse to round them up.  People can be forced into wars that they do not want by causing them to be afraid and by invoking an external enemy.

Excellent evidence that shows that the official explanation that the Muslims caused 9-11 is simply untenable, such as Christian Theologian David Ray Griffin’s The 9-11 Commission: Omissions and Distortions, have not been reviewed by the mainstream press.  See his talks, other 9-11 videos and related important information at http://www.911busters.com/911_new_video_productions/   *******Excellent Videos***

Free Online in many formats

Theologian Says Controlled Demolition of WTC Is Now a Fact, Not a Theory

 From http://www.911truth.org/article.php?story=20051026163300114 

On Oct. 15th and 16th [2005], New Yorkers filled two venues to hear the prominent theologian and author of two books on 9/11 give a presentation entitled "The Destruction of the Trade Towers: A Christian Theologian Speaks Out." Dr. Griffin has continued to blaze a trail of courage, leading where most media and elected officials have feared to tread. His presentation went straight to the core of one of the most powerful indictments of the official story, the collapse of the towers and WTC 7. 

Dr. Griffin included excerpts from the firemen's tapes which were recently released as a result of a prolonged court battle led by victim's families represented by attorney Norman Siegel and reported in the NY Times. He also included statements by many witnesses. These sources gave ample testimony giving evidence of explosions going off in the buildings. A 12 minute film was shown for the audiences, who saw for themselves the undeniable evidence for controlled demolition. 

Dr. Griffin listed ten characteristics of the collapses which all indicate that the buildings did not fall due to being struck by planes or the ensuing fires. He explained the buildings fell suddenly without any indication of collapse. They fell straight down, into or at least close to their own footprints (rather than falling over), and at virtually free-fall speed, meeting virtually no resistance as they fell--a physical impossibility unless all vertical support was being progressively removed by explosives severing the core columns. The towers were built to withstand the impact of a Boeing 707 and 160 mile per hour winds, and nothing about the plane crashes or ensuing fires gave any indication of causing the kind of damage that would be necessary to trigger even a partial or progressive collapse, much less the shredding of the buildings into dust and fragments that could drop at free-fall speed. The massive core columns--the most significant structural feature of the buildings, whose very existence is denied in the official 9/11 Commission Report, were largely severed into sections short enough to be placed on trucks used to remove them quickly before a real investigation could transpire. There was a volcanic-like dust cloud from the concrete being pulverized, and no physical mechanism other than explosives can begin to explain how so much of the buildings' concrete was rendered into extremely fine dust. The debris was ejected horizontally several hundred feet in huge fan shaped plumes stretching in all directions. 

These are all facts that have been avoided by mainstream and even most of the alternative media. Again, these are characteristics of the kind of controlled demolitions that news people and firefighters were describing on the morning of 9/11. Those multiple first-person descriptions of controlled demolition were hidden away for almost four years by the City of New York until a lawsuit finally forced the city to release them. Dr. Griffin's study of these accounts has led him beyond his earlier questioning of the official story of the collapses, to his above-quoted conclusion: The destruction of the three WTC buildings with explosives by US government terrorists is no longer a hypothesis, but a fact that has been proved beyond a reasonable doubt. 

It's important to note that Dr. Griffin is one of many prominent intellectuals--including the likes of Gore Vidal, Howard Zinn, Peter Dale Scott, Richard Falk, Paul Craig Roberts, Morgan Reynolds and Peter Phillips, who have seen through the major discrepancies of the official explanation of 9/11 and have risen to challenge it. These brave individuals represent the tip of an ever-growing iceberg of discreet 9/11 skeptics. Indeed, 9/11 skepticism appears to be almost universal among intellectuals who have examined the evidence, since there has not yet been a single serious attempt to refute the case developed by Dr. Griffin and such like-minded thinkers as Nafeez Ahmed and Mike Ruppert. As for the general public, polls have shown that a strong majority of Canadians (63%, Toronto Star, May '04) and half of New Yorkers (Zogby, August 2004) agree that top US leaders conspired to murder nearly 3,000 Americans on 9/11/01. 

How, then, can the mainstream US media continue to ignore the story of the century? Perhaps the best answer was given by Dr. Griffin himself in the conclusion of his talk, and is worth quoting at length: 

"The evidence for this conclusion (that 9/11 was an inside job) has thus far been largely ignored by the mainstream press, perhaps under the guise of obeying President Bush's advice not to tolerate "outrageous conspiracy theories." We have seen, however, that it is the Bush administration's conspiracy theory that is the outrageous one, because it is violently contradicted by numerous facts, including some basic laws of physics. 

"There is, of course, another reason why the mainstream press has not pointed out these contradictions. As a recent letter to the Los Angeles Times said: 

”’The number of contradictions in the official version of . . . 9/11 is so overwhelming that . . . it simply cannot be believed. Yet . . . the official version cannot be abandoned because the implication of rejecting it is far too disturbing: that we are subject to a government conspiracy of 'X-Files' proportions and insidiousness.' 

"The implications are indeed disturbing. Many people who know or at least suspect the truth about 9/11 probably believe that revealing it would be so disturbing to the American psyche, the American form of government, and global stability that it is better to pretend to believe the official version. I would suggest, however, that any merit this argument may have had earlier has been overcome by more recent events and realizations. Far more devastating to the American psyche, the American form of government, and the world as a whole will be the continued rule of those who brought us 9/11, because the values reflected in that horrendous event have been reflected in the Bush administration's lies to justify the attack on Iraq, its disregard for environmental science and the Bill of Rights, its criminal negligence both before and after Katrina, and now its apparent plan not only to weaponize space but also to authorize the use of nuclear weapons in a preemptive strike. 

"In light of this situation and the facts discussed in this lecture---as well as dozens more problems in the official account of 9/11 discussed elsewhere---I call on the New York Times to take the lead in finally exposing to the American people and the world the truth about 9/11. Taking the lead on such a story will, of course, involve enormous risks. But if there is any news organization with the power, the prestige, and the credibility to break this story, it is the Times. It performed yeoman service in getting the 9/11 oral histories released. But now the welfare of our republic and perhaps even the survival of our civilization depend on getting the truth about 9/11 exposed. I am calling on the Times to rise to the occasion."

Foreknowledge of the Attacks on 9-11.

Bush, Jr. said regarding when he first knew that the US was under attack on 9-11; “Well, first of all, when we walked into the classroom, I had seen this plane fly into the first building. There was a TV set on. “
Town Hall Forum in Ontario, California (January 5, 2002) — there was no live broadcast of the first September 11th crash. (see http://en.wikiquote.org/wiki/George_W._Bush ).  For Bush, Jr to have seen the first plane hit the tower before he went into the classroom, a closed circuit video camera would have had to be trained on the tower in advance of the first plane hitting it, showing foreknowledge that it was going to happen.  There was a video of the first plane hitting taken by a French reporter on the street—it was not shown on TV until the next day). Since Bush, Jr. also said the same thing at another town meeting per the White House website transcripts, his statement is not just a misstatement.”

Pictures from the Pentagon related to 9-11

There are very interesting pictures and text about the Pentagon part of 9-11 at:

http://www.geocities.com/s911surprise3b/american_airlines_flight_77/ 

Here is one showing the small hole: [image: image3.jpg]



Rumsfield at one point made a blupper saying “the missile” that hit the Pentagon.

Here is the size that the hole should have been:

[image: image4.jpg]



The 6 foot hole went through 3 rings of the Pentagon.

[image: image5.jpg]



And there was no commercial plane debris on the ground:

[image: image6.jpg]



Be sure to see the other pictures at that site also.

Other good websites on 9-11;

http://www.911truth.org/article.php?story=20050604140153943 

There is an excellent time line of 9-11 evidence by Michael Ruppert at

http://www.copvcia.com/free/ww3/02_11_02_lucy.html which you probably already know about.

A good list of other 9-11 websites can be found at http://www.911blogger.com/ 

A very important NYTimes article about the first WTC attack is reproduced at http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/RANCHO/POLITICS/OK/wtcbomb.html .

The NY Times archives still has the article in it but you have to pay to read it.

The FBI had an informer in the “terrorist” group to help it build the bomb.

Covers of US Manuals Showing the crosshairs on WTC  in the late 1990’s

http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/fematape.html  FEMA arrived the day before 9-11 and their 1999 Manual Cover showed cross hairs on the WTC





That picture is much like the Air Force Manual of 1999 at the Memory Hole Website at http://www.thememoryhole.com/911/managing-wmd.htm 

[image: image8.jpg]0.5 Doparment of Justice
Oftce o sison Frograms
Ofcs o S 3 Lol Domestc Prparecnss Support

Managing Weapons of Mass Destruction Incidents:
An Executive Level Program for Sheriffs

PARTICIPANT
MANUAL





Other good 911 info from that site is at.

http://www.thememoryhole.com/911/
Information on the London Subway Bombing 
7/7 Bombings Final Word: Her Majesty's Terrorist Network

http://www.prisonplanet.com/articles/august2005/070805finalword.htm 

7/7 Mastermind was working for British Intelligence http://www.infowars.net/Pages/Aug05/020805Aswat.html
London Attacks-Is this a reply of the Pristine 9/11 Passport?

http://www.nomorefakenews.com/archives/archiveview.php?key=2717 

London Underground Bombing 'Exercises' Took Place at Same Time as Real Attack: Culpability cover scenario echoes 9/11 wargames
http://www.prisonplanet.com/articles/july2005/090705bombingexercises.htm 

How Black Ops staged the London Bombings

http://wagnews.blogspot.com/2005/07/how-black-ops-staged-london-bombings.html 

Ruses for War:

Another good book is Ruses for War which covers the Korean War to before 9-11
Earlier US ruses for war are briefly and nicely covered at:

http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/ARTICLE5/index.html 

and Robert Stinnett’s book Day of Deceit covers Pearl Harbor

McCollum’s memo to FDR recommending that the ships be moved from SD to Hawaii and how to force the Japanese to attack them there is reproduced at

http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/McCollum/index.html 

The Iraq War justification with the 10 Downing street memo is at

http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/lieofthecentury.html 

Background related to US War-Profiteering

Cheney's Halliburton stock options rose 3,281% last year, senator finds 

http://rawstory.com/news/2005/Cheneys_stock_options_rose_3281_last_1011.html Top of Form

[image: image9.wmf]
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Bottom of Form

An analysis released by a Democratic senator found that Vice President Dick Cheney's Halliburton stock options have risen 3,281 percent in the last year, RAW STORY can reveal.

Sen. Frank Lautenberg (D-NJ) asserts that Cheney's options -- worth $241,498 a year ago -- are now valued at more than $8 million. The former CEO of the oil and gas services juggernaut, Cheney has pledged to give proceeds to charity.
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The above graph released by Sen. Frank Lautenberg (D-NJ) charts the value of the Vice President's holdings in Halliburton in the past year.
“Halliburton has already raked in more than $10 billion from the Bush-Cheney Administration for work in Iraq, and they were awarded some of the first Katrina contracts," Lautenberg said in a statement. "It is unseemly for the Vice President to continue to benefit from this company at the same time his Administration funnels billions of dollars to it. The Vice President should sever his financial ties to Halliburton once and for all.”

Cheney continues to hold 433,333 Halliburton stock options. The company has been criticized by auditors for its handling of a no-bid contact in Iraq. Auditors found the firm marked up meal prices for troops and inflated gas prices in a deal with a Kuwaiti supplier. The company built the American prison at Guantanamo Bay.

The Vice President has sought to stem criticism by signing an agreement to donate the after-tax profits from these stock options to charities of his choice, and his lawyer has said he will not take any tax deduction for the donations. 

However, the Congressional Research Service (CRS) concluded in Sept. 2003 that holding stock options while in elective office does constitute a “financial interest” regardless of whether the holder of the options will donate proceeds to charities. CRS also found that receiving deferred compensation is a financial interest.

Cheney told "Meet the Press" in 2003 that he didn't have any financial ties to the firm.

“Since I left Halliburton to become George Bush's vice president, I've severed all my ties with the company, gotten rid of all my financial interest," the Vice President said. "I have no financial interest in Halliburton of any kind and haven't had, now, for over three years.”

Cheney continues to received a deferred salary from the company. According to financial disclosure forms, he was paid $205,298 in 2001; $162,392 in 2002; $178,437 in 2003; and $194,852 in 2004.

Background related to previous US plans to kill Americans in nuclear war
I know that 9-11 was an inside job--I worked closely with Tenet and McLaughlin from about 1998 until Aug. 2001. The truth was that the US neo-cons planned 9-11, planted the explosives that took down the towers, and deliberately killed innocently civilians to get Middle Eastern oil and the taxpayer’s money for war. Of course, a nuclear war would kill many more people.  One has to ask if the US govt. has ever planned to use nuclear weapons on its own people.  Alas, the answer to that is known not just to me but appears in print from another insider Al Martin in his book The Conspirators. Al Martin worked for the CIA during the Iran Contra era.  He talks about Operation Sledgehammer under Bush, Sr. in which detention camps were re-furbished across the US to jail dissidents including journalists and the whole of the US Congress, if necessary.  This was set up in case they rebelled against their loss of freedom or objected to the corruption that robbed them of their rights and monies in a great variety of scams. 

He also mentions Operation Orpheus, which was the deliberate use of a “limited nuclear war” against US populated areas as a way of justifying Marshal Law if the public found out about the tyranny against them and rebelled. That operation was explained to Al Martin in a briefing by Ollie North.  Al Martin asked how many people the US govt. contemplated expending in that so-called “limited” nuclear war.  

Ollie replied “It is just a number.”  

And Al Martin persisted and said “What number?”  

Ollie said that it was anticipated that 50-70 million Americans would die.  

Al Martin said that he suspected that Ollie went to Russia to set up a limited nuclear exchange with Russia so that both side could clamp down on their populations, if need be.  

He also mentions that the US govt. sold, at a fraction of the true cost, long-range nuclear missiles to Communist China in the late 1980’s that ended up aimed at the US at US taxpayer’s expense.  I can attest that this was indeed the case that the US sold to China long-range nuclear missiles complete with the radioactive payloads the year after I risked my life to recover a detonator that the Chinese had stolen in the US.  That was under Bush, Sr.’s watch.  National Security is destroyed by such measures.  For the US to go into Iraq under the pretext that it had WMD, after it sold them to it and other countries is a joke in bad taste to say the least.

Background related to the CIA’s use of Children


Excerpts: The CIA has done Unethical Experiments on Children

Excerpts from Bluebird and the CIA documents sent to Colin Ross, MD under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)

 “Chapter 7 of the Final Report [of The Advisory Committee on Human Radiation Experiments XE "Advisory Committee on Human Radiation Experiments"  Oct., 1995] is entitled ‘Non-therapeutic Research on Children’.  In 1961 researchers at Harvard XE "Harvard"  Medical School, Massachusetts General Hospital gave radioactive iodine to seventy retarded children at Wrentham State School.  These institutions also received CIA mind control money through MKULTRA.

Other MKULTRA institutions that injected non-therapeutic radioactive material into children included Johns Hopkins XE "Johns Hopkins" , the University of Minnesota, XE "University of Minnesota"  and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.  MIT XE "MIT"  gave radioactive substances to children at the Fernald School by putting it into their food.  The Advisory Committee notes that no risks of radioactivity were mentioned in the consent form signed by the parents.  The consent form stated that the purpose of the experiments was ‘helping to improve the nutrition of our children’...

The Advisory Committee says of the nutritional claim, ‘This was simply not true’.  (pg. 344)” -pg. 18.

“Another psychiatrist, whose obituary appeared in the American Journal of Psychiatry 57, was child psychiatrist Dr. Lauretta Bender XE "Bender, Lauretta M.D." .  Faretra and Bender91 describe an experiment in which they gave LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  or psilocybin to 50 boys age 7 to 15.  The children took these hallucinogens daily for weeks or months at a time.  The dosage of LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  was 150 micrograms, a hallucinogenic dosage level of the drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  equivalent to a strong adult street dose.  In another study, children given LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  were 6 to 12 years old32.  Some of Dr. Bender XE "Bender, Lauretta M.D." ’s child subjects received LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  daily for a year or longer31.”  -pgs.  78-79.

“Dr. Jose Delgado XE "Delgado, Jose M.D." , a neurosurgeon and professor at Yale XE "Yale" , received funding from the Office of Naval Research XE "Office of Naval Research" , the Air Force XE "Air Force"  657 1st Aeromedical Research Laboratory (Grant # F29600-67-C-0058) and the Public Health Service for brain electrode XE "brain electrode, implanted"  research on children and adults67, 70, 71, 72, 73, 75, 76,261.”  -pgs.  88-89.

 “He was able to control the movements of his animal and human subjects by pushing buttons on a remote transmitter box.  Another case involved an 11-year old boy who underwent a partial change of identity upon remote stimulation of his brain electrode76.”  -pg.90.

 “Another patient named Jennie was 14 years old when Drs. Mark and Ervin183 put electrodes in her brain.”  -pg 90. 

  “Like the Tuskeege Syphilis Study and the radiation experiments, the LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  research violated the requirements for informed consent which had been in place since the Nuremberg trials.  At Nuremberg, Nazi doctors who experimented with mescaline in the death XE "death:due to mind control experiments" \t "See Olson Frank also"  camps were regarded as war criminals.  A decade later, such research was conducted by the leading figures in academic psychiatry in North America, and published in leading medical journals.”  -pg. 84.

Excerpts: The CIA used children as agents

Excerpts from Bluebird and the CIA documents sent to Colin Ross, MD under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)

[Note that this is also documented elsewhere such as in Richard Aldrich’s book The Hidden Hand, Chapter on the Korea XE "Korea, use of civilian teenagers as agents" n war.  South Korean teenagers, after one week of training to be a spy, were pushed out of planes with parachutes on, about 50 miles behind enemy lines and told to remember what they saw as they came back through the front.  Thousands of teenagers were used this way, though most died during the trip back.  The children were malnourished and in bad shape even before being dropped.  It was not unusual, out of 10 children dropped, to not have a single one make it back.  It was only stopped after a year when it was decided that the intelligence collected in this way was not valuable.]


“Subproject 103 was conducted by Robert Cormack and A.B. Kristofferson at the Children’s International Summer Villages, Inc. in Maine.  The subjects were 16 to 21 …all had attended the camp in previous years as 11-year olds.  The academic purpose of the project was to study how children communicate when they do not share a common language.  The CIA was interested in the project as cover for establishing relationships with children XE "children, used as CIA agents"  from a variety of countries.  Obviously, the intent was to recruit them as agents or assets.”   

A Brief History of Mind Control

	1977
	
	
	Dr. Jose M.R. Delgado, Director of Neuropsychiatry, Yale University Medical School in the

	
	
	
	Congressional Record, No. 26, Vol. 118 February 24, 1974, does not expose that he has done

	
	
	
	surgical mind control experiments on American children (which is exposed later) but he does say;

	
	
	
	"We need a program of psychosurgery for political control of our society. Everyone who deviates 

	
	
	
	from the given norm can be surgically mutilated. …"Man does not have the right to develop his own

	
	
	
	 mind. This kind of liberal orientation has great appeal. We must electrically control the brain. 

	
	
	
	Some day armies and generals will be controlled by electric stimulation of the brain." These

	
	
	
	Congressional hearings on MKULTRA reveal the tip of the iceberg of the problem.  CIA Director Turner

	
	
	
	promises to stop the program and notify victims--neither is done.  The CIA claims that they can not find

	
	
	
	the victims while it continues to use and abuse me at CIA headquarters to which Turner finds his

	
	
	
	way each day. In all fairness to Turner, he may, like Bush, have been intentionally kept in the dark.

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1990's
	
	9 Canadians received a $750,000 settlement from the CIA for their severe mental handicaps,

	
	
	
	including amnesia following 1950's mind control experiments done under the Head of the American and

	
	
	
	Canadian Psychiatric Association, Ewen Cameron.  Psychic driving, unethically high electro-shocks,

	
	
	
	and LSD are used to turn the merely neurotic patients into near vegetables in an attempt to control

	
	
	
	and erase their minds, merely to advance the state of knowledge in how to mind control people.

	
	
	
	See Psychiatry and the CIA: Victims of Mind Control by Harvey Weinstein, MD

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1995
	
	
	Survivors of MKULTRA give testimony for the President's Advisory on Human Radiation 

	
	
	
	Experiments and in 1997 write to Clinton and Chrétien demanding an investigation. See

	
	
	
	www.mindcontrolforums.com/clntape.htm
	
	

	
	
	
	for brief statements by victims and therapists. 
	
	

	
	
	
	"The consistency of their stories about the purpose of the mind control and torture techniques, such 

	
	
	
	as electric shock, use of hallucinogens, sensory deprivation, spinning, hypnosis, dislocation of limbs

	
	
	
	and sexual abuse is remarkable. There is almost nothing published on this aspect of mind control 

	
	
	
	used with children, and these clients come from all over the country, having had no contact 

	
	
	
	with each other." See therapist's Valerie Wolf's full statement at
	

	
	
	
	www.tulanelink.com/mind/testimony_04a.htm
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1998
	
	
	Law professors Alan Scheflin and Daniel Brown publish American Psychiatric Association Award 

	
	
	
	Winning Book Memory, Trauma Treatment, and the Law.  For a briefer discourse on the subject see

	
	
	
	www.psychiatrictimes.com/p991137.html
	
	

	
	
	
	Ground Lost: The False Memory/Recovered Memory Therapy Debate (2004) by Scheflin in which

	
	
	
	he says that "Dissociative amnesia is characterized by an inability to recall important personal 

	
	
	
	information, usually of a traumatic or stressful nature, that is too extensive to be explained by 

	
	
	
	ordinary forgetfulness…all memory is recovered….Although the science is limited on this issue, the

	
	
	
	only three relevant studies conclude that repressed memories are no more and no less accurate 

	
	
	
	than continuous memories.  Thus, courts and therapist should consider repressed memories no 

	
	
	
	differently than they consider ordinary memories…The science of memory shows that 1) memory is 

	
	
	
	remarkably accurate for the gist of events, and less accurate for peripheral details; 2) all memories…

	
	
	
	can be influenced by later events or by the method of retrieval; and 3) all memories, whether implicit 

	
	
	
	or explicit, may exert an influence on behavior.
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1999
	
	
	Mind Control Victim, Paul A. Bonacci awarded $1million dollars in damages. 
	

	
	
	
	"The complex case also involved high-level politicians, business leaders, judges and police officials 

	
	
	
	with connections to the drug distribution/money laundering operations known as "Iran-Contra" which 

	
	
	
	goes back to then Vice-President Bush. DeCamp, a former Nebraska State Senator, even wrote a

	
	
	
	groundbreaking book about the sordid history of the case called The Franklin Cover-Up: Child Abuse,

	
	
	
	Satanism and Murder in Nebraska…"young people in America were victims of mind control 

	
	
	
	experiments run either by the U.S. government agencies such as the CIA or military intelligence 

	
	
	
	agencies," writes De Camp. "The story told by Monarch victims--one of whom was Paul Bonacci--

	
	
	
	is that they were tortured for the purpose of creating 'multiple personalities' within them…(who) could

	
	
	
	then be programmed--as spies, 'drug mules', prostitutes or assassins." See
	

	
	
	
	http://www.raven1.net/ra1.htm 
	
	

	
	
	
	and Pedophile Politician video online at
	
	

	
	
	
	http://www.911busters.com/911_new_video_productions/
	
	

	
	
	
	and on the disc supplied in case you have download problems.
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2000
	
	
	Colin Ross, MD publishes Bluebird: The deliberate creation of multiple personalities by psychiatrists

	
	
	
	after reviewing 15,000 pages of documents released under the Freedom of Information Act. In it

	
	
	
	he exposes how psychiatry has been used as a handmaiden in the torture of Americans by the

	
	
	
	US government, and how that government has tried to discredit its victims.

	
	
	
	He documents that most of the members on the Board of the False Memory Syndrome Foundation 

	
	
	
	are CIA paid mind control researchers with a vested interest in not having their crimes exposed.

	
	
	
	He uses official CIA documents to show that the CIA uses discrediting drugs and false imprisonment 

	
	
	
	in psychiatric hospitals to "dispose of their subjects" when their utility is expended, as happened to 

	
	
	
	me. Another example of this is the case of recent whistleblower, Russ Tice, NSA analyst, whom the 

	
	
	
	NSA retaliated against by having him declared crazy, revoking his security clearance, and terminating 

	
	
	
	his employment in May 2005.  See
	
	

	
	
	
	www.buzzflash.com/alerts/05/12/ale05176.html 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Overview Article on Mind Control Experiments on Children

CIA Experiments with Mind Control on Children  

by Jon Rappoport 

From: http://www.movingon.org/article.asp?sID=1&Cat=10&ID=1518
The CIA mind-control apparatus has been well known since 1975, when 10 large boxes of documents were released pursuant to Freedom of Information Act requests. 

Several good books were then written on the subject of the CIA program known as MK-ULTRA. Officially spanning ten years from 19 52-62, MK-ULTRA involved the use of LSD on unwitting military and civilian subjects in the United States. LSD and more powerful compounds were given under duress as brainwashing and truth serum drugs. The program's aim was to find drugs which would irresistibly bring out deep confessions or wipe a subject' s mind clean and program him or her as "a robot agent." 

In experimental test situations, people were given acid without their knowledge, then interrogated under bright lights with doctors sitting in the background taking notes. Threats would be made. The test subjects were told that their LSD "downer trips" would be extended indefinitely if they refused to reveal their closely-guarded military secrets. The people being interrogated in this way were CIA employees, U.S. military personnel and, abroad, agents suspected of working for the other side in the Cold War. Long-term severe debilitation and several documented deaths resulted. Much, much more could be said about MK-ULTRA. 

None of this prepared people for the explosive testimony made on March 15, 1995, in Washington, D.C., before the President's Committee on Radiation, however. In unpublicized sessions, New Orleans therapist Valerie Wolf introduced two of her patients who had uncovered memories of being part of extensive CIA brainwashing programs as young children (in one case, starting at age seven). Their brainwashing included torture, rape, electroshock, powerful drugs, hypnosis and death threats. According to their testimony, the CIA then induced amnesia to prevent their recalling these terrifying sessions. 

Both Wolf and her patients stated that they recovered the memories of this CIA program without regression or hypnosis techniques. In other words, these patients spontaneously discovered this information about themselves and their pasts. 

Although the committee was mainly concerned with radiation, they permitted Valerie and her patients to testify because, astonishingly, several doctors who had administered the mind- control experiments had also been identified by other Americans secretly exposed to radiation. Apparently there was a crossover. 

Prominent names surfaced in the March 15 testimony: Richard Helms, former head of the CIA, Dr. Sidney Gottlieb, who ran MK- ULTRA and Dr. John Gittinger, Gottlieb's protege. These men and others were directly accused of participating in grisly mind- control efforts on children. 

Predictably, this testimony received no media attention. 

I now have it all, including many pages submitted to the committee that will likely never be released as part of their final report. Only a small percentage of the pages were read aloud at the hearing. Included are corroborating statements from other therapists around the country and several of their patients. I have now released all of this testimony as a book, U.S. Government Mind-Control Experiments On Children. 

When the sickening shock starts to wear off, deeply disturbing questions flood one's mind: just what was this CIA program? How extensive was it? What was its purpose? 

From what I have been able to discover so far, many American children, as well as children from Mexico and South America, were used over a period of about 40 years, starting around 1948. In fact, the program may still be going on. Doctors and agents who administered it wanted to obtain control over the minds of these children, ostensibly to create super agents who wouldn't remember even what missions they carried out, because of hypnotically induced amnesia (which could be removed by their controllers and reinstalled at will). (1) 

Children were trained as sex agents, for example, with the job of blackmailing prominent Americans -- primarily politicians, businessmen and educators. A great deal of filming was done for this purpose. Eventually, people from the inner core of the CIA program filmed each other, and some of the centers where children were used as sex agents got out of control and turned into CIA-operated sex rings. 

Some children were considered expendable and simply murdered. 

One person who states that he was in this program as a child said, off the record: 

"They tried out their brainwashing techniques on the kids from Mexico and South America. They were considered expendable. But on another echelon of the program, they went after the best and the brightest American kids. Making perfect agents to combat the Soviets wasn't, I don't think, their ultimate objective. I can't remember what that was." 

At this point, I made a suggestion: 

"Well, if they were choosing the best and brightest, maybe they figured these kids would one day rise to important positions in the society, and they wanted to gain long-term control over them, so they would be under their thumb, so they could tap them at will -- a way of controlling the future society." 

"Maybe," he said. "The Nazis gained control over the intelligentsia in Germany. That was a very key step in their dominance. That was the first thing they did". 

"This smells very much like a Nazi program in the U.S.," I said. "I don't mean all the controllers were German, but the style of it, the insanity." 

He said, "They brought over a lot of Nazi doctors after the war and not just to build rockets -- for a lot of projects." 

Other people who said that they had been used as children in the program remember that doctors with German accents were definitely present at the sessions. One therapist, who shared this information informally with colleagues around the country, states that, so far, the oldest person she has heard of who was in the program is now 52; the youngest is now nine. 

Since a number of people who were brainwashed, tortured and drugged in these experiments try to resolve their experiences in therapy, psychiatrists and other professional therapists are hearing these stories. They are told, for example, that CIA controllers sometimes dressed up in Satanic costumes to further traumatize the children, also providing a cover that wouldn't be believed if the children ever talked. 

It is worth noting that there is a movement to discredit these "recovered" memories, and the most prominent group, the False Memory Syndrome Foundation (FMSF), has several board members with CIA or military-intelligence connections -- including the notorious Dr. Louis "Jolly" West of UCLA, who tried to establish a center for "the study of violence" at the university in the 1970s. This center's specialty would have been psychosurgery, a horrendous melting of brain connections, supposedly to curb people's "violent tendencies." 

FMSF maintains that a person always remembers abuse done to him or her, and therefore any new recovery of it in therapy is false and must have been fabricated through misleading suggestions by the therapist. While it is certainly true that such inducement happens in therapy, the blanket statement that all recovered memory is invented is unsubstantiated. 

In a written statement to Dr. Wolf that was included in her testimony to the president's committee, well-known researcher and psychiatrist, Colin Ross said, 

"Published articles in my files include descriptions of administration of 150 mcg of LSD to children age 5-10 years on a daily basis for days, weeks, months, and in a few cases even years. Neurosurgeons at Tulane, Yale, and Harvard did extensive research on brain electrode implants with intelligence funding, and combined brain implants with Large numbers of drugs including hallucinogens." 

Ross based his report on his more than 20 years of investigating CIA mind control. 

Chris De Nicola, one of Dr. Wolf's patients who testified before the president's committee, named her controller as a Dr. Greene, a name reported by several other mind-control subjects. It may well be that this name was a cover used by various CIA and military-contracted experimenter-torturers. Here is a quote from her testimony: 

"[Dr. Greene] used me in radiation experiments both for the purpose of determining the effects of radiation on various parts of my body and to terrorize me as an additional trauma in the mind-control experiments. [She was eight years old.] 

"The rest of the experiments took place in Tucson, Arizona, out in the desert. I was taught how to pick locks, be secretive, use my photographic memory to remember things and a technique to withhold information by repeating numbers to myself. [She is obviously talking about being trained as an agent.] 

"Dr. Greene moved on to wanting me to kill dolls that looked like real children. I stabbed a doll with a spear once after being severely tortured, but the next time I refused. He used many techniques but as I got older I resisted more and more. 

He often tied me down in a cage, which was near his office. Between 1972 and 1976 he and his assistants were sometimes careless and left the cage unlocked. Whenever physically possible, I snuck -into his office and found files with reports and memos addressed to CIA and military personnel. Included in these files were project, subproject, subject and experiment names with some code numbers for radiation mind-control experiments which I have submitted in my written documentation. I was caught twice and Dr. Greene tortured me ruthlessly with electric shock, drugs, spinning on a table, putting shots in my stomach, in my back, dislocating my joints and hypnotic techniques to make me feel crazy and suicidal..." 

Is there a precedent for this kind of sadistic treatment by CIA and military personnel? Indeed there is. Here is a quote from the introduction to my book, U.S. Government Mind-Control Experiments On Children. It contains information from reliable published sources; such as The Search for the Manchurian Candidate, by John Marks (2), Acid Dreams, by Martin Lee (3) and The Mind Manipulators, by Alan Scheflin (4). In part, these authors derived their information on the CIA and MK-ULTRA from the ten boxes of information released suddenly in 1975 by the agency in response to Freedom of Information Act requests: 

"Dr. Robert Heath of Tulane University, as early as 1955, working for the Army, gave patients-LSD while he had electrodes implanted deep inside their brains. 

"Canadian researcher, Dr. Ewan Cameron, under long-term CIA contract, attempted to depattern, and reprogram his psychiatric patients' personalities wholesale. He started with 15 to 65 days of 'sleep therapy,' during which a patient was kept under nearly 24 hours a day, through the administration of cocktails of Thorazine, Nembutal, Seconal, Veronal, and Phenergam. Throughout this sleep period, the patient would be awakened two or three times a day for electroshock treatments, given at an intensity 20-40 times the 'normal' convulsion-producing strength. 

"In the mid-1950's, Paul Hoch, M.D., a man who would become Commissioner of Mental Hygiene for the State of New York, then a laborer in the field for the CIA, gave a 'pseudoneurotic schizophrenic' patient mescaline. The patient had a not- unfamiliar heaven-and-hell journey on the compound. But Hoch followed this up with a transorbital leucotomy...Hoch also gave a patient LSD, and a local anesthetic, and then proceeded to remove pieces of cerebral cortex, asking at various moments whether the patient's perceptions were changing." Claudia Mullin, the other of Dr. Wolf's patients who testified before the President's Committee on Radiation, said her experiences with CIA mind-control experiences began when she was seven years old: 

"In 1958, 1 was to be tested, they told me, by some important doctors coming from a place called the 'Society' [the Human Ecology Society, a CIA front]. I was told to cooperate; answer any of their questions. Then, since the test 'might hurt,' I would be given 'shots, x-rays, and a few jolts of electricity.' I was instructed not to look at anyone's face too hard and to ignore names,' as this was 'a very secret project' but to be brave an all those things would help me forget... 

"A Dr. John Gittinger tested me and Dr. Cameron gave me the shocks and Dr. Greene the x-rays...By the time I left to go home, just like every time from then on, I would recall nothing of my tests or the different doctors. I would only remember whatever explanations Dr. Robert G. Heath [of Tulane Medical School] gave me for the odd bruises, needle marks, burns on my head and fingers and even the genital soreness. I had no reason to believe otherwise. Already, they had begun to control my mind! 

"The next year, I was sent to a place in Maryland called Deep Creek Cabins to learn how to 'sexually please men.' Also, I was taught how to coerce them into talking about themselves. It was Richard Helms (Deputy Director of the CIA), Dr. Gottlieb, Captain George White and Morse Allen, who all planned on filming as many high government and agency officials and heads of academic institutions and foundations as possible...I was to become a regular little 'spy' for them, after that summer, eventually entrapping many unwitting men, including themselves, all with the use of a hidden camera. I was only nine when this kind of sexual humiliation began." 

Captain George White was a notorious agent for the CIA. He set up a brothel in San Francisco in the 1960s and, using hidden cameras, filmed men having sex with prostitutes. The men's drinks were "spiked" with LSD. In 1950, Morse Allen, another important CIA, man, was appointed head of Project BLUEBIRD, another CIA mind-control program. 

Ms. Mullin states that she was adopted when she was two years old. By the time she reached seven she had already been abused extensively by her mother. Her mother apparently turned her over for "testing" to CIA-connected people and Claudia then entered a 27-year period of what can only be called enslavement. Claudia states that she has been monitored, that she is still monitored and watched by agency related people, including a medical doctor. Now living in New Orleans, she has given information to local police authorities about her situation. In her testimony to the president's committee, Claudia remarked, 

"Although the process of recalling these atrocities is certainly not an easy task, nor is it without some danger to myself and my family...I feel the risk is worth taking." Claudia's therapist, Dr. Wolf, has written to the president's committee, 

"To the best of my knowledge, [Claudia] has read nothing about mind-control or CIA covert operations. Since she decided to listen carefully and remember as much as she could about conversations among the researchers, her memories are extraordinarily complete. I have sent written copies of memories to Dr. Alan Scheflin [author of The Mind Manipulators] for validation and he has confirmed that she has knowledge of events and people that are not published anywhere, that some of her memories contain new information and that some are already known and published. Some of her memories have been confirmed by family members. She has also shown me old scrapbooks where she wrote notes to remember what was happening to her and hid the notes under pictures in the scrapbook." 

I spoke with Alan Scheflin in May of this year. He said he had found one piece of information Claudia had mentioned in her recollections that had no precedent in published material. It involved a connection between two government researchers. 

This is just the tip of the iceberg on the 130 pages of testimony given before the President's Committee on Radiation, and it is also just the beginning of a history that will undoubtedly widen in the coming months and years. Dr. Wolf told me that when word got around she was going to testify before the president's committee, she was contacted by about 40 therapists "in just the 10 days leading up to my trip to Washington." The therapists had heard similar CIA mind-control stories from their own patients. Many of these professionals are afraid to go on the record about their patients' stories, as censure from their professional societies is a reality. The political mood these days is not conducive to granting an aura of credibility to revelations of CIA brainwashing. So what else is new? 

[Jon Rappoport is a distinguished investigative reporter and the author of AIDS, INC. He can be found inhabiting the late night airwaves of KPFK radio in Los Angeles and lecturing at the Hardware Humanitarian House in Santa Monica, California.] 

Notes: 

1) See "From the Inside Out," Perceptions, March/April 1995, p.58 
2) Paddington Press, New York, 1978 
3) W.W. Norton, New York, 1979 
4) Grove Press, New York, 1985 
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Background relating to CIA Mind Control Experiments on unwitting subjects:

Excerpts from Psychiatry and the CIA

by Harvey M. Weinstein,MD  

Director of Cowell Student Health Center, Stanford University

American Psychitriac Press, Inc. 1990

His father, Lou Weinstein, was one of Cameron’s patients.  He was one of 9 Canadians to receive a settlement from the CIA of $750,000 total.

Pg . 97 Cameron…used the case of Nazi Germany as an example of a society that poisoned the mind of it’s citizens through the propagation of anxiety.

Pg. 114 A major goal of this program was to produce “differential amnesia”.

Pg. 128 The history of officially sanctioned mind-control experimentation in the US began in 1950, when the Director of Central Intelligence approved the establishment of a project, code-named Bluebird. Its objectives were as follows:

· To discover means of conditioning personnel to prevent unauthorized extraction of information from them by known means

· To investigate the possibility of control of an individual by application of special interrogation techniques

· To study memory enhancement

· To establish defensive means for preventing hostile control of Agency personnel

· To evaluate offensive uses of unconventional interrogation techniques, including hypnosis and drugs

In 1951, the CIA decided to coordinate efforts with the US Army, Navy, and Air Force, and Project Artichoke was born.  A 1952 memorandum desribes its mission as follows:

· Evaluation and development of any method by which we can get information from a person against his will and without his knowledge

· How can we counter the above measures if they are used against us?

· Can we get control of an individual to the point where he will do our bidding against his will and even against such fundamental laws of nature such as self-perservation?

· How could we counter such measures if they are used against us?

Pg 129 In 1953, Project Artichoke evolved into Project MKULTRA, the major CIA program of research on substances designed to influence behavior, a program that was to last for almost 20 years.  Richard Helms has been described as the driving force behind this endeavor, and in a 1953 memo he noted that part of its function was “implanting suggestions and other forms of mental control.” MKULTRA was to move from laboratory animals to testing on human volunteers …and to the use of experimental drugs on totally unknowing citizens. 

Pg 134 Proposing to examine every known method of influence and control, he [CIA researcher Harold Wolff] asked that the CIA provide him with all its information on interrogation and intimidation:

…including threats, coercion, imprisonment, deprivation, humiliation, torture, “brainwashing”, “black psychiatry”, hypnosis and combinations of these, with or without chemical agents.  We will assemble, collate, analyze and assimilate this information and will then undertake experimental investigation designed to develop new techniques of offensive/defensive intelligence use…Potentially useful secret drugs (and various brain damaging procedures) will be similarly tested in order to ascertain the fundamental effect upon human brain function and upon the subject’s mood….Where any of the studies involve potential harm to the subject, we expect the Agency to make available suitable subjects and a proper place for the performance of necessary experiments.

Pg 166 The Story of Dr. Mary Morrow 

She returned to Montreal in the mid-1950s, and for four or five years was in practice in neurology at a local hospital where she was also director of the neurology clinic.  She was not doing as well financially as she would have liked, and so she thought that she would become a psychiatrist…She approached Ewen Cameron at the Allen Memorial in Dec 1959 for a fellowship. The legal compliant filed in US District Court in Washington, DC, outlines what then transpired:

Because Cameron thought she appeared “nervous”, he told Dr. Morrow that a medical examination would be required before her application could be considered.  Dr. Morrow was then hospitalized at the Royal Victoria Hospital, a facility associated with McGill University and the Allan Memorial Institute.  After she left the Royal Victoria Hospital, Dr. Morrow was admitted as a paying patient at the Allan Memorial Institute on May 6, 1960, and placed under Cameron’s care.  For an 11 day period…Dr. Morrow was subjected to depatterning experiments employing Page-Russell ECT treatments and a variety of barbiturates, specifically thorizine and anectine [sic].  The combination of these drugs produced a condition of brain anoxia in Dr. Morrow and …she was transferred, at her family’s insistence, to the medical department of the Royal Victoria Hospital, where she was diagnosed as suffering from acute laryngeal edema [a severe allergic reaction to the experimental combination of drugs she had received].

Pg 167

 Margie, Mary’s younger sister, telephoned Cameron at his home in Lake Placid and demanded that Mary either be discharged or the treatment ended.  He countered by saying that Mary was no good and he washed his hands of her treatment.…Like other victims of Cameron, Mary was left with neurological damage. As reported on “Sixty Minutes”, she suffers from prosopagnosia.

Pg 165  We [the author and Dr. Morrow] began to discuss her recent deposition to the CIA.  Her righteous indignation filled the room as she described how the attorney for the CIA had compared her and the other plantiffs to the mice with which she had once worked at the National Institutes of Health in Washington, D.C. This anger towards those who did not in her eyes respect her humanity, her dignity as a human being, was to emerge repeatedly during the course of the several hours that we spent together.

Pg 176  

From the earliest communications of the CIA to our lawyers, Joe Rauh and Jim Turner, the CIA has denied responsibility for Subproject 68 of their MKULTRA mind control project (Cameron’s work). …The abrogation of responsibility, which has been the CIA’s response to this case up to the present, flies in the face of what had been known CIA policy.  When Admiral Stansfield Turner, who was then Director of Central Intelligence, provided testimony before the joint hearing of the Select Committee on Intelligence and the subcommittee on Health and Scientific Research of the Committee on Human Resources of the US Senate in August 1977, the chairman of the Intelligence Committee, Senator Daniel Inouye of Hawaii stated:

A sad aspect of the MKULTRA project was that it naturally involved the people who were unwittingly or wittingly got involved in experimentation.  I would appreciate it if you would report back to this committee in three months on what the Agency has done to notify these individuals and these institutions, and furthermore, to notify us as to what steps have been taken to identify victims, and if identified, what you have done to assist them, monetarily or otherwise.

In response, Turner stated, “All right, sir, I will be happy to.” No patients of Subproject 68 were ever contacted….

Excerpts from Bluebird: Deliberate Creation of Multiple Personality by Psychiatrists by Colin Ross XE "Ross, Colin M.D." , M.D.:

 [I have put in bold parts of the excerpts that are particularly relevant to the understanding of my situation as they provide historical context, often directly from the CIA’s own documents released by the Freedom of Information Act.  Dr. Colin Ross XE "Ross, Colin M.D."  sifted through 1,500 pages of such documents in order to write this book and to figure out if the hard-to-believe accounts of his patients had a basis in reality.]

An Introduction to Mind Control by the CIA and Related Intelligence Agencies
 
“The major goal of the Cold War mind control programs was to create dissociative symptoms and disorders, including full multiple personality disorder.  The Manchurian Candidate66 is fact, not fiction, and was created by the CIA in the 1950’s under BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE mind control programs.  Experiments with LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug" , sensory deprivation, electro XE "electroshock" -convulsive treatment,[electroshock pain, mind incapacitating drugs], brain electrode XE "brain electrode, implanted"  implants and hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  were designed to create amnesia XE "amnesia, created" , depersonalization, changes in identity and altered states of consciousness.  The purpose of BLUEBIRD: Deliberate Creation of Multiple Personality by Psychiatrists is to prove that the creation of controlled dissociation was a major goal of mind control research.

…Because the subject matter of this book is likely to provoke extreme reactions, I have taken great care to present only facts which are fully documented and based on objective, public domain information.  Experiments to create Manchurian Candidate “super spies” must be understood in their social and historical context, which is one of pervasive, systematic mind control experimentation, not by a few isolated renegade doctors, but by the leaders of psychiatry and the major medical schools.” –introduction,  pg .E.

  [This book] BLUEBIRD blows the whistle on extensive political abuse of psychiatry in North America in the second half of the twentieth century.  Many thousands…were subjected to unethical mind control experiments by leading psychiatrists and medical schools. …The network of mind control doctors involved in BLUEBIRD has done a great deal of harm to the field of psychiatry and to psychiatric patients. –pg.K of the Introduction.

“According to my definition, the Manchurian Candidate XE "Manchurian Candidate:defintion of"  is an experimentally created dissociative identity disorder that meets the following four criteria:

Created deliberately

A new identity is implanted

Amnesia barriers are implanted

Used in simulated or actual operations.” -pg 25.      

“Manchurian Candidate work was done [also] under MKULTRA Subproject 136, which was approved for funding on August 23, 1961.  The deliberate creation of multiple personality in children  XE "children, used as CIA agents"  is an explicitly stated plan in the MKULTRA Subproject Proposal submitted for funding on May 30, 1961.  TOP SECRET clearance status for the Principal Investigator on Subproject 136 had been initiated by the Technical Services Division of the CIA at the time the Subproject was approved.  Quotations from the Subproject 136 documents appear immediately before the Introduction to Bluebird: Deliberate Creation of Multiple Personality by Psychiatrists.”--pg.61. (see below).

MKULTRA Subproject 136 Proposal, 30 May 1961, Experimental Analysis of Extrasensory Perception, approved by the Chief, Technical Services Division/Research Branch, Central Intelligence Agency, 23 August 1961, $8,579.00.

          In working with individual subjects, special attention will be given to disassocitive states, which tend to accompany spontaneous ESP XE "ESP:remote viewers"  experiences.  Such states can be induced or controlled to some extent with hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  and drugs…The data used in this study will be obtained from group ESP XE "ESP:remote viewers"  experiments which have yielded significant results, high scoring subjects from special groups such as psychotics, children and mediums, and from psychological tests in which answers are of the multiple choice type…

          …In one case the experimental procedure will be designed to achieve favorable motivation…In other cases drugs and psychological tricks will be used to modify his attitudes.  The experimenters will be particularly interested in dissociative states, from the abaissment de niveau mental to multiple personality in so-called mediums, and an attempt will be made to induce a number of states of this kind, using hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will" . –pg. before the table of contents.

          “Although MKULTRA has received the most public attention of any of the CIA and military mind control programs, most of its Subprojects were relatively benign [as understood by outsiders after CIA Director Helms ordered the main MKULTRA files destroyed] compared to experiments carried out in PROJECT OFTEN and MKNAOMI. The declassified MKULTRA and MKSEARCH documents prove that systematic mind control experimentation involving physicians was ongoing at least until 1972.  Like BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE, MKULTRA involved the creation of Manchurian Candidates.  Most of the MKULTRA Subprojects involved study of subcomponents of the Manchurian Candidate construction process—without the BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE documents, it would be unclear if the mind control doctors ever built a full Manchurian Candidate.  The BLUEBIRD/ARTICHOKE materials establish conclusively that full Manchurian Candidates were created and tested successfully by physicians with TOP SECRET clearance from the CIA.”-pg. 61.

 
To understand creation of Manchurian Candidates by CIA and military mind control doctors, it is necessary to have some historical background….The importation of Nazi doctors to the United States through secret programs like Operation PAPERCLIP is part of the context. -pg.1.

          Besides strictly medical experiments, Dachau was also the site of mind control experiments involving the drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  mescaline.  Nazi doctors…administered mescaline to unwitting subjects XE "informed consent:absence thereof" …During the same period, similar experiments involving mescaline, marijuana, barbiturates, and scopolamine were conducted by Dr. Winfred Overholser XE "Overholser"  at St. Elizabeth’s hospital in Washington, D.C.

          The U.S. mind control experiments at St. Elizabeth’s were conducted under the auspices of the Office of Strategic Services (OSS), the precursor of the CIA.  A participant in the experiments, OSS officer George White XE "White, George Hunter" , later became the contractor on the CIA’s MKULTRA Subprojects 3,14,16,42, and 149 which ran from 1953 to at least 1964 -pg 6.

Examples of Why Mind Control was Used

          “The ARTICHOKE/BLUEBIRD documents contain a copy of Dr. Estabrooks XE "Estabrooks" ’ [a Canadian psychiatrist and WWI veteran] proposal to the CIA dated June 22, 1954:

THE MILITARY APPLICATION OF HYPNOSIS

 
I choose two practical applications from many with which to illustrate my proposition:

 The safeguarding of the messages entrusted to couriers XE "couriers, unwitting:mind conrtol victims" .  In deep hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  the subject, military or civilian, can be given a message to be delivered to say Colonel X in Berlin.  The subject may then be sent to Berlin on any perfectly routine assignment.  The message will be perfectly safe and will be delivered to the proper person because the subject will have no memory XE "memory, loss created"  whatsoever in the waking state as to the nature and contents of the message.  It can be arranged that the subject will have no knowledge of ever having been hypnotized.

 It can be arranged that no one besides Colonel X in Berlin can hypnotize the subject and recover the message.

 This hypnotic messenger, if I may use the phrase has in my opinion at least two very definite advantages over the ordinary courier.  First he will never under any circumstances by a slip of the tongue divulge the true nature of his mission for the very simple reason that he has no conscious knowledge of what that mission may be.  He is merely going on a routine replacement in say the Adjutant General’s Office.  This will be his story and the story which he believes.

 Secondly, if by any chance, he is picked up through leakage if information from any other sources the message is safe. No amount of third degree tactics can pry it loose, for he simply does not have it in his conscious mind. Even if the enemy suspects the use of hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  the message is still safe for no one can hypnotize him except this Colonel X in Berlin.

May I point out that this technique is one which can be demonstrated under experimental conditions where you wish and when you wish allowing a certain amount of time to train the subjects in question.

A specific counterintelligence technique to be used against enemy  agents. This particular use of hypnotism would be more complicated and more difficult than the rather simple case which I outlined in the p receding paragraphs, but is, I assure you, quite practical.  I will take a number of men and will establish in them through the use of hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  the condition of split personality.  Consciously they will be ardent Communists, fanatical adherence to the party line, ready and eager to submit to any discipline which the party may prescribe.  Unconsciously they will be loyal Americans just as grimly determined to thwart the Communists at every turn in the road.

 These men will again have no knowledge of anything that occurs in the hypnotic state---will have no knowledge of ever having been hypnotized and can only be hypnotized by such persons as the original operator may choose.  Consciously they will associate with the Communists and learn all the plans of the organization.  Once every month or at such time is advisable they will be contacted by a member of our intelligence department, hypnotized, and as loyal Americans will tell what they know.  This sounds unbelievable, but I assure you it will work.

Once again the advantages.  Your hypothetical counter spy will be placed in a very difficult situation XE "informed consent:absence thereof" ---amounting at best to social ostracism, at worst criminal prosecution.  He will not disclose his true role for the simple reason that he can not. Consciously he is a Communist and will not in a moment of weakness admit to his relatives or to his friends that he is anything but a Communist.  Again, if through some leakage, he is suspected of being an informer his true role is safely guarded, locked in the unconscious and impervious to all assaults from the outside…” -pgs. 163-165.

The CIA’s reply on 15 July 1954 included:

“The idea of a courier that has been hypnotized is not new…We ourselves have carried out much more complex problems than this…

…proposal about using hypnotized individuals as counteragents is also not new and we, of course, have discussed this many times…” -pg. 166.

Examples of Mind Control Experiments

“A document entitled, “Hypnotic Experimentation and Research, 10 February 1954” describes a simulation experiment of relevance to the creation of Manchurian Candidate assassins:

Miss [whited out] was then instructed (having previously expressed a fear of firearms in any fashion) that she would use every method at her disposal XE "disposal of subject"  to awaken Miss [whited out] (now in a deep hypnotic sleep) and failing in this, she would pick up a pistol nearby and fire it at Miss [whited out].  She was instructed that her rage would be so great that she would not hesitate to “kill” [whited out] for failing to awaken.  Miss [whited out] carried out these suggestions to the letter including firing the (unloaded pneumatic pistol) gun at [whited out] and then preceeding to fall into a deep sleep.  After proper suggestions were made, both were awakened and expressed complete amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  for the entire sequence.  Miss [whited out] was again handed the gun, which she refused (in an awakened state) to pick up or accept from the operator.  She expressed absolute denial that the foregoing sequence had happened”.-pgs.36-37.

The Reality of Government Mind Controlled Subjects used as Spies Against their Will


“In a 1971 article in Science Digest, Dr. Estabrooks XE "Estabrooks"  claimed to have created hypnotic couriers XE "couriers, unwitting:mind conrtol victims"  and counterintelligence agents for operational use during WWII:

…I was involved in preparing many subjects for this work during WWII.-pg167.

…The potential for military intelligence has been nightmarish. During WWII, I worked this technique with a vulnerable Marine lieutenant I’ll call Jones.  Under the watchful eye of Marine intelligence I split his personality into Jones A and Jones B. Jones A, once a “normal” working Marine, became entirely different.  He talked communist doctrine and meant it.  He was welcomed enthusiatically by communist cell, and was deliberately given a dishonorable discharge XE "informed consent:absence thereof"  by the Corps (which was in on the plot) and became a card carrying party member.

…It worked beautifully for months with this subject, the technique backfired. While there was no way for an enemy to expose Jones’ dual personality, they suspected it and played the same trick on us later.

…The use of ‘waking hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will" ’ in counter intelligence in WWII occasionally became so involved that it taxed even my credibility. Among the most complicated ploys used was the practice of sending a perfectly normal, wide awake agent into enemy camp…” -pg. 167.


“In a May 13, 1968 article in the Providence Evening Bulletin31, Estabrooks XE "Estabrooks"  is described as a former consultant for the FBI and CIA, and is quoted as saying that, “the key to creating an effective spy or assassin rests in splitting a man’s personality, or creating multipersonality, with the aid of hypnotism… This is not science fiction.  This has and is being done.  I have done it.  XE "informed consent:absence thereof" ”  -pg. 162.

The CIA’s Use of Drugs to Discredit and Disable People


“MKDELTA was a special procedure designed by the CIA to oversee MKULTRA research conducted abroad in the 1950’s.  It involved the use of drugs in interrogation, therefore physicians, most likely psychiatrists, were direct participants.  MKDELTA also funded research on the use of biological materials for ‘harassment, discrediting, or disabling purposes’.” -pg. 64.


“In a report dated September 6, 1961, the following conclusions about the interrogation of the US soldier were presented (p.415 [of Project MKULTRA, the CIA’s Program of Research in Behavioral Modification, EA 1729 is LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug" ]):

This case demonstrated the ability to interrogate a subject profitably throughout a highly sustained and almost incapacitating reaction to ES 1729 XE "ES 1729:CIA interrogation drug" \t "See LSD" .  The apparent value of bringing the subject into the EA 1729 situation in a highly stressed state was indicated.  The usefulness of employing as a stress factor the device of inviting the subject’s attention to his EA 1729-influenced state and threatening to extend this state  XE "terror,created"  even to a permanent condition of insanity, or to bring it to an end at the discretion of the interrogators was shown to be effective.”-pg 65.

The Problem of the Disposal of Subjects


“Another problem addressed repeatedly in the documents is called “The Problem of the Disposal of Subjects”. Several personnel recommended the use of lobotomies for this purpose, but according to the documents this was rejected as too unethical and too high a negative publicity risk for the CIA.  Another document describes an alternative strategy for disposing of ARTICHOKE subjects:


Among the important security problems, …were the problems of disposal XE "disposal of subject"  of subjects after Artichoke treatment and the important questions as to whether or not amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  had been obtained.  In connection with Case #1, in the professional opinion of [whited out] and as far as the writer is able to determine, a total amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  was produced…Since the Artichoke technique had shown that, from an operational point of view the subject had no further value to the Agency, the subject was to be returned to [whited out] and after a period of time, removed from solitary, and gradually permitted to mingle with larger and larger prison groups. Ultimately, and after a considerable lapse of time (perhaps as much as two years) the subject would be released.


…Again in so far as disposal XE "disposal of subject"  of Case #2, …it had been decided that the subject would be moved as a prisoner to some place in [whited out] and held there until any possible usefulness to anyone had completely disappeared. -pgs. 41-42.


“A MEMORANDUM dated  25 January 1952 describes another case in which the problems of reconditioning and the disposal XE "disposal of subject"  of subjects arose:”-pg34.


“…is a 29-year old [whited out] and was the head of a small political party based in [whited out] and ostensively working for [whited out] independence…described by [whited out] as being young, ambitious, bright (elementary college education)… a plot was rigged in which [whited out] was told he was going to be assassinated and as ‘protection’, he was placed in custody of the [whited out] Police who threw [whited out] into a [whited out] prison.  [whited out] was held in the [whited out] prison for 6 months until the [whited out] authorities decided that [whited out] was a nuisance and they told our people to take him back. Since our people were unable to dispose of [whited out] they flew him to [whited out] where, through arrangement, he was placed in a [whited out] as a psychopathic patient. [whited out] has now been in the [whited out] hospital XE "psychiatric hospitalization of normal people for political reasons:CIA documentation of" \t "See Pound, Ezra also"  for several months and the hospital authorities now want him out since he is causing a considerable trouble, bothering other patients, etc. [Whited out] is not a psychopathic personality.”-pgs. 34-35. 


“[Whited out] explained that they can dispose of [whited out] by the simple process of sending him to a friend of his in [whited out], and as far as they are concerned, that type of disposal XE "disposal of subject"  is perfectly o.k.  However, because of his confinement in [whited out] prison and his stay in [whited out] hospital, [whited out] has become very hostile toward the [whited out] and our intelligence operations in particular.  Hence [whited out] considering an ‘Artichoke’ approach to [whited out] to see if it would be possible to re-orient [whited out] favorably to us.  This operation, which will necessarily involve the use of drugs is being considered by [whited out] with a possibility that [whited out] will carry out the operation presumably at the [whited out] hospital in [whited out].

….Re-conditioning and re-orienting an individual in such a matter, in the opinion of the writer, cannot be accomplished easily and will require a great deal of time…. We would have no absolute guarantee that the subject in this case would maintain a positive friendly attitude toward us even though there is apparently a successful response to treatment.  The writer did not suggest to [whited out] that perhaps a total amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  could be created by a series of electrical shocks, but merely indicated that amnesias under drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  treatments were not certain.” -pgs 35-36.


“The use of electric shock to the brain for creation of amnesia XE "amnesia, created" , and amplification of the amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  with hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  were discussed by the author of an ARTICHOKE document dated 3 December 1951:


[Whited out] is reported to be an authority on electric shock.  He is a professor at the Medical School of the [whited out] …a psychiatrist of considerable note.…He stated that the standard electri-shock machine (Reiter) could be used in two ways.…He stated that using this machine as an electro XE "electroshock" -shock device with the convulsive treatment, he felt he could guarantee amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  for certain periods of time and particularly he could guarantee amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  for any knowledge of use of the convulsive shock.


[Whited out] stated that the other or lower setting of the machine produced…excruciating pain…that they complained their whole head was on fire…even in connection with sedatives it was extremely painful.

…an individual could be gradually be reduced through the use of electro XE "electroshock"  shock treatment to the vegetable level. He stated that, whereas amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  could be guaranteed relative the actual use of the shock and the time element surrounding it, he said it would obtain perfect amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  for peroids further back. He stated several instances in which people who had been given the electroshock treatment remembered some details of certain things and complete blanks in other ways”.-pgs. 43-44.


 “The use of electro XE "electroshock" -shock to produce amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  was subsequently successfully demonstated in a series of cases by Ewen Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  at McGill XE "McGill, University" , who reveived CIA money through MKULTRA Subproject 68 in 1957. Many of the discussions, literature reviews and experiments conducted under BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE were followed up on in MKULTRA and MKSEARCH.”-pgs. 44-45.

A Large Number of Unwitting Subjects, both Civilian and Military, have been used against their Will in Mind Control Experiments and Operations

…”The mind control drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  development was carried out under Subprojects 2, 3, 6-10, 14, 16-18, 22, 26-28, 33, 35, 38-40, 42, 44-47, 53, 56, 58, 59, 63, 66, 71, 72, 75, 80, 99, 109,124, 125, 135, 140 and 147.”-pg. 54.


“…One of the drugs tested in Project OFTEN was a hallucinogen called  XE "EA6167:psychosis causing CIA drug" . It caused psychosis XE "psychosis, created"  with subsequent amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  lasting three to four days.” -pg. 66.


“…No-one knows the exact number of mind control subjects who received LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  from the CIA and the military.  In a US Army XE "Army"  memorandum dated July 15, 1975 Kenneth R, Dirks XE "Dirks, Kenneth MD" , M.D., Brigadier General, MC, Assistant Surgeon General for Research and Development, US Army estimated that at least 1,500 soldiers were given LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  without informed consent as part of Army mind control experiments.[Other estimates put the figure at 4,000. -pg197]  Review of the [long] list of drugs tested by the US Army up until 1973 included in Appendix I, and the fact that there are three branches of the military plus the CIA, leads to the conclusion that a large number of people received mind control drugs without giving true informed consent.” -pg. 73.

An Example of an LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  Subject’s Experience


“Mary Ray XE "Ray, Mary"  is the only LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  subject for whom Senate testimony is corroborated by medical records.  She is also the only subject whose mind control doctor is identified by name. The fact that Dr. Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D."  administered LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  to subjects on contract to the Air Force XE "Air Force"  is documented in his own publications, which makes Mrs. Ray XE "Ray, Mary" ’s testimony uniquely corroborated.


Mary Ray XE "Ray, Mary"  was employed as a research assistant at the University of Minnesota XE "University of Minnesota" …She became an experimental subject when her boss, Dr. Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D." , gave her an injection…of LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  on January 15, 1966 as part of an experiment…She had a bad reaction…and was kept in the hospitalized overnight under the care of Dr. Janeck…He described Mary Ray XE "Ray, Mary"  as “acutely psychotic XE "psychotic effects, created" , hallucinating freely, complaining of tremendous fear of not coming out of this state, experiencing rapid passage of time and completely disoriented to time, place, and person.”-pg. 189.


“Mrs. Ray XE "Ray, Mary" ’s description of her bad LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  trip in Senate testimony matches the medical record of Dr. Janeck closely (Biomedical and Behavioral Research, 1975,pp.122):


I went through a state of absolute terror XE "terror,created" ; panic…. I started out after the injection with nausea and shaking and feeling cold and wanting to run away, but not knowing from what.  As I got worse and worse, I realized that something was very wrong…and I told the student I wanted to go to the emergency room.


I was absolutely desperate, and he said that he was sorry, but he could not take me without some authority. This was on a Saturday, and there just was nobody in the building…He dialed all kinds of people and could not get through,so I tried to go out through the window. He was holding onto me. He hollered, and another student walked through and the two of them took me to the emergency room.  At this time it was about the worst.  I was in a state of becoming the universe.  I became objects.  I was no longer a person.  I was in a state of absolute terror XE "terror,created" .

….I tried desperately to kill myself…


  No one seemed to know how to handle the situation.  No one seemed to know what to do.  It seemed like kids playing scientists.”-pgs. 189-190.

“Asked by Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator"  about the long term effects of the bad LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  trip, Mrs. Ray XE "Ray, Mary"  testified:


Mrs. RAY. Before this I was quite a relaxed person…starting the date I got the LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  I have been overwhelmed,  flooded by anxiety almost 24 hours a day.  It has never changed and this is over 9 years ago. …flashbacks…nightmares…I had to quit school. I was hospitalized when I had the LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  experience, but that was not the end of it.  I had to go through 6.5 months of psychotherapy…and that was very expensive for a student. To add insult to injury, I received a hospital bill [for the LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  treatment].” -pgs. 191-192.


“Thousands of other LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  subjects might have similar stories to tell, and those subjects represent only a small subset of the mind control drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  experiments, since the Army XE "Army"  alone lists over 130 mind control drugs it tested in the 1950’s, 60’s and 70’s.”-pg.198.

[Regarding other test subjects that Mary Ray XE "Ray, Mary"  saw while she worked for Dr. Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D." :]


Senator KENNEDY. How old were these test subjects?


Mrs. Ray XE "Ray, Mary" . I remember one girl of 17, although I saw her written up as 18, and…she definitely did not want to be part of the experiment.


Senator KENNEDY. How did you know she did not?


Mrs. RAY. I saw her as they were taking her in, and she said she won’t go, and they said, “Yes, you will,” and she said, “Don’t take me back to that hell.”: which makes me think she had a previous experiment.


Senator KENNEDY. What was she doing there? You were not forced or required to do this, were you?


Mrs. RAY. She was a patient and she was forced.  They told her she had no choice. I remember this episode very well.  There was an aide on her arm restraining her, and an orderly on another…


Senator KENNEDY. What did the doctor tell her?


Mrs. RAY.  There was no doctor there.  But I went back then about 1 or 2 hours later, and at this point she was totally disintegrated.  She was absolutely psychotic XE "psychotic effects, created" .  Before this she was a very normal appearing person; she would joke and gossip…She was attractive and talkative.  But afterwards she was just a mess.  She was taken back to the ward, and she was for like 4 days mute, and you could not get through to her in any way…Any position I put her body in, she would just stay in.”-pgs. 192-193.


 “In a paper [by Dr. Amedeo Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D." ] entitled “Quantified LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  Effect on Ego Strength” 186, an 18-year old girl identified as J.M. is described as “having entered a period of mutism XE "mutism, created"  lasting three days”. The paper contains J.M.’s Minnesota Multiphasic Personality Inventory (MMPI) profiles for Pre LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  (8/30/65), Post LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  (9/14/65) and Recovery (9/22/65). The Pre-LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  MMPI is normal. The Post-LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  profile is highly abnormal with a huge elevation on the schizophrenia scale, but has returned to normal by 9/22/65.  This is likely the same patient described by Mary Ray XE "Ray, Mary"  in her Senate testimony.”-pg.192. 


“Dr. Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D." …was Chief of the Toxicology Branch at the Chemical Corps Medical Laboratories, Army XE "Army"  Chemical Center, Maryland (Edgewood XE "Edgewood Arsenal"  Arsenal) from 1948 to 1951.  From 1951 to 1956 he was Assistant Scientific Director at the Chemical Warfare Laboratories XE "Chemical Warfare Laboratories" .  This puts him in the thick of the action for MKULTRA and MKNAOMI.


  A letter from CIA Director Allen Dulles XE "Dulles, Allen:a past CIA Director"  to the Secretary of Defense dated December 3, 1955 confirms that the CIA funded research by the Army XE "Army" , Navy XE "Navy:mind control reseach" \t "See Office of Naval Research" , and various Univerisities.  The letter specifically identifies the Army Chemical Corps XE "Army Chemical Corps"  and the Office of Naval Research XE "Office of Naval Research" .  Sixe individuals are identified in the letter:…and Dr. Amedeo Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D." , Medical Center, Army Chemical Center….” –pgs. 193-194.


“The purpose of his experiments, according to Dr. Marrazzi XE "Marrazzi, Amedeo M.D."  was to provide a measure of the subjects’s resistance or suspectibility to “cerebral disintegrative stress”, which, translated, means resistance to brainwashing and intensive interrogation.  Subjects were a group of health nurses containing “a sub-group that a psychiatrist had assessed as normal but labile and potentially more apt to succumb to stress.”

 -pgs. 194-195.

The Deliberate, Systematic Misuse of Psychiatry


 “The MKULTRA contractor about whom the most has been written is Dr. Ewen Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  65,105,184,212, 278, 301, 313.”-pg. 125. 


“Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda"  was a victim of Dr. Ewen Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." ’s unethical, destructive

mind control experiments.


  In Linda’s case, depatterning was achieved through 102 electroconvulsive therapy (ECT) treatments given to her between May 1 and September 12, 1963. Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda"  and other depatterning subjects at Allen Memorial Institute did not receive the usual amount of electricity to their brains…52,53,55the button on the machine [was] pushed six times per treatment instead of the usual one.


Depatterning was combined with psychic driving in many patients51,54 but not in Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda" ’s case.  In depatterning, tape loops were played repeatedly to patients so that they heard the same message in “250,000 to 500,000 repetitions over a period which averages 20 days” 54 .  According to Dr. Cameron54, ‘The effectiveness of this procedure has been studied under a variety of conditions, among them drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  disinhibition, ordinary and prolonged sleep treatment, hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  under stimulant drugs and after prolonged psychological isolation’”-pg. 181.


“Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda" ’s “treatment” at the Allan Memorial Institute involved intensive application of three of these brainwashing techniques; drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  disinhibition, prolonged sleep treatment, and prolonged psychological isolation. These were combined with the equivalent of 612 conventional ECT treatments.  The amount of electricity introduced to Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda" ’s brain exceeded by 76.5 times the maximun amount recommended in the ECT Guidelines of the American Psychiatric Association, which states that a course of ECT should consist of 4 to 8 treatments.

 
Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." ’s depatterning technique resulted in permanent and complete amnesia XE "amnesia, created" . TO This day, Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda"  in unable to remember anything from her birth to the time she entered the Allen Memorial Institute in 1963.  Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  created a type of dissociative disorder in Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda" .  He demonstrated what was considered to be in doubt in the BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE documents; he proved that doctors skilled in the right techniques can erase a subject’s memory XE "memory, loss created" .”

After destroying Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda" ’s identity and memory XE "memory, loss created" , …The new identity wasn’t used for anything by Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." , it was simply an experimental by-product discarded by him without any follow-up.” At the time of discharge, Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  gave Linda’s husband three instructions:

Don’t give her back her past.

Keep her away from her family as much as possible.

Don’t teach her anything until she takes some initiative.”-pg. 182.


“As recorded by the nurses in her chart (see Appendix H), Linda was reduced to a vegetable state by the depatterning.  She was completely disoriented, and didn’t know her name, age, or where she was.  She didn’t recognize her children.  She couldn’t read, drive, cook or use a toilet.  Not only did she not know her husband, she didn’t even know what a husband was.

 
…While Linda was trying to relearn basic human functions and self-care, a nanny kept track of everything for her.

It took her three to four years to recover her short term memory XE "memory, loss created" .  One of the highlights of her rehablitiation,…was the time she anounced excitedly, ‘Kids, look what I am doing!’  She had learned to scramble an egg.


  Linda had never had any mental health problems requiring treatment until after the birth of her twins, when she developed a postpartum depression.  She was treated by her family physician Dr Rosenhec with Dexedrin (see a letter from Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  to Dr. Rosenhec in Appendix h).  This caused severe insomnia….It was Dr. Rosenhec who refered her to the Allen Memorial Institute.-pg 183-184.

Dr. Ewen Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." ’s Notes on Linda MacDonald XE "MacDonald, Linda"  from the Allen Memorial Institute

April 1

 …She claimed to be depressed but broke into apparently unmotivated laughter.

April 22

  …She has difficulty expressing hostility, and we are encourging her to do this. The diagnosis is not yet clear…

July 4

…her admission EEG…no evidence of …or epileptiform activity…

July 16

She is quite turbulent.  Her speech is very slurred.  She shows no definite evidence of delusional ideas…We are also considering raising her sleep medication…her EEG show an increase in epileptiform activity…

July 23

…she cannot recognize her own bed and keeps crawling into others.

September 5

…the psychologists felt that the general impression was that of a notable hysterical overlay to an early schizophrenic pathology.  Our examinations of her clinically, however, have failed this far to ahow any evidence of schizophrenia.  Due to the dangers of neglecting a possible schizophrenia, we put her through intensive therapy.

September 12

   She has had repeat psychological testing.  The results, of course, to some extent are influenced by the organic XE "brain damage, created"  changes produces by the electroshock.  Thus far no evidence of a thought disorder can be noted.”-pgs.355-357.


“Rather than being the object of suspicion and investigation in the 1950’s, Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  was well regarded in the Canadian media.  Favorable articles about him were entitled ‘Canadian Psychiatrists Develop Beneficial Brainwashing’195;’New “Personalities” Made to Order’47 and ‘Two-month Sleep, Shock New Schizophrenia Cure’49.”-pg 130.


“…the Canadian Government has established a fund which compensates victims of unethical experiments by Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  at the Allan Memorial Institute…” -pg 132.   Despite the code of silence, and despite later claims by the Canadian Psychiatric Association that Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  was unaware he was working for the CIA (see appendix H), unwitting investigator status for Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  is implausible for several reasons….At various times, Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  was President of the Quebec, Canadian, American and World Psychiatric Associations, the Society of Biological Psychiatry and the American Geriatrics Society.  Dr, Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  was one of the four co-founders of the World Psychiatric Association; another was Dr. William Sargant273 , the foremost British authority on brainwashing.  Many Board Members and Presidents of the Society of Biological Psychiatry were LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  researchers, funded by the military or otherwise in the mind control network. 

 
A letter from the CIA to Senator Pete Wilson dated 11 December 1985 states that the CIA contacted Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  directly. -pgs. 125-126.


Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  began conducting unethical, unscientific and inhumane brainwashing experiments at Brandon Mental Hospital in the 1930’s.  He continued this work into the 1960’s….


 After leaving Brandon Hospital in 1936, Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  took a job at Worcester State Hospital in Massachusetts.  The Worcester Foundation for Experimental Biology received CIA money through MKULTRA Subproject 8…At Worcester State Hospital, Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  massively over-utilized insulin coma therapy by putting patients in coma for 2-5 hours per day for up to 50 days in a row.


In a paper published in the American Journal of Psychiatry entitled ‘Psychic Driving’, Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  describes his brainwashing techniques and says, ‘Analogous to this is the breakdown of the individual under continuous interrogation.’ 


Psychic driving was a procedure carried out in two stages; in the first stage, patients were depatterned, which meant that they were reduced to a vegetable state through a combination of massive amounts of electroconvulsive shock, drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  induced sleep and sensory isolation and deprivation.  When fully depatterned, patients were incontinent of urine and feces, unable to feed themselves, and unable to state their name, age, location, or the current date (see Chapter 16).


In the second stage, psychic driving was introduced.  This consisted of hundred of hours of tape loops being played to the patient through earphones, special helmets or speakers in the sensory isolation room.  The tape loops repeated statements of supposed psychological significance.  If such procedures were carried out under third world dictators, they would be denounced as human rights violations by American and Canadian psychiatry, and would be called brainwashing.” -pg 128-129.

 
“…The Fifth Estate, aired a segment on Val Orlikow and Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D."  on January 17, 1984.  On January 20, the Canadian Government delivered its first formal protest about MKULTRA XE "Canadian government:first formal protest about MKULTRA"  to the U.S. State Department.  A Vancouver newspaper ran a full page story on Robert Loggie, a Vancouver man who had been experimented on by Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." ; Loggie was a plantiff in the class action suit against the CIA XE "CIA:lawsuit against"  for Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." ’s MKULTRA experiments, which was settled out of court for $750,000.00, divided among the nine plantiffs, in 1988.”-pg 187. 


Another McGill XE "McGill, University"  psychiatrist, Dr. James Tyhurst worked at the Allan Memorial Institute and received funding from Canada’s Defense Research Board…Dr. Tyhurst XE "Dr. Tyhurst"  attended a meeting with CIA personnel in 1951 in Montreal devoted to oversight of BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE105.  He also worked at Hollywood Hospital XE "Vancouver, Hollywood Hospital:mind control research: LSD and reserpine" \t "See Dr Tyhurst"  in Vancouver, where hundreds of patients were treated with LSD174 XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will " .


In a paper entitled ‘An Evaluation of the Clinical Significance of Reserpine’, Tyhurst and Richman noted that:


In a 5-month period, while 5 out of 6 reserpine-treated patients developed complications in insulin coma, only 5 out of 36 non-reserpine patients developed complications. The complications seen in reserpine-treated patients included 2 prolonged comas, 1 cyanosis, 1 increased sensitivity to insulin, and 1 death XE "death:due to mind control experiments" \t "See Olson Frank also"  with respiratory arrest.


Dr. Donald Hebb, Head of the Dept. of Psychology at McGill XE "McGill, University"  during the 1950’s, received funding from Canada’s Defense Research Board for experiments on sensory isolation.  The network of doctors with CIA and military funding at McGill XE "McGill, University"  included Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." , Dr. Hebb XE "Dr. Hebb" , Dr. Tyhurst XE "Dr. Tyhurst" , Dr. Wittkower XE "Dr. Wittkower"  and Dr. Prince XE "Dr. Prince" , and in addition Dr. Azima XE "Dr. Azima"  was firmly established in the mind control network and using many of the same experimental procedures. …Any claim that Dr. Cameron XE "Cameron, Ewen M.D." ’s CIA funding was an anomaly or isolated incident is therefore incorrect.


Medical experimentation by the Department of Psychiatry at McGill XE "McGill, University"  resulted in death XE "death:due to mind control experiments" \t "See Olson Frank also" ; psychosis XE "psychosis, created" , vegetable states XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will " , organic XE "brain damage, created"  brain damage, and permanent loss of memory XE "memory, loss created"  among other damages.  It resulted in the creation of amnesia XE "amnesia, created" , identity disturbance and depersonalization among other dissociative symptoms…-pg 136.

“In a chapter in a book on brainwashing, Chodoff and Mercer58 write:


As for the issue of the deliberate, systematic misuse of psychiatry to suppress political and religious dissent…The case usually considered most relevant is that of the poet Ezra Pound XE "psychiatric hospitalization of normal people for political reasons:Example where the name is known" 

 XE "Pound, Ezra" .  Arrested at the end of WWII for his treasonous broadcasts in Italy, Pound was never tried but was found incapable of assisting in his defense by reason of mental illness…This judgment, largely the work of Dr. Winfred  XE "Overholser" , superintendent of St. Elizabeth’s Hospital XE "St. Elizabeth’s Hospital" , was made in spite of what seems to have been a lack of substantial clinical evidence of psychosis XE "psychosis, created"  and the fact that Pound had written a lucid and detailed defense of himself to the US Attorney General.


The Pound case appears to constitute a political subversion of psychiatry.” -pg 156.


“Dr. Winfred Overholser XE "Overholser" , Sr. funded LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  research…and was at the center of the mind control network beginning with his work for the OSS during WWII184.”-pgs.156-157.


 “One of the most unexpected members of the mind control network was Carl Rogers XE "Rogers, Carl, PhD" , Ph.D.  Dr. Rogers received TOP SECRET clearance for his work on MKULTRA Subproject 74.” -pg 157.


“Throughout the twentieth century, academic psychiatry provided no public commentary, ethical guidance, peer review, or moral oversight of any kind concerning mind control experimentation, despite the fact that the leading psychiatrists and medical schools were well funded by the CIA and military for mind control research.  Mental patients, cancer patients, prisoners and unwitting citizens were experimented on by the mind control doctors at Yale XE "Yale" , Harvard XE "Harvard" , McGill XE "McGill, University" , Stanford XE "Stanford University" , UCLA XE "UCLA (University of Calif. at Los Angeles)"  and other major universities.


These human guinea pigs were never told that they were subjects in military and CIA mind control experiments, and they never gave informed consent XE "informed consent:absence thereof" .  They received no systematic follow-up to document the harm done to them.  The welfare of the ‘human subjects XE "subjects:welfare of not relevant" ’ was not a relevant variable in the academic equation.  What counted for the psychiatrists, I think, was money, power, perks, academic advancement and the thrill of being a spy doctor.”-pg.126. 

“False Memory Syndrome” is a CIA creation to cover its mind control research and use of human subjects against their will. 

[Note:  The material in this section is relatively boring and most of it can be skipped by the average reader without losing anything important once it is understood that the False Memory Syndrome Board was packed with CIA mind-control researchers with a vested interest in making sure that the victims were not believed.]


“In his MKULTRA Subproject 43 proposal, Dr. [Louis Jolyon] West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D."  describes a research plan that involved many of the mind control techniques of both the Communist Chinese and leaders of destructive cults.” -pg.110. …”Dr. West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D."  devoted four decades to study, writing, and experimentation on dissociation, hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will" , Communist mind control, hallucinogens, sensory deprivation XE "sensory deprivation:as a mind control technique" , and methods of social influence; he concluded that the methods used by destructive cults result in the creation of new identities and dissociated states328. The same methods, when applied to experimental subjects under BLUEBIRD, ARTICHOKE, and MKULTRA, also resulted in the creation of amnesia XE "amnesia, created" , new identities and dissociated states.  This was the Manchurian Candidate program.” -pg. 111.


“Dr. West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D."  was co-editor of a book entitled Hallucinations XE "Hallucinations, created" , Behavior, Experience, and Theory 285.  One of the contributors to this book, Theodore Sarbin XE "Sarbin, MD" , Ph.D., is a member of the Scientific and Professional Advisory Board of the False Memory Syndrome Foundation (FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation" ).  Other members of the FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  Board XE "members of the FMSF Board"  include Dr. Martin Orne XE "Orne, Martin M.D." , Dr. Margaret Singer XE "Singer, Margaret M.D." , Dr. Richard Ofshe XE "Ofshe, Richard M.D." , Dr. Paul McHugh  XE "McHugh, Paul M.D." , Dr. David Dinges XE "Dinges, David MD" , Dr. Harold Lief XE "Lief, Harold MD" , Emily Carota XE "Carota, Emily Orne"  Orne XE "Orne, Martin M.D." , and Dr. Michael Persinger XE "Persinger, Micheal M.D." .  The connections of these individuals to the mind control network are analyzed in this and the next two chapters. -pg.114. 


Dr. Sarbin272 (see Ross XE "Ross, Colin M.D." , 1997) believes that multiple personality disorder is almost always a therapist-created artifact and does not exist as a naturally-occurring disorder, a view adhered to by Dr. McHugh188,189, Dr. Ofshe213 and other members of the FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  Board 191,243. Dr. Ofshe XE "Ofshe, Richard M.D."  is a colleague and co-author of Dr. Singer214, who in turn is a colleague and co-author of Dr. West329.  Denial of the reality of multiple personality by these doctors in the mind control network, who are also on the FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  Scientific and Professional Advisory Board, could be disinformation. The disinformation could be amplified by attacks on specialists in multiple personality as CIA conspiracy lunatics3,79,292,213.


 The FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  is the only organization in the world which has attacked the reality of multiple personality in an organized, systematic fashion.  FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  Scientific and Professional Advisory Board Members publish most of the articles and letters to editors of psychiatry journals hostile to multiple personality disorder…


  Another of Dr. West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D." ’s publications is a chapter in a book…edited by Dr. Harold Lief XE "Lief, Harold MD" .  Dr. Lief is a member of the FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  Board and coauthor of Tulane brain electrode XE "brain electrode, implanted"  specialist and CIA contractor, Dr. Robert Heath XE "Heath, Robert M.D." 121,161…-pg115.


Dr Michael Persinger235, another FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation"  Board Member…is apparently funded by the Defense Intelligence Agency through the project cryptonym SLEEPING BEAUTY XE "SLEEPING BEAUTY" ….it was a Defense Department study of remote microwave mind-influencing techniques…. It appears from Schnabel’s well-documented investigations that Sleeping Beauty is a real, but still classified mind control program.”-pg. 116.


Like Dr. Persinger XE "Persinger, Micheal M.D." , Dr. Adey4 XE "Dr. Adey:mind control using electromagnetic fields"  also did experiments in which subjects heads were placed in electromagnetic fields XE "electromagnetic fields:used for mind control" .  This work was funded by US Air Force XE "Air Force"  Contract F44620-70-C-0017. Other papers of his…’Autonomic Responses During a Replicable Interrogation’33; the latter research funded by the Office of Naval Research XE "Office of Naval Research" ”. -pg. 117.


“He [Dr. Martin Orne] received CIA money through MKULTRA Subproject 84 in 1958; Subproject documents indicate that he received TOP SECRET clearance from the CIA in 1960. 


 In 1962, Dr. Orne XE "Orne, Martin M.D."  founded the Institute for Experimental Psychiatry and married Emily Farrell Carota XE "Carota, Emily Orne" .  Both he and his wife are on the Advisory Board of the False Memory Syndrome Foundation….He is one of the leading experts on hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will" …A book chapter [of his]215 is entitled ‘The Potential Uses of Hypnosis in Interrogation.” Dr. Orne XE "Orne, Martin M.D."  also published chapters in books edited by G.H.Estabrooks XE "Estabrooks"  and Louis Jolyon West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D." .


 Dr. Orne XE "Orne, Martin M.D."  received research money from the CIA, Army XE "Army" , Navy XE "Navy:mind control reseach" \t "See Office of Naval Research"  and Air Force XE "Air Force" .  He published many papers relevant to the creation of amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  and Manchurian Candidates including one entitled ‘Can a hypnotized  XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will" subject be compelled to carry out otherwise unacceptable behavior?’ 218. Another example is a paper entitled ‘Attempting to breach posthypnotic amnesia XE "amnesia, created" ’224.  Coauthor on that paper, Dr. John Kihlstrom XE "Kihlstrom:on advisory board of FMSF"  is on the Advisory Board of the False Memory Syndrome Foundation.” -pg 122.


“The Current Chairman of the Department of Psychiatry at Johns Hopkins XE "Johns Hopkins"  is Dr. Paul McHugh XE "McHugh, Paul M.D." …He received his MD from Harvard XE "Harvard"  Medical School in 1956 (research at Harvard was funded through MKULTRA Subprojects 84 and 92).  He worked at Walter Reed XE "Walter Reed"  Army XE "Army"  Institute of Research…from 1961 to 1964, where he did brain electrode XE "brain electrode, implanted"  implant research on monkeys from the US Army Medical Research and Development Command187….


Dr. McHugh XE "McHugh, Paul M.D."  became…Director of the Dept. of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences, the John Hopkins XE "John Hopkins"  School of Medicine in 1975, a position he holds up to the present.  The first two academic conferences held by the False Memory Syndrome Foundation (FMSF XE "FMSF (False Memory Syndrome Foundation" ) took place in Baltimore and were co-sponsored by the Dept. of Psychiatry at John Hopkins.  Dr. McHugh XE "McHugh, Paul M.D."  was a course director at the second meeting.


….John Hopkins is currently participating in the Human Brain Project, which receives funding from the Office of Naval Research XE "Office of Naval Research" , and has contracts with the Army XE "Army"  Research Laboratory for microelectronics development.” -pg 137. [ Ross XE "Ross, Colin M.D."  proceeds over several pages to detail more of the Hopkins-mind control connections.]


“The Dept. of Psychiatry at Johns Hopkins XE "Johns Hopkins"  School of Medicine may experience blowback because of its involvement in CIA and military mind control.” -pg 140.


“On December 11, 1996 in a posting on the internet list WITCHNT@MITVMA.MIT.EDU
, Dr. Peter Freyd XE "Freyd, Peter Dr." , husband of the Executive Director of the False Memory Syndrome Foundation, wrote:


Since we all want to be open about any money we might have received from military-related sources, let me confess.


I, too, must go on record.  Starting in 1988, I’ve been getting a lot of money from the US Office of Naval Research XE "Office of Naval Research" .


In 1968 I received a lot of money from the Kingdom of Iran.  There were some that thought the Kingdom was a CIA front…” -pg 154.


“Some doctors in the network XE "FMSF network of doctors:funding and research of"  were not funded directly by the CIA or military, but their work was a direct relevance to mind control, non-lethal weapons development, creation of controlled dissociation and the building of Manchurian Candidates.” -pg 119.


“An article in The Dallas Morning News, January 29, 1997, p 9A describes how the Baltimore Sun obtained a 1983 CIA XE "CIA:manual to create terror and unbearable anxiety"  manual through the Freedom of Information Act.  The manual was used to teach non-coercive interrogation techniques to foreign agents, including ones from Central America.  The manual taught techniques studied in BLUEBIRD, ARTICHOKE, and MKULTRA; the same brainwashing techniques were used on Dr. Ogden Lindsley XE "Lindsley, Ogden Dr.:brainwashed by Gestapo"  by the Gestapo, on Patty Hearst XE "Hearst, Patty"  by the Symbionese Liberation Army XE "Symbionese Liberation Army"  (see chapter 19), and on patients at Penetang Psychiatric Hospital XE "Penetang Psychiatric Hospital"  by Dr. Elliot Barker XE "Barker, Elliot MD:Penetang Psychiatric Hospital" .  The CIA manual taught techniques for the induction of ‘intense fear XE "terror,created" , deep exhaustion, solitary confinement, unbearable anxiety and other forms of psychological duress’, and was used until at least 1983.  These are some of the building blocks for making Manchurian Candidates.” -pg 153.

[Dr. Colin Ross XE "Ross, Colin M.D."  writes about a few, out of the many cases of multiple personality disorder that he has seen, that he believes were caused by therapists not part of the government mind control network.]


“In the course of my work as an expert witness, I have encountered five cases of relatively pure  XE "iatrogenic multiple personality disorder" .  In each case I have reviewed medical records, interviewed the person directly, and administered a battery of self-report, computer scored and structured interview measures, and in several I analyzed the opinions, affidavits and testimony of the defendants.  In one case, I listened to audiotapes of therapy sessions.  Additionally I have attended workshops and talks by some of the defendant and reviewed their published writings.

 
The conclusion that each of the fives cases were iatrogenic was reached in several ways.  Each litigant was making that claim.  In all five cases, there was no evidence of a dissociative disorder existing prior to therapy in the medical records or in the histories I took.  There was abundant evidence of treatment techniques and boundary violations which mimicked the mind control techniques used by destructive cults, Bjorn Neilsen XE "Neilsen, Bjorn" , Donald Freeze XE "Freeze, Donald:Vacaville prison experiments, kidnapper of Patty Hearst" , Gilbert Jensen XE "Jensen, Gilbert" , and BLUEBIRD/ARTICHOKE doctors.”-pg. 257.


“The five cases show that the threshold for creation of iatrogenic multiple personality  XE "iatrogenic multiple personality disorder"  is set very high.  The degree of control and social influence required to create an iatrogenic case of multiple personality is comparable to the brainwashing conditions required by destructive cults, Communist Chinese interrogators, and builders of Manchurian Candidates.  An hour or two of outpatient therapy XE "therapy:amount  and type needed to create iatrogenic multiplicity"  a week is not enough.  In the five iatrogenic cases I reviewed as an expert witness, there was massive over-involvement of the therapist and massive over-utilization of standard treatment techniques. In the most severe cases, total control of the patient was exerted in an inpatient environment for months or years.”pg. 260.

A Few of the CIA Documents in the Appendices

[The photocopies of the CIA documents, having been copied many times are a strain on the eyes to read.  Below are abridged versions that are easier to read.]

ARTICHOKE DOCUMENT









7 January 1953

Outline of Special H Cases


In all these cases, these subjects have clearly demonstrated that they can pass from a fully awake state to a deep H controlled state via the telephone XE "telephone:use to trigger mind control subjects" , via some very subtle signal that can not be detected by other persons in a room and withouth the other individual being able to note the change….that control of those hypnotized can pass from one individual to another without great difficulty.  It has also been shown by experimentation with these girls that they can act as unwitting couriers XE "couriers, unwitting:mind conrtol victims"  for information purposes and that they can be conditioned to a point that they can believe a change in their identity on their part even on the polygraph. Pg.308 Appendix B.

PROJECT OFTEN DOCUMENT (EXCERPTS)

MEMORANDUM                                          23 June 1970

Subject:  Review of EA 3167 Study

1. In this study, nineteen subjects were divided into three groups which were treated with dosages  XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will " of [whited out] units/kg of experimental agent 3167.

2. …In every case, undesirable symptoms were noted…Of the three cases of hallucinations XE "hallucinations, created"  and mental incapacitation XE "mental incapacitation, created" , only one was of a serious nature and this admittedly may have been due to an additional accidental dose of the drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will " .

3. …Four of the seven suffered severe mental incapacitation XE "mental incapacitation, created"  accompanied by heightened symptomology…

4. …The four other subjects showed thought hinderance and lack of concentration but apparently as a consequence of extreme drowsiness.

5. In the majority of cases, the side effects appeared within 4 hours after injection.  Their duration varied from about 4 hours to 19 days. The desirable primary effects generally did not appear till after the side effects were evident and in every case had a shorter duration, varying from 1 to 90 hours.

6. In the instance of mental incapacitation XE "mental incapacitation, created" , the more pronounced effects appeared to be inability to relate to surroundings or time, inability to remember names, and poor performance on  numbers facilities tests.  Hallucinations XE "Hallucinations, created"  were of both visual and auditory nature.  Patients would see and hear people not there and speak to them….

7. This study was somewhat unprofessional and a trifle slipshod. The results are inconclusive.  Apparently, the drug XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will "  is not reliable at the dosage levels tested; only nineteen subjects experienced “desirable effects”…but all nineteen exhibited undesirable signs and/or symptoms.    [Pgs. 390-391 Appendix K from photocopy of CIA document XE "CIA documents"  released April 1995].

MEMORANDUM



29 May 1973

SUBJECT:  Summary of Project OFTEN Clinical Tests at Edgewood XE "Edgewood Arsenal" 
1. Funds in the amount of $37,000 were transferred to Edgewood XE "Edgewood Arsenal"  Arsenal on 17 February 1971 for the purpose of determining the clinical effects of EA #3167, a glycolate class chemical preveiously developed by Edgewood XE "Edgewood Arsenal" . Analysis of Edgewood XE "Edgewood Arsenal"  file data had flagged this item as possessing unusual potential as an incapacitant, strongly suggesting the possibility of [whited out].

2. …In addition, there had been several laboratory accidents in which the agent had produced prolonged psychotic XE "psychotic effects, created"  effects in laboratory personnel.

3. …potential threat…plans were develoed to implement countermeasures as required.

4. …Additional work was undertaken to develop laboratory tests to identify the agent in the blood.  Further work was carried out on the masking effect of such common medicinals as aspirin, barbiturates, etc…. A detection test for #3167 was developed, but barbiturates were found to completely mask its presence.

5. Twenty …subjects, five prisoners…and fifteen military…were tested. Both [whited out] were found to be effective with symptoms lasting up to six weeks.

6.  Concerning countermeasures, certain [whited out]

7. …Agency redirection, beginning in 1967, consisted of focusing on psychoactive drugs and the collection of samples.
8. …Agency involvement in the above activities was closely held at all times. 

 (pgs. 396-397, Appendix K, photocopy of CIA document XE "CIA documents"  released April 1995) 

MEMORANDUM FOR: Inspector General

SUBJECT: Project OFTEN                        6 May 1974

1.   The purpose of this memorandum is to document to the best of my knowledge the activities associated with Project OFTEN.  I am writing this at the request of Mr. [whited out] Deputy Inspector General.  I am writing it at this point in time because (a) in a recent telephone conversation with the Office of [whited out] it became apparent that there is very little written information available on the project; (b) all of the key people associated with the project are no longer with the Agency: (c) I am resigning from the Central Intelligence Agency on 11 May 1974…

 …

8.   It was my belief that the project had three primary operational purposes.  First, it was hoped that new compounds could be derived that could be used offensively.  An example would be to come up with a compound that could simulate a heart attack XE "heart attack, created"  or a stroke XE "stroke, created"  in the targeted individual, or perhaps a new hallucinogen  XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will " to cause the targeted to act bizarre XE "bizarre behavior, created" ly. …

(pgs.398-400, Appendix K, photocopy of CIA document XE "CIA documents"  released individual to April 1995) 

From BLUEBIRD and ARTICHOKE DOCUMENTS

TO THE FILES


On 6 April 1954, Tuesday, SI and H experimentation and research was carried on in Building 13…


The session opened with a slow induction for all hands and then a subsequent reinduction for [redacted]…


The major experiment of the evening was then conducted as follows: Miss [redacted] was taken to Room 23 under full hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will"  and she was instructed by the writer that she would find a Secret document in or on Mr.[redacted] ‘s desk in his room.  She was told to conceal this document next to her person XE "operational test:finding, stealing and hiding document under hypnosis"  and then return to Room 21 (operation’s room), pour herself a drink of water which she would find on the bookcase and stretch out on the sofa, face down and go to into a deep sleep.  She was intructed she would not awaken under any circumstances.  She was told she would only awaken if someone whispered to her a specific code work XE "operational test:failure to awaken while searched or without code given"  [sic] and would recall nothing except sleeping on the couch. [redacted] performed the entire test in exact detail as outlined above and had no subsequent memory XE "memory, loss created"  whatsoever of any of this activity.


During the experiment, [redacted] was taken to the same room by [redacted] and she was told that a person, whom she had never seen, had taken a Secret document from the Agency.  She was told that this person of the suspected person had been given a drug  XE "drugs, used to contol people against their will " and was unconscious on the sofa in Room 21.  She was told she was to enter the room and find the document which would probably be on the person on the sofa. She was given specific instructions that she must locate the document. XE "operational test:searching a person under hypnosis"   She was told if she found the document to conceal it on her person and return to room 23, sit in the chair and go at once into a deep sleep.  She was further told she would have no memory XE "memory, loss created"  of anything except falling asleep.[Redacted] complied in specific detail and immediately discovered the document in [redacted] sweater sleeve. [Redacted] concealed the document on her person, returned to room 23 and at once went into a deep sleep.  Subsequently she was brought back into the operations room and she and [redacted] were awakened.  The experiment was carried off successfully, particularly by [redacted] who had entire amnesia XE "amnesia, created"  for the work and could not even recall it under hypnosis XE "hypnosis, used to control others against their will" . [Redacted] however, was able to remember certain parts although some of her details seem vague XE "operational test:amnesia for the operation by hypnosis" . (pgs. 315-316, Appendix B, photocopy of CIA document XE "CIA documents" )    


Much of the MKULTRA money went to research that was practical and designed for immediate operational use XE "immediate operational use:experiments and money targeted towards"  by the CIA.pg 54.

Cover Files:


“A typical MKULTRA file contains routine correspondence and internal CIA memos, financial audit information, copies of cancelled checks and invoices, and sometimes no material of any interest…Another hurdle in completing Appendices C and D was explained by Dr. Robert Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" , a CIA doctor involved in the death XE "death:due to mind control experiments" \t "See Olson Frank also"  of Frank Olson XE "Olson, Frank:died from LSD experiment" .  Olson XE "Olson, Frank:died from LSD experiment"  was a Fort Detrick XE "Fort Detrick:Army Chemical, Biological Warfare Center, Stargate"  biological warfare expert who committed suicide after being given LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  hidden in Cointeau liqueur by Dr. Sidney Gottlieb, Director of MKULTRA. Olson XE "Olson, Frank:died from LSD experiment" ’s family determined that he had committed suicide subsequent to a bad LSD XE "LSD:CIA interrogation drug"  trip only after reading Nelson Rockefeller XE "Rockefeller, Nelson" ’s 1975 Report on the CIA, published 22 years after Olson XE "Olson, Frank:died from LSD experiment" ’s death XE "death:due to mind control experiments" \t "See Olson Frank also" .  They were given $750,000 in compensation by Congress.  Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death"  explained the CIA’s filing system in Senate testimony in Human Drug Testing by the CIA, 1977 (page 111):


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" :All right.  As I think I was intimating a little bit before, I cannot make much sense out of what you have read.  It was intimated before, I think, a large part of the documents you have of this nature, are what we call boilerplate XE "boilerplate files:CIA disinformation files" ---


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : Excuse me?


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : Boilerplate.  What was actually signed off on was not the same as the actual project.


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : How frequently do you use boilerplate XE "boilerplate files:CIA disinformation files" ?  Do you sign off on things that are not relevant to what is happening?


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : You have both.  You have what you sign on, and the actual project, side by side.


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : Who had got the real file?


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : TSS [Technical Services Staff of the CIA].


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : You mean this is not the real file.  It is stamped top secret.


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : It is a real file.  It is the one which goes through, receives the signatures, and is then filed.


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : It is what?


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : It is then filed?


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : It is a real file, but does not mean anything, is that what you are saying.


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : It has administrative value.


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : It is not telling what the story is?


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : That is right.  Not necessarily.


Senator Kennedy XE "Kennedy, Senator" : Not necessarily?


Senator Schweiker: What is this, a cover file?  Do we have cover files?  Is that what we are dealing with?


Dr. Lashbrook XE "Lashbrook, Robert MD:CIA doctor, was in the room when Frank Olson went out the window to his death" : In a sense, and in a sense it was done for security.  In other words, the files that went through the system ended up in the financial Section—obviously TSS lost control of those files.


Senator Schweiker: So the FBI had a ‘do not file’ procedure designed to handle this sort of thing, and the CIA has a cover file system XE "cover file system:CIA disinformation"  to handle it.  In this case, though, some of the cover files contain pretty damaging information that doesn’t seem to reflect well on the Agency’s use of human subjects---I wonder what the real files contain.”  -pgs. 49-50.

The CIA studied ways to improve military remote viewing capabilities 

 “ESP XE "ESP:remote viewers"  research was conducted at UCLA XE "UCLA (University of Calif. at Los Angeles)" ’s Neuropsychiatric Institute by CIA consultant, Dr. Thelma Moss XE "Moss,  Thelma:CIA consultant on ESP research at UCLA"  while Dr. West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D."  was the Director. The CIA funded paranormal research through STARGATE XE "STARGATE:remote viewers"  and MKULTRA; Dr. West XE "West, Louis Jolyon M.D."  himself obtained research funds through MKULTRA. Dr. Moss was an Assistant Professor at the Neuropsychiatric Institute beginning in 1966; her curriculum vitae lists 43 publications from 1961 to 1973, many of which are on ESP XE "ESP:remote viewers"  and the paranormal….Other papers included …’ESP XE "ESP:remote viewers"  Over Long Distance’, ‘Telepathy XE "Telepathy:studied by CIA researchers"  in the Waking State’, ‘Hypnosis and ESP XE "ESP:how to improve with hypnosis-studied by CIA" : A Contolled Experiment’, ‘The Effect of Belief on ESP XE "ESP:remote viewers"  Success’…pgs.111-112.

Background related to Reverse Christianity and the mind control of children

http://portland.indymedia.org/en/2005/01/309481.shtml
Portland Independent Media   28.Jan.2005 18:32

ex-Sen. DeCamp video/writes of 

FEDERAL OCCULT PEDOPHILIC DRUG/PORN RITUAL MURDERING ELITE

author: repost 

	AJ: One more point, Senator John Decamp, because I've actually seen the Discovery channel documentary that never aired [Conspiracy of Silence]--and we actually played it here locally in Austin. They found hundreds of video tapes in King's office. The police saw it and freaked out, hid it and have never released it--and all those other children, people actually got convicted of this stuff because they thought they lied. 
JD: Oh, yeah. 
AJ: I want people to understand this is what, this all happened folks. 
JD: This isn't a fantasy. I ended up winning a million dollars on behalf these kids--of against awful, awful, awful overwhelming odds--... 
AJ: People are going to prison for this... Hold on. You were actually just out of the Senate, and you were hired to go whitewash the operation, because you thought "ya know this is ridiculous." 
JD: That's what I was hired for. 
AJ: Yeah. 
JD: But I did the opposite. 
...[the kid] he was taken to an area around Sacramento and then where they had the great big tall trees--and then they went in where there is some owl. Some big huge carved owl or something ... . 
AJ: When we get back I want to read that. 

below, child's view of Bohemian Grove... 
video links 

FROM NEBRASKA TO IOWA TO CALIFORNIA TO DC, 
U.S. POLICE CHIEFS, MEDIA, POLITICIANS ALL IN THE PEDOPHILE RING AND PROTECTING EACH OTHER 


	


Bohemian Grove, CA: Human Sacrificed to Owl, "Midsummer sets us free!"
	


mere months into Bush I's Presidency: making himself at home?
	


1984, teen boy,Grove witness: kidnapped, raped, porn filmed w/boys, snuff filmed


	IMAGE ABOVE: True Story of Sex, Child Abuse, Murder & Drugs, Covered Up By Authorities, The front page headline of The Washington Times (June 29, 1989), months into Bush I. Seems he was making himself at home. 

Websites, Articles, Radio Interviews, and Documentary: 

(a) articles and MP3 radio interview with Ex-Senator, attorney, and book author DeCamp, "Interview of Ex-Senator Decamp on Government Child Killings, " by xx (Thursday Oct. 24, 2002),[image: image14.png]


 http://www.indybay.org/news/2002/10/1538670_comment.php ; 

(b) webcast video: "Conspiracy of Silence," the Franklin cover-up video, by xx (Tuesday March 04, 2003) [RealVideo: stream with RealPlayer] [image: image15.png]


 http://sf.indymedia.org/uploads/conspiracyofsilence56k.ram, [image: image16.png]


 http://sf.indymedia.org/uploads/conspiracyofsilence56k.rm, or RM file (33.3 megabytes, [MB]) of same video in a higher res format for downloading:[image: image17.png]


 http://sf.indymedia.org/uploads/conspiracyofsilence2.wmv. 

Conspiracy of Silence, a documentary listed for viewing in TV Guide Magazine was to be aired on the Discovery Channel, on May 3, 1994. Researched and documented by a British journalistic team who came to the United States just for the story, it was censored at the last minute. 

This documentary exposed a network of religious leaders and Washington politicians who flew children to Washington D.C. for sex orgies. 

Many children suffered the indignity of wearing nothing but their underwear and a number displayed on a piece of cardboard hanging from their necks when being auctioned off to foreigners in Las Vegas, Nevada and Toronto, Canada. At the last minute before airing, unknown congressmen threatened the TV Cable industry with restrictive legislation if this documentary was aired. Almost immediately, the rights to the documentary were purchased by unknown persons who had ordered all copies destroyed. A copy of this videotape was furnished anonymously to former Nebraska state senator and attorney John De Camp who made it available to retired F.B.I. chief, Ted L. Gunderson. 

While the video quality is not top grade, this tape is a blockbuster in what is revealed by the participants involved. 

(c) article: "Nebraska Inquiry Is Given File on Sex Abuse of Foster Children," By William Robbins, Special to The New York Times, The New York Times; Section 1; Part 1, Page 18, Column 2; National Desk (December 25, 1988, Sunday, Late City Final Edition). 

(d) book: The Franklin Coverup: Child Abuse, Satanism, and Murder in Nebraska, by John W. Decamp. AWT, Inc. 1992. ISBN: 0-9632158-0-9. This book, written by a former state Senator, documents a web of abuses that could easily have been a cover operation for CIA mind control and child-sex entrapment operations. There have been persistent reports of prominent politicians being involved in sex and drug rings of this kind. The potential for blackmail and the position of strength that the managers of such an operation could achieve is staggering. 

============================================================================ 

The Franklin case is a case is a point. How much evidence has come out? Or the MK-Ultra documents that have been declassified, shown as real, and people ignore it. 

Okay, I'll get off my soapbox. But I believe that the media that downplays ritual abuse is feeding into a deep need in the average person to NOT know the reality. In fact, how can a person face the fact of great evil in mankind, unless they have either a strong faith in God, or are faced with insurmountable evidence? We as human beings want to believe the BEST of our race, not the worst, IMHO. 

They don't care who prints this stuff, or if they are "exposed" because they are counting on the majority not believing it, having done a pretty good job with a media blitz campaign (seen any articles in Newsweek or Time lately that addresses this other than as a laughable conspiracy theory? Guess who owns Time-Warner?). 

I have heard them laughing about this very thing in leadership meetings five years ago, and I doubt their attitude has changed much since then. If people DID believe this, if action could be taken, then I would be very surprised and quite happy." Svali 




Here is the text from the interview 
by xx Saturday, Oct. 26, 2002 at 7:28 PM 

AJ: Senator Decamp, tell us about John Decamp. Tell us how you got into this, you didn't get into this to find all these horrors. You were basically there to disprove it for the [US] Senate, right? Counterpoint - VIET NAM (OPERATION BABYLIFT) - Accusation that John DeCamp's Babylift was a CIA program of kidnapping-for-profit, that at the very least included sloppy mistakes in "rescuing" babies from their own families and not only saving orphans from orphanages - Nobody's perfect, but one must wonder just a little about anyone with any connection to the CIA with its history of drug-running, assassinations and coups d'etat - both foreign and domestic - But then again, there must always be good folks inside every government agency to at least try to keep an eye on it and blow the whistle - or shoot - when needed, at least in theory. Much of the information on that Counterpoint website is innaccurate about the causes of the Vietnam War, in favor of the CIA, so perhaps its allagations about DeCamp are equally innaccurate and in favor of the drugrunners and mass-murderers at the CIA and in the White House, for both political parties. Apparently, CIA director and presidential candidate George "Poppy/Opium/Heroin" Bush is named in this book as attempting to cover up the Franklin arrests. 

JD: I was. I had just gotten out of the [state] Senate a year or so before when this started breaking. Let me give the story real quick. In North Omaha, Nebraska there was a credit union, a federal credit union and that was run by a man named Larry King. Larry King was and you may remember and I'm sure you'll hear about him again. This is not the Larry King on T.V. but another one. He was officially listed in the NY Times as you mentioned then and a number of other states in mostly national publications. He was officially listed as the, I quote, "Fastest-rising black star in the Republican party. From you who may be listening maybe you attended the 1984 or 1988 Republican conventions. One in Texas, and another one--I remember I was there for the one in New Orleans, then... 

AJ: You're a Republican. Now let's get that out there. 

JD: I guess. 

AJ: I'm the same way. 

JD: It's kinda like, but anyway--Larry King opened both those national conventions, as some of you may remember. In fact, back in old (20's ville) they always show the convention being open. Larry opened both of them by singing the National Anthem. He's a great singer. A great whatever you call it? Baratone or alto or whatever those strange things are, but anyway... 

AJ: Vocalist. 

JD: I knew it was one of those but anyway--Larry is the man singing there at the opening convention and on election day, 1988, for George Bush, when George Bush was inaugurated. That would have been when George Bush was elected. Anyway, the Fed's raided this [high level Republican] guy's little credit union in North Omaha. It was suppose to be serving to minority community, specifically the black community and they shut her down. They said there was a lot of missing money. Stories started floating out as always happens when some incident like that occurs, and some of the stories--there is missing money that was used for this and that--but some of those stories were even strange. The stories were coming from kids, all over. Young kids--16, 14, 13--kids telling about how they had been on Larry's private jet to this party or that party. Or that they had been at the Republican National Convention here, or they had been at this political event in Washington, and the stories had to with that they were there and how they were used as drug couriers--13, 14-year old kids--back then, going through the airport. . .[they] could get through without anyone asking twice about anything. They pack the kids full of Cocaine or whatever in little backpacks they'd carry on their bodies, between their legs, etc, etc. Young boys, young girls--and these kids were telling much stranger tales that seemed bizarre at the time. Stories like they had had sex with this or that famous politician or businessman....and I was the one who stood up and said, this has got to be the most hilarious, ridiculous story I've ever heard. First of all, I knew Larry King. What the heck! I was head of banking at the time he was when he was doing his banking stuff, [I was head of] the senate banking committee here in Nebraska. It's absurd. All the stories started (prompting) more and more, and I said something else, and I said, look if I believe even one of these crazy stories I'd be one of the first one's to stand up and demand that something be done. I got a letter from a kid named Paul Bonacci who told me that these are not just fake tales. 

AJ: Now later, you took his diary that went back, like 5 years, and ink experts and forensics experts looked at it, and he had all this stuff written down. 

JD: That was the strange thing about this kid. I wish I had been able to do that throughout life, but apparently when he was a little boy--he was about 18 when I had meet him in jail, 17 or 18--and as a young kid his uncle or grandfather or somebody had taught him religiously to keep a diary where you mark everything down, everyday. Well, he did it in detail. So when I went and visited with him, and he told me these strange tales. And then you had to hear the psychiatric medical institutions in the state university say "Hey, this kid, he ain't crazy. He's a multiple personality. He's probably telling the truth because multiples don't need to lie. They just switch personality. Anyway, to make a long, long bizarre story short. I found out that he was in jail because he had been in one of those intimately involved in all this--and he had to be shut up real quick to conclude it. Now, at the time I didn't realize that, so they locked him up and charged him with touching another boy on the outside of his pants, his cousin or something. 

AJ: Senator, talk right into your telephone please. 

JD: Anyway, they have him there in jail, and I finally agreed to represent him. And that led to a long, long tale that's got me deeply involved in researching and investigating the collapse of the credit union and the personalities involved. Ultimately, on the advice of my best friend--closest friend, godfather, whatever--eventually writing a book because he told me that what I should probably do to protect myself--and that man was a man named Bill Colby, of the time that I started writing the next book. Bill, as you know was head of the CIA and ended up floating dead in a pond somewhere. 

But I won't get into that right now. Anyway, I wrote the book and as I got at the very beginning of this story and working on it, one of the things I did do was, as I say, obtain the diary of this young boy to see just what he did say and then I had them checked. 

AJ: And it wasn't just that. I mean they've got... 

JD: Forensic experts--and the forensics were called in because somebody said he could have just made this all up later. He could have made this up later, and I wanted to make sure that this wasn't done. So we had forensic examiners who said that this ink was done at a certain time and this could of only been done that long ago--and on and on. Anyway--to get to the heart of the discussion... 

AJ: One more point, Senator John Decamp, because I've actually seen the Discovery channel documentary that never aired--and we actually played it here locally in Austin, I'll send you a copy of it--they found hundreds of video tapes in King's office. The police saw it and freaked out, hid it, and they have never released it--and for all those other children, people actually got convicted of this stuff [when they claimed they were lying and sent them to jail, when the police actually found the video tape proof, though have hidden the evidence.] 

JD: Oh, yeah. 

AJ: I want people to understand--this is what, this all happened folks. 

JD: This isn't a fantasy. I ended up winning a million dollars on behalf of these kids--against awful, awful, awful overwhelming odds--including the Omaha World Herald newspaper that attacked me so viciously because one of the key individuals I got locked up in prison was was one of their editors.. There's another individual--but anyway... 

AJ: People are going to prison for this... 

JD: He just got released from prison here about what 8 or 10 months ago. 

AJ: Hold on. You were actually just out of the Senate and you were hired to go whitewash the operation because you thought these kids stories were ridiculous. 

JD: That's what I was hired for. 

AJ: Yeah. 

JD: But I did the opposite. 

AJ: Well I call you an impeccable witness. Go ahead. 

JD: Anyway so yeah I won the million dollar judgment for the kids in federal court finally--and it wasn't easy--and I want to talk about that a little because some of the stuff coming out about that pedophilia in the Catholic church now were things were written in my book way back then. But anyway--to get to the heart of the matter, that you called about as I understand it. I simply took the diaries of the kid Paul Bonacci, and I printed a good portion of them in my book--and one of them--and one of the areas described a trip in 1984. I could even read part of it here if you want. In fact, on this trip he was taken to an area around Sacramento, and then, where they had the great big tall trees, and then they went in where there is some owl. Some big huge carved owl or something ... . 

AJ: When we get back I want to read that. 

JD: O.K. 

AJ: Well please continue. Go ahead. 

JD: Anyway, so there was what he claimed. I wasn't there so I don't know so well. That's the closest I've been to Bohemian Grove. Paul took me out, and showed me where it was--and indeed there is a place there. And I didn't know there was a place called Bohemian Grove. I didn't write Bohemian Grove in the book because I didn't know what it was. I just took his diary. Anyway, it clearly is where he was taken, and he was taken out there for a ceremony--in which they committed some pretty horrible things on another boy and three boys; and they filmed it and I just took his word and the names he wrote there right in the book. And by the way just to answer your next question. Yes, I put names in the book, dates and everything that I could just as they were. Why? Because I figured: blow it out all straight; and a number of threatening calls came to me after the first edition came out. "This is the most liablest, slanderest thing we've ever heard." I said fine. I think I've done enough to prove it, and I'm satisfied. If somebody feels that way. I said "if somebody said these things about me, I'd sue them for liableist slander." 

AJ: And here you are 10 years later, and you're winning lawsuits. [based on that information] 

JD: Well, there was indeed one libel slander lawsuit as a result of the book. But, that was one I filed against some group called Great Atlantics Telecast Company--some TV network on the east coast--when they had one of the characters in the book, who also happened to be running for president at the time, go around saying, "Oh, don't believe this, and don't believe this, is a lie" and they reported him, and I sued him. Well it ended up they ended up paying me off, backing down and reaching a settlement. 

AJ: Stay right there, Senator. This is powerful info. It's all coming up. 

JD: That's right. Right here in Austin, Texas. Every month they're grabbing the equivalent of 5 first grade classrooms of child protective services. No rights, no nothing. Parents, it's just a total takeover and the very people doing this here locally are involved in their own forms of wickedness which is a whole another show. This stuff is proliflic. It is a cult of evil and it's more wide spread than you can probably can imagine. Senator Decamp, we were talking during the break and you made the point how this is this new world . What do you mean by this new world? 

JD: Well, you just talked about some of it. You just talked about some of it. About 5 , 6 years ago on behalf of a family here that was just totally destroyed by both protective services. I filled a class action suit against the entire system and finally the plantiff , myself, I just couldn't keep it up. They had unlimited lawyers on the other side but I did bring out an awful, awful lot of things that are sure proof enough since then from the way they take kids. The way , your rights the parents are pretty well destroyed. But I'm not going into that now we can talk about that another day. 

AJ: It's just such a horror. 

JD: A whole new world we live in from I guess what I thought I grew up in here long, long time ago admittedly. I keep I said to you it sure is a new world order. I think or something like that and then I realized that it was a worn out phrase that I guess some people are really trying to implement. But anyway... 

AJ: Continuing you actually have a passages in your book out of the diary ... 

JD: Well, I have a , I have right here the diary. Do you want me to read a little? Understand that I didn't know that the thing was called Bohemian Grove back then, nor did the kid Paul when he was writing about it. All he knew was he was taken to this place. Let me just read it. It'll take three minutes. Is that o.k.? 

AJ: Go ahead. 

JD: "I went in January"--now this is Paul Bonacci writing this. This is directly word for word, from his diary. 

"I went in January of '84 on every trip. I was paid by men King knew for sex. The summer of 84' sometime, I was (?) and had sex with several men King knew in a hotel. I flew on (YNR) airlines--by the way it's a private airline or private charter deal--and Cam airlines, another charter deal normally for King. I never had much personally to do with King--only went where he told me to go. In or on July 26th [by the way, Bohemian Grove is two weeks every summer], I went to Sacramento, CA. King flew me out in a private plane from (Eplick) airfield in Omaha to Denver where we picked up Nicholas, a boy who was about 12 or 13. Then we flew to Vegas--to a desert strip--and drove into Las Vegas to some ranch and got something. Then flew on to to Sacramento. We were picked up by a white limo in Sacramento and taken to a hotel. I don't remember the name of it. We meaning, Nicholas and I, were driven to an area that had big, big trees. It took about an hour to get there. There was a cage with a boy in it who was not wearing anything. Nicholas and I were given these tarzan things to put around us and stuff like that. They told me to, I won't use the word, blank the boy and stuff. In other words, have sex with. At first, I said 'No' and they held a gun to my genitals I'll use the word and said 'do it or else lose them' or something like that. I began doing it to the boy and stuff. And Nicholas had anal sex with him and stuff. We were told to blank him and stuff, and beat on him. I didn't try to hurt him. We were told to put our blanks in his mouth and stuff and sit on the boys blank and stuff--and they filmed it. We did this stuff to the boy for about 30 minutes or an hour, when a man came in and kicked us and stuff--and in the genitals. And he picked us up and threw us. He grabbed the boy and started blanking him and stuff. The man was about, I'm not sure how to say, the man was about so many inches long and the boy screamed and stuff. The man was forcing his blank into the boy all the way. The boy was bleeding from his rectum and the men tossed me and him and stuff and put the boy right next to me and grabbed a gun and blew the boy's head off. The boy's blood was all over me and I started yelling and crying and the men grabbed Nicholas and I forced us to lie down. They put the boy on top of Nicholas who was crying and they were putting Nicholas's hands on the boys blank. They put the boy on top of me and did the same thing. They then forced me to blank the kid. It's pretty crude. They put a gun to our heads to make us do it. His blood was all over us. They made us kiss the boys lips. Anyway, a few other things. Then they made me do something I don't even want to write so I won't. After that, the men grabbed Nicholas and dragged him off screaming. They put me up against a tree--and put a gun to my head--but fired into the air. I heard another shot from somewhere--and then saw the man who killed the boy drag him like a toy. Everything--including when the men put the boy in the trunk--was filmed. The men took me with them, and we went up in a plane. I saw the bag the boy was in. We went over a very thick brush area with a clearing in it. Over the clearing they dropped the boy. One said, 'the man with the hood would take care of the body' for them. I didn't see Nicholas until that night at the hotel. He and I hugged and held each other for a long while. About 2 hours later, then men or Larry King came in and told us to go take a shower, since we'd had only been hosed off at some guys house. We took a shower together and were told to put on the tarzan things and after we were cleaned up and dressed in these things we were told to put on shorts, socks and a shirt and shoes and were driven to a house where the men were at some others. They had the film [that was described above] and they played it. As the men watched it they passed Nicholas and I around as if we were toys ... . 

AJ: Stay right there. This is what the New World Order wants to do to your kids. 

[station break] 

AJ: I want to go back into the investigation. That's one of the clearest pieces of evidence. Now, tell us how they tried to stop it? How one of the investigators was obviously killed. Do you think this is a good place to continue? 

JD: That's when I brought Colby in. Bill Colby was like, I say a very close friend, when the (?) of the investigation. The one that the senate had hired to do the investigation called from Chicago. He had gone there on a trip to pick up a bunch of material. It was a remarkable coincidental thing was one of the central central characters of the book was named Robert (Watts) and had been the police chief of Omaha at the time of these events that are written about in the book (... ... ?) I'm not suggesting anything I'm just saying it's some of the most remarkable coincidences in the world and since that time I've learned from the sheriff's office who was first on the scene (... ... ?) How they had FBI move--or Federal officials they claimed--and took all the stuff, and told them instead that he had seized no pictures and stuff that they found laying around, and they told the sheriff's deputy, who was there, "You've not been here. You've not seen anything. If you talk you're in trouble. Compromising federal investigation is a ... ". Anyway Gary Caradori and his friend were both killed in that plane accident and of course he didn't testify--and it was only years later when I was still trying to pursue it in the federal courts on a trial, to prove some things that I learned through a pure fluke of faith. Again, and it's been that way all along: some little strange thing happens and it keeps proving once again, when they say 'this didn't happen or this couldn't have happened' or whatever--some new little thing comes forward that proves it. And in this case it was a call from a police the detective who was head of the patrol. 

He claims he was head of the State Patrol in Oregon and he told me that they had just arrested and seized a bunch of material and they found a copy of this book, "The Franklin Cover-up" which we're talking about right now and this person had this in his possession and they saw certain pages underlined . And I said " What's the person's name? ". They said, "It is Russell Nelson." Eventually to make a long, long story short, I got him out of prison and got him up here to testify and bring pictures and tried to see other pictures to confirm the story by the courts. He was a key witness then that ended up in a million dollar judgment. 

He was Larry King's private photographer who had been going to the various things--and taking pictures of the comprised politician or whatever with a kid, or with this or that. 

AJ: Yeah, the report produced by the BBC people that was aired on Discovery actually showed the police admitting all this. I mean they grabbed all these videos and photo's. It's just like the finders in DC. That outfit, with all the kids. 

JD: I know it extremely well. I was a personal (?????????) . and I went there. 

AJ: Yeah. 

JD: That was another story. 

AJ: I can't even mention what was in that warehouse. It's all too profane. This is something just like from the pit of hell. 

JD: See, I know people listening right now will think this is la la land, this is make believe these are fruitcakes talking about that this couldn't happen. Particularly, with prominent people. They wouldn't be fiddling with little kids and wouldn't be. Unfortunately, I also believe that. I guess I want to believe that. But I'll guarantee you that bad things have happened out there. They do happen. One of the coincidences that I think is going to rock the people very shortly is one of the centerpieces of this thing was using a lot of kids out of a place called Boys Town. Boys Town of course is one of the most respected institutions in this country, as it should be. It's done more for young boys throughout the last what 75 or 100 years probably than just about any other institution you want to mention. At the same time, corruption can occur. Even the best apples can get rotten by it. In this case, as I identified very clearly in the book, Larry King was operating and getting kids out of Boys Town and using them for sex. Well, of course the Discovery channel--that sent a team in from Britain--spent about half million dollars doing things and I think that was one of the centerpieces of theirs. You've seen that one right? 

AJ: Oh yeah. We actually put it on TV. 

JD: Anyway, they pretty well ... . The head of Boys Town is now an 87 year old man, a monsignor. Guess who his latest attorney is? He's hired--cause he's getting old and is worried about wanting to get some things told and get some truth out, which might happen about next week--his newest attorney is a young--well he's not young anymore is he?--a man named John Decamp who wrote a book called "The Franklin Cover-up." And if anybody would have a reason to want to attack me, it was him. Instead he is doing the opposite. 

AJ: Now repeat that again. 

JD: He hired me within the last week or ten days as his private attorney because of some of things you've been reading in the national press, pediphilia of the priests and so on. He's an old man now, and he's 87 or 88. 

AJ: And who is he again? 

JD: He was the head of Boys Town. 

AJ: Oh. O.K. Monsignor... 

JD: He also was the only Catholic priest ever appointed as a delegate to the United Nations. He was a special delegate appointed by, I think, two different presidents as a representative to the United Nations on behalf of children. 

AJ: And he's going to blow the whistle? 

JD: He's going to provide some information that I think will rock some people and will immediately denounce him and (shut him up). 

AJ: I hope he's got bodyguards around him right now? 

JD: No, he's an old man that will probaly be an outcast once he tells this. So I've said to much on that already probably. 

AJ: That's incredible. I tell ya you're all over the place. I remember the case you were trying to expose--(Sheltbecker) Services--and of course you're going after the whole Columbine deal. 

JD: Now, I was hired by some of the teacher's family--of one of the teachers that was killed--to represent a group of people. And we have filed a lawsuit because these kids (Harrah & Cleabay?) out there that killed all these people. They were absolute unlimited addicts of a couple of video games that are just training kids to be ... 

AJ: Doom was produced, Doom is a military game they admit. 

JD: That's correct. That's correct. 

AJ: Because they've found in soldiers, in Vietnam especially most people will not fire up close on somebody and through the video games it trains them to disconnect and do it. And this will be our swat teams of the future. And now they've found out that a bunch of swat teams are actually shooting the kids too. So, it's credible. Getting back into the Franklin Cover-up. 

(Flip tape) 

JD: ...into the death of Garry Caradori and after I did some investigation or whatever. He basically told them you're never going to know the answer. Anyway, so I was sitting with him, and I was talking to him and his wife at the man's place one night there. I said, "I don't know what to do next". I see prosecutors who are afraid to prosecute. I see politicians who shouldn't be there. I see institutions of government who have surrendered respectability because they've been comprised or corrupted or threatened or whatever. I said, "I don't know what to do!" He said, "I'm going to tell you what to do". I said, "Thank goodness!". He said "Get as far away from this thing as you can!" Forget you ever saw us or know it, heard it or anything else. I said, "Wait a minute! You're telling me, the former head of the CIA, particularly during the Vietnam thing and all that nonsense. I said, "You're telling me that I should just walk away from this and pretend it didn't happen?". He said, "John, I love you. I love your kids. I love your family. He says "This is just a little more serious than you think. Let me tell you a story". So then he starts and he says, "Last night I returned from Moscow". I said, "What the blazes is the former head of the CIA doing in Moscow?". He says, "Believe or not we were there to, along with some others who's names you'd recognize, try to make sure that nobody pushes a button and does the wrong thing--cause things are unstable". Now this occurred exactly, this conversation, exactly three weeks before the famous Gorbachev, whatever, the revolution and the fall of, you know what I'm talking about--where they held Gorbachev hostage for awhile. Remember? 

AJ: Yeah, 

JD: What's his name? Anyway, Yeltsin, that's it. Then exactly two weeks before that, he is saying to me things were unstable then. Anyway, then he says, "You know the night before I was to leave I couldn't sleep. I was thinking about the momentous event that I was participating in". He says, "Frank, that was the night that I couldn't sleep. Instead, just go for a walk. Of course, I knew that was forbidden. Everybody knew who I was and the guards wouldn't let me out. However, they just ignored me and I walked down the whole hotel. The most prestigious hotel right there on Red Square where we were staying". He said, "I walked up to the door on the Kremlin it was two o'clock in the morning, guards watching, nobody paid any attention, nobody cared". He said he walked up right to a statue of Lenin there. Nobody cared. Two/three o'clock in the morning and then he said, "an then it struck me". I said, "What struck you?". He said, "They were dead! It's over! The cold war is over! We won!". Remember, this is three weeks before all this broke loose and the whole thing collapsed. And then I said, "Uh-ha". And then he said something else struck him, and I said "gosh what was that." He says, "That this walk in the middle in of the night in absolute silence--and nobody caring in the middle of Red Square about the former head of the CIA who fought these blank people for forty years. That this was going to be the only victory parade that I and all the cold war warriors would ever have. We wouldn't have a march down Madison Avenue like the soldiers in WWII or whatever." He said there wouldn't be any victory parade and ticker tape just march. He said, "Well Bill that's a real interesting story but for gosh sakes what's my great lesson I'm to learn to here?". He said, "Well I guess I'm trying to tell you is John sometimes there are forces too big and too evil. Even though we know they are there and we know it it absolutely important for us to deal with it the way we would want or should, could. Therefore, you have to turn and walk away. If you want to live to fight another day". It doesn't make sense to me but anyway. Then he says, "These forces are too big and too evil and too powerful. You're going to get killed if you keep playing around! I don't want that!". I said, "You mean there's nothing I can do?". He said, "Well, you have to do something. The safest thing, the best thing you can do for your own safety is write your story. Tell it all is and get ridiculed may not be believed but at least if you tell it there's no reason for them to do you in. They'll just try to ridicule you". 

AJ: Yeah, because that'll make them even more powerful. They don't want to make the book a martyr. 

JD: Yeap. 

AJ: There are so many facets to this. How many children were you able to confirm were involved in this, and .... 

JD: I can't confirm a total number. I dealt with, I think, probably 25 or 30 that were really intimately involved. 

AJ: A lot of these were children--according to the book, the news articles, the press--were children that didn't even know each other, cross-referencing in the same thing and telling the same story. 

JD: Well yes, absolutely. In other words, it wasn't because just one kid said this, and the story of the good guys is that 'well because they make up this terrible hoax it's all a hoax'--somehow perpetrated by these absolutely penniless impoverished children who all got together somehow and told this tale? Get real! 

AJ: There were convictions. And you wrote the book. And nobody sued you, because---I mean these children didn't know they were flown to Sacramento and then driving for an hour and that's how long it takes to get to the Grove--and they describe it in great detail, and the stuff that came out earlier. I've been there for their big 'Ta Do'--well, it's not a small crowd but it's a big crowd. (Unintelligible) bring a body in, they burn it, and it screams in pain. And that's just the kind of stuff they do there. When Skull and Bones came out on Fox News last year, slitting the woman's throat, the blood squirts--why isn't there a police investigation? If my neighbors saw me slitting women's throats and worshipping satan which they were doing by the way I'm gonna tell you, in my back yard? wouldn't they call the cops on me? Wouldn't the cops have probable cause, John, for the search of my house? 

JD: I sure think so. But then once again everything sounds so unbelievable or something. 

AJ: I would expect to see the police ripping out my walls. If I saw my neighbor doing this and I reported it. I would expect a warrant and a search. 

JD: Yeah, I know. As I say, the problem is that gap between something outrageous and what the average human being is capable of believing based on their own human experiences. 

AJ: Is that the New World Orders trick is that they do everything in plain sight so overtly it's just so arrogant so insane that the average person just can't even process it mentally? 

JD: Well, I'm not sure what the plan is or isn't. I guess I'm not smart enough to know. I do know that what I wrote about and what occurred here I absolutely know and believe occurred and is pretty horrible; and that's a part of some larger program or plot, then I'm really worried! I'm scared for us all, so to speak. 

AJ: So some of these people are now getting out of prison? 

JD: Larry got out, the editor got out, a couple of the others got charged and paid a fine and then got felonies dropped to misdemeanors. For all practical purposes, anybody who was in prison has been redeemed and somehow holy now. 

AJ: Folks, if you want to load the phones up we'll let you talk to John Decamp and how to get his powerful book (?) 1-800-259-9231. Be right back. 

JD: It's got over 85,000 copies now sold. But anyway: 

AWTE 
P.O. Box 85461 
Lincoln, Nebraska 68501 

Make it $12.00 shipping and handling, it's actually a little more than that but just mention Alex Jones and it's $12.00 shipping and handling and everything. 

AJ: It's only $12.00? [includes additional looseleaf information] 

JD: Yeah, what the heck. 

www.geocities.com/bohemian_grove_dirt/ 



Famous Kidnapping Case Implicates 
Top Political Figures in Child Prostitution Network 

On Sept. 5, 1982, a 12-year-old West Des Moines, Iowa, paperboy named Johnny Gosch disappeared. Although his case made national headlines what his mother learned about Johnny's kidnapping has been kept under wraps by the mainstream media in America. His mother, Noreen Gosch, discovered not only that Johnny was still alive--long after his disappearance--but that he was in the hands of a Nebraska-based nationwide pedophile and child prostitution ring that has been collaborating with high-level "mind control" operations of the CIA. 

Mrs. Gosch was the guest on the Aug. 19 broadcast of Radio Free America, a weekly call-in talk forum sponsored by American Free Press. 

Although it's been 19 years since your son Johnny was taken from you, you now know your boy is still alive and that's part of the story that you're about to tell. 

Yes, I did get to see my son once since he was taken away. After he was kidnapped it was a nightmare trying to get anything organized to help, and the police were not real cooperative here, which I couldn't understand. That forced me to hire private investigators. 

Many years after Johnny's kidnapping, we learned that the police chief in West Des Moines was linked to the Franklin situation in Omaha. This was the chief who was the controlling factor in Johnny's case and made all of the decisions about what was done in the investigation. And in Johnny's case, they didn't do anything. 

For the first three days, even though we had witnesses who saw the man and talked to the man who approached Johnny on the street, the police chief kept calling Johnny a "runaway." One of the witnesses happened to be a 44-year old attorney who is now a judge in Des Moines. 

This was in 1982, long before the scandal surrounding the "Franklin Cover-up" in Omaha involving top-ranking Republican Party figure Lawrence King started coming to light. 

That's correct. 

There was a small article in the paper. I took it to the police chief and I said, "Could you check this out? These two girls were taken and the article says that the girls were taken to Omaha and the men were caught. They had forced the two girls into a prostitution ring." 

When I showed this article to the police chief, he got very upset and he said, "No, I'm not going to check it out, because I don't have a feel for this. There can't be anything to it." 

I then went to the FBI and they refused. I went to the Department of Criminal Investigation in Iowa and they refused. So at that point I called a press conference and told the public that this was happening and that the police would not help me. Within two days of the press conference, I received my first death threat and the man said to me, "Stop making waves or you are going to die." 

What I believe to this day, and what attorney John DeCamp [who has been investigating the Franklin affair] believes also is that I was actually "knocking on the back door" of the Franklin affair in Omaha by making my public accounting. 

It appears, based on what DeCamp and other investigators have uncovered, that Omaha has been the center of this whole child theft ring. 

Where is that police chief in West Des Moines now? 

After about six months of this behavior on his part, I made a phone call to the members of the city council and I told them that I was going to file a $20 million lawsuit naming the police chief as negligent. They had an emergency meeting of the council in the basement of the police department on that Sunday night and on Monday morning they announced that the police chief was retiring because he was not in good enough health to handle the job anymore. 

Two months after he retired--stepped down--he was found shoplifting at the Target store here. He took videotapes and little hooks that you would hang from a ceiling. 

I later learned that he was very good friends with Robert Wadman, the police chief from Omaha who was in office at the time that the Franklin affair was going on. Wadman was disgraced, having gotten a young girl, Alicia Owen, pregnant. 

It turns out that our Des Moines police chief would go over to Omaha all the time to participate in these parties with Wadman and the others. 

Apparently, based on what you've learned, your son was taken for the very reason that he fit a profile that somebody wanted. This came out in court testimony by Paul Bonacci, one of the young victims of the Franklin affair, who was at first charged with perjury and sent to jail for daring to make accusations under oath about the Franklin affair. With De Camp's help, Bonacci has since won a $1 million judgment against Lawrence King and the people who abused him. He's essentially been vindicated. 

Paul Bonacci testified in his civil suit that he was one of the people who helped kidnap Johnny. He was the first to sexually molest Johnny. He told all of the gruesome details. The judge asked, "Why did they want Johnny Gosch when they could have their pick of a lot of runaway kids?" Bonacci looked at the judge and told him, "Johnny fit the profile of what they were looking for. They sell kids to pedophiles who want certain kids with certain features." 

Bonacci testified that they had followed Johnny on nights when he was coming home from school and had photographed him and those photographs were put in a book and a pedophile picked him out. 

This must have been awful for you to learn about. Did you first hear about this in court? 

No, I had previously gone to the prison to meet Bonacci when he first confessed. That was a few years before the court case where the judge finally ruled that he was telling the truth. Paul Bonacci waited 10 years to be vindicated. When he first came forward about this, the police said he was nuts and the West Des Moines police department that was in charge of Johnny's case would not even interview him. 

Now that Lawrence King is out of prison, where he was being held on financial crimes, Bonacci may be able to get that $1 million in damages from him. 

DeCamp has been told that upon getting out of prison, Lawrence King was slated to go to Washington for a job within the Republican Party. 

Lawrence King was never charged with anything to do with the abduction and molestation of some 80 children who came forward in the Franklin case with the same story that Paul Bonacci told. Those children were all discredited, but Paul stuck to his story and would not recant. For that they put him in prison and accused him of perjury. 

Alicia Owen also stuck to her story. She's the girl that the Omaha police chief got pregnant. 

She recently was released from prison but is keeping a very low profile. She's terribly scared since her brother was murdered as a warning to her to keep her mouth shut. She does not do any interviews. Her parents will not do interviews. They live in fear. 

The British Broadcasting Company (BBC) did a program, Conspiracy of Silence, about this whole affair and it really nails Boys Town for its role in this. 

The film Conspiracy of Silence was due to be aired in the United States on the Discovery Channel in May of 1994 and then just before airtime, it was pulled. Sometime later John DeCamp received a copy in the mail and he made it available to me. The BBC was ordered to destroy all copies. 

Yet, a BBC employee, who was so shocked at this story and the censorship, made a copy and got it out to John DeCamp. 

It is said that the BBC was paid $500,000 not to air the documentary. 

I imagine somebody in the United States did not want this story coming out, since it went all the way to the top in Washington. The video shows Paul Rodriguez, a reporter at The Washington Times, talking about the articles that were all written concerning certain congressmen and the call-boy service that was operating there. 

You received a remarkable visit in your home. 

There was a knock at my door at about 2:30 a.m. I went to the door and I could see through the peephole that there was a young man outside. I said, "Who's there?" He said, "It's me, mom. It's Johnny." I could see that there was someone with him, but I let them in. I don't know who the other young man was. I asked, but he declined to tell me. 

Johnny would have been about 24 years old at this point. What did he tell you? 

It was very emotional. I asked if I could call someone to come and help us, thinking that he was home to stay. But Johnny was so terrified. He said, "You don't understand. You can't call anyone. No one can know that I've been here. If you do, my life is in danger and yours might be, too. They will kill me for what I know." 

Instead of pushing this issue, I said to myself, "No, I'm going to let him talk and tell me what's happened." So during our hour-and-a-half time that we had together. I learned a lot. I asked him names of people. I asked him how they did their organization. What type of things did they do? What methods did they use to traffic in children? 

He was here in 1997, but I kept silent for two years and didn't tell anyone about his visit until 1999 when I was on the witness stand testifying for Paul Bonacci in his civil case. But what I had done in the meantime was to make an appointment with the county attorney. I went in and told him that I had information from an informant. I gave the county attorney the names of the people involved and how the organization worked and asked him to begin an investigation. I did not tell him that the informant was my son. 

Did the county attorney investigate? 

No, he said that he would not. The only reason he gave was that I would have to somehow convince my informant to turn himself in and be a part of the witness protection program and that they "might" be able to give my informant (Johnny) immunity for any crimes he may have committed during his captivity. 

I looked at the county attorney and said, "They 'might' be able to give him immunity? That doesn't work for me." He responded, "Well, you're going to have to turn over the boy." I said, "I don't have the boy." I didn't tell him that it was Johnny, but I did tell him that "the informant" had told me that Johnny was still alive. 

I said to the county attorney: "I came here to share information with you as I always have. This way I can never be charged with withholding information. If you choose not to investigate, that's up to you. I will continue my investigation as I always have." 

You also had a mysterious visitor from Washington. Are you still in touch with this person? 

Nobody has been able to find him. I have had people looking for him for the last 10 years. He knew a tremendous amount and he was part of the CIA. I think he was sent here to do a job, find out what I knew and how I was proceeding on the case. He was also right by my side when I testified in Washington. About three or four months later he vanished. 

Do you think he had a connection with former CIA Director William Colby who helped his longtime protegee, John DeCamp, in the Franklin affair? 

Yes, I think he did have a connection with Mr. Colby. 

He had with him--and this is what convinced me--a complete dossier on every member of my family, even those who were deceased. He had information about their lives that could have never been public. 

The key to this whole scandal involving Johnny and the Franklin affair and all of this child kidnapping and molestation is the very scary story of "mind control" experiments conducted by our own government agencies and those of foreign intelligence agencies. 

Yes, it is. In my book, I tell the story of Michael Aquino [head of the Satanic cult, the Temple of Set]. You see, when Johnny was taken away, he was taken to a farmhouse and kept there for two weeks. After those two weeks, Johnny was sold for a sum of money. A man they called "the colonel," came and took Johnny to Colorado. Paul Bonacci identified that man as Col. Michael Aquino. 

Aquino was involved in "psy-ops" and "mind war" experimentation for the U.S. government. He had a hand in developing mind control. 

Unfortunately they began to experiment on men in the services--this is the concept of "The Manchurian Candidate"--one that could be turned into a killing machine and never remember, programmed by key words and phrases. Then they decided to experiment on prisoners in prisons. 

Then along came Michael Aquino, who was already a pedophile. He and others thought that it would be financially beneficial to them, somehow, to begin to experiment on children. That's when they began taking children. 

Imagine the tremendous power of mind control using pornography and drugs. 

According to what Paul Bonacci and others have stated, after they used the techniques they did with Paul (using him during the day and then returning them to their homes), the children wouldn't remember what had happened because of the mind control. Then they decided to take children out of their stable home situations. They now wanted to see if it would work on kids who had stable family lives. 

They already knew that it would work with runaways and with kids in controlled situations like Boys Town in Omaha. 

That's right. That's when, in the early 1980s, there was a rash of kidnappings of young boys across the country. Many were deemed "runaways." There were only a handful who were taken who actually made the national headlines. Johnny was one of them. 

That was in part because you were so persistent. 

Two years after Johnny was taken, they came back to this city and took another paperboy named Eugene Martin, who is still missing and never found. But Johnny and Paul Bonacci (and a third witness who is too afraid to come forward) have told me that the same people who took Johnny also took Eugene. 

John DeCamp has helped bring the photographer, Rusty Nelson, out into the open. He's the photographer who took the pictures that were part of this pedophile ring's operations. 

Nelson was the photographer who took the pictures of Johnny being molested. He was also the photographer they used in Washington for all the parties that Lawrence King had where prominent people were in attendance. 

There is some new information coming out. 

I was recently advised that there is a prisoner who has some information that points toward the guilty parties. This prisoner had tried with 30 previous letters to get in touch with me, but all his letters were stopped and never got to me. This last letter went a different route. I went to see this prisoner and private investigators and John DeCamp are working with this prisoner. 

www.americanfreepress.net/RFA_Articles/Kidnapping_Case_Implicates_Top/ 



articles and MP3 radio interview with Ex-Senator, attorney, and book author DeCamp, "Interview of Ex-Senator Decamp on Government Child Killings, " by xx (Thursday Oct. 24, 2002),[image: image18.png]
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(b) webcast video: "Conspiracy of Silence," the Franklin cover-up video, by xx (Tuesday March 04, 2003) [RealVideo: stream with RealPlayer] [image: image19.png]
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Conspiracy of Silence, a documentary listed for viewing in TV Guide Magazine was to be aired on the Discovery Channel, on May 3, 1994. Researched and documented by a British journalistic team who came to the United States just for the story, it was censored at the last minute. 

This documentary exposed a network of religious leaders and Washington politicians who flew children to Washington D.C. for sex orgies. 

Many children suffered the indignity of wearing nothing but their underwear and a number displayed on a piece of cardboard hanging from their necks when being auctioned off to foreigners in Las Vegas, Nevada and Toronto, Canada. At the last minute before airing, unknown congressmen threatened the TV Cable industry with restrictive legislation if this documentary was aired. Almost immediately, the rights to the documentary were purchased by unknown persons who had ordered all copies destroyed. A copy of this videotape was furnished anonymously to former Nebraska state senator and attorney John De Camp who made it available to retired F.B.I. chief, Ted L. Gunderson. 

While the video quality is not top grade, this tape is a blockbuster in what is revealed by the participants involved. 
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People with either courage or objectivity note the evil conduct of people in high places - in government, military, banking, commerce, the law profession, medicine, media, etc. How can this be? How can all these apparently upstanding professionals be as bad as they seem? Perhaps they are members of a large scale satanic cult. Masonry, Catholics, Jesuits, Protestants, the CIA, the narcotics trade, the sex slave trade, the pornography and prostitution trade, the gambling industry, the oil industry, the weapons industry, the military and police all seem to have a major hand in a coordinated global crime and debauchery syndicate. Perhaps Satanism is sweeping our globe, disguised as honorable activities. We must learn more about Masonry, the Skull and Bones society, the Bohemian Grove, the the massive and rapidly growing international sex slave trade. Follow the trail. And don't shut your eyes if the subject is difficult to bear. 
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	link


What do you expect, it's Rumsfeld who has the tape of the boy being raped at Abu-ghraib. Show us that and then convince us we've got some bad apples, because guess what? They don't fall far from the tree. Everyone's grandmother taught them that. So no matter what cute soundbyte they stick to it, it just comes back to blow up in their face. 

COS is a real kick in the stomach. thanks for posting this. 
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Bob Woodward gets along swell with members of satanist cults like Skull & Bastards Society members Daddy Bush and son George W. Several Chicago-area Judges, including Du Page Chief Judge Alfred Woodward, were named defendants in a civil suit..Some of the Judges were directors and owned and operated a hospital ***accused specifically of having a sideline of conducting satanic rituals mis-using tiny children. As is typical, a crooked Chicago federal judge, up the wall about the litigation, put it arbitrarily out of court*** without permitting any evidentiary hearings. 
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Chapter -XXI- Omaha 

On the morning of June 29, 1989, pandemonium erupted in the corridors of power in the nation's capital. ``Homosexual Prostitution Probe Ensnares Official of Bush, Reagan,'' screamed the front-page headline of the Washington Times with the kicker ``Call Boys Took Midnight Tour of White House.'' 

The Times reported, ``A homosexual prostitution ring is under investigation by federal and District authorities and includes among its clients key officials of the Reagan and Bush administrations, military officers, congressional aides and U.S. and foreign businessmen with close ties to Washington's political elite.'' 

The exposé centered on the role of one Craig Spence, a Republican powerbroker known for his lavish ``power cocktail'' parties. Spence was well connected. He celebrated Independence Day 1988 by conducting a midnight tour of the White House in the company of two teenage male prostitutes among others in his party. 

Rumors circulated that a list existed of some 200 Washington prominents who had used the call boy service. The Number Two in charge of personnel affairs at the White House, who was responsible for filling all the top civil service posts in the federal bureaucracy, and Secretary of Labor Elizabeth Dole's chief of staff, were two individuals publicly identified as patrons of the call boy ring. 

Two of the ring's call boys were allegedly KGB operatives, according to a retired general from the Defense Intelligence Agency interviewed by the press. But the evidence seemed to point to a CIA sexual blackmail operation, instead. Spence's entire mansion was covered with hidden microphones, two-way mirrors and video cameras, ever ready to capture the indiscretions of Washington's high, mighty and perverse. The political criteria for proper sexual comportment had long been established in Washington: Any kinkiness goes, so long as you don't get caught. The popular proverb was that the only way a politician could hurt his career was if he were ``caught with a dead woman or a live boy'' in his bed. 

Months after the scandal had died down, and a few weeks before he allegedly committed suicide, Spence was asked who had given him the ``key'' to the White House. The Washington Times reported that ``Mr. Spence hinted the tours were arranged by `top level' persons, including Donald Gregg, national security advisor to Vice President Bush''1 and later U.S. ambassador to South Korea. 

We have already had occasion to examine Don Gregg's role in Iran-Contra, and have observed his curious performance when testifying under oath before congressional committees. Gregg indignantly denied any connection to Spence, yet it is public record that Spence had sponsored a dinner in Gregg's honor in the spring of 1989 at Washington's posh Four Seasons Hotel in Georgetown. 
George Bush was less than pleased with the media coverage of the prostitution charges and kept abreast of the scandal as it mushroomed. The Washington Times reported in an article titled ``White House Mute on Call Boy Scandal,'' that ``White House sources confirmed that President Bush has followed the story of the late night visit and Mr. Spence's links to a homosexual prostitution ring under investigation by federal authorities since they were disclosed June 29 in the Washington Times. But top officials will not discuss the story's substance, reportedly even among themselves. 
``Press officers have rebuffed repeated requests to obtain Mr. Bush's reaction and decline to discuss investigations or fall out from the disclosures.''2 By midsummer, the scandal had been buried. The President had managed to avoid giving a single press conference where he would surely have been asked to comment. 

As the call boy ring affair dominated the cocktail gossip circuit in Washington, another scandal, halfway across the country in the state of Nebraska, peaked. Again this scandal knocked on the President's door. 
A black Republican who had been a leader in organizing minority support for the President's 1988 campaign and who proudly displayed a photo of himself and the President, arm in arm, in his Omaha home, was at the center of a sex and money scandal that continues to rock the Cornhusker state. 
The scandal originated with the collapse of the minority-oriented Franklin Community Credit Union in Omaha, directed by Lawrence E. King, Jr., a nationally influential black Republican who sang the national anthem at both the 1984 and 1988 Republican conventions. King became the subject of the Nebraska Senate's investigation conducted by the specially created ``Franklin Committee'' to probe charges of embezzlement. In November 1988, King's offices were raided by the FBI and $40 million was discovered missing. Within weeks, the Nebraska Senate, which initially opened the inquiry to find out where the money had gone, instead found itself questioning young adults and teenagers who said that they had been child prostitutes. Social workers and state child-care administrators accused King of running a child prostitution ring. The charges grew with the former police chief of Omaha, the publisher of the state's largest daily newspaper, and several other political associates of King, finding themselves accused of patronizing the child prostitution ring. 

King is now serving a 15-year federal prison sentence for defrauding the Omaha-based credit union. But the magazines Avvenimenti of Italy and Pronto of Spain, among others, have charged that King's crimes were more serious: that he ran a national child prostitution ring that serviced the political and business elite of both Republican and Democratic parties. Child victims of King's operations charged him with participation in at least one satanic ritual murder of a child several years ago. The Washington Post, New York Times, Village Voice and National Law Journal covered the full range of accusations after the story broke in November of 1988. King's money machinations were also linked to the Iran-Contra affair, and some say that King provided the CIA with information garnered from his alleged activities as a ``pimp'' for the high and mighty. 

Pronto, the Barcelona-based, largest circulation weekly in Spain with 4.5 million readers, reported that the Lawrence E. King child prostitution scandal ``appears to directly implicate politicos of the state of Nebraska and Washington, D.C. who are very close to the White House and George Bush himself.'' 

The weekly stated that Roy Stephens, a private investigator who has worked on the case and heads the Missing Youth Foundation, ``says there is reason to believe that the CIA is directly implicated,'' and that the ``FBI refuses to help in the investigation and has sabotaged any efforts'' to get to the bottom of the story. Stephens says that ``Paul Bonnacci directly accused President Bush of being implicated'' in the affair when he testified before the Franklin Committee.3 Bonnacci, who had been one of the child prostitutes, is identified by leading child-abuse experts as a well-informed, credible witness. 

Lawrence King was no stranger to President Bush. And Lawrence King was no stranger to Craig Spence. Several of the Omaha child prostitutes testified that they had traveled to Washington, D.C. with King in private planes to attend political events which were followed by sex parties. King and Spence had much in common. Not only were they both Republican Party activists but they had gone into business together procuring prostitutes for Washington's elite. 

Bush's name had repeatedly surfaced in the Nebraska scandal. But his name was first put into print in July 1989, a little less than a month after the Washington call boy affair had first made headlines. Omaha's leading daily newspaper reported, ``One child, who has been under psychiatric care, is said to believe she saw George Bush at one of King's parties.''4 
A full three years after the scandal had first made headlines, Bush's name again appeared in print. Gentleman's Quarterly (GQ) carried a lengthy article, viewed by many political observers in Nebraska as an attempt to refute the charges which would not die, despite the termination of all official inquiries. The GQ piece disputed the allegations as a conspiracy theory that went out of control and resonated because of some mystical sociological phenomena allegedly unique to Nebraskan rural folk who will believe anything and burn ``with the mistrust of city life that once inflamed the prairie with populist passion.'' Numerous polls over the last few years have recorded over 90% saying they believe there has been a ``cover up'' of the truth. 

GQ reported that yes, there was theft, corruption and homosexuality in this story, ``but no children were ever involved in this case.'' In fact, ``the only child even mentioned was a 9-year-old boy, whom the least reliable of Caradori's witnesses claimed to have seen in the company of George Bush at one of Larry King's Washington parties.'' 

Gary Caradori was a retired state police investigator who had been hired by the Nebraska Senate to investigate the case, and who had died mysteriously during the course of his investigations.5 

Sound crazy? Not to Steve Bowman, an Omaha businessman who is compiling a book about the Franklin money and sex scandal. ``We do have some credible witnesses who say that `Yes, George Bush does have a problem.'... Child abuse has become one of the epidemics of the 1990s,'' Bowman told GQ. Allegedly, one of Bowman's sources is a retired psychiatrist who worked for the CIA. He added that cocaine trafficking and political corruption were the other principal themes of his book.6 

It didn't sound crazy to Peter Sawyer either. An Australian conservative activist who publishes a controversial newsletter, Inside News, with a circulation of 200,000, dedicated his November 1991 issue entirely to the Nebraska scandal, focusing on President Bush's links to the affair. In a section captioned, ``The Original Allegations: Bush First Named in 1985,'' Sawyer writes, 

"Stories about child sex and pornography first became public knowledge in 1989, following the collapse of the Franklin Credit Union. That is not when the allegations started, however. Indeed, given the political flavor of the subsequent investigations, it would be easy to dismiss claims that George Bush had been involved. He was by then a very public figure...." 
If the first allegations about a massive child exploitation ring, centered around Larry King and leading all the way to the White House, had been made in 1989, and had all come from the same source, some shenanigans and mischievous collusion could be suspected. However, the allegations arising out of the Franklin Credit Union collapse were not the first. 

Way back in 1985, a young girl, Eulice (Lisa) Washington, was the center of an investigation by Andrea L. Carener, of the Nebraska Department of Social Services. The investigation was instigated because Lisa and her sister Tracey continually ran away from their foster parents, Jarrett and Barbara Webb. Initially reluctant to disclose information for fear of being further punished, the two girls eventually recounted a remarkable story, later backed up by other children who had been fostered out to the Webb's [sic]. 
These debriefings were conducted by Mrs. Julie Walters, another welfare officer, who worked for Boys Town at the time, and who had been called in because of the constant reference by the Webb children and others, to that institution. 

Lisa, supported by her sister, detailed a massive child sex, homosexual, and pornography industry, run in Nebraska by Larry King. She described how she was regularly taken to Washington by plane, with other youths, to attend parties hosted by King and involving many prominent people, including businessmen and politicians. Lisa specifically named George Bush as being in attendance on at least two separate occasions. ``Remember, this was in 1985,'' emphasized the Australian newsletter. 

The newsletter reproduces several documents on Lisa's case, including a Nebraska State Police report, a State of Nebraska Foster Care Review Board letter to the Attorney General, an investigative report prepared for the Franklin Committee of the Nebraska Senate, and a portion of the handwritten debriefing by Mrs. Julie Walters. Peter Sawyer says that he obtained the documents from sympathetic Australian law enforcement officers who had helped Australian Channel Ten produce an exposé of a national child prostitution ring Down Under. The Australian cops seem to have been in communication with American law enforcement officers who apparently agreed that there had been a cover-up on the Nebraska scandal. Subsequent investigations by the authors established that all four documents were authentic. 

Mrs. Julie Walters, now a housewife in the Midwest, confirmed that in 1986 she had interviewed the alleged child prostitute, Lisa, who told her about Mr. Bush. Lisa and her sister Tracey were temporarily living at the time in the home of Kathleen Sorenson, another foster parent. Mrs. Walters explained that at first she was very surprised. But Lisa, who came from a very underprivileged background with no knowledge of political affairs, gave minute details of her attendance at political meetings around the country. 
From Julie Walters' 50-page handwritten report: 

3/25/86. Met with Kathleen [Sorenson] and Lisa for about 2 hours in Blair [Neb.] questioning Lisa for more details about sexual abuse.... Lisa admitted to being used as a prostitute by Larry King when she was on trips with his family. She started going on trips when she was in 10th grade. Besides herself and Larry there was also Mrs. King, their son, Prince, and 2-3 other couples. They traveled in Larry's private plane, Lisa said that at these trip parties, which Larry hosted, she sat naked ``looking pretty and innocent'' and guests could engage in any sexual activity they wanted (but penetration was not allowed) with her.... Lisa said she first met V.P. George Bush at the Republican Convention (that Larry King sang the national anthem at) and saw him again at a Washington, D.C. party that Larry hosted. At that party, Lisa saw no women (``make-up was perfect--you had to check their legs to make sure they weren't a woman''). 

The polygraph test which Lisa took only centered around sexual abuse committed by Jarrett Webb. At that time, she had said only general things about Larry's trips (i.e. where they went, etc.). She only began talking about her involvement in prostitution during those trips on 3/25/86.... 
Lisa also accompanied Mr. and Mrs. King and Prince on trips to Chicago, N.Y. and Washington, D.C. beginning when she was 15 years old. She missed twenty-two days of school almost totally due to these trips. Lisa was taken along on the pretense of being Prince's babysitter. Last year she met V.P. George Bush and saw him again at one of the parties Larry gave while on a Washington, D.C. trip. At some of the parties there are just men (as was the case at the party George Bush attended)--older men and younger men in their early twenties. Lisa said she has seen sodomy committed at those parties.... 
At these parties, Lisa said every guest had a bodyguard and she saw some of the men wearing guns. All guests had to produce a card which was run through a machine to verify who the guest was, in fact, who they said they were. And then each guest was frisked down before entering the party.7 
The details of the accusations against Mr. Bush are known to be in the hands of the FBI. A Franklin Committee report stated: 

Apparently she [Lisa] was contacted on December 19 [1988] and voluntarily came to the FBI offices on December 30, 1988. She was interviewed by Brady, Tucker and Phillips. 

She indicates that in September or October 1984, when [Lisa] Washington was fourteen or fifteen years of age, she went on a trip to Chicago with Larry King and fifteen to twenty boys from Omaha. She flew to Chicago on a private plane. 

The plane was large and had rows of two seats apiece on either side of the interior middle aisle. 

She indicates that King got the boys from Boys Town and the boys worked for him. She stated that Rod Evans and two other boys with the last name of Evans were on the plane. Could not recall the names of the other boys. 
The boys who flew to Chicago with Washington and King were between the ages of fifteen and eighteen. Most of the boys were black but some were white. 

She was shown a color photograph of a boy and identified that boy as being one of the boys on the plane. She could not recall his name. 

She indicates that she was coerced to going on the trip by Barbara Webb. 

She indicates that she attended a party in Chicago with King and the male youths. She indicated George Bush was present. 

She indicates that she set [sic] at a table at the party while wearing nothing but a negligee. She stated that George Bush saw her on the table. She stated she saw George Bush pay King money, and that Bush left the party with a nineteen year old black boy named Brent. Lisa said the party George Bush attended was in Chicago in September or October 1984. According to the Chicago Tribune of October 31, 1984, Bush was in Illinois campaigning for congressional candidates at the end of October. 

Lisa added more details on the Chicago trip, and told why she was sure it was George Bush she had seen. According to a May 8, 1989 report by investigator Jerry Lowe, ``Eulice [Lisa] indicated that she recognized George Bush as coming to the party and that Bush had two large white males with him. Eulice indicated Bush came to the party approximately 45 minutes after it started and that he was greeted by Larry King. Eulice indicated that she knew George Bush due to the fact that he had been in political campaigns and also she had observed a picture of Bush with Larry King at Larry King's house in Omaha.'' 

There is no question that Lisa and Tracey Webb were abused in the way they claimed. But, in keeping with the alleged pattern of cover-up, a Washington County, Nebraska judge in December 1990 dismissed all charges against their abusers, Jarrett and Barbara Webb. The judge ignored presented testimony of the 1986 report by Boys Town official Julie Walters. The report stated: ``Lisa was given four polygraph tests administered by a state trooper at the State Patrol office on Center Street in Omaha. The state trooper, after Lisa's testing was completed, told [another foster parent] he tried to `break Lisa down,' but he was convinced she was telling the truth.''8 
Furthermore, numbers of foster care officials and youth workers debriefed the sisters. All of them fully believed not only their general story of abuse, but specifically their account of Bush's involvement. The March 1986 report on Bush was incorporated into the Foster Care Review Board's official report presented to the Senate Franklin Committee and to law enforcement. As Kathleen Sorenson wrote in a report dated May 1, 1989, ``This was long before he [Bush] was president. It seems like there were more exciting people to `lie' about if that's what they were doing.''9 

The rumors about Mr. Bush were given new life when Dr. Ronald Roskens, the head of the Agency for International Development (AID), found himself the object of controversy. Executive Intelligence Review reported in the fall of 1991 that Dr. Roskens is the subject of a scandal in which he is being charged with violating federal laws and ethics codes, according to the Oct. 6 Washington Post. A report prepared by AID Inspector General Herbert Beckington, dated April 5 and leaked to the Post, charges Roskens with accepting thousands of dollars in payments from ``different organizations in compensation of his and his wife's travel expenses'' while Roskens was on official government travel. He also took money for a private trip from a company ``from which Roskens had agreed to divest himself as a condition of his presidential appointment.'' 

The inspector general concluded that the money accepted by Roskens was a clear conflict of interest and violated federal law against earning non-government income. But on Sept. 4, after reviewing the charges, the Department of Justice ... informed Beckington that it had decided not to prosecute--giving no explanation for its decision. The White House is reviewing the case. 

Congressional investigators are already looking into the allegations. Should they scratch below the surface, they will find that this is not the first time Roskens has been touched by scandal. Although President Bush promised that he would not tolerate even the appearance of impropriety in his administration, Congress should not be surprised if the White House threatens to start ``breaking legs'' in Roskens's defense. 
It is not just that Roskens is a personal friend of the President--although he is.... [A]n unimpeded investigation into Roskens could expose the link between Bush's little publicized birth control mania--much of which is carried out through the State Department's AID in the Third World--and the sexual depravity rampant in U.S. political and intelligence elites. Any such scandal could shatter the illusions of Bush's conservative base, many of whom still accept the President's claims to being ``pro-life,'' ``anti-drug,'' and an American patriot. It should also make anyone who thinks of the propaganda about Bush being the ``education President,'' deeply queasy. 

Roskens left his home state of Nebraska for the nation's capital in early 1990 enmired in controversy. He had been fired suddenly as president of the University of Nebraska, in a secret meeting of the state Board of Regents in July 1989. No public explanation was given for his removal. Yet, within weeks, the White House offered Roskens the high-profile job in Washington. The administration knew about the controversy in Nebraska, but Roskens passed an FBI background check, and was confirmed to head AID. 

The FBI appears to have overlooked a Feb. 19, 1990 investigative report by the late Gary Caradori [see footnote 5 below], an investigator for the ``Franklin Committee'' of the Nebraska Senate. He wrote, ``I was informed that Roskins [sic] was terminated by the state because of sexual activities reported to the Regents and verified by them. Mr. Roskins [sic] was reported to have had young men at his residence for sexual encounters. As part of the separation from the state, he had to move out of the state-owned house because of the liability to the state if some of his sexual behavior was `illegal.'''10 

There has been no independent confirmation of the accusation. As of late December 1991, a congressional committee was looking into the charges. 

NOTES 

1. Washington Times, Aug. 9, 1989. 
2. Washington Times, July 7, 1989. 
3. Pronto (Barcelona, Spain), Aug. 3, 1991 and Aug. 10, 1991. 
4. Omaha World-Herald, July 23, 1989. 
5. On July 11, 1990, during the course of his investigations, Gary Caradori, 41, died in the crash of his small plane, together with his 8-year-old son, after a mid-air explosion whose cause has not yet been discovered. A skilled and cautious pilot, Caradori told friends repeatedly in the weeks before his death that he feared his plane would be sabotaged. 
6. Gentleman's Quarterly, December 1991. 
7. Report, written on March 25, 1986 by Julie Walters and authenticated by her in an interview in 1990. 
8. Report, early 1989, compiled by Jerry Lowe, the first investigator for the Franklin Committee of the Nebraska State Senate. 
9. A book recently published on the Nebraska affair by a former Republican state senator and decorated Vietnam veteran, John W. De Camp, The Franklin Cover-Up: Child Abuse, Satanism and Murder in Nebraska (Lincoln, Nebraska: AWT, Inc., 1992) tells the whole story. 
10. Executive Intelligence Review, Oct. 18, 1991. 



Omaha is where Warren Buffett's investment vehicle Berkeshire Hathaway is headquartered as well, reputed by some as a CIA money laundering operation-- a serious blow to the blowhard statements about his "genius investor" status of his billions, if he's only a CIA front corporation for the drug trade. 

Background related to the Source:

Overview Articles:

 A Short History of Child Spies  

"We have a political system that awards office to the most ruthless, cunning, and selfish of mortals, then act surprised when those willing to do anything to win power are equally willing to do anything with it.”  --Michael Rivero

 Contributor:  The author--a physician and former child spy

Quote from Winston Churchill: "Most people, sometime in their lives, stumble across truth. Most jump up, brush themselves off, and hurry on about their business as if nothing had happened." 


On the UNICEF website under children of war we find the following:

 

For centuries children have been involved in military campaigns.... What is frightening nowadays is the escalation in the use of children as fighters. Recently, in 25 countries, thousands of children under the age of 16 have fought in wars.   In 1988 alone, they numbered as many as 200,000. 

 

Children are easier to intimidate and they do as they are told. They are also less likely than adults to run away and they do not demand salaries. 

 

A UNICEF survey of 199 child soldiers in Cambodia found that 5% of them had been used as spies (from www.mofa.go.jp/policy/human/child/survey/profile4.html ).  When the Berlin Wall fell, it was found that the East German Secret Service, the Stasi, had employed over 10,000 spies under the age of 18, for 6% of their work force (from

http://www.undp.org/dpa/frontpagearchive/november99/8nov99/tv110899.pdf )

 

Here are excerpts of a Russian account of children used in WWI as spies by the Germans (from http://english.pravda.ru/main/2002/11/27/40030.html ):

 

Crowds of homeless boys and girls gathered at railway stations, marketplaces, and especially around Russian military units back in 1914. There were a lot of those ragged little children everywhere. ...The Germans made child spies carry out their goals and tasks. As a guarantee, the Germans arrested the children-s parents or close relatives. They threatened to shoot them if the child decided to run away or refuse an order. ...

 

 After the children were educated, they were attached to various military units of Russian troops. A troop number was their password to return from a task. Under the disguise of refugees, spy kids were able to penetrate deep behind enemy lines and collect information that was extremely valuable for Germany. As a rule, soldiers missed their families, so they were happy to accept a little homeless boy or girl in their detachment. Soldiers treated them like their own kids. …

 

Let me say a little about my own background.  As a native-born US child and daughter of an undercover intelligence officer, I was forced into intelligence operations. A congressional hearing exposed a CIA interrogation experiment on the drugged clients of prostitutes, headed by George Hunter White, at the San Francisco Safe House [See MKULTRA : The CIA's Top Secret Program in Human Experimentation and Behavior Modification by George Andrews or view the 1977 Congressional Hearings on MKULTRA online at http://www.parascope.com/ds/documentslibrary/documents/mkultrahearing/index.htm .]  This is one of the places I was trained at the age of 9 in 1961.  The CIA did not the tell most of the truth at what happened at that “Safe House” that was anything but safe for children.  But it did confirm my written memories as to its location, décor, prostitution, the expensive alcoholic habits of George Hunter White, and the LSD experiments and the filming for of the johns. Later, White would say of his job:

"I was a very minor missionary, actually a heretic, but I toiled wholeheartedly in the vineyards because it was fun, fun, fun. Where else could a red-blooded American boy lie, kill, cheat, steal, rape, and pillage with the sanction and blessing of the All-Highest?” www.everything2.com/index.pl?node_id=481520  

 

     MKULTRA was a joint CIA-DIA project to train children as spies and assassins, as is documented in CIA files released under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). As a child in this project, I was tortured and threatened with the death of my mother to force me to comply. The torture was extensive, with episodes lasting weeks and repeated over many years. It included sleep deprivation, chronic cold exposure, deprivation of food, disorienting drugs, mock executions, and electroshocks to mouth and vaginal areas.  In short it was unbelievable hell. It was done in conjunction with psychiatrists as mind control and to spilt my consciousness into a multiple personality, in which they would have control of all the personalities except the cover one.  Other survivors also report the systematic use of torture (see U.S. Government Mind-Control Experiments On Children by Jon Rappoport or his web article at www.movingon.org/article.asp?sID=1&Cat=10&ID=1518 ). So many children were severely emotionally crippled that individual therapists ran into multiple cases of it in their practices. One such psychiatrist, Dr. Colin Ross investigated it through FOIA documents.  After reading thousands of CIA documents, he sadly concluded that the stories of his clients were real. ( See Bluebird: The Deliberate Creation of Multiple Personalities by Collin Ross and his talk at http://www.mindcontrolforums.com/radio/ckln01.htm ).  

 

    My torturers under this project included three military officers trained in brainwashing techniques by the Pentagon.  One of these was my father, although most of the years I was tortured he was not present.  As an adult my father told me he had been trained at the Pentagon in brainwashing, so this is not just the memory of a child here.  My father was in the Korean War as a US Army Officer (probably in the DIA), and involved in a torture scandal there.  My father also told me in detail tortures he and other military officers had done in Korea, to frighten me.  

 

    The US govt. had an officially approved project to torture US children to force them into spying---MKULTRA and related projects.  Many survivors report the same type of torture as I remember.  Since there have been so many different survivor’s accounts remembered independently, all in agreement as to the methods used, there is no longer room for reasonable doubt that the US government engaged in the sexual torture of innocent American children. (See survivor’s accounts; A Nation Betrayed by Carol Ruiz, Unshackled by Kathleen Sullivan, Secret Weapons by Cheryl Hersha, Thanks for the Memories by Brice Taylor, and the talks by experts and survivors at CKLN-FM Mind Control Series http://www.mindcontrolforums.com/radio/ckln-hm.htm ).

 

For more information see the UNICEF site on children of war at

www.unicef.org/sowc96/ciwcont.htm , or a radio broadcast on Children of War at www.warchildren.org/ , or Amnesty International's site at www.amnestyusa.org/children/soldiers/agenda.html 

Article for the Victoria Coalition for Survivors of Torture Newsletter

"The individual is handicapped by coming face to face with a 
conspiracy so monstrous he cannot believe it exists." ---
J. Edgar Hoover, former head of the FBI

As a survivor of torture in the United States, I am writing this article---I am a California physician with over forty years of recurrent torture and continuous enslavement by CIA and US military agencies. My father was a US military advisor, a “counterinsurgency specialist”, in Korea and Taiwan.  Many of the children, like myself, who were trained as child spies by the US government had fathers in the military. As unbelievable as it sounds, the documentation that the US used American children as mind-controlled spies against their will is quite extensive. (See MKULTRA : The CIA's Top Secret Program in Human Experimentation and Behavior Modification by George Andrews. Or see an online overview of MKULTRA at http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/MKULTRA .)

The Canadian psychiatrist Colin Ross, MD had a number of such survivors as patients.  After he received 15,000 pages of CIA documents under a Freedom of Information Act  Request he concluded that, alas, his patients were telling him the truth.  See his book BLUEBIRD: the deliberate creation of multipersonality disorder by psychiatrists. Therapist Valerie Wolf brought two of her patients with similar memories to mine to testify before President Clinton's Advisory Committee on Human Radiation Experiments in Washington, D.C. to testify on Mind Control Experimentation on Children.  She wrote to that Committee; 

In preparation for my testimony at these hearings, I called nearly 40 therapists across the country to find out what they knew about the link between radiation and mind control and to get what other therapists were seeing in clients who had been used in mind control experiments. … therapists across the country are finding clients who have been subjected to mind control techniques. The consistency of their stories about the purpose of the mind control and torture techniques, such as electric shock, use of hallucinogens, sensory deprivation, spinning, hypnosis, dislocation of limbs and sexual abuse is remarkable. There is almost nothing published on this aspect of mind control used with children, and these clients come from all over the country, having had no contact with each other….We need the glare of publicity to stop the continuing harassment of people who were subjects in mind control experiments.  [See more of the testimony online at http://www.tulanelink.com/mind/testimony_04a.htm ]

There has been a systemic campaign of disinformation by the False Memory Syndrome Foundation to discredit people having memories of trauma based mind control.  Dr. Ross in Bluebird shows that most of the people on that Foundation are CIA researchers engaged in mind control research.  Project MKULTRA alone in the late 1950’s used 80 institutions of higher learning to do the research.  Dr. Ewen Cameron, a mind control researcher for the CIA, was head of the American and Canadian Psychiatry and Psychology Associations.  His experiments in causing amnesia and mind control at Allen Memorial Hospital associated with McGill University in Toronto left patients near vegetables.  The CIA settled out of court for $750.000 when 9 Canadians brought suit. [See Psychiatrist Harvey Weinstein’s  The CIA and Psychiatry]. Unfortunately, CIA research in psychiatry has occurred in a number of Canadian institutions and is likely to still be ongoing given the amount of money that the CIA has to spread around via front organizations and the historical willingness of researchers to take it.  Addressing the issue of whether memories recovered after trauma are accurate, law professor Scheflin in Ground Lost: The False Memory/Recovered Memory Therapy Debate at www.psychiatrictimes.com/p991137.html notes that all memories are recovered and that the three relevant studies on the matter show that post traumatic memories are as accurate as regular memories; namely details may be wrong but the memories are remarkably accurate for the gist of the events.  Thus he concludes that for the purposes of the courts, all memories should be treated the same---as eye-witness testimony. ( Also see the tome Brown D, Scheflin AW, Hammond DC (1998), Memory, Trauma Treatment, and the Law. New York: W.W. Norton & Company. Scheflin is a professor of law at Santa Clara University School of Law in Santa Clara, Calif. He is the only non-psychiatrist to win the Manfred S. Guttmacher Award twice.)

Starting at age ten I was sent into the USSR as a street child to spy.  In WWI, Germany arrested parents and told their children to go into Russia as street children and report back on railway troop movement, failure to return with the required information would result in the parent’s torture or execution. [ See http://english.pravda.ru/main/2002/11/27/40030.html ].  I did my assignments under the same threats and had been tortured by the CIA and DIA since I was 4 years old using electroshocks, drugs, cold, sleep deprivation, and deprivation of food and even water. For decades all of my spare time during so-called vacations was spent on CIA assignment that I was forced into. Later as an adult, if I had a partner, I was forced to break up with him, under the threat that he would be killed, if I refused. None of my life was truly my own.  At a moment’s notice I would have to make excuses and go off on an espionage assignment. My work as a doctor had to be part-time and flexible. Most of my work involved going into the Soviet Union to assess their nuclear missile arsenals, as well as to garner related documents.  It was very dangerous work and I was tortured on more than one occasion by the KGB as well.  I was also tortured by the CIA in the basement of their HQs for failing to force a KGB official, Konstantinov, in New York City in 1983 to become an agent for the CIA as a “double agent”. My memory was later confirmed by an old newspaper account of Konstantinov expelled from NY as a KGB spy in 1983.  At the time, I was an occupational medical resident at Columbia University and already extremely overworked and sleep deprived from being on-call.  The CIA was unwilling to hear any reasons for failing at an assignment.

I was last tortured by the US government in August of 2004, for refusing an assignment.  I was living in Virginia within commuting distance of CIA HQs at the time.  In this instance, I was approached directly by a very high-ranking official of the administration who wanted the assignment to be off the record because he feared leaks within the CIA.  I was given the assignment to go to Iran as a doctor “volunteering” to treat Iranian children as a humanitarian gesture.  A TV crew would “happen by” and start filming, then in would rush a CIA agent of Iranian features announcing he knew of a secret Iranian nuclear weapons development lab in an underground bunker.  I was told that the rest of the filming with that agent and myself would occur in Hollywood with a mock up of said weapon’s lab.  It would be a made for TV news propaganda piece like in the movie “Wag the Dog”.  When I refused to do the assignment on the grounds that it was immoral, he threatened my mother’s life.  Since my mother had recently told me to not to give my torturers demands, even if she paid for it with her life, I held to my no.  

Within a week I was taken hostage, drugged, raped and tortured for 4 days.  I overheard the men who raped me talking about their duties guarding the same US official who had given me the Iranian assignment. They said that if I ever talked that I would be locked up in a mental ward, drugged, tied down and raped nightly.  While being injected one of my torturers said, “With this in your blood, baby, no one will ever believe a word you say.”  It is fairly standard to discredit people using a long lasting hallucinogen, like BZ (see http://www.levity.com/aciddreams/samples/bz.html), with an amphetamine to prevent sleep, and indeed I had a sudden severe problem with insomnia.  Within days I was thrown into a mental hospital against my will and told again that I might never get out to make the threat even more frightening in my mind. Fortunately, as a Christian Science believer I was given no medications at the hospital and managed to get out after the 5-day observation period because the medical doctor recognized my symptoms as sleep deprivation and metabolic imbalance.  Being in Canada is no guarantee that I will be safe.  The threat that I would be thrown into a mental facility for the rest of my life, drugged up and tied down still exists and could be executed in Canada by CIA grant paid researchers.  And that is in spite of the fact that I have never attempted suicide, and never will as it is against my religious convictions.  

Had I actually been crazy, I never could have held a stable job as a medical director in California for 14 years.  I coped with severe torture by using a skill called dissociative denial, which is the opposite of making things up. The treatment for it is not drugs, it is telling the truth about what really happened, instead of pretending that it didn’t happen.

"To sin by silence when they should protest makes cowards of men." 
Abraham Lincoln

“Joining up”:

As a coerced remote viewing asset of the US govt., I was forced against my will to work for the US military-intelligence agencies, starting from childhood under CIA-DIA Operation MKULTRA II.  That subproject to develop remote viewing spies involved sexually torturing children to split their minds (See  www.mindcontrolforums.com/radio/ckln10.htm  ,www.mindcontrolforums.com/clntape.htm , www.tulanelink.com/mind/testimony_04a.htm  ).  It is often the case that one personality of a multiple is a good remote viewer (See Colin Ross, MD’s Dissociative Identity Disorder ). Additionally, it is usually possible to make the regular person amnesic for both the torture and the subsequent govt. controlled operations by regular repetition of horrendous trauma that the mind is unable to digest.

Because I had a known and respected accuracy rating as a remote viewer at age 9 during the Cuban missile crisis, the US used me to “view” the minds of Castro and Khrushchev. After extensive debriefing on the particulars I was questioned by President Kennedy on their intentions.  At age 10, I was sent to Moscow with the US negotiating team for the Limited Test Ban Treaty’s concluding negotiations.  As a remote viewer with a high accuracy rating, for over 40 years I have monitored WMD and engaged in critical US negotiations to regulate them, often as a person behind the scenes to figure out what terms one can actually get everyone to agree to while the negotiators haggle over the points of contention.  I have been actively involved in: Limited Test-Ban Treaty, Non-Proliferation Treaty, Biological Weapons Convention, SALT I and SALT II, and the Comprehensive Test Ban Treaty negotiations.  Because I was a “covert asset” of the CIA, my true name was not used in any of those situations.  

Training and Experience:

A family history of intelligence and human rights activism:

In 2003, I joined the Association of Former/Current Intelligence Officers, member # 4843. My sister Jean (Maria) Arrigo, is also a member.  She is currently a social psychologist writing papers to help improve ethics in the military-intelligence community. My third sister, Linda Gail Arrigo, is a sociologist who is famous in Taiwan for her courageous human rights work to restore democratic representation to the Taiwanese. My mother who was a US mind controlled spy for the US govt in WWII has been active in San Diego politics and was on the Mayor’s Advisory Committee on Women’s Issues.

A remote viewing trainer:

I have been a remote viewing/psycho-kinesis trainer of US military-intelligence officers since I was 17 years old.  Most of that training was done for the Office of Naval Intelligence (ONI), with lesser amounts for the Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA) and Pentagon, and the Mossad.  Although I was often used directly by Directors of Central Intelligence (DCIs) from Helms to Tenet as a remote viewer, I did little training of CIA officers in these skills. That was mainly because, having been tortured by the CIA since childhood I did not want to give them my skills. It would be much better to help a nation not engaged in warfare.  It has bothered me for over 20 years to be paying taxes into a war machine and to be giving my services, even as a coerced slave to the same.

 At the end of the Cold War the CIA loaned me to the Russian govt. to help them recover missing WMD and radioactive materials. So I have also trained some Russian SVR officers in skills needed to recover WMD and to correct pollution problems.  In addition, in about 1980, I spent a brief amount of time training some of Scotland Yard’s Counter-Intelligence officers in psychic tracking.  

The way I train officers in these skills is completely different from Ingo Swann’s method used by the StarGate military remote viewing unit at Fort Detrick. I only train people in intensive residential retreats of at least a week long.  The induction into the Akashic records is quick with the technique that I developed and is done in the first day. It is also a bit of a shock to the system, like changing pressure when diving underwater. Many people have nausea, emotion labiality, and temporary physical system as their energy fields adjust. The rest of the week is spent on training them in analytic techniques to understand what they “see” in a reliable fashion while they adapt to having a mind that is no longer limited to the confines of their body.

Because of my remote viewing skills I have not infrequently been a target for kidnapping by intelligence agencies wanting my services. Thus I have been kidnapped several times by the KGB, at least once by the Mossad, and repeatedly by the CIA.  For example, in 1993 when the US had men missing in action in Somalia, I was picked up where I was house sitting for a local judge in Clairmont and taken to the Camp Pendleton War Room to locate the missing men on a map. Other times I have been picked up to deal with accidental release of Bio-warfare germs, environmental problems so severe that the US govt. doesn’t want the scientists to know of them, etc.  In the last 20 years I have worked on many of these severe environmental problems successfully.  

In the summer of 2004, I was the supervisor and coordinator for teams of remote viewers from the ONI and DIA tasked to solve pollution problems so severe that they could threaten the sustainability of the planet. At that time we also had ONI officers training groups of Russians in our methods with the cooperation of the Russian govt.  We had 14 teams of about 8 people each, with each group solving their problem in about a week.  The US administration had promised to give us an agency and centrally located building in which to do this work.  All that fell apart when I was tortured in Aug. 2004 for refusing to frame Iran.  This important work for the health of the planet in my absence largely fallen by the wayside. There is currently a great back load of these pressing environmental problems of global significance. Conventional research is too slow a methodology to deal with them.  Even remote viewing and psychokinetic methods can take months to years to solve a problem if one doesn’t have adequate faith that God/Source is “all-knowing and all-accomplishing” and will flow through you to help you do whatever is ethical to do.  With strong faith one can solve such problems in a week with a team of 8 viewers working in a residential retreat setting without contact with the outside world for that period of time.  It is rather akin to “invoking a miracle” by one’s single-pointed devotion to the task. It is very hard and rewarding work.

Training in Nuclear Physics:

As a graduate student in mathematics at Univ. of California, at San Diego, I studied Real and Complex Analysis and passed the qualifying exams at the PhD level.  During that time, in about 1978, the CIA asked me to go over to the adjacent General Dynamics nuclear research facility to figure out what was wrong with their plasma generator; it had been inoperational for almost 6 months. That started my long-term relationship with quantum physics and reactors.  Using my remote viewing skills and the mathematics of quantum physics, Applied Field Theory, I was able to quickly solve the problem of the plasma generator. After that I had many requests for my help from private nuclear companies.  The CIA set up a front company to handle these requests and keep my identity secret.  Mostly I was called in when all more conventional avenues of solving a problem had been exhausted, or to keep reactors working without downtime by viewing the appropriate maintenance to do in advance. The money from this work was put into a Swiss bank account via the CIA. I am not a poor person---I just do not know how to access my accounts because of the amnesia.

I have done experimental physics research in cooperation with the Princeton research center for many years.  All that work and the resultant published papers have been under a pseudonym.  My work however is distinct because I developed my own notation for Applied Field Theory.  Instead of operators working on elements of the group, the elements are “self-realizing”.  That is to say that each element does what comes natural to it according to its modus operandi and there is not a dualism between operator and element.  This greatly simplifies many problems and allows quick and sometimes startling results.  Those results on a theoretical level were proven in experiments at Princeton to be correct.  That is not surprising, given that the world works according to how your mind conceives of it, and I designed the experiments.  

I wrote a book of mathematics on Applied Field Theory using the nomenclature and notation of “self-realizing” elements.  It was published by Springer-Verlung/Wiley, under an alias.

Training as physician:

I went to medical school, first year of Internal Medicine Residency, and Nephrology Fellowship at Univ. of California at Irvine Medical Center spanning 1972-1985 since I did mathematics in between.  I also did a year of Internal Medicine Residency at Morristown, New Jersey combined with a year of Occupational Medicine at Columbia University in New York City 1982-1983.  I practiced Occupational Medicine from 1986-2003 and was the Medical Director of Management Health Services for almost all of those years until they went bankrupt during a long strike of one of their clients.  Currently I hold a California Medical License G50197.

Having trained in occupational medicine, with course work in toxicology, the CIA and related agencies and companies have consulted me about a number of bio-hazards. I also did some research in psychic healing at Walter Reed Hospital. That led to my interest in battlefield healing which is an area of my expertise. Although killing is used in war to gain power—it is also possible to use healing to gain results that are politically significant.  The Red Cross, of course, is a good example of that.

I am also a nephrologist by training, and in that capacity I have treated one patient for the US administration twice since 9-11. The first time was for a case of an infected peritoneal dialysis catheter with peritonitis and the second time was for a transplant rejection complicated by sepsis. 

 “Rank”:

 Having escaped to Canada in 2002, I was raped and re-programmed to return to that enslaved condition in 2003.  My orders were to report to the Pentagon for duty starting Oct. 1, 2003.  In order to cover my enslaved status and to insert me into the Joint Chiefs of Staff  (JCS) Meetings in late summer 2001 so that I could set up a Psychic Warfare Defense program for the Pentagon, the DCI Tenet had assigned me a rank of a one-star general.  That rank was upgraded immediately by the Pentagon to a two-star general, General K. Noble, in order to get the reforms that I recommended quickly pushed through. (Note: I was a covert CIA asset, and not a standard military person.  My rank has always been at the whim of those above me and not based on any orderly progression through the military, based on merit or training for war. For example, because I was training Navy Admirals in remote viewing I was given the uniform and called a rear admiral one week, while the next week I was assigned the rank of a major in order to train low-level Marines. My utility to the US military-intelligence-industrial complex was due to my remote viewing skills, which included psycho-kinesis and associated expertise.) 

Issues Related to the Accuracy of My Memory:
Most of the following material has surfaced in my mind since arriving in Geneva in Feb. 2006, due to a conscious decision on my part to try to figure out what would be productive to relay of my experience to help prevent nuclear war. Because my mind was split as a child, I usually have no memory of such past events unless I make a conscious effort to write them down.  The science of such “recovered memories” shows that memory is remarkably good for the gist of events and less good for peripheral details (See Ground Lost: The False Memory/Recovered Memory Therapy Debate at www.psychiatrictimes.com/p991137.html or the award-winning book Memory, Trauma, and the Law by Brown and Scheflin).  

Without accompanying documents, this information stands as one eye-witness’s report. Because I have had extensive hypnotic suggestions to recall events accurately for debriefing purposes and because my remote viewing skills tend to bleed through into even my regular personality, what I recall is often more detailed than would be expected.

On the other hand, because the information is being bleed through to the regular personality that refuses usually to write down proper nouns due to the programming not to do so, most of the information on that level has been lost.  What remains is the gist of the events and how the people relate to each other.

As with any source, compilation with other sources is an invaluable step in judging the accuracy of the material.

Assigned Mission:

When I reported at the Pentagon on Sept. 30, 2003, I was again given the rank of a two-star general and told that I was to continue on as Special Advisor to JCS on Defense against Psychic Warfare. During my absence from Washington, the JCS had not replaced me with another adviser and no improvements in the Pentagon’s Defense against Psychic Warfare had been made. This concerned me as I detected several recent glaring problems in the Pentagon’s protection from remote viewing intrusions that were resulting in the loss of substantial information that directly affected national security. Namely, that in the last couple of months the Chinese and Russians had advanced in their remote viewing technologies and were again able to remove documents from the Pentagon, and other US agencies, by what could best be described as teleportation for want of a more accurate lay word. 

Although I brought this to the attention of my superiors, I was told at that time to address it next month!  That meant that any document in the Pentagon could be stolen by the Chinese or the Russians in the meantime.  Even after pointing that out to three members of the JCS, I was ordered instead to go immediately go to Mt. Weather, the underground radiation shelter base in Virginia, to assess, by remote viewing, the adequacy of that facility for survival in a nuclear war.  It was built for the purpose of sheltering high US officials, including the President, in the event of a nuclear war. It has undergone a number of revisions over the decades, some of which I had previously been asked to comment on.  In the summer of 2001, I had thus made some recommendations regarding the air filtering and purification system for that facility and those had been put in place in the meantime at enormous cost. But the recommendations that I had made regarding the prevention of nuclear war itself, though relatively cheap to put in place, had not been implemented. That was of great concern to me and I spent much of the next month investigating why such important issues had been swept aside while I was absent from Washington, D.C..

Part 1: An Intelligence Agreement to Prevent War that the US Violated

An Introduction to the Recommendations to Prevent War:

While most efforts to prevent nuclear war have focused on the weapons and how to limit their development, their numbers or their spread, this strategy has been a continuous failure.  We still have thousands of nuclear missiles on the planet ready to be launched at a moment’s notice on the order of a Head of State who could be drunk, giddy with power, suicidal, or just plain angry at the time. 

The recommendations that I formulated were easy to agree to and actually do provide a significant measure of safety by requiring adequate reflection on whether one’s actions are likely to yield the desired results. They re-formulated the problem to make it solvable in the same way that a change of coordinate systems from linear to spherical can make a nearly impossible calculus problem into a relatively easy to solve one.  The way that the problem was formulated before was that controlling the means of war could lessen harm.  The current formulation is based on the premise that harm can be lessened by careful attention before going to war of whether one is likely to experience true benefit from doing so.

Countries that agreed to implement the recommendations of Summer 2001 for the Prevention of War:

After preparing an 88-page report on nuclear war risks which I presented in oral and written format at the JCS meeting and at a CIA in-house seminar that both DCI Tenet and Deputy Director McLaughlin attended in Spring of 2001, I spent months formulating recommendations that I felt would correct these risks by addressing the faulty logic that drove them.  I then presented these recommendations in a 2-day seminar at the CIA that again was well attended and included the above named officials.  At the end of that seminar both of those officials complimented me on my analysis and presentation and signed a formal agreement to implement those recommendations.  The 88-page report, Risk Assessment of Nuclear War, and the 12-page report explaining the recommendations to correct those risks, The Way Forward without NuclearWar, were sent by diplomatic means to all countries along with an invitation to a follow-up seminar in Washington, D.C.. Two months later the material was presented over 3 days, followed  by 2 days dedicated to discussion and questions and answers.  Within a month of the end of that process and still before 9-11, all but 2 of the 96 countries that attended had signed up to implement the recommendations, and those signatures were at a high enough level to make them binding on their respective intelligence agencies.  The countries that bound themselves to those recommendations designed to prevent nuclear war included all the major players in the nuclear arena, including the US, UK, Russia, China, France, Germany, Israel, India, Pakistan, North Korea, South Korea, Cuba, and even Iraq and Iran. The 2 countries that attended but did not sign up were Malaysia and Bhutan.  

On my return to the Pentagon in the fall of 2003, I was shocked to find that the US administration had violated these recommendations and told other countries that they were no longer “in effect”.  It was shocking in the face of the US having said that it went to war in Iraq over the issue of its safety from WMD to have acted to undermine that very safety itself.

It is a well-known fact of history that nations act worse than ordinary citizens.  The rules of society that govern individual citizens have been worked out over several millennia, but the rules of international law governing the conduct of nations are only nascent, much of it formulated in the last 100 years.  That stronger nations have preyed upon weaker ones and stolen their resources and the labor of their peoples through colonialism and imperialism is as obvious as it is unjust.  That this injustice continues unabated through more hidden means can easily be seen by the growing gap between the haves and the have-nots.  The corruption of moral life that allows the poor to go hungry, to be without health care, to be without meaningful secure employment, or to be forced to fight in wars is a violation of the most basic of human rights—the right to life. Since the life of a fetus is considered valuable, how can the life of a child or an adult be considered less valuable and less in need of active protection? 

Principles Underlying the Recommendations:

History shows that nations that go to war are not good at predicting whether they will win those wars in the long run or get the anticipated gain if they do win.  No country starts a war intending to lose it.  Yet, countries do lose wars that they start with great regularity—Nazi Germany lost WWII, Napoleon lost at Waterloo, the US lost in Vietnam, etc.  When Nazi Germany invaded Poland they intended to get “growing space”, but after the war the space that the average German had to travel around in was halved.  The US pushed the Indians into extinction to try to have safe areas for their women and children to live in free from attack.  But their risk of dying from a homicide in the U.S. is probably higher today than it was during the time of the Indians.  The US went to war in 1991 against Hussein, but that US action has not improved the well-being of average Americans or Iraqis.  War-profiteers instigate wars to make profits—but what difference does having more money make when you already have enough of everything you need and are still unhappy?  Sociological studies have repeatedly shown that wealth, even sudden influxes of great wealth as in winning a lottery does not increase one’s happiness long term contrary to people’s tightly-held expectations.

People and countries are unfortunately quite deluded about what will make them happy in the long term.  A child will whine at the supermarket convinced that it can’t be happy unless it has the toy it sees that will likely break before the day is out.  A young person can be so convinced that they must have a particular person as a spouse that he/she might commit suicide if that wish is thwarted.  Yet some years down the line, having married that person they are likely to feel that their happiness can only be satisfied by leaving that very same person in spite of the harm that will befall their children by breaking up the family. A nation can be just as disconsolate if it can’t have the resources of another country, but once it has occupied that country it is usual for many more problems to have accrued than was predicted. The occupation of other countries is rarely more satisfactory to either than a bad marriage, which brings both continual griefs.  

Countries are as bad at predicting that they will be seriously hurt by starting a war.  In that regard they are no better than 5 year-old children who run out into the street without properly assessing the risk.  It doesn’t much matter whether it is a Mazda or a Ford that hits the child because either one is quite likely to kill the child or injury it so seriously as to render its life less happy thereafter.  Similarly, it doesn’t much matter if 6,000 Titan missiles, or 4,000 Cruise missiles get launched at you.  So why haggle over what car is coming down the street, or what missile it is that is coming down on top of you?  The only time that it is safe to run into the street is when no car is coming.  The only time it is potentially safe to start a war is when there are no devastating weapons on the planet.

Countries have about as much self-restraint and intelligence as 5-year olds. They do not know how to share their toys/resources without fighting over them. They don’t consider what has happened to others in the same situation. They refuse to acknowledge the possibility that they will likely be hurt in spite of obvious evidence to the contrary. Their fearlessness and lack of restraint are very dangerous in the age of WMD, including powerful conventional weapons.

How the recommendations came into being:

These recommendations grew out of a thorough remote viewing analysis of all the major wars of the last millennium. The CIA had assigned me the task of figuring out how to make war more “cost-effective”. They knew my remote viewing accuracy and considered it better than the historical records. That project spanned over two years of active historical research by remote viewing in the late 1990’s and included financial analyses of these wars.  Such careful financial analyses would have been impossible to do based on the historical records that are fragmentary at best.  That research culminated in a volume of more than 600 pages that was entered into the CIA’s classified library under the title The History of War: Anticipated Benefits versus Realized Benefits.  

Because my conclusions were not what the Agency wanted to hear, it assigned 3 intelligence historians and 5 remote viewers to undertake an independent analysis of the same period of time without reference to my work.  That process spanned almost a year in about 1999 and arrived at remarkably similar conclusions---wars were bad investments for a nation. 

Still dissatisfied with that conclusion, the US administration commissioned a third study through a private think tank “Heritage House”, if I remember correctly.  That study did not use remote viewers at all, only historical records.  Its conclusions were generally the same as the first two studies, namely that countries went to war with rose-colored glasses on and would largely not have done so if they had heeded the experience of those who went before them. There were a few notable exceptions to that cited by Heritage House that were not found in the previous two studies. This discrepancy raised the possibility of bias due to the historical records written by the conquerors. 

The historians of the conquerors had an obvious vested interest in writing that their nation’s previous wars had indeed benefited them.  The widows of the fallen dead required such conclusions. The wounded warriors, whose minds were filled with the horrors of war, also demanded assurance that their sacrifice had not been in vain. It cost next to nothing for monarchs and rulers to give to give such reassurances, which served to stabilize their power. Much intelligence was skewed to generate such rosy self-serving post-war propaganda. And this is what we call “history”. Remote viewing shows a very different picture of nations struggling to rebuild themselves through much grim hardship even when they “won”.  Consider the suffering of the Chinese in the “Cultural Revolution” as people melted down their cooking pots to make it appear that the nation was producing steel.  Consider the suffering of the Russians trying to meet production quotas to prove that the Soviet State was better off than before.  It is easier to see the suffering at a distance than close up where we have already been subjected to the propaganda of the “good and worthwhile fight” in defense of an unquantified abstraction. 

If the stated goal of the war was to protect people from poverty as under Communist rhetoric, or to protect people from tyranny as under Capitalist rhetoric, than the study of the success of those wars must measure whether people were better off financially or more in control of their destinies afterwards. An individual’s financial success cannot be judged merely on the basis that there is no one wealthier in the town that one is envious of.  And control over one’s own destiny and self-determination of one’s region cannot be judged on the number of elections held.  When one carefully and accurately defines the stated goals of a nation in going to war and measures the results quantitatively, one undermines the power of propaganda to bias the conclusions. Such rational and careful analyses show that nations were deluded in going to war; the benefits that they anticipated were not realized. 

Note that this was true regardless of the self-determined goal for the war. This is a hard conclusion for most people to accept.  To illustrate how this could be the case let me refer back to domestic situations that most people are more familiar with.  Having a bitter fight with one’s spouse may result in your getting your way temporally by dominating one’s partner. However, it does not make the relationship better and it does not lead to one’s long-term happiness or even to greater financial stability.  Just so, resorting to violence between nations is like beating up your spouse.  The result does not bring long-term happiness nor financial well-being to either party. It is as much a myth that war leads to wealth of a nation as that marriage leads to the happiness of a person.  What is true is that a nation is made wealthier through the care and protection of the rights of its subjects so that they feel secure enough to produce. And that marriages lead to happiness through the care and protection of the individuality of the partner so that they feel loved and are able to give love in return.

To help resolve these discrepancies between the 3 reports, Tenet authorized a review of all three studies through the CIA’s Department of Intelligence.  That review finished in the early spring of 2001 and concluded that there was adequate reason to believe that the Heritage study was biased towards war.  It concluded that war, except to defend one’s country’s actual perimeter when invaded by an attacker, was not likely to bring reliable benefit. That study compared going to war to gambling and stated that gambling was less risky as a wealth generating mechanism than going to war. It stated that since gambling was not considered a wise investment strategy, war (a form of gambling with human lives) was even less so. From a Gandhian point of view even that conclusion may be overly optimistic in favor of war because it neglects the cost to the mind and soul of killing others. This final review was from the experts inside an Agency that had historically favored and instigated wars.  In itself it is quite remarkable that the CIA’s own experts reached this conclusion. 

It was thus based on all of this dedicated work by a large number of experts that I wrote up my recommendations to decrease the risk of war and was able to get the CIA to host the ensuing seminars.  As I stated earlier, heads of intelligence agencies around the world had little difficulty in agreeing to adhere to these recommendations.  They believe in the value of good intelligence and that is all that these recommendations prescribe.  To not be in favor of following such recommendations is to admit that one wants to be as foolish as a child and act without duly considering the consequences to one’s country. In short, to oppose the collecting and reliance on good intelligence is a form of treason.

As a result of the many requests at the 96-country seminar for the three historical studies and the CIA’s final review of them, the CIA published a three-volume abridged version called, if my memory serves me, Was War Profitable?: A Historical Analysis. That version was published in about Feb. 2002. The CIA was about to mail it out to the requesting countries when the US administration moved to have all of them burned, in a move reminiscent of the Nazi’s burning of books in the 1930’s.  The CIA saved them from incineration, but they were not shipped.  They remain warehoused at the CIA’s headquarters.  Many copies have since disappeared into the offices of intelligence analysts because they feared that access to this material will be restricted even within the CIA in the future.  Indeed, there have been some memos sent out along those lines but so far none has had much effect. Many people, even within the CIA, do not want nuclear war.  They want the truth of the futility of war to be exposed so that the planet will remain viable.  They do not want depleted uranium weapons to degrade the human genome.  They do not want the planet to be so polluted as to be unlivable.  In only a couple hundred years, the rivers across the US have become un-potable, the air unhealthy to breathe, the soil contaminated with carcinogens. In countries like Vietnam where modern warfare has ravaged the land with chemicals the situation is even worse, with birth defects and illnesses that affect so many people.  These historical volumes on warfare underestimate the costs of war to future generations because war has become so much more harmful to both people and the very environment they need to survive. Policy decisions must be based on solid intelligence if they are to succeed in achieving their goals.  We cannot live in a fairy tale of a health environment, safety from violence, and freedom to self-determination that is made of a fabric of lies.  Such lies lead to destruction of the planet and to wars of annihilation of the human species.

The Recommendations that had been agreed to:

(Note: I am writing this up from memory so the wording and 15 points may vary somewhat from the original.)

Nowhere in these recommendations is war proscribed or prohibited.  Nowhere in them is it assumed that nations or alliances will act out of any motivation other than narrow self-interest.  So it appears that these recommendations, even if honestly followed, would do little to prevent war or the use of WMD, unless you truly understand like I do from looking at the historical data that war is caused by the ignorance of its consequences in those who promote it.

1) No country or alliance shall threaten to start a war for any reason before undertaking a thorough historical evaluation of the region to determine if threats in the past have yielded the anticipated benefits for those making the threats.

2) No country shall respond with counter-threats before similarly determining if counter-threats in the past have yielded the anticipated benefits for those making them.

3) No country or alliance shall solicit the help of other countries to engage in a war until undertaking a thorough historical review of whether such alliances in that region have yielded the anticipated benefit for similar alliances previously.

4) No country may form an alliance for the purpose of going to war without first undertaking a thorough analysis of whether those with whom they desire to ally themselves have indeed been worthy of their trust in the past and kept their commitments to them.

5) No country may form an alliance for the purpose of going to war without first undertaking a thorough analysis of whether they are excluding from that alliance trustworthy countries that could have aided them if asked.

6) No country or alliance shall require of another country or alliance what they themselves have not already done.

7) Each country and alliance shall write down, clearly (and secretly, if so desired) their anticipated benefit of starting the war and evaluate monthly whether their waging of the war is bringing them that anticipated benefit.

8) No country or alliance shall start a war for any reason whatsoever before undertaking a thorough historical evaluation of the region involved and determining whether previous wars in that region have yielded the anticipated benefits for the conquerors.

9) No country or alliance shall persist in a war for more than a month after it is clear that its waging of it is not bringing them the anticipated results.

10) No country or alliance may use WMD without first undertaking a thorough analysis of whether such use will likely lead to their own destruction through retaliation or through destruction of the planet.

11) No country or alliance may use WMD without first undertaking a thorough analysis of whether at the end of the conflict they will have adequate resources and methods to recover their own nation/alliance to at least as good a state as it was in before use of the WMD.

12) No country or alliance may go to war without the above analyses showing that it has a better than 50-50 chance of gaining its anticipated benefit without a greater than 10% long-term risk of loss of its current good state of affairs in terms of its economic and environmental health.  And the expected benefit must be great enough to justify that 10% risk, as judged by their own experts.

13) Although all analyses may be kept secret, it is incumbent upon the country or alliance for their own “national and alliance security” to engage the best minds in their region in the most thorough and unbiased pursuit of the truth so as not to fail due to poor analysis or self-deception. Due to the extreme seriousness of the possibility of the annihilation of the planet and the human species from the use of war, all analyses must be conducted by three sets of independent well-respected bodies of experts.  No war may be undertaken unless all three independent opinions are in agreement that the anticipated benefit definitely outweigh the risks as above.

14) Before breaking off from such a commitment, the country or alliance in question must show why it is to its advantage not to hold to these commitments. It must publicly provide a statement of its anticipated benefit from violating these commitments and an analysis showing that such a benefit is more than 50% likely to accrue without incurring more than a 10% risk of harm to the nation or alliance.

15) No country or alliance may change its stated goals in going to war without re-analysis as above that shows that the new goal to have at least the same likelihood of benefit plus 10%, with less risk than before by 2%.  It is often the case that as a war progresses that it becomes clear that the original objective cannot be achieved.  Instead of suing for peace at that point, nations usually change the goal instead of admitting defeat of their objective.  This clause requiring progressively better expected benefit to risk serves two proposes; to help a nation carefully define the right goal the first time and to help them sue for peace before they completely destroy themselves in repeated futile attempts to “win” by redefining what winning means.

Please join me in a call for a saner, better-informed world.  Please ask the US administration to release Was War Profitable?: A Historical Analysis that the CIA has already stated will not harm “national security”.  Please call for the US and all countries to uphold these recommendations on having good intelligence before going to war.  Please bring these matters to the fore so that our planet and the human species have a chance to survive.

Part II: What I Learned in 2003 about US Plans for Nuclear War

When I arrived up at the Mt. Weather base in Oct. 2003, I quickly discovered that I had been recalled from Canada because the US had run out of more conventional solutions to a problem that they felt was urgent to solve.  The problem was explained to me by the Commander of Mt. Weather as “We plan to use this base for its intended function (to house the US officials in the event of nuclear war) but all of the remote viewers say that no one will survive a nuclear war here”.  I smiled wanly and said, “But that is what I have told you myself each time that I have been consulted about this facility, so that makes it unanimous.”

“Yes,” he said, “But we intend to use it for the purpose for which it was created and we want you to have it ready for that purpose within 2 years at the latest.”

“What if it can’t be done?” I asked.

“You are the one that says everything is possible,” he replied.  “You are the one that we trust to be able to do it.”

“Perhaps you misunderstand what I say at the beginning of my remote viewing training intensives---I say that anything that is ethical to do can be done.”

“What is unethical about saving the life of the President and his advisors?” he asked.

“Billions of other people dead from the nuclear war.”  I replied.

“But the scientists have calculated out the number of people that need to survive to have enough genetic variation for the species to continue and they put the number at 210 families.  We will have 240 for extra margin of safety.”

I looked down at my shoes in embarrassment.  Not only were the scientists wrong per my intuition, but also I had just been told that the US govt. intended to nuke everyone off the face of the planet and leave only 240 families left in a hole in the ground.  Hoping that I had misunderstood, I asked him “Are the scientists sure that no one else would survive?”

“Quite sure” he said. “And if they do they should be shot on sight as their genes would be too wobbly.”

“Wobbly?” I repeated inanely.

“Yes”, he replied.  “Kaput.  No good.”

“Are we still to assume that this is about the purity of the race then?  They have decided that the race will be purist after it is purged of all but 240 families?”

“No,” he said.  “We could have 5,000 families of our choosing and still have a pure race. Helmut (of the Bildenberg) has said so.”

Really, I had trouble believing my ears.  It seemed that the Commander was daft.  I called Tenet at CIA Headquarters and asked to speak to him.  He said that he would fly out by chopper and explain it to me himself.  Then he spoke to the Commander and had him give orders for me to be confined to the base until he arrived.  I found a convenient place to start remote viewing the problem of the insanity that I had been thrust into.  Tenet arrived about 2 hours later as he’d had trouble extricating himself from the office.  When he got out of the chopper he insisted we go into the woods on the base to talk.  He started by asking my remote viewing help on a number of other concerns and it was getting dark and cold before he got around to the point of the plans for the base.

He said “There have been changes around here since I last saw you.  Changes in the plans.  They (the White House) believes nuclear war is inevitable, only a matter of time.  They want” and his voice quavered momentarily “to schedule the end as part of a ceremony, on a solstice, for the best effect”.

“What? Is this some kind of Jim Jones repeat episode?” I asked incredulously.

“No” he said, “This is for real.  This is the way they see it.  Take everyone else out and start over—just them.  That way there is no overpopulation, no racial tension, no exhaustion of the petroleum reserves.  They can’t imagine life without oil.  They don’t want to share what is left of it.  They want to have enough left for themselves for thousands of years, for all their progeny.”

“But that is insane” I replied.  “We can go to another source of fuel.  We can create new solutions.”

“That is not the way they see it.  They don’t have the confidence that you have. They don’t believe that creativity will always find a solution.  All they see is a cul-de-sac and they don’t want anyone else’s SUV driving in it.” Tenet replied.

It was dark by then and I was at a loss for words.  How could anyone contemplate the deaths of billions of people and think that they would not end up in Hell for it? But maybe that was the problem, that we had radically different objectives.  Some moments passed in silence.  Then I asked “Are you going to be one of the 240?”

“No” he said “I don’t personally believe that life would be worth living.  But they have put your name on the list as the one remote viewer.  They say they need someone whom they trust to tell them when it is safe to come out.”

“I will not go in there with them.”  I replied.  “Nothing in the world could be done to me to force me to do that.  I will not be party to this immoral plan.  It is diabolic and it will never work.”

“They will force you to make it work.  They believe that you can control the radiation level later—after those previous tests.  They are counting on you to do that.”

“I can’t do anything unethical.  It is not in my power to do so.  You know that.”

“I tried to tell them.  They say that you are holding out on them.  That you can change the radiation levels.”

“Any high school student can do that.  The French proved that.”

“No, they know that you can do more than others, the tests showed that.  They want you to bring it back down to normal background levels after everyone else is dead, down to normal again like you did at the Nevada Test Site demonstration.”

“I can’t do that to preserve the lives of mass murderers.” I replied.

“Then do it for whatever reason you did it at the Nevada Test Site,” he replied.

“I did it to help the innocent wildlife. I could only do it if it didn’t preserve the life of the mass murderers causing them harm in the first place.” 

“They don’t believe you.  They believe that you can do it whenever you like.”

“Well, they are wrong.  Tell them to get one of their high priests to do it for them if they think that black magic is all that is needed to do it.”

“You know that none of their people have been able to replicate that degree of shift in the radiation levels.  You know that.”

“Then tell them to get rid of their nuclear war plans.  Because I refuse to help them kill off the planet’s life, even if I could do what they wanted, which I can’t.”

“They say you can, if you want to” he replied.

“I don’t want to.”  I said, “and furthermore I won’t”

“They will force you to” he replied.

“No” I replied “there are some things that I can not be forced to do.  And that is one of them.”

My Previous Report was Altered to be False Testimony:

A couple of days later, Senator Rockefeller showed up at Mt. Weather by chopper wanting me to brief him on how soon I could have Mt. Weather ready to “survive the storm.”  I said that it was not a storm, but a nuclear war and whereas storms blew over naturally in a couple of days, radiation was a long-term slow decay.” He brushed aside my objections and said that as soon as he had heard that I was “in charge of making it work up here” he had decided to invest the money to expand his part of Mt. Weather to make it ready for his use.  I told him not to waste his money, that it would be cheaper to buy a mausoleum for the same purpose, as everyone inside it would die anyway.  He acted surprised at my pessimism and said, “This just isn’t like you.  Usually you are a “can-do” type of person.  I said that maybe that was not appropriate when the lives of billions of people were at stake.  He said “Look, they are all going to die anyway.  Why not while they are younger and don’t require expenditures for health care?”

I said, “They will need health care, they just won’t get any, same as now.”

He said, “How much health care can you need when you “evaporate”?

I pointed out that most of the people, per remote viewing the future would end up puking up the lining of their stomach in slow painful death, not dying instantly.

He said “That isn’t what you wrote in your last report.”

I said “Yes, it is.”

He pulled my summer 2001 report out of his briefcase and showed me his underlined copy of it.  I stared at it.  What he had was a forgery of my report.  It was not even a good forgery of it.  I had written my report on CIA letterhead and this reworked one, which omitted about a third of what I said and added in another one-sixth, including completely changing its meaning and implication was on White House letterhead.  Plus the date was wrong—it was dated Oct. 2001, after I left the agency on Sept. 1 for “a leave of absence”. I pulled a copy of my original out of the files at Mt. Weather and let him compare them.  He said that everyone on his committee had been given the “scrubbed” copy.  I asked by whom and he would not say.  But it was clearly someone in the White House as he said that it was passed out when the White House briefed his committee on a change in the evacuation order to Mr. Weather in the advent of a nuclear war.  According to Rockefeller, the previous evacuation plan called for the President to be evacuated at the first sign of the imminent danger of nuclear disaster.  But the new plan was for the President to be evacuated when advised to do so by his security services without reference to imminent external danger. Rockefeller commented drily that one Intelligence Committee member had objected to the change in a bid to become one of the “lucky few” and had lost.  He had instead got fired from the committee. Rockefeller said that in a way that clearly implied that I should be careful not to resist the forward move of their plans or I could expect consequences. 

Over the next few days Rockefeller showed up a number of times with contractors to explain to them what he wanted changed in his “privatized part” of the underground facility.  While most of the facility was not much different in style than the inside of CIA headquarters, there were some notable exceptions.  Rockefeller’s section already looked like the inside of the New York Metropolitan Museum filled with precious art objects and with high vaulted gothic ceilings.  He now order that his section be expanded from mansion size to three times as large and a new swimming pool installed which was about Olympic sized.  I was not happy with this change as an enormous amount of dust was generated by this construction over the many months it took to complete and that overloaded the air filtering system which had to be replaced and upgraded again to handle the extra interior volume.  The facility was now about 9% larger overall.  And the construction thinned the wall of rock that was acting to make the shelter safe.  Even in the construction of this “albatross” the concerned parties were unable to agree on what was fair in terms of size or number of people to be admitted to it.  Rockefeller intended to bring in whomever he wanted at the last moment, including all the “cousins” that he liked and their children.  Officially there were only 2 Rockefellers on the list.  Remote viewing also showed that many more people would show up wanting in at the last moment and that there would be insufficient guards to sort them out.  The guards themselves would want in and adding more guards would not help the situation but risk a mutiny.  In the pandemonium it was likely that too many people for the facility to function safely would be let in.  When I wrote up some of these likely problems in my next report, I was told to “keep my worries” to myself.  I thus asked if I was assigned to try to cover up problems or to solve them.  The answer back came in the form of a call from Cheney the next day telling me to fix what I could silently.  I asked him what that meant.  He said that it meant that all my reports would be censored anyway so that there was no point in complaining in them as no one would ever see them. I asked him again if he wanted things fixed or merely covered-up.  He mumbled something and said that he would get back to me on that but he never did.

Stealing the World’s Art Treasures

Rockefeller consulted me as to how to implement his plan to empty all of the important art museums of their treasures and store these art treasures.  I asked to see what he had planned so far in this regard. All those treasures would not fit in Mr. Weather.  They would have to be stored in 4 major underground facilities, one of which was in the Catskill Mtns. in Up State New York. Rockefeller had signed a contract to have 400 choppers and about a dozen very large planes on 24-hour standby notice.  Additionally he had commissioned an engineer to design special rolling picture frame bays that would be quick to load in the museum and then to transport by air.  What he wanted my help with was on devising an operation to allow him to evacuate the most famous museums in the world without there even being a state of emergency declared.  He was afraid that declaring a state of emergency would lead to riots that would impair his ability to get the art objects out unharmed.  Of course, it was completely unethical to steal the world’s art treasures from museums and I found a way out of my helping such a project to go forward.  I did see the contract he had for the stand-by of choppers and planes.  What impressed me was the amount of money he was willing to pay out, over 1million dollars each month, to have that in place immediately.  It made me feel that I was missing some vital information on how soon they wanted to use Mt. Weather.

It was not long before I came across the additional piece of information that Rockefeller had but that I hadn’t been told. It was a KGB document, or purported to be such.  It had been fed into the intelligence committee by the White House.  It said that the Russians were planning a pre-emptive nuclear war to jump the gun on the US planning one.  The White House had used this document to justify its pre-emptive first strike policy, saying that the Russians had the policy first, and that the US had no choice but to strike first. There were several things about the Russian report and the story itself that aroused my suspicion that this was “cooked” intelligence. Within a week I was able to prove that the document was a forgery by showing the gradual formulation of it from handwritten notes through revisions to its completion.  The forger worked directly in the White House, which was where I collected copies of this forgery process. The document had never been translated from Russian because it had never been in Russian.  I presented this evidence to the White House in my next report and sent a copy also to the CIA’s HQs and to the Intelligence Committee.

Rockefeller complained that I had gotten him the information too late and then had the audacity to say that I should have prevented the White House from doing that to him.  Such fake documents are very dangerous because they can cause the escalation that leads to nuclear war.  The White House apologized to Rockefeller and immediately tried to prevent the rest of the committee from getting their copies of the evidence of the forgery.  They even concocted another cover story to try to prevent the evidence of the forgery from being believed.  That cover story said that the evidence of the forgery was disinformation planted by the KGB. To counter that I managed to get the White House staffer who was the forger to show up at that committee and take notes on the “KGB disinformation”.  Then at the appropriate moment, I showed that his handwriting of a passage in his notes were the same as the handwriting of the original notes.  That evidence clinched it as a White House intelligence scam for the committee, and then the White House apologized to them all. But the committee, in my experience, largely appears to like to be lied to and engages in oversight in name only.

White House 

Backing up in time to cover my interaction with the White House:

I wrote up my remote viewing findings on the Mt Weather over the month of Oct. 2003.  Those retreating to the base in the event of a nuclear war would almost certainly kill each other off long before the radiation levels became livable. There would be too many alpha-males in a small space. Minor disagreements would be magnified in a confined space under stress.  Major disagreements that already divided them would be even harder to check than before. By having killed billions of innocent human beings, the taboo against killing would be so weakened as to be non-existent. They would kill each other, just as they had killed others.

The next day, on about Nov. 4, 2003, I was called into the White House to explain my report in person to Bush, Jr. and Bush, Sr. as they were upset by the content of it. Also present in the Oval Office at the time were Dick Cheney and Donald Rumsfeld, but no one else.  Even the usual bevy of secret service men were sent out of the room for that meeting because of its highly sensitive nature.  Only three copies of that report had been made “for eyes only”; one for the President, one for Tenet, and one for the Commander of Mt. Weather whose duty it was to report to the JCS on all matters concerning that base.  The meeting in the Oval Office started at about 2 pm and I was a few minutes late arriving as Tenet had given me extra last minute instructions “not to rile the White House”. How to prevent that while telling the truth had not been explained to me.  Tenet wanted me to lie and say that there was a “good chance of their surviving”.  That was a possibility that did not exist in any of the possible futures I saw.  What was possible was that others would survive in the Southern hemisphere in isolated areas. The remnants of the human race would be mentally retarded, reverting to animals in their behavior, like in the Stone Age.

When I came into the Oval Office, Bush, Jr. made a disparaging comment about me as the one last Neanderthal unable to see the merits of the plan to rescue the world from its over-population and global warming problem.  I bristled at this and mentioned a classified document assessing the effect of nuclear winter as more than offsetting global warming and likely to cause an ice age instead.

Bush, Sr. asked whether it was possible to exactly match the amount of nuclear winter to the amount of global warming. Bush, Jr. said that that had already been looked at as a possibility and ruled out as it only reliably killed 3/4ths of the planet’s population.  Cheney then amended that to the correct statement per the relevant report, which was that the size of the nuclear winter needed to balance the expected global warming was almost impossible to predict in advance.  It was unlikely that even killing off 3/4ths of the planet’s population with radiation would balance the global warming as people were easy to kill off quickly with radiation but stabilizing the earth’s temperature long term by a massive amount of dust short term was hard to do. Bush, Jr. argued over this a few minutes saying that since the US had landed a man on the moon surely they could figure out how to nuke all the “low-lifes” and get to the right temperature later.  Cheney cut him off and Bush, Sr. asked me if I thought it was possible to correct global warming with nuclear explosions.  I said “no” that adding a second pollution problem to the first would not correct it anymore than adding bleach to coffee that has arsenic in it makes it a healthier drink. Bush, Jr. spit out his mouthful of coffee onto the floor at that and accused me of ruining his perfectly good cup of coffee by my comment.  There was a brief interruption as the coffee was cleaned up and a fresh pot sent for.  Bush, Jr. decided to drink bottled water instead straight out of the glass bottle.

I asked him how many glass bottles of water he had stored at Mt. Weather and how long it would be before they would be forced to drink water from the tap?  He said he figured the answer was “enough”.  That meant that he had not even read my report as it was an issue that I brought up on the first page related to the amount of time before the aquifer was polluted with radiation and how much water would need to be stored to survive past that point.  Cheney asked me if I was sure that the aquifer would become polluted with radiation. I explained the transit times of isotope bearing rainwater through the fractured rock strata at Mr. Weather. After two years the water would be too radioactive to drink safely, given the amount of radiation planned to kill off all the world’s population.

That lead into a discussion of whether it was feasible to kill everyone except those in the US, or everyone those except in the vicinity of Mr. Weather.  Cheney was clearly up on these issues and cited another study as saying that it was very likely that the human genome of people outside of very controlled radiation shelters would be damaged and that allowing them to survive would harm the gene pool. Rumsfeld added that the point was to get to almost zero oil usage and to do that one could not allow the US population to survive.  That led into a discussion of oil reserves and how many people they could sustain indefinitely.  Since oil is made quite slowly over long periods of geological time, the truth is that scientists had set that number as quite low.  Also since populations multiply, some scientists who were consulted said that there was no way to have adequate oil reserves indefinitely regardless of how low the number of people at the “start of the mathematical model” was.  Rumsfeld then asked me if it was possible to change the human genome so that only the very smartest people survived to be born, with the rest aborting spontaneously in utero.  I found this an improper question and refused to answer it as I did not want to be party to abortions by design.  Bush, Sr. asked me if I was against abortion or just against making policies that resulted in abortions.  I said that I thought that there were some situations, exceedingly rare ones that on a case-by-case analysis an abortion might be the best of the options available.  Then I added that when a bad option looked like the answer it was usually the result of inadequate creative problem solving. I suggested that we should go back to square one and look for an alternative to nuclear war as a way of dealing with expanding population and diminishing oil reserves.

Bush, Jr. said that they had already researched all the options and that this was the best one “per the experts”.  I said “per the experts that you have consulted so far, and that you chose to consult because you wanted this answer.”  Bush, Sr. asked who had been consulted and that ended up not being a productive discussion because Rumsfeld and Cheney refused to name them or even say how many scientists had been consulted.  Per my remote viewing, they had read a single research theoretical paper that stated that short of Armageddon there was no hope of population control.  They had then seized upon it as correct and then made all the subsequent scientists use this as their starting premise. It was a case of a bad premise spoiling all the subsequent analyses. I tried to point this out but they were fixated on their false premise being a confirmed fact—unless they killed off all except the number of people that would last in a radiation shelter their progeny would not have enough oil and thus would not be happy.

When I asked how many of their particular progeny would go into the shelter, there was some hesitation.  Officially, the answer was supposed to be two grandchildren at most for each man on the list, and a maximum of 4 relatives for each man on the list.  Supposedly, the man would leave his wife to die outside and take into the shelter one grown child and their spouse and two children.  But most men figured that they were powerful enough that somehow they would be able to buck the system that they had imposed and get more of their own in.

So I asked quite pointedly each of them which 4 of their family members they intended to take in.  Rumsfeld was able to answer without hesitation.  Cheney gave an answer and then changed it to make it look less bad in the eyes of others.  Bush, Jr. said that he was President and thus could take in as many as he liked.  And Bush, Sr. said whom he picked and then picked also for Bush, Jr..  Bush, Jr. objected to the choices picked by Bush, Sr. and said that “time would tell anyway” and maybe none of them would make it to a shelter in time as he might have to launch the war before the plans were ready.  Rumsfeld reminded him that he had promised not to be erratic and give the order until they were ready.  Bush, Jr. asserted his right to make the decision whenever he wanted to.  Then Cheney left the room for a moment to make sure that Bush, Jr.’s order to commit world suicide would not be honored that day by having Bush, Jr.’s phone line turned off.  The remote viewing of that was confirmed a few minutes later by an aide poking his head in the door to say that the White House was having technical difficulties with the phones and that the phone in the Oval Office was affected.  Bush, Jr. said “Not again!” and the aide promised that it would be fixed as soon as possible.  Bush, Jr. said “Last time it took 3 days! Get a different repairman this time” and he laughed at this.  It occurred to me that Bush, Jr. might be on Librium to control alcohol withdrawal and that Cheney took precautions to prevent mishaps at these times. When Cheney came back into the Oval Office, he suggested to Bush, Jr. that he had time to get in some exercise and didn’t need to be bored with hashing out the details.  Bush, Jr. then went off and the discussion continued without him.  

When Cheney came back in he was in a different mood—more contentious.  He tried to pin me down as to how soon Mt. Weather would be ready for a first strike of nuclear holocaust given the construction that Rockefeller was doing.  I said that the construction would be done within months but that was not the issue, surviving was.  He tried to brush off my objection.  Rumsfeld wanted me to go point by point through my report on why a nuclear first strike would not be survivable.  The report that I had written was about 14 pages long, plus an appendix, which was over 200 pages and went through the actual remote viewing analyses.  For example, when one is looking at future events there are different kinds of analyses that can be done to tease out whether one could have overlooked an unlikely outcome.  Those analyses are usually looking for a remote possibility of a nuclear war in order to see what needs to be done to prevent it.  These analyses are extremely important in the transition of the field of remote viewing from a vague fortuneteller style of “you might have an accident in the next year” to a usable intelligence tool of “there is a 3% chance of nuclear war starting in two years as a result of a Politburo decision on July 7 of this year that is spearheaded by this specific hardliner and that can be prevented by doing ethical action X”. What one sees as a viewer are possible futures. My specialty in remote viewing has been to develop the analyses so that those possible futures have reliable probabilities assigned to them.  Since I have a mathematical training and have done much stock prediction in one personality, I have been able to scientifically validate the analyses that I developed.  I teach almost entirely remote viewing analysis. Of the hundred methods of analysis that I regularly teach, almost all of them were developed by me to meet specific needs in assessing the risk of nuclear war and in preventing such risk.  It is because I have these quantitative skills in remote viewing so well developed that I get asked to prognosticate things like the likelihood of US officials surviving a nuclear first strike even when they know that I am against it. 

Rumseld was already familiar with the basics of the type of analyses that I do, but I had to spend about 15 minutes explaining to Cheney how I could say with confidence that a particular event would not happen by a given date. It has to do with holographic mind—a way of seeing all the possibilities at once in a flash of understanding.  Most people have never experienced such an understanding and cannot believe that such a state of mind is possible.  Yet most people can believe that a hologram of an apple when a fragment is cut off still shows the entire apple, if you show it to them using a laser beam. So to convince them I gave them the experience of holographic mind for a while. It is such a different way of understanding the world that most people cannot hold that understanding after they come out of it. All they can do is know that they had the experience of the understanding briefly.  It is like looking at a city map before folding it up again.  You know that you saw it but you couldn’t say much about what it was that you saw and you couldn’t reproduce the map from memory. But having been shown it by someone telling you directions, you can believe that they do know how to direct you to get to your destination. So after I explained holographic analysis and demonstrated it, they no longer questioned my assertions about the probability of the events that I discussed in my report.  None-the-less, Rumsfeld wanted me to go through each point carefully to make sure that I had not overlooked anything. So I did.

When I got to the point of asserting that the survivors would have to stay in the shelter for over 5 years in order to not die in their first month out of it, Rumsfeld wanted to know why I was able to conclude that?  Would no remote viewer be able to bring down the radiation any better than that? I tried to demonstrate that by putting them back into holographic mind but their nausea in witnessing their possible future radiation sickness was too great for them to stand and they refused to continue with the demo.  I said that if they could not even stand to remote view how nauseated they might be in the future that they shouldn’t undertake the course of action that led to that.  

It was during this demonstration of holographic mind that a White House staffer walked into the room supposedly to deliver an urgent message to Cheney.  But once in the room he did not deliver that message, but stood inside the door waiting.  Cheney waved him out again impatiently but the man did not immediately follow the order.  Instead he went to the side of the Oval Office and straightened some papers. Realizing from remote viewing on the spot that he was giving information to the Russians for money, I then got up and ushered the man out of the room. I took the message out of his hand in the process.  On it was written the single word in large flowing backhand “handler”.  I took his presence in the room as his wanting to have the experience of holographic mind to sell that information. I didn’t doubt that he usually manipulated Cheney into accepting his presence in a meeting by invoking fear that Bush, Jr. was in need of a handler near the door to deftly prevent Bush, Jr’s re-entry into a meeting. The proof that the staffer was indeed working for the Russians came from a transfer of money from a known Russian agent to that staffer the next day. Amazingly, in spite of that being uncovered by the White House on the day it happened, they left him in place for 2 days before firing him.  The decision to leave him in place and then to fire him instead of  charging him with espionage was made by Bush, Jr. and not opposed by Cheney according to later CIA reports that I read. The formal duties of that White House Aide included setting up White House meetings, not as the appointment secretary, but as the arranger of furniture and settings.  

Not much later after the mole left the room, Tenet arrived and said that he wanted to “see” what we had viewed so far together.  Everyone tried it again with the same result.  The fact is that one cannot really be an accurate remote viewer unless one doesn’t pull back from “seeing” unpleasant possibilities.  That is particularly true for remote viewers working in the field of nuclear risk assessment.  Because they were not able to view the nausea they would likely have, they were not able to determine the % of possible futures that contained such nausea.  And thus they were unable to determine that there were in fact only such futures, if they chose a nuclear first strike.  It is a sad fact that those most in need of edification are often those most unable to take it in.

As we continued stepping through the report, it dawned on Rumsfeld that I might be right that nuclear first strike would not be survivable.  As Rumsfeld started to agree with me and with Tenet that it was a bad idea, Cheney began attacking me personally.  The attacks were not based on the evidence, but on his perception of me being “disloyal” for not agreeing with him. At first, Rumsfeld and Tenet tried to get him to stick to the topic.  But as he refused and attacked me more, calling me a “terrorist” for daring to defy the “Commander in Chief” by not supporting his wishes in this matter, the other two men retreated into submissiveness. Finally, Rumsfeld asked to at least be allowed to hear me out.  Cheney refused and said that I was poisoning their minds against the plan. He stated that the only reason that Tenet was no longer in favor of the plan was because of his contact with me.  He then started swearing at me and calling me obscenities. 

I told them to get a remote viewer that they could trust and walked out of the Oval Office.  Before I made it out of the building I was handcuffed and escorted back to the Oval Office where I was berated for my “uncooperative attitude”.  I said that I would not speak as long as the handcuffs were on me.  I was sent to the basement holding cell where for two days I did not say a word.  On the third day, the handcuffs were removed and I was escorted back up to a room on the first floor.  There I was given a fresh set of clothes and told to shower.  I did so and was escorted again into the Oval Office.  Bush, Sr. asked me how long it would take for me to train another remote viewer to take my place.  I pointed out that over the decades I had trained hundreds of good viewers, especially for the Office of Naval Intelligence and that they could easily replace me with one of those men.  Bush, Jr. asked me if any of them could affect radiation levels as well as I could, and I replied, “If you want to know, test them.”  That is how it got left.  I was to continue finding ways to make Mt. Weather survivable until I was replaced by one of my students.

Three months passed and I was given additional duties by the CIA and Pentagon and also did some environmental clean-up projects. Psycho-kinesis is very useful for degrading harmful substances into less harmful ones at much faster than expected rates by acting like a catalyst for change.  Miracles are actually possible. But one can’t pray to God and get a miracle of saving the life of a person who is unrepentant.  God just doesn’t do that and it is pointless to expect that, no matter if God otherwise answers some of your prayers.

I know that it is impolite in government work to speak of God—I simply cannot do otherwise in this case and give accurate intelligence that makes sense.  God to me is “the willingness to help others selflessly to be free of suffering.”  If you help someone do something that God does not approve of, then you are adding to their later suffering, not relieving it. Acting contrary to God’s wishes is without power.  Acting in concert with it, allows you to believe for a moment that you are powerful, when in fact one has no power at all, except as an instrument of God’s Will.

The issue of Mt. Weather got pushed onto the back burner. I had several other meetings with Bush, Jr. at the White House over other issues in the meantime that were less contentious. Then about 6 months after they started looking for a replacement for me, I was called to the White House and told to finish training a particular ONI student of mine up to my level of competency in radiation abatement.  That ONI officer that they had selected was the one that had scored the highest on a test for slowing an atomic clock.  Cesium produces radioactivity at a standard rate. When a Geiger counter is used to measure it and records its result on a clock’s face it yields a very accurate recording of time under normal circumstances. Quantum physics shows that the result of an experiment is dependent on the mind of the experimenter and that the human mind has the capacity to alter material properties, including the rate of radioactive emissions. By intending to decrease the emissions of a radioactive substance one can do so if one has faith in one’s ability to do so. If you made the Cesium in a particular atomic clock completely non-radioactive there would be no emission detected and the atomic clock in question would be stopped.  The ONI officer had slowed the rate of radioactive emissions of a particular atomic clock. It advanced a little less than one hour in a twenty-four hour period, having cut the radiation to one twenty-eighth of what was expected.  In front of Bush, Jr., I asked the naval officer to repeat the experiment while knowing that the US elite planned to use his skill to bale them out after killing off the rest of the humans on the planet.  The naval officer fainted dead away.  After he recovered from the shock, the test was repeated back at ONI HQ’s.  The atomic clock advanced 26 hours in 24 hours under these conditions, which means that the radioactive emission of the Cesium was higher and thus more toxic.  The ONI then tested another 3 of their best psycho-kinesis officers with this unethical scenario with clock results that varied from 18 hours to 32 hours in day’s test. They even insisted on re-testing me at this task with the result that the clock ran 24-hours in a 24-hour period and I was accused of not trying.  On three previous tests in the late 1990’s I had been able to stop the clock for an hour, or allow it to advance only five minutes in 24 hours for 3 days in a row as I was requested to do. 

I had previously at the Nevada Test Site and at another undisclosed location demonstrated the ability to completely negate the radiation effect of individual nuclear explosions. If the truth be told, I had over-corrected during one of these tests, bring the radiation down to about one-tenth of the normal background radiation in a well-defined pattern.  A few minutes later, I corrected this “error” and restored the level back up to the background level so as to not leave a local anomaly at the site.  It was partly because of this exceptional result that the US administration refused to believe that I could not do what they wanted.  They have no understanding of spiritual law and how such effects are achieved.  Just because God helped Moses part the Red Sea to rescue the Israelites from slavery, does not mean that Moses could part the Red Sea to turn around and attack Egypt.  In the instances in which I decreased the radiation so well, I was showing the US govt. why it was not necessary to weaponize space with a Star Wars anti-ballistic missile system. The human mind acting under God’s protection is enough to defend one’s country from attack.  

Instead of relying on God and truth, various schemes were then hatched by the US administration as to how to keep the remote viewer from finding out that he would be used to rescue mass murderers from radiation.  I wrote a theoretical paper as to why such a strategy would not work, including as a reason that I had already intended that such a scheme not work as it was unethical.  That drew me substantial death threats and assassination attempts for a week. Those died down when they did not cause the result that they wanted—my backing down on my assertions. Last I heard they had gone back to trying to get their high priests to succeed at the job. The best of those, I am told through the grapevine, can get the clock to slow to 18 hours out of 24, which is not much of a result.

It is an issue that deserves further attention, as plans to destroy the planet’s human life are very serious indeed.

Part III: Alternatives to Oil

In an attempt to convince the US administration that it was not necessary to kill people to have enough oil, I undertook a series of demonstrations, which are beyond the scope of this report.  Remote viewing allows one to investigate problems and find creative solutions very quickly.  It is thus a quintessential tool for inventors. Over a period of 6 months I developed four new processes (that got patented by the US patent office) to decrease the reliance on fossil fuels.  As yet they have not found their way into commercial use—my torture in Aug. 2004 interrupted that process.  Needless to say I do not believe that diminishing oil reserves are a limiting factor in economic or human well-being.

Briefly the patents cover the following technological areas needed to bridge the gap as oil declines:

1) Clean energy production—in this case I devised a means of production of energy that would restore the ozone layer in the upper atmosphere as a by-product. This was tested as an Air Force plane propulsion system in an experimental prototype and was found to be successful in practice and cost-effective.

2) A substitute for plastics---this is just one of many possible substitutions that I devised through remote viewing, two of which I gave to Russian scientists to develop to help their economy.  The one I patented in the US used cellulose from sawdust as a starting point.  But it could equally well start with used paper products or cardboard. The formulas I gave the Russians started with salt as the basic building block or manure.  When one sees the beneficial uses of sand to make glass, one understands that whatever one has in one’s environment can be used with great creativity.

3) A substitute for solvents and machine oils—the originals are toxic so I wanted to not duplicate the compounds but make non-toxic counterparts.  I used as a base palm kernel oil which is currently used inappropriately in cooking as it contributes to clogging of the arteries. From this base I developed 5 main products and three lesser ones. By mixing proportions of these all the commonly needed solvents and oils can be obtained. It is rather like mixing paints to get the right color to match.  The usual way of describing oils by the length of the carbon chains I found not to be an accurate enough way to describe their properties, so I devised a new theory of viscosity to match what I observed as I remote viewed these substances.  The patent briefly explains this new theory and why 5 main products is enough to use as the “base paints”.  However, it does little to explain why there are three lesser volume additives and why that is all that will be needed to duplicate the oil-based products.  This was a deliberate “over-sight” on my part—a kind of insurance against my death or false imprisonment.

4) The last category is not so clearly related to oil as the others and in some sense represents a radical departure from an oil-based mentality.  Yet a subset of this advance does solve a substantial problem related to diminishing oil reserves—a replacement for asphalt.  Since asphalt is toxic and unaesthetic to begin with, there was no point in replicating it.  What I proposed and showed would work was a strategy for completely getting rid of it. Since my demos on this succeeded the US Air Force has funded a 7.5 million dollar study of this new technology which if adopted would eliminate the need for runways, freeways, and the paving over of paradise. 

Actually I have watered down the presentation of these new technologies significantly in order for others to be able to not be overcome by incredulity.  Remote viewing, using all of the all-knowing mind, makes one appear to be a genius when in fact all one is doing is standing downwind of God’s beneficence and gathering up the bounty.  God provides for all of our needs perfectly if we but have faith in His willingness to do so.  Since Christ multiplied the bread and the fish, how can we even assert that there will not be enough oil in the future? Will there not be saints in the future also?  Will the politicians in their foolishness have them all killed or imprisoned and thus prevent the very miracles that they need for their own survival?

People used to live happy and meaningful lives before they developed motors and relied on oil based products.  People will be better off when they give up their dependence on oil—the planet and the people on it were less polluted before it.  Lack of creativity is a sign of over-reliance on destruction and under reliance on generation as a systematic bias in one’s thinking.  Our modern culture worships the power of causing death, suffering, and limitation and has suffered as a result of this shortsightedness.

Part IV: Reverse Christianity Drives the Impetus to Nuclear Holocaust

Before I launch into the next important aspect related to the US’s intention to cause nuclear war, I want to touch briefly on the history of the religion that is behind this US intention.  Although it is generally held that most people who say that they are Christians are so, the real test of whether that is true is whether when assaulted they fight back or turn the other cheek, and whether they try to harm their enemies or help them.  Given these easy tests it is clear that most people who say they are Christians are in fact practicing the opposite, a form of reverse Christianity that builds war machines and drops bombs. Such reverse Christianity is often mistaken for the real thing with disastrous consequences.  I want to make quite clear that for an intelligence service not to make a clear distinction in these matters is to risk working for the opposite of goodness and for one’s own destruction as a result.  Such a mistake cannot be condoned or let slide because the life of the planet is at stake.  One should cooperate even with one’s enemies in all that is good and Christ/agape directed and one should resist all that is bad and fear/anger directed.  If you miss your way in making these discriminations than you will serve your own suffering and demise.  Be careful and diligent in the use of your discriminating wisdom.

When a person is dedicated to killing instead of creating as a way to solve their problems, that killing can take on a religious significance to them, complete with rituals that incorporate the sacrifice of life.  Many ancient cultures, like the Mayans and the Aztecs, and even the Old Testament, reveled in the death of others and had rituals such as to cut out the heart of a victim and eat it.  Such barbaric customs have persisted into modern times in a sub-segment of the population in spite of a prohibition by the law against such practices.  In order to continue their religion of death, its practitioners have formed secret societies to circumvent the law.  They have sought to become “the law of the land” by taking hold of the reins of State and police.  They have sought to control the media to prevent the reporting of their crimes.  And they had sought to prevent their victims from speaking out by discrediting them as crazy or unreliable witnesses.

Ex-Nebraska legislator John DeCamp has shown in his book The Franklin Cover-Up how this reverse Christianity is tied to US politics.  He has gotten some of its lesser figures prosecuted and put in jail.  He has bravely opposed the prostitution and human sacrifice of children by US politicians. And he has managed to prove in court that victims of such abuse exist and deserve compensation.

Psychiatrist Colin Ross has courageously exposed the False Memory Syndrome Foundation as a CIA front designed to discredit victims who remember such abuse.  Also in his book Bluebird: the deliberate creation of multiple personalities by psychiatrists he reveals through CIA documents released under the Freedom of Information Act how the CIA has raped the minds of victims along with their very identities.

Memory, Trauma, and the Law by law professors Brown and Scheflin, which won a prestigious American psychiatry award, concluded that recovered memory is as accurate as any other type of memory.  Namely that all memory is “recovered”, all memory is good for the gist of the events and less good for peripheral detail, and recovered memories should be treated by the courts the same as other memories—as eye-witness testimony. 

Having said all that, I want to now give a little bit of eye-witness testimony about the reverse Christianity that I witnessed the results of at the White House under ex-President Bush, Sr..  First, I will have to say that I am not an impartial witness in this matter as I myself have been a victim of sexual and espionage enslavement under DCI’s ranging from Helms to Tenet and including Bush, Sr..  That is to say that I have been forced into their beds against my will. Other survivors, such as Brice Taylor have been “Presidential Models” as sex slaves.  Due to my abilities as an oracle I was not infrequently kept at the beck and call of DCI’s night and day, including into the bedroom.  During that I also was not infrequently a victim of “so-called domestic abuse” at the hands of these same men, including Bush, Sr. and McLaughlin.  It would be nice to pretend that such things did not happen but that would be to insult your intelligence and to maintain a fiction that would be hard to believe without that aspect of the truth.  So now you will understand why I was able to call up Tenet from Mt. Weather and why he would make a point of coming out to talk to me as there was more involved than the usual “business relationship”. 

The Mind-Body Interaction

My weight and looks are variable. Multiples sometimes have surprising features of their make-up, both mentally and physically.  One personality can have diabetes or anaphylaxis to bee stings and the others not.  Stigmatics may be similarly variable--- bleeding from wounds one day but the next day the skin miraculously healed up without a trace.  Saints have been known to bi-locate—manifesting two or even more bodies at the same time.  Or even levitate or teleport. And there are reports of people raised from death to life. So many of our concepts about what is and is not possible for a human body have to be revised.  Newtonian physics had to be revised to better describe the world as it really occurs as opposed to our narrow rigid concepts of how it should behave.  In Quantum physics mind and matter act on each other. The result of an experiment on matter depends on the mind of the experimenter.  Just so, the body of a personality depends on the mind of that personality.

White House Autopsies

Under Bush, Sr. I was forced to act in my medical capacity in a non-standard way when the White House pathologist died of less than natural causes and had to be replaced.  My duties included faking autopsies which carried his signature as if he were still alive. These autopsy reports were used to falsify the causes of death, the location of death, and cover-up the crimes committed in the White House’s torture chamber in the basement. Failure to adequately falsify an autopsy report had lead to the death of that pathologist.  So it was clear what I could expect my fate to be if I did not do a better cover-up job than he had done. He was a pathologist at Walter Reed Hospital and all of the autopsy reports that I wrote up attributing the deaths to auto accidents, etc. were on that Army hospital’s letterhead. The bodies themselves were incinerated in the White House basement, adjacent to the morgue. That the White House has a well-equipped torture chamber in its basement is not theoretical to me, I have been tortured in it myself.  It is directly across the hallway from the morgue, a visible reminder to me as to the necessity for forging the autopsy records skillfully.  Although I am willing to take stands that result in my being tortured by the US govt.  I do so selectively according to an internal cost-benefit analysis that others might not understand.

During Bush, Sr.’s reign as President I performed 37 autopsies in the White House morgue.  Many of those were children.  Most of them had been tortured and then ritually killed with a knife to cut their heart out.  Additional wounds were often symmetrical knife wounds in the chest and belly.  Such symmetrical wounds are rarely seen in crimes of passion, or even pre-meditated assaults.  They are almost always due to deliberate rituals of a satanic nature.  To have seen so many of these wounds in a series of patients indicates that reverse Christianity was practiced at that location.  I could say more of an eye-witness nature regarding these matters, but then I would have to deal with them in my mind.  I did at one point discuss the autopsies with then President Bush, Sr. in the Oval Office.  I politely but firmly said that many of the corpses that I was receiving in the White House morgue should never have ended up dead in the first place and that unless there were better controls on how people got there I predicted that there would be grave trouble. Bush, Sr. did not act surprised to hear of the traffic of corpses in the morgue; he was the one that had assigned me to do the autopsies in the first place.  Nor did he question my report on the number of bodies I was seeing or on the mutilations that were in evidence upon them, which I outlined.  He said that he would look into the matter and dismissed me from the room.  The number of corpses did go down to about a fourth of what it had been previously, though otherwise there was no change. The mutilations that occurred before death as judged by standard forensic considerations continued. 

Since I was later forced to take Bush, Sr. and Bush, Jr. on a tour of part of Yugoslavia during the war, while Clinton was in office, I have more than enough eye-witness testimony on reverse Christianity being practiced by the Bush family, including the killing of others on the battlefield and the eating of their raw hearts as a ritual sacrifice. Such matters are highly unpleasant to mention and I hope that the reader will forgive me mentioning them.  I do so because it is relevant intelligence to the issue of whether Bush, Jr. would indeed order a nuclear war.  

Relevant to that is the historical fact of other wars being started and waged as offerings to satan to gain favor and riches from the “dark side”.  In this context I offer other first-hand knowledge that I have in these matters as an insider to US military-intelligence-industrial complex matters spanning almost half a century of experience.

Reverse Christianity Practices Driving the Vietnam War

During the Vietnam War, shortly after the Tet Offensive, I was sent by Helms to the Pentagon to look for moles sabotaging the US war effort.  I was a young girl and offering me sexually to General Westmoreland was the way that I was inserted on one level.  On a more outer level, I was sent into the Pentagon’s War Room ostensibly to play “war games” with General Westmoreland.  This was seen by some as a way of training a bright promising young mind to be an expert military strategist, and by others as a way to embarrass General Westmoreland for not doing a better job of winning the war.  As I played war games with General Westmoreland using actual battlefield situations in Vietnam I watched his mind to see if he was serious about trying to win.  What I noticed was that his actions led to excessive deaths and that these deaths were associated with dollar amounts in his mind, $25 for each US death and $2.50 for each Vietnamese death.  It will be recalled that under General Westmoreland there was a great emphasis on body counts, presumably to verify that the US was “winning”. Not content to leave this important finding in the realm of “mind-reading” intelligence that might be discounted by others, I proceeded to confirm it by outer methods with the help of CIA.  The correlation of the number of war dead with monthly transfers of money from Nelson Rockefeller’s accounts to Westmoreland’s was not hard to make once one knew what one was looking for.  But I also wanted to prove that Westmoreland was witting to the scheme.  To do that I told Westmoreland that, given the street value of the heroin that could be packed into the chest cavity of each US dead soldier, his cut of $25 was too low and I could tell him how to negotiate it upward.  Instead of saying that he did not know what I was talking about, he took my advice and re-negotiated his contract up to $80 per US dead.  It was not long after the CIA verified this through the transfer of funds that Westmoreland was replaced as Commander in Vietnam.  The next General dropped the emphasis on body counts of the VC as a means of judging the war’s success.

Not much later, at age 16, I was sent by Helms to be a sex slave to Nelson Rockefeller.  I was able to verify that the Rockefellers had an occult formula that they relied on relating death, torture, and rape, etc. to promises made by the forces of darkness for financial gain.  The deaths in Vietnam were being offered to satan in exchange for his favor, much the way that Catholics offer lighted candles to the Virgin Mary.  Except that in this case the scale was vast and what was being offered was the suffering and deaths of others. 

Reverse Christianity in the Iraq War of 1991

 Right before the start of Iraq War #1, I went with Rodman Rockefeller, another of my “masters” to a private DC party in which Bush, Sr. dedicated the deaths of that war as an offering to satan.  According to the rules of such a function, the first violence after the dedication is the predominate offering to satan. After the formal dedication of Iraq War #1, I slapped Rodman and handed him back the Catherine the Great emerald necklace that he had given me from the Metropolitan Museum’s collection and said “You can have me or the war but not both.”  That meant that the offering to satan was a paltry slap, not the human sacrifice that was planned for that evening as a kick off to the War.  Only a fairly good escape artist could have succeeded at leaving the estate as it was surrounded by security guards.  I did realize that I would likely be tortured again for disrupting the ceremony this way, but I could not do otherwise as I did not want to be party to either the human sacrifice or the war, especially not as an offering to satan.  There are some things so heinous that torture must be borne to prevent one’s complicity in them.

Several Rockefellers have asked me over the ensuing decades whether the occult formula to calculate the expected financial rewards of making offerings to satan of the suffering and deaths of others is accurate.  They have especially asked me when they felt that satan was gypping them.  The truth from a remote viewing perspective is as disquieting as it is distasteful.  Offerings to satan appear to pay in the short run almost with mathematical precision when done on these large scales. But that raises the question of whether, for individuals as opposed to nations, war pays dividends reliably.  That was a question David Rockefeller assigned me to answer after I finished the historical study of war for the CIA.  I spent almost 3 years part-time researching this.  The findings I gave to David Rockefeller in person in the form of a report of about 225 pages.  They are hardly surprising.  Gamblers delude themselves into believing that they are winning something valuable at the gaming tables while they are ruining their health, their good names, and their future happiness in the act of gambling.  And that is true whether they are at any given moment winning or losing at the tables.  To commit crimes is like winning in-house money that sounds like real winnings until one goes to cash-out and finds the tokens worthless. The winning by committing crimes is totally illusory.  But one doesn’t find that out until the cash-out at the time of death.  Needless to say, David Rockefeller was not happy with my analysis and refuses to speak to me now. He refuses to believe in life beyond death. That shortsightedness of some may mean the death of the planet for all of us. Those who refuse to believe in life after death are not necessarily adverse to causing the deaths of many.  Some people just like to hurt others because they themselves have been so badly hurt as children and have no other mode of operation.

The nuclear war is being planned as an offering to satan, which is why they want to schedule it for a solstice.  I have seen the actual White House documents at Mt. Weather that set up the procedures for gathering the “guests”, performing the human sacrifice ritual, and then ordering the war.  There was in those documents a discussion of the best dates according to the satanic calendar, some of which have already past.  There are quite a few tasks that they consider relevant to do first that would take up to another 3 years to complete.  Having a remote viewer that they trust to be able to control the radiation levels later is just one of these, and probably not even the most important one from their point of view.  I do not believe that they require their likely survival as a condition for doing it.  They believe that they will go to Hell for what they have done already and want to make sure that their place their will be as Princes by pleasing satan.  They are honestly under the delusion of believing satan’s lies that as Princes of Hell they will have luxury beyond measure and not suffer like the ordinary denizens of Hell.  Alas, that is a lie than they have refused to let me correct for them.  Remote viewing shows that Hell does exist and that there are no exceptions to the rule of suffering for those who reside there. It is simply incorrect that great evil will be rewarded by satan and save those committing it from suffering.  It breaks my heart to see men, even those who have hurt me greatly, suffer so horribly in the future.  I pray that they may be relieved of their delusions and be brought to Christ’s forgiveness before they commit more harm. I pray that I may have all their suffering and they may have all my good-fortune and merit so that I may not have to watch their suffering in Hell while being unable to rescue them from it.  But in truth, it is impossible for those wanting to help others out of Hell to stay there.

Those documents were given to me to review and comment upon the reverse spiritual efficacy of their planned actions because they do not fully trust their own high priests. A love of truth comes from God and goodness.  A love of lies comes from darkness.  They do know that God’s truth brings more accurate intelligence.  Most of the time they prefer to hear lies from their “Yes-men” than to consult me.  But some matters they consider so important that they do consult me on them; whether they would survive at Mt. Weather, how to survive at Mt. Weather, and whether their plans for the ritual before launching nuclear war will work are among these.  The answer I gave them on those plans was to cry in front of them about the suffering that I foresee for them, that is worse, not better if they launch the war.  They did not fully believe me.  They wanted to have a different answer and went back to another of their high priests to get it. Secretly they know the truth in their hearts but they are too frightened to face what they have already done to acknowledge it.  They are unable to believe that God will forgive them.  They are unable to believe that others will forgive them.  They are unable to forgive themselves.

We are all sinners.  We have all made horrible mistakes in our lives.  We have all acted in ways that many others would not forgive.  We are humans, not saints, as much as we would like to be otherwise. We must do our best to forgive them and to stop them by all non-violent means available to us.  They are human beings like us who have lost their way and do not know how to find their way home to Christ’s Love.  

Lord, make us an instrument of Thy Peace.

Where there is hatred let us sow Love.

Where there is injury, Pardon….

Part V:Tasks the US administration wanted done before starting a nuclear war:

This is taken from an actual document that I was shown at Mr. Weather since I was asked how soon these tasks could be completed.  That document was an “eyes only” document and I am writing down its gist from memory.  I subsequently saw a whole book at the CIA’s headquarters that detailed the points much better than the original document. It was kept in Tenet’s vault or in his office when he was referring to it.  He had made notes in the margin, including crossing out parts of it and tearing out a few of the pages.  It was filled with anger and rage.

The tasks to be completed fall into 3 broad categories:

1. Pleasing satan so that the nuclear war will be an offering that is successful in securing a pain free place in Hell for the authors of the plan;

· Create global insecurity, terror, and chaos by fearful news

· Create rigid concepts of good and evil

· Create an unbearable spiritual tension between what is required of one to be a good person and what you can manage to do in the setting you are in

· Make forgiveness unobtainable from others and ultimately from God by forcing people to be so bad that they are afraid to pray or ask for help

· Make people so poor that they will kill just to eat

· Corrupt other religions and their leaders with scandals so that people have no religious leaders in whom they can trust

· Turn parents and children against each other by building a wall of mistrust between them to deny them the comfort of family

· Addict people to drugs by running them into local communities

· Prevent meaningful interactions with others, such as by automating everything

· Cause global economic collapse through deficit spending, such as war spending that helps no one

· Make everyone’s mind angry and dissatisfied such as with rap music

· Maximize anger at the time of death so that everyone goes to Hell—the goal is that no one will pray to God during the end in order to deny everyone the chance of going to Heaven.

2. Ensuring to the extent possible that they survive the nuclear war.

· Have Mt. Weather and other underground facilities ready

· Have a (willing) psycho-kinesis person who can decrease radiation reliably and well

· Have the means worked out and tested to transport all the principals to those facilities within 2–3 hours

· Eliminate racial and social difficulties later by making sure that no “racially inferior” or “socially inferior” people survive the planned Holocaust.

3. Securing the world’s oil fields to the extent possible to avoid the oil burning during the nuclear war so that they will have it themselves if they survive.

People who have not seen the documents and discussed these matters as I have with the US administration and with Tenet will find it hard to believe that men could make such plans.  But then they would also find it hard to believe that people actually do human sacrifices.  The degree of selfishness in such endeavors is beyond the pale of most people’s imagination.  But I assure you that the tortures at Abu Gharib did occur, that those at Auschwitz did exist, and that the line between those events is through the continuation of a reverse Christianity that most people are afraid to know about but that nevertheless exists in some prominent places.  Who would have believed that the Final Solution would have been formulated?  Who would have believed that it would claim so many millions of lives?  Who would have believed that the Nazis won the intelligence war when Nazi spy-master Gehlen got Truman to sign the CIA into existence? (See included Nazi Mind Control History.doc ) 

Who would have believed that the Nazi-war machine’s banker, Prescott Bush’s family would come to power in the US? (See Bush - Nazi Dealings Continued Until 1951.doc and How Bush's grandfather helped Hitler's rise to power.doc  http://www.nhgazette.com/cgi-bin/NHGstore.cgi?user_action=detail&catalogno=NN_Bush_Nazi_2 )

And yet all this and more has happened and is documented.  So given that the Nazis had a Final Solution that they failed to accomplish, is it any great wonder that they would try again to find a Final Solution?  It did not stop them before that their plan was cruel, absurd, and likely to fail.  They do not put much stock in honest intelligence or even in Science, unless it served their fantasy life.  They hope to cheat and torture their way into success, not earn it with careful ethical planning. That makes it harder to predict how long it will be before they feel ready to launch a nuclear war because they are likely to fudge the steps that they still have planned instead of taking them honestly which would take more time.  

Five Remote Viewers Were Asked about the Final Solution’s Timing

About 2 weeks before Tenet resigned, Deputy Executive Director of CIA McLaughlin asked me to make an assessment of how soon the nuclear war could be launched.  Let me say that I was the 5th remote viewer whom the administration had asked. 3 of the other 4 were students of mine and the 4th was a German working for the Bildenberg group. I had all 4 of their reports in front of me when McLaughlin asked me to review their conclusions and append my own.  Since I was busy in the Cheney-Tenet negotiations over who would take the fall for 9-11 and then over Tenet’s war-profit benefits if he resigned, I didn’t initially have time to address the review.  That did not really get underway until July, 2004 and I never gave an opinion in the matter because of subsequent events in Aug. 2004.  However, I did form some opinions on the matter from the viewing that I did at that time and since.

Remote Viewer’s Accuracy Ratings

Before I go into that I want to mention why the CIA believed that I could prognosticate future events.  So far in this document I have not stated what my accuracy rating was in remote viewing for either past events, current ones, or future ones.  The CIA’s rating system judges these separately and uses a variety of tests to make those determinations.  Some of those are quite formal tests that are given to all remote viewers they use as a matter of routine.  And other tests are specific to given tasks that a remote viewer might be asked to do.  And a few of them are specific to an individual’s area of expertise and might never have been given to other remote viewers at all. Because I had been handling the stock portfolio of the Rockefellers for many years and making predictions about the value of stocks in the future, I had a track record as an accurate remote viewer for numeric data up to 10 years into the future. How accurate? That depends on a kind of Heisenberg Uncertainty Principle for Ethics.  Where the stock was invested ethically, my accuracy was greater than a 90% chance of being on the dollar, even 10 years down the line.  Where a stock was invested unethically, i.e. the investor was witting to it causing harm to others, my accuracy was little better than chance alone.  And then there was a whole range in between. My accuracy was almost entirely a function of how ethical the underlying enterprise was.

Now, that is not the case for all remote viewers.  Some of them operate almost independently from the underlying ethical considerations. But being blind to the ethical implications of their answers means that they are ignoring some of the relevant data in the Akashic records  (God’s timeless knowledge) as they answer.  This means that they are not in such a holographic mind as they answer and that their answers are not as accurate from a theoretical point of view.  This is borne out in practice and it is something that I have studied extensively as it is my job as a trainer to produce good quality remote viewers.  I mention all this because it is relevant to understanding how the 4 people who answered before me varied from each other and from my assessments in this matter.  For my students I had their files and their accuracy ratings.  Some of the accuracy rating systems I had designed myself so I knew their precise meaning.  Because the CIA commonly asks remote viewers to give opinions on unethical proposals, one of the tests that I had devised was to detect those of my students who were “blind” to the issues of ethics. Such students had lower but more consistent accuracy. Since I was no better than chance in making judgments on unethical proposals, the CIA thus almost always routed such judgments to these other viewers.  But because of my startling good accuracy on ethical matters, I did keep getting asked inappropriately to comment on unethical matters as well.  And sometimes I could not get out of making such comments.

Of the three viewers, two were ethically “blind” with known accuracy ratings in prognosticating future events of 62% and 74% respectively.  Namely, if the person said that a series of bombs would explode at the WTC on 9-11 and take down the buildings, that event was that percentage likely to occur on that day. The first viewer said that the US would be able to complete all of its tasks deemed needed in 4 years and 2 months. That was the person with the 62% accuracy.  The person with the 74% accuracy said 6 years would be earliest. The third person was not ethically blind and said that the tasks could never be completed up to a satisfactory level as they were “internally conflicted”.  He went on to say that in spite of the tasks not being completed that they were likely to be falsely judged to be completed after 3 years and 8 months at the earliest.  He added that if the tasks were incorrectly judged to be completed when they were not that he foresaw great harm occurring across the whole planet.  This viewer committed suicide soon after rendering his opinion much to my regret.  His overall rating for accuracy of future events was 87%. 

I had no accuracy ratings for the Bildenberg viewer but I had heard of him by reputation as one of the best of the “ethically blind” pre-cognitives with a rating of about 82% using slightly different criteria than used at the CIA.  It was his opinion that all the requisite tasks could be successfully completed in 7 years, “if the Fuhrer wants it to be so with diligence”.  Then he added a curious comment that leaders these days tend to be lazy and so that 14 years would not be too long to consider undertaking such an important and momentous task for the “good of Mankind”.  But he recommended planning for the tasks to take up to 16 years because of inevitable delays and the gravity of the tasks.

Part V:B A Discussion of Tests Run on Psychokinesis relative to nuclear war

Psychokinesis is a very broad subject and those unfamiliar with the topic are likely to make a number of unjustified assumptions about it that I would like to dispel before we get into the details of it.  First off, people believe that the mind is separate from so-called outer reality.  Quantum physics experiments have proven that to be a false assumption—the results of experiments are dependent upon the mind-set, the pre-conceived notions of the experimenter.  Everyone is aware that once one athlete broke the 4-minute mile, quickly others followed—people then believed that it was possible and pursued it as a goal.  That is, they then had the intention of running it in under 4 minutes—an intention that they had not formed before.  One cannot accomplish a goal that one does not have—except by rare accidents of fate.

Second, people believe that outer reality is comprised of matter that has mass and size, and that moving a large heavy object is harder than moving a small light one.  If one has such a view of the world, one will be hard pressed to move anything at all given that most people view thoughts and intentions as so unsubstantial as to not be able to move a feather.  However, if one changes one’s mind and thinks of outer reality as no more substantial than the dream fabric of the night—a flimsy mind state that dissipates immediately and automatically when one awakes or changes one’s state of consciousness—then having an intention may easily shift the whole scene including the very scenery, or mountains.  It is not unusual in a dream for one scene to completely dissolve and become another.  So why should moving mountains with you intention be anything surprising to you?  It is only the case because you have bought into the concept of an external reality of matter that is separate from your mind. In quantum physics not even a single atom can be shown to exist, but you believe in the solidity of rocks as if it was a proven fact.  It is not a fact.  It is an illusion in the Dreamtime. 

Yet there are some rules of cause and effect that still apply in the Dreamtime, some invariants, if you will. Hindu, Buddhist, Christian, Jewish, and Moslem saints, masters of the Dreamtime, all agree on what those rules are.  They are observable facts, if one takes the time to investigate.  They are as accurate as financial transactions at Swiss banks. It is just that the rules are not as simplistic as most religious tenet writers put to paper. So others, seeing what appears to be loopholes or inconsistencies, believe that they are not inviolable. That is due to inattention to details and wishful thinking.  The workings of karma/sin-virtue are certainties.  It is through paying strict attention to them that one can develop certainty of one’s results.  In the arena of preventing nuclear war and annihilation of the species and planet, nothing less is worthwhile.

Good lamas and Zen masters, on hearing about someone’s wrong doing say “Oh, I am so sorry.”  From the point of view of non-duality, all faults are one’s own.  There is literally no one else to blame other than one’s self for the state of the world---all the actors are manifestations of one’s own mind and its defilements.  There are no Hitlers, Saddam Husseins, or Bin Ladens, or corrupt politicians separate from one’s own dream creating them from one’s own desire to harm or frighten one’s self or others.  Although this is an unpleasant realization, ultimately it is liberating because one no longer has to change anyone else to effect change in the world.  All one has to do is change one’s self, one’s own mind.  And that is hard enough to do--but certainly not impossible.  Though Gandhi likened it to trying to empty an ocean by bailing out water with a teacup.

Of course, then, what I am talking about is a radically different state of mind than the so-called normal one.  It is a state of mind in which all change is possible, and only depends upon oneself.  In this state of mind the only obstacle to the accomplishment of one’s goals is oneself. When one works for “part of oneself” over another “part of yourself”, then of course parts of you resist. These parts of yourself can appear to be other people or other nations or other environments even. Ultimately one loses one’s boundaries is order to become the whole.  Then one is rock, missile, tank, or plane, as much as person. There literally is nothing that can stand in your way except “yourself”. Doing anything is merely a matter of changing your mind about something—with total conviction—the kind of conviction that allows one to run into a burning building to save someone—selfless conviction born of deep seated agape That is not to say that it is easy to give up attachment to the appearance of “things” in the dream, particularly one’s own form and the illusion of its comfort.  

Depending on how one intends in the dreamtime, the results of one’s intentions appear to manifest in just one’s private experience or also in the experience of so-called others.  For example, in the case of playing war games with tanks, some students of psychokinesis will have a tank disappear from their view, or from a few people’s view, but not from everyone’s view.  A master of psychokinesis should have control over how the result manifests and not leave it to chance. If the intention is to disable the destructive potential of a nuclear missile heading towards a target, then it should disappear from everyone’s point of view.  However, if the intention is to get people to minimize their time in Hell, then it is better for those who are headed there to suffer from nuclear war and burn off some of the sin through suffering before they die.  At least, that is the case assuming that they do not further compound their misdeeds as a result. Parallel universes can be invoked so that only those who advance the goal of nuclear war actually suffer from it. This is very important to understand because those pushing the world towards annihilation have anger in their minds directed towards others that they want to cause to suffer or die.  Yet those people, by the very fact of that anger and partiality of mind do not have certainty of action.  They cannot ensure that it is others, and not themselves and those that they are attached to, that will end up the victims. In actual fact, their anger will cause them to suffer in the nuclear war with certainty and not even be able to die a quick death from it. It is a promise that God has already made and they do not have the ability to undo.  What they do have the ability to do, if they so choose, is to repent of their anger and plans for nuclear war, and beg God’s forgiveness.  Then if they destroy the weapons and the threat to everyone that is the result of their existence, they too can avoid the intense suffering of radiation sickness, and the much worse fires and suffering of Hell itself.  If the US govt. did not believe in Hell, then why have they commanded their remote viewers not to investigate its existence, its conditions, and how beings end up there.  It is critical intelligence for making an informed decision.  Would you invest in a bank before checking its credit rating and solvency?  Why believe instead in the words of a govt. that cannot even run an occupation successfully in a third world country? They have no certainty of action and their approval ratings show that the public knows it.  So how can you keep your blinders on without massive doses of intentional ignorance--- called stupidity? Is it good to emulate stupidity?  Will stupidity save you from suffering?  Or is it a failed option, one that never had a chance to help anyone, let alone a govt. that inherited nuclear weapons?

Ultimately, it is the case that different people experience the same event differently anyway.  But this effect is greatly exaggerated when a strong intender is trying to get the optimal result for everyone in terms of minimizing their future suffering.  For example, when Christ preformed miracles, some people saw people being healed or were healed themselves.  Others without faith only saw a faker making trouble and wanted him stopped even if it took killing him to do so.  The results that people got from coming to see Christ depended on their own state of mind.  That said, I will now talk about some of the experiments that the US military did on psychokinesis and what they said about the results of them.  

One of the tests that I participated in was on whether psychokinesis could be used to disable incoming nuclear missiles.  This was a test that I designed myself as I had complained that Star Wars was ludicrous as one could do better, without technical difficulties or cost, just by intending the result that one wanted.  Because I had made these comments at a JCS meeting during Reagan’s second term, one of the generals present asked for me to put on a demo that Reagan could easily attend—as opposed to one out at the Nevada Test Site like some of the earlier ones that I had been involved in.  As a result, I was standing in the Oval Office with Reagan at the time that this particular teat was run and the Pentagon was monitoring the results and conveying the results to Reagan by phone.  Three planes were sent up and asked to fire missiles at a target---in this case the missiles were non-nuclear that fragmented into hundreds of pieces mimicking a multiple warhead nuclear weapon. The pieces were luminescent—like phosphorus tracers and easy to see in the night sky as well as to photograph.  The military made a number of runs, conducted at a distant base in Okalahoma, if I remember correctly.  Then they asked me to “deflect the rounds”.  At first they believed that the missiles were not firing from the planes because they saw no tracers.  But when the planes landed, indeed the missiles were missing.  As the evening progressed, they asked me to let the tracers start to show and then disappear so they could see where the psychokinesis was occurring in the sky.  Remember that this is happening half a continent away from my physical location per their thinking.  The next run recorded on film showed dots of light followed by darkness.  They were of such brief duration that only a few of them were caught on the film, so they asked me to let the tracers show for longer.  Now I am calling them tracers because they were luminescent but in fact they were large missiles of phosphorus on the order of a ton each. They lit up the sky very brightly before I was asked to demonstrate their psychokinetic destruction. Because the military wanted to track their psychokinetic decay, which was really instantaneous, I had to change my intention to a slower decay.  So I let the missiles fizzle out like a balloon that is released without being tied.  That gave a thin strand of light rather like a large firefly for each fragment. Although the pretests had lots of phosphorus hitting the ground in pieces, and setting fields on fire, my runs had no fires starting and later examination in the morning did not find any phosphorus on the ground below.  The military had trouble believing that it had the right area and insisted on repeating the test.  The second test was done the next day during daylight at another base, in the desert.  In this case the military spread out large blue plastic tarps and looked for burns and melted plastic to judge how well I had done in destroying the missiles with my mind.  Again, when we started they did not believe that I had destroyed the missiles even though the planes came back without them, since they saw nothing.  So I ended up having to let a trace of the phosphorus start its burn and drop to the ground before getting rid of the rest so that they would believe me and believe that the missiles were over the plastic tarp area which was about the length of a runway and about 20 feet wide.  I am a bit of a prankster so I arranged the first drops of the phosphorus to be in even lines on only the first tarp.  One general later accused me of rigging the test though in fact I was more than half a continent away and everything I did occurred by the use of my mind not my hands as he accused me of. 

The real issue was whether one could evaporate a nuclear weapon without having radioactive dust hit the ground.  So the next test was one of putting uranium in a conventional missile as a dirty bomb.  This was done at the Nevada Test Site in case I failed and again I was not on site.  I was standing in Casey’s office at CIA HQ at the time with Reagan on the phone.  The size of the bomb was about 500 lbs and the amount of radiation would have been substantial.  The fallout downwind could have been a real problem and some generals had objected to the test on that basis as it was after the Limited Test Ban Treaty.  While there was no nuclear explosion per se and so there was no violation of the letter of the treaty, the amount of potential release of radiation was nearly half of the first A-bomb released over Japan.  Given that being the case, the test was delayed until an almost windless day.  I was not quite clear about the logic of that since I doubted that the radiation would be swept up by brooms before the next windy day.  However, I had no intention of failing and so I went forward with the test. I am used to having certainty of result in that personality.  It is because of that certainty of result that I have often been used for these tests. The result of the test was that there was no increase in radiation detected afterwards compared to what had been at the site previously.  Some scientists objected that the radiation levels were slightly lower than they had been before and said that the results might not have been from getting rid of the radiation in the bomb as much as getting rid of it on the ground afterwards.  I found that a moot point.  After all the point was to prevent fallout that could hurt people.

That test was followed a few months later by more sophisticated tests on decreasing specific types of radiation –such as gamma rays versus alpha waves.  It really made no difference—it was only a difference in the intention. Those tests were run underground in caverns already created by nuclear explosions.  The tests showed that the mind could evaporate a ton of highly radioactive material instantaneously.  In this case we had visuals directly from security camera in the cavern.  In one frame the ton of uranium is there and in the next it was almost not and the second one it was gone. People accused me of getting kickbacks from the uranium ore company that I wasted a ton of the precious material but that was not the case.  Here I have omitted details of the actual tests because of true national security reasons. Omission of the details in this specific case will not prevent countries from protecting themselves from nuclear war and fallout.

The next set of tests that I want to mention happened a few years later in the Bush, Sr. administration.  These tests involved me at the site of the radiation, in this case at the Nevada Test Site primarily. I was asked to walk through radioactive caverns and ingest large lethal doses of radiation to test my abilities.  Really it was a little bizarre since I could decontaminate a whole cavern of the radiation after an atomic explosion, so there was no need to force me to ingest lethal doses before I decontaminated it.  The experiments verged on the sadistic and except that I had very unusual abilities relative to my body I would not have survived them.

Part VI The Industrial-Intelligence Machine Illustrated by Memoranda

I reproduced the below material from memory, as a composite of several memos:

Memorandum






March 2004

To Director of Central Intelligence Tenet:                        “Eyes Only”

Dear Sir;

We are sorry to hear about your recent unpleasant dinner conversation where <whited out> requested a definitive answer about the likelihood of limiting the production of <whited out > nuclear arms.  Please rest assured that we are doing everything in our power in the Department of Intelligence to bring your concerns to a satisfactory resolution.

Our analysts have assured me that:

1) Our funding of private think tanks is adequate to control the boundaries of “allowable discourse”.

2) Our media control mechanisms, including our extensive number of covert CIA officers inside the media are adequate in most locations of the world to effectively enforce those boundaries.

3) The current discussions on arms control by as yet non-privatized organizations, such as the UN, have already been effectively neutralized by institutional frameworks that allow us to veto any recommendations that they might formulate. It is unlikely that they will have the will to break out of such frameworks given the subsidies that we are providing.

4) Our efforts at undermining grass roots movements concerned with disarmament remain unabated and we foresee no real difficulties in this regard.  We are going forward with our plans to have all protesters labeled as terrorists, and the FBI and Inter-Pol are cooperating maximally with our plans.  [Associated Memo in the inbox: That unfortunate incident of Ohio Judge <whited out> trying to bring this matter to the Supreme Court for review has been resolved—we will send up his obituary for your review later this afternoon before submitting it.]

5) Our analysts assure me that the proposed deal would remain secret, based on our agency’s history of past successes in keeping such matters hushed up by primary and secondary means, if necessary.

Thus, in conclusion, we feel that it is safe for you to offer reassurances to <whited out> Nuclear Arms manufacturer <whited out> that he need have no concern about his deal going through as scheduled to sell nuclear weapons to Saudi Arabia.  The only caveat would be if an unauthorized nuclear exchange intervened before then, making it politically impossible for us to continue holding the public in the dark on these matters.

Please inform <whited out> that he may obtain the necessary think tank research papers supporting our conclusions to show his Board of Directors and stockholders by calling <whited out> at <whited out>, <whited out> at <whited out>, and <whited out> at <whited out>.  The standard fees will apply with an extra charge of <whited out> % as the going rate for Middle Eastern affairs.  Please note that the new number to apply for Federal Subsidies of these business fees is <whited out>.  We look forward to having his business again in the future.  [Associated Memo: The GAO (Government Accounting Office) has threatened to close down this private funding route for our department, but we expect to effectively counter such efforts, as before.]

Additionally, remind <whited out> that the time to get to the radiation shelter at Mt. Weather base could not be extended.  It remains at less than 10 minutes in the event of an actual emergency.  Of course, we know that makes it impractical. We continue to look into the feasibility of surviving our proposed pre-emptive first-strike plan and feel that we are making adequate progress in this area. We know that this is an area of grave concern for our clients “in the know”. However, the two-hour warning time to get to the Mt. Weather radiation shelter base remains in effect and so we recommend that he change his primary residence to the Washington, DC area. 

Signed, 

 Deputy Director of Intelligence  

If you have further concerns about the status of these matters, please refer them directly to the Deputy Director of Plans.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

[Note: Tenet relayed the information to the Arms Manufacturer in question.  That man wanted an opinion from the CIA on the likelihood that the deal would not go through due to the caveat mentioned above. Tenet asked me, as a remote viewer with a known and respected accuracy rating, to give a number to the risk of the deal not going through because of an intervening nuclear exchange. That number was 9% at the time as the deal was going to take over a year to complete, the Mossad was likely to find out, and a number of other complications were likely. My actual report on the matter got filed with Tenet about 2 weeks later, in which I recommended that the CIA nix the deal.  As the US govt. had plans to invade Saudi Arabia later for having weapons of mass destruction, there was no brake put on the deal even though it raised the risk of a nuclear exchange in the Middle East very significantly.  That risk was moderately decreased again by the CIA’s efforts to control some of the “fall-out” of the deal, bringing the risk of the deal not going through due to a nuclear exchange down to about the 6-7% range. But part of that decrease in short term risk involved mollifying the Israelis by selling them more nuclear missiles, thus increasing the long term risk of a worst nuclear exchange in the region.

It is a clear conflict of interests for the CIA to be making money on the sale of reports to these Arm Manufacturers though their think tank “private” fronts. The result of this kind of industrial-military-intelligence complex is not “national security” but global threat.  It most resembles games of Russian roulette played by US Vietnam veterans in bars in Hanoi.  Those men were so convinced that death was coming their way that they wanted an “easy way out”.  But nuclear war is unlikely to be a quick and painless death for most.  Few people want to know what radiation sickness is really like—who wants nausea, vomiting, and lethargy?  We are letting the market forces drive us towards war.  It is time to stop allowing that.  It is time to expose war profiteering in all its nasty puke-green and congealed blood colors. It is time to say no to the official lies before they kill us by preventing our effective action.]

Part VII: The Conference on WMD at Tenet’s Mansion in May 2004

During that conference of about 20 intelligence heads at Tenet’s mansion, I thought about whether some small step forward could be made in the right direction towards world peace. All those around me appeared to have already sold out and acquiesced to Armageddon as inevitable.  I knew that my life would be easier if I did that too.  Then I could be like them and keep living in big houses, eating delicious food and having people salute me or call me fancy titles, while money got deposited into a Swiss bank account each month. I longed to be as “blind” and unknowing as they were. I longed not to “see” the nuclear war and ”feel” its nausea and suffering in my many billions of bodies. Sometimes I do take breaks from knowing and go into my regular doctor personality for long periods of time.  The result is the fear and suffering of not knowing what will happen.  The ordinary insecurity of even “successful” people is quite overwhelming.  When I allow myself to “know”, I do know that I will be tortured and what will happen during that torture. But there is little emotional suffering because I have accepted those consequences in advance as the price I have to pay to help others. It is not so bad to be raped and tortured for 4 days, like I was in Aug. 2004, when one knows that it means that one has helped protect many others in Iran from the suffering of a war for some period of time at least. 

In the spring of 2004, about a month before Tenet officially resigned as DCI, there was a week-long residential seminar at his residence on the control of WMD.  There were about 20 invited guests; most of these were heads of “friendly” intelligence agencies. According to my memory the following countries had their heads of intelligence at that seminar: MI6, CSIS, Mossad, Australia, Saudi Arabia, Pakistan, Japan (2nd man in their intelligence agency), Iraq (US puppet intelligence head), South Korea, another Brit from their satellite reconnaissance section, another Arab (an Egyptian?), a Tajikistan (?, not the head but someone the CIA wanted to make the head of intelligence there), another Israeli—a military General, and others whom my memory might later be able to recover. 

I was the presenter for many of the sessions, having worked in the area of the WMD negotiations and remote viewing of such weapons over many decades.  That I was now asked to pretend in front of these men that the US was still interested in limiting WMD when in fact it had decided to use them in the future was quite difficult for me and I had a number of rows with Tenet over it.  I felt that these friendly services had a right to know that the game plan had changed.  Tenet countered that these were intelligent people and the US’s first strike pre-emptive nuclear war policy was in plain view so that there was no need to say anything.  I said that in that case he should have no qualms about my laying it on the table for discussion in one of my sessions.  He said that he forbade it.  I said that unless I was allowed to talk about it I would withdraw from being a presenter.  As I was to give about 40% of the presentations starting in 2 days time, it would have created a major problem for him to either torture me into compliance in that short time or to replace me.   His response was to have lawyers write up a single page stating that it was US policy to allow for a first-strike.  I did not find that adequate as “allow for” is not the same as “currently planning nuclear holocaust at our earliest convenience”.  On the day that the seminar started I again told Tenet that unless he let me tell the truth about the US policy that I could not give any of the presentations, as I was not willing to mislead those men about what the US policy really was. 

When I finally did broach the topic of the US’s actual intentions in my presentation, the men were quite shocked.  It was not at all as Tenet had tried to make me believe that they already suspected that the US was planning that.  One man refused to believe me and asked Tenet on the spot to confirm it.  Tenet nodded a yes, but the black African man said in Oxford type of English “I want to hear it from your own lips, if what this lady says is true”.  Tenet beat around the bush for a while but in the end he was forced by the participants to admit that the plan called for saving only 240 families up to that point.  He then hastened to add that he was not the author of the plan and in fact objected to it enough that he had not put his name on the list.  That black man persisted in questioning Tenet about how he could allow his agency to be engaged in such a policy that he did not even support.  Tenet shrugged and said that he just did what he was told.  The Black man was astounded and said in proper British accent, “You mean, Sir, to tell me that the head of the CIA is no more than a whipping boy?”  Tenet lamely nodded yes.  The black man from Nigeria (?) then said “Then who is in charge of this country since it certainly is not Mr. Bush?”  Tenet pointed to me and said, “Ask her, she is not afraid to speak.”  

I replied, “I regret to inform you that the Devil himself seems to be in charge here.”

“Ma’am,” he said “Surely you must be jesting”.

“No,” I said, “He wears a variety of expensive suits.  Someday he looks like a Rockefeller or another Capitalist.  But most days he just looks like everyone I see who is too lazy to stand up for what is right.”

“Ma’am” he said, “I will stand up for what is right.  I will leave now”.  And he got up and left.  The other black man stayed.  He was a torturer in his country and did not know any moral distinctions unlike the first man.  When a white supremacist pointed out that he would be the only black in 260 families, he said, “I can handle it.  I am not against the White folk.”

The end result of that discussion was that 20 more were added to the number of the list as heads of households to be housed in Mt. Weather. The CIA managed to turn almost all of those 20 men
 into traitors to their countrymen for a chance of survival in that Hell Hole.  If I had not witnessed the result of that sell-out myself I could hardly have believed that it was possible. If anything it made the whole situation even more absurd than before—imagine pretending that there was a national security crisis necessitating possibly going to nuclear war and meanwhile letting 20 intelligence czars of other countries into your number 1 military bunker.  I had to laugh at the irony of it as an operation that was untenable before it even began.  In any case, 20 more people knew the truth about the US’s current plans to go to nuclear war than had before I took that stand.  That was not much of a victory I admit, but at least I did not have to go through that seminar in a two-faced manner of lying by withholding crucial information. 

Additionally, the list of men to be saved was afterwards less genetically strait-jacketed, though as a practical matter I sincerely doubted that the US would give those men time to make it to the bunker, or inform them of the gathering date and time.  If one is planning to kill a planet worth of people, why would one feel constrained to keep a mere verbal promise? In order to not mislead the men concerned I brought that issue up with Tenet in front of them.  Tenet turned red-faced a moment and then handled it as well as could be expected.  He said that everyone knows that to get up early is best, but no one gets up so early that they have not yet gone to bed.  He said that what he meant by this is that there is no point worrying about it until it happens.  Few people at the conference were pleased by that answer.  That was particularly the case since I had told them already that the official US plans called for only a two-hour warning, one that was insufficient even to get someone who had traveled to the West Coast back in time.  Imagine if you were half a world away.  Tenet now tried to smooth things over saying that the 2-hour number was in case of “emergencies” only and could be changed to longer.  The remaining black man from Africa asked when it would be changed to allow him to arrive in time.  Tenet hemmed and hawed until it was fairly clear to all that the US had lied to them about letting them into the shelter.  Some very uncomfortable moments passed in silence until Tenet picked up the phone and asked to speak to the White House and then asked if the time could be changed to 2 days.  Tenet had however not put the call through, a fact that was easily exposed by my pressing the speakerphone button.  The busy signal rang loudly in the room, giving lie to his pantomime that he was already talking to Bush. Exposed in this fashion, Tenet retreated from the living room of his own house and was not seen again until much later in the day.

Without his presence in the room, people asked me many pointed questions that I did my best to answer honestly.  Intelligence must be about honesty and integrity or it is nothing but the demise of one’s country from within.  Needless to say those men developed a far different understanding of US intentions to go to nuclear war than they would have had otherwise.  In most cases the men remained utterly faithful to their roles as traitors to their countrymen in spite of knowing that their loyalty to the US power structure would not really save them.  

At the time of that conference in late Spring 2004, I had before me in my mind already the upcoming torture in August.  And I saw that I could avoid that if I played “it safe” and went along with the flow toward nuclear war and the local wars in the Middle East.  As much as I personally wanted to sell out, I was unable to because I knew the consequences to my soul if I did so.  Many people have become saints through praying to know the consequences of their actions.  Saint Theresa of Avila in the 1500’s or so had a vision of the small cramped space in Hell that God showed her that her vanity over her looks had earned her.  As a result she became serious about the welfare of her soul.  She made spiritual progress, developed the rapture of uniting her will with Christ and had to be held down during mass to prevent her levitation.  She is the founder of the Carmelite convents.  I recommend that people pray to know the consequences of their behavior—it is very sobering to know.  It is more important than knowing the price of items or how to make a living, because it has much more far reaching effects for one’s self and for those around one.

So at the conference I prayed that those men know the consequences of their actions in giving tacit approval to the US administration’s plan to kill off the planet with radiation and then reverse the radioactivity by psychokinetic means.  I made that prayer silently while I was listening to another presenter, Tenet, as a spur of the moment thought.  Suddenly, all the men in the room fainted dead away and their mind were confronted with visions of their afterlives.  You can ask some of them directly, what it was that they experienced at that time.  It was not until Tenet was done being scheduled to tell them lies that morning that they returned to their usual bodily perceptions.  Having spent only a few hours knowing the consequences they easily went back into denial again.  Yet many said that they were completely shocked to learn that the suffering they saw of the denizen’s of Hell was so dreadful.  Three of the men resigned from being heads of their intelligence agencies within about a month later. One of these three was the head of the SVR, the Russian intelligence service that used to be the KGB.  Although officially Russia was not considered a “friendly foreign intelligence” service, the CIA had gone to a lot of trouble after the Cold War to advance this man’s particular career and “well-being”.  As a result he was invited to this conference as a full participant.  I knew him quite well as I had negotiated intelligence sharing agreements between the CIA and the SRV over many years.  After this session, this Russian SRV general sitting next to me said “Strong vodka you serve here—it opens the eyes, not shuts them to the ethical concerns.  Next time tell me in advance when you are going to serve it so that I can drink Smirnoffs instead.” I then admitted to him that it occurred as a result of a passing thought of mine, without pre-meditation.  He said, more as a question than a statement, “It is a good thing that you do not pre-meditate me harm then.”  Tenet was less than pleased and coming to in a now wrinkled suit, he exclaimed loudly, “Would someone please get this woman off my back before I am a ruined shirt?”  He, of course, was one of the three to resign, a decision he did not make until later that same day.  That night he asked me in private “How do I avoid that (Hell)?”  We spent much of the night discussing what he would need to do to clean up his soul.  The next day he phoned the White House and said that he wanted to change the focus of the negotiations to the terms of his resignation.  The conference still had three days to go and those negotiations were quite involved and lengthy.

How can men who have seen their likely condition after death later ignore it?  It is the most important intelligence one could have and yet most of them threw it away. Good intelligence is often discarded by intelligence services when it runs counter to the “prevailing winds of deception” within an agency.  Those who were most affected by it were those who knew me best and had the most confidence in my integrity and thus in what they had witnessed. The third resignation was the head of MI6.  I had worked closely with MI5 for about 20 years and with MI6 for the last 5 years of my time working at the CIA (1998-2001, 2003-2004).  The Head of MI6 was a particular close friend of mine, of a non-sexual nature. I had “assisted at the birth” of one of his children who had nearly been born blue in about 2000.  So I had thereafter stayed at his house whenever I passed through London, which was several times a year.  We had many long talks about the state of the world and our respective agencies.  And while we did not see eye to eye on most topics, we managed a mutual respect that bordered on the miraculous.  I mention all this because it is relevant to our discussion in a number of ways.  First, intelligence heads are ordinary people with their own private sufferings. Second, it is relevant to his wife’s suicide the month after he resigned.  At the conference the next day, he told me of his decision to resign.  He did not know of Tenet or the SRV head’s decisions as they were all made independently. He mentioned his wife and getting to spend more time with his family as part of the reason for the decision.  I told him that he should not share his vision of Hell with his wife if he wanted her to live.  We were interrupted by Tenet to resume the next session and never talked much more about it.  The Head of MI6 ignored my warning and told his wife in depth about where he would end up in Hell, if he didn’t correct his life.  His wife suddenly understood what his life had consisted of and she was unable to live with the guilt of having been the wife of a man who had ordered people tortured. The pictures of Abu Gharib were freshly released and that combined with her husband’s confession to her were too much for her to live with.  So while it is very good for people to face this intelligence on their after-life and correct the problems, it requires case-by-case analysis to decide whether it is appropriate to share that information with others. Such decisions are often best made with the help of a competent remote viewer whose advice one is willing to take.

One could ask those retired intelligence heads to verify what I say about the US’s plans to go to nuclear war with psycho-kinetic rescue after it.  They might try to avoid a direct answer, but they might decide that their soul’s health now required them to tell the Truth.  Certainly, they had adequate knowledge of the classified documents to know the truth of the matter independent of what I said at that conference.  And they have adequate standing in the field of intelligence to make what they say on the matter newsworthy.  It is possible that to save the world and their souls in the process that they will now break ranks from the Reverse Christians and speak the Truth. I believe that they will, if given a suitable gentle opportunity to do so. However, a denial would not carry much weight as it is just likely more of the hot air of the “prevailing wind”.

On the last day of that conference, I presented a proposal on how we could get to a safer world (given the current state of affairs, including most of them having sold out to the herd mentality that causes people to follow leaders like Hitler).  I am a realist. I start with the facts as they are, no matter how unpleasant they are.  When one is among “collaborators with the Neo-cons” who are plotting the end of the world as part of the Final Solution, what one has left to deal with are not moral arguments as those have already been dismissed.  What one has left are only issues of efficiency—what is the best way to accomplish the goal.  So I drew up a document that elicited their commitment to not failing at the task.  Now that sounds counter-productive to a safer world until one understands that to actually do the Final Solution correctly is really an impossible task.  How do you destroy all human life outside of their shelters and yet have a livable world later?  The US administration was planning this Final Solution incompetently by not even showing that what they were attempting was possible first.  So I tried to bring some sanity into this planning by trying to get them to undertake the appropriate experiments before launching such a catastrophic misadventure.

The document from my memory went basically as follows;

Due to the dire consequences of nuclear war upon the plants, animals, and humans of the planet, it is incumbent on all nations with a first strike or retaliation policy/capacity to undertake the following experiments prior to the use of their weapons.  This helps to ensure that their survival will be possible subsequent to such a use.

In an experimental biosphere, after a lethal dose of radiation has been released;

1) Can one prove that there is a method (which has been proven can be applied to a whole planet) to reliably restore that environment to being safe for human life for up to a year later?

2) Can one demonstrate a method that will restore the environment to be safe for human life until it produces progeny?

3) Can one demonstrate a method that will restore the environment to be safe during the normal lifespan of a human?

4) Can one demonstrate a method that will restore the environment to be safe up to 7 generations of one’s progeny?

5) Can one demonstrate a method that the geneticists agree will preserve the genome and intelligence of the species?

6) Does such a method once found have the necessary reliability, efficacy, and ease of use that will enable it to succeed with greater than 90% probability at all of the above tasks?

7) Is such a method readily used by all those who might later be put in a position of being required to use it for the success of the mission?

8) Are the secondary methods adequate to prevent the failure of the mission should the primary method be found not to be adequate?

9) Have the above studies been found to be free of bias and replicated by at least two other independent research groups?

10)  Is there a consensus among scientists in the field that such a mission can be successfully accomplished without more than a 10% risk of serious unforeseen or uncorrectable consequences?

11) Have adequate provisions been made to allow for more scientific study to be done mid-course, if needed to make corrections? Can those mid-course corrections be completed in time to rescue the mission?  Do the scientists have confidence that all mid-course crises can be handled with greater than 90% success when assessed all together?

12) Has the above scientific research been done without bias introduced due to corruption by money, political influence, or propaganda so that the result can be trusted?  

13) What mental suffering for the mission’s participants can be expected if the above research is not done honestly and correctly?

14) What degree of confidence in the above research do the participants need in order to avoid mental suffering?

15) What research needs to be done to ensure that the science supports the mental health of the participants?

Although the plan for the Final Solution calls for mental torment of the populace, the authors of the plan do not want such suffering for themselves.  This document undercuts their blind and misguided belief that I, or another remote viewer, can magically do what they want without their even having to test in a careful and controlled fashion whether this is so. Even though the skills of remote viewers were tested to decrease radioactivity and there was some success in that, it doesn’t mean that that success was reliable, or can be applied to the whole planet, or even a region. Psycho-kinesis of this type is a relative new advance and to rely on it in a context this dangerous to the planet is foolhardy in the extreme. That planes do fly the skies regularly, usually without crashing these days, does not mean that in 1920 they were reliable enough to trust the whole planet’s survival on whether they could successfully make a hitherto unattempted transatlantic flight. Even with the reliability of planes now, who would be so foolish as to allow the fate of the whole planet to rely on whether a particular plane safely made the trip?

The policy of pre-emptive first strike has been made by men without either scientific or remote viewing training and without respect for those who have it.  The administration believes that it can dictate scientific conclusions as well as legal ones. Was that really the case that they had the power of mind to change facts in science and in law, then let them prove that they can change the radioactivity levels themselves!  In the meantime, there is no substitute for good unbiased science to test the results that faith in God can manifest.  Science and religion are not enemies but the two legs of decent human conduct when by science we mean reproducible method and by religion we mean dedication to getting the longest lasting, most sublime benefit.

After I presented these points and discussed why I believed that they had to be fulfilled prior to starting a nuclear launch, the conference participants signed their agreement to it. It had no legal binding power on the administration.  The US administration reacted the next week by sending Tenet a memo stating that the Commander in Chief, the President, had the authority to make all decisions related to going to war and that could not be abridged by scientific authority. The problem with that response is that radiation is not known to respond to Executive Orders. So the “scientific authority” possessed by the lowly substance called radioactivity already abridges the authority of the Commander in Chief  to dictate as he pleases.

What was the result of this attempt to get the administration to seriously study scientifically whether what they were planning was even feasible with a reasonable degree of safety?  They commissioned one review of all the already available bio-sphere projects, most of which never involved adding radiation. And they tasked the ONI and some of my remote viewing students to do a biosphere experiment.  This experiment was carried out in 2005 when I was no longer in the US and was designed in an unethical way.  I only know about it by remote viewing.  In that experiment, three of my former students were put in a biosphere in which radiation was released.  The administration had hoped that they would decrease the radiation to survivable levels, thus proving that their plan was feasible.  Each of those students had on previous tests been able to reduce radiation levels by over 50% in ethical experiments, prior to the US administration seriously backing the plan to kill off the humans of the planet.  But in the actual experiment in the biosphere my students were unable to decrease the radiation by even 10% and called out desperately to their minds telepathically for my help as they were dying. Since reducing the radiation in the biosphere would lead to a greater increased probability of billions of people dying, it was unethical to do so to save the lives of the 3 ONI officers. What was ethical to do was to relieve their suffering as they died and this I did to the best of my ability.  Even that effort was complicated by ethical considerations. One man was very much in favor, going into the experiment, of “nuking the world”—for him there was not much reduction in suffering from my prayers.  Another man was not in favor of “nuking the world” but was sufficiently angry at certain of his family members and his ex-wife as to want them to die in such a catastrophe.  That motivation for volunteering for the experiment was largely subconscious and unknown to him until he started to die.  After he was able to confess that to me in his mind, he got substantial relief from his suffering and died in peace.  The third man volunteered for the experiment because he wanted to save Mankind from nuclear holocaust.  He gave his life courageously to help demonstrate the foolhardiness of the administration’s plans.  He only suffered briefly when he had doubts that he had done the right thing in leaving his son and wife behind to fend for themselves. That doubt was easy for me to help correct and he died as a Christian martyr with complete forgiveness in his heart. All three men were dead by 72 hours from radiation sickness.

Again, per remote viewing which has a greater than 90% accuracy in my hands for straight intelligence, the administrations reaction to the result of this experiment was to hide the results.  Only 2 people in the administration read the ONI report, Cheney and Rumsfeld.  Rumsfeld wanted the experiment repeated with another 3 men, and Cheney said, “Why bother? We already know what the results will be.  Let’s just get it over with.  We have to die sooner or later anyway.”  Cheney’s fears of another stroke and worse incapacitation were in his mind as motivating factors as he said that. Rumsfeld did commission another study through the Pentagon.  His mind is inquisitive and likes data.  The JCS decided to do a much more extensive evaluation of the issue than the ONI undertook.  Those studies have not yet been done, only designed.  There are several forces that are trying to undermine those studies to force them to reach the conclusion that the administration wants.  It may be possible to skillfully unmask those biasing forces even from a distance. But ultimately the decision to push the button may be made more on emotional impulse and faulty logic than on the result of those experiments.

Briefly, per remote viewing the experiments that the Pentagon devised fall into three groups:

1) Experiments to determine the maximum radiation level compatible with the survival of the plants and animals as a source of food for humans.

2) Experiments on the best way to fool remote viewers into believing that their reduction of radiation is ethical. Experiments in this category include doing pre-frontal lobotomies on some remote viewers. There is also an experiment evaluating drugs, including alcohol, for diminishing the moral reasoning ability of the remote viewers.  [Note: It would be hard to believe that such unethical experiments would be undertaken, except that history shows that the US did brain surgeries even on children as part of its mind-control research.  They also did experiments on causing brain damage as a mind control technique and have put that into practice in the form of the Russell-Page Electroshock protocols of massive amounts of electricity to fry the brain. See Bluebird and Psychiatry and the CIA. This is used as a standard retaliation against whistleblowers such as remote viewer Morehouse in the mid 1990’s and myself in May, 2000].

3) Experiments on enhancing the abilities of remote viewers to decrease radiation by hypnosis, group therapy, virtual reality ploys, etc.

The Pentagon has not commissioned any studies to directly check the abilities of remote viewers to decrease biosphere radiation levels, even from outside the biosphere, as they are afraid such results would be the same as before and thus be harmful to their career advancement possibilities.  There is a group within the Pentagon that would like to see this first strike plan abandoned by the administration, but it is not very powerful.

Part VIII:The Risk of Nuclear War in the Next 10 Years per Remote Viewing 

Much of what I have written on these pages regarding the gist of US policy relating to nuclear first strike is quite depressing.  The US administration is not fully committed to its first strike plan, as evidenced by Rumsfeld wanting more data on its survivability. I would put their dedication to the plan at about 46% currently, down from about 86% in Oct. 2003.  I do have real hope that such an event can be prevented. In fact, by remote viewing analysis I would place the likelihood of a US first strike nuclear holocaust in the next 10 years as slightly under 10%.  The likelihood of a Russian first strike I would put at about 4%, of a Chinese started nuclear explosion at about 6%, and as an Indian or Pakistani started one about 11%, of an Israeli-Arab-Middle Eastern one about 22%, Korea about 2%.  Note that these are not all equivalent events—most of them are not global.  So while 22% is a much higher number than 10%, such a nuclear war in the Middle East would likely be confined to that part of the world, though fallout could be expected to effect most of the world with up to a tripling of the background radiation.

Why are these numbers so high compared to what they were a mere decade ago for the 1990’s? [Roughly, US—1%, Russia—1%, China---2%, Israel-Arab—3%, India-Pakistan—5%, Korea less than 1%].

The reason is three-fold:

1) The loss of US restraint against nuclear war and against war in general has triggered increased fear and similar loss of restraint elsewhere.

2) The wars in the Middle-East are decreasing the stability of those countries and of the region.  And the US has sold WMD not just to the Israelis but also to the Saudis and more to the Pakistanis, and even some other Arab countries in the region, secretly violating its non-proliferation policies.  It has done so partly to later be able to blame those countries as having WMD as an excuse to go in and seize their country and their oil, just as it did in Iraq.

3) The US has managed to get so many countries to cover-up the truth about 9-11 and host similar traumatizing events in their countries [e.g. the London subway bombing—see references above in the background section, and the Madrid Train wreck], that the level of lying needed to maintain the status quo has gone way up.  That level of dishonesty of governments with respect to their citizens is one of the prime markers of and causes of future war.  Let me say that another way—a country’s willingness to lie to its citizens is directly proportionate to its willingness to have them die in war and terror.  (In English we have the saying “Truth is the first casualty of war”.)  This relationship is so reliable that the CIA monitors the risk of war in countries around the world by analyzing newspapers for the percentage of “official lies” that they contain. The CIA also uses remote viewers to monthly assess the levels of “official lies”.  The level of lies goes sharply upward prior to a war as the government puts out the propaganda needed to drive its public to war.  Wars are very rarely “accidents”.  They are events that take a great deal of planning behind the scenes.

	For more information on the propaganda that got us into the Iraq War see James Bamford’s excellent article “The Man Who Sold the War” at http://www.commondreams.org/cgi-bin/print.cgi?file=/headlines05/1118-10.htm 

	Published on Friday, November 18, 2005 by Rolling Stone 

	

	

	Also see Tired of Being Lied to? http://www.buzzflash.com/farrell/05/11/far05001.html



I am not alone in sounding the warning that the US is seriously out of line in its pre-emptive war policy.  

Excerpts from ex-President Jimmy Carter on the US Pre-emptive War Policy: 

http://csmweb2.emcweb.com/2005/1104/p05s01-usmb.html
	
	
	


	Most people do not understand mathematics very well.  They believe that if the risk of an accident is low from doing an action on a given day, then it is safe to keep on doing it day after day.  Let us get specific.  Suppose the risk of a nuclear war is 1% each year in which we have the current number of weapons on the planet. That seems so low that people think, “What’s the problem?”  The problem is how many years you can keep doing that before there actually is a nuclear war and the annihilation of the human genome?  Suppose you have a risk of greater or equal to 1% each year for 60 years since the dropping of the bomb on Hiroshima. Those 1% risks do not add up to mean that within a hundred years there is a certainty of nuclear war, but they do keep compounding so that nuclear war becomes a virtual certainty, if the situation is not changed. Our inaction in the face of even a low risk of nuclear war will doom us with certainty.  Suppose for a moment that it turned out that everything I said about the US administration breaking treaties, about their building mini-nukes, and about their re-furbish Mt. Weather were false.  All that being false would still not change the basic fact that tolerating any risk of a nuclear war, no matter how small, will eventually doom us to extinction. The fate of the planet is in your hands. If you act it can be saved.  If you do not, God help you when the time comes and you have to face what your inaction has wrought.

Part IX: A Brief History of Radiation Abatement

The history of radiation abatement experiments,  is unlikely to be familiar to the average reader.  However, much of this history is well over 20 years old and thus would be declassified by now on that basis.  The original studies on radiation abatement occurred almost immediately after the discovery of radiation itself as radiation was initially thought to be a media through which things could be known like psychic mediums contacted the dead. So back in the early days of the development of X-rays as a tool for looking into the human body, it was compared to what psychics saw inside the body. The earliest studies tried to replicate the effect of radiation on the body using psychics.  Some of those studies showed that the mind was able to generate burns inside the body much in the way that early overdoses of radiation did. At one point, a healer used what he called radiation from the mind to treat TB cases.  Some of his cases were remarkable to the military men of his times around the turn of the century and during WWI, he was asked to use his mind to stop internal bleeding of patients by “burning” the bleeding tissue.  That research was stopped when the French general he was working under was exposed to mustard gas which burned his lungs enough to make him frightened of anything labeled as “burning”.  

It was not until the end of WWI that a British military officer picked up this line of enquiry and asked a psychic to see into his friend’s body with his “X-ray” vision.  The psychic in this case was not successful in gaining any useful information and that could have been the end of the experiment except that the patient noticed a lot of heat inside his body at the time and commented on it.  That effect turned out to be a reliable effect of that psychic and he was then asked if he could do the opposite and treat fever cases.  He had modest success in this regard and eventually was asked to treatment men who had been exposed to mustard gas as it was a burning question at the time as to whether there was anything that could be done for those men. His success in this endeavor was about a 25% improvement in the men’s symptoms and since other modalities were even less effective, it was considered a cutting edge advance.  Out of that several other British psychics were screened for effectiveness in this and one of them was found to be fairly good with about a 40% reduction of symptoms in studies in which the patient was not aware of the treatment done at a distance across the English channel. At the end of WWI, that particular psychic was being used by British intelligence to treat soldiers on the battlefield for mustard gas exposure in an effort to prevent scarring of the lungs.  The results gathered at the time were that battlefields that he treated with his mind had an almost 50% reduction of mustard gas injuries compared to those adjoining he did not treat.  The effect was significant enough that British intelligence guarded the secret, including his identity, and refused to let him treat patients face on face even after the war was over.

Between the wars, further research along these lines continued as part of the many mustard gas experiments that were done. In one of those experiments, radiation was used to mimic the effects of mustard gas and the psychic in question was not told that the radiation had been substituted for the gas.  The reduction in symptoms and in the scarring of the lungs afterwards was notable. But the improvement was not attributed yet to a decrease in the radiation itself, but considered to be due to a general “cooling effect” on the lungs that helped limit the harmful effect.

It was not until 1938, in Nazi Germany that the first experiments showed that the mind could change the radioactivity of a substance per se.  That experiment was done to see if it was possible to change the glow of radium painted dials cause them to “black out” during air raid drills.  That experiment was considered a success by the standards  of the day, namely that the radium was noticeably fainter afterwards.  However, that was not a reversible effect and the experiment was thus not used for black out purposes.  Another 4 years would pass before that experiment would be repeated, this time asking the psychic to only fade the radium temporarily.  When asked to do that, the desired result was obtained.  However, as it required the psychic 15 minutes to achieve the effect and such psychics were often not available when that function was needed, little came of that finding.  

It was thus not until after the dropping of the A- bombs on Japan that the question became a military pressing one as to whether the mind could cause radiation abatement.  A curious note in the history on this topic comes from a Zen source.  Namely, after the war, the US Army noted that around the area of a particular Zen monastery in Japan near Nagasaki there were very few deaths from the A-bomb’s radiation.  That was attributed to a particular monk that cared for the sick and washed them. However, when the US army studied the radiation levels they found them less in the monastery and concluded that the wind patterns had prevented as high an exposure there.  That interpretation could have been true except for on notable anomaly, in the vicinity of the monastery behind its walls, the radiation levels were higher than expected.  Still this was explained away as due to the washing of the monastery by the monks with the deposit of the dirt outside of the monastery.  It would not be until a few years later that the US army would test the Zen monk in question on his ability to directly abate radiation.  When they did test him, them found that he was able to reduce radiation by about 82%.  The reduction was long-lasting and later he was asked to go to Bikini to help treat some of the survivors of radiation experiments there.  But because he effected the radiation levels around him in general, and often in unpredictable ways, the US army which wanted to study the effects of the radiation levels on human health, ended up sending him back to Japan.  That monk’s name was Tomo Ayuhowi (SP?) and many Zen people considered him a local saint.  He was renowned in his area for his kindness and his healing abilities and so the Army really did not think that his ability to lower radiation levels would be reproducible.  Thus, there was little attempt at that time to do further experiments along these lines with an eye to finding or developing others who could do the same. I know about this early history on the topic because the CIA asked me to research the area and write up my findings, which I did in the mid-1980s.

Unfinished---add means by which radiation abatement experiments have been fudged in the past.


The above is true per my memory to the best of my knowledge.  As I have repeatedly written down “bizarre and frankly unbelievable” memories only to have them confirmed later by reliable sources such as CIA documents and US Congressional Records, I am unable to discount what I have remembered without very good reasons to do so. Please investigate these allegations to the extent of your ability to do so.  The fate of the human species depends on our disarming the entire planet of WMD at the very least.  

Sue Arrigo, MD

intuitivemd@yahoo.com
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